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Executive Summary
The Town of Westerly has many factors to consider when making the important decision regarding the
qualified company you will partner with on your Development and Implementation of a Revaluation
Program. The chosen partner’s mass appraisal qualifications, the quality of the appraisal personnel to staff
the project, and a sound approach for completing the project on time should be primary considerations.
In the current economic environment it is equally important to assess the financial stability of the partner
and the likelihood they will see the project through to completion and be available to assist the Town of
Westerly in the future on an as needed basis.
The past performance of Tyler Technologies’ CLT Appraisal Services is a strong indicator of our strengths.
Our exclusive focus on the public sector has allowed Tyler to establish an operating model that has
positioned our organization as the clear leader in this space. Because Tyler Technologies is a publicly held
company (NYSE: TYL), our prospective clients can leverage regulations as set forth by the SEC to further
evaluate our current financial position. We believe it is important to the Town of Westerly to have
assurances that the work will occur uninterrupted.

Company Advantages and Strengths
Leadership: Tyler’s CLT Appraisal Services is the nation’s only national mass appraisal company and has
been appraising properties since 1938. We have specific, local experience in the northeast and a large
staff of qualified individuals available for assignment, led by David Johnson, President of CLT Appraisal
Services. Tyler has led the development of computer-assisted mass appraisal (CAMA) and has been
innovating approaches since the 1960s. Tyler’s CLT Appraisal Services has completed more than 2,500
appraisal projects in 46 states.
Investment: Tyler follows responsible bidding practices. We respond to your requests, analyze the
specifications of your project, and take into consideration the services you need to succeed and avoid
unexpected expenses. You can be assured that we will deliver a product and values that you can stand
behind when talking with property owners and community leadership.
Partnership: Tyler is here for the long term – a strong, lasting partner. Our company is financially sound.
We encourage you to compare the financial backgrounds of our competitors and ourselves. You will find
that we are well managed with solid principles and we have the resources to deliver what we promise.
We have broad experience in communicating with the public and will help you explain the appraisal
process.
Professionalism: We work hard for our clients and hold ourselves to high standards of quality and
professionalism. We understand how to appraise and defend the values of complex and unusual
properties. Our results are measured against the International Association of Assessing Officers (IAAO)
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and local standards. The results are documented in reports that are compliant with all state and local
requirements, as well as Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) requirements
where appropriate.

Contact Persons
We welcome your questions and comments. Please don’t hesitate to contact us for information before,
during or after your reassessment project.
Melissa Baer, CAE, CCMAII
Northeastern Regional Manager
800-273-8605 ext. 1500
E-mail: melissa.baer@tylertech.com

Robert N. Marshall
Senior Account Executive
800-800-2581 ext. 1506
E-mail: bob.marshall@tylertech.com

Tyler Technologies, Inc., CLT Appraisal Services
One Tyler Way
Moraine, OH 45439
800-800-2581
Fax: 866-658-4258
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Company History Overview
In 1938, the Cole Layer Trumble Company began serving the appraisal market. During its long history, Cole
Layer Trumble established itself as a leader in appraisal services. In 1999, Tyler Technologies, Inc. (Tyler)
acquired Cole Layer Trumble. The combined strengths of these two great companies formed Tyler’s CLT
Appraisal Services, headquartered in Moraine, Ohio. Our success is due to providing products that work.
We have continually refined our appraisal techniques. We pioneered the application of computer-assisted
mass appraisal (CAMA). Our sound appraisal practices and knowledge of developing computer systems
has enabled us to become a leading provider of appraisal and tax software and services.
Tyler’s CLT Appraisal Services is known for dependability in completing projects on time and within
budget. We are recognized for our expertise in areas such as property valuation modeling and analysis.
Our team of professionals understands the challenges clients face when communicating with leadership,
other agencies and the public. Tyler stands out from our competitors because we are able to work with
clients to develop successful communication strategies. Our appraisal and tax subject matter experts stay
up-to-date on changing legislation and practices through training and professional associations. Our staff
of over 300 professionals includes certified appraisers who are completely familiar with the regions in
which we work.
Tyler Technologies (NYSE: TYL) is a leading provider of end-to-end information management solutions and
services for local governments. Tyler partners with clients to empower the public sector — cities, counties,
schools and other government entities — to become more efficient, more accessible and more responsive
to the needs of their constituents. Tyler’s client base includes more than 15,000 local government offices
in all 50 states, Canada, the Caribbean, the United Kingdom and other international locations. In 2017,
Forbes ranked Tyler on its “Most Innovative Growth Companies” list, and it has also named Tyler one of
“America’s Best Small Companies” eight times. The company has been included six times on the Barron’s
400 Index, a measure of the most promising companies in America. More information about Tyler
Technologies, headquartered in Plano, Texas, can be found at www.tylertech.com.

Rhode Island Revaluation Certificate
Tyler is a Certified Revaluation Company in the state of Rhode Island and is registered with the
Department of Revenue.

Audited Financial Statements
Please refer to the 2016 Annual Report included in the Appendix.
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Proposed Personnel
Tyler has built a strong and capable staff through recent projects completed in Rhode Island and
throughout the Northeast. This staff is made up of talented and driven appraisal professionals trained to
perform the necessary tasks in this difficult business. We are committed to very strong appraisal
leadership who will work in conjunction with the Project Management team in all facets of this project,
to ensure an on time completion of the Town of Westerly’s Revaluation.
Our proposed Project Manager is Melissa Baer. Ms. Baer has extensive experience valuing waterfront
properties and recently presented an IAAO webinar on the topic. The following pages contain the detailed
resumes of our proposed team.
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MELISSA BAER, CAE, CCMA II
NORTHEAST REGIONAL MANAGER
EDUCATION:
University of Connecticut – Storrs, CT
Bachelor of Arts. Major in Political Science – 1993
CT Tax Collector’s Association, Course 1 –Intro to Tax Collection, Administration & Law
IAAO 300 – Fundamentals of Mass Appraisal – 1998
IAAO 302 – Multiple Regression Analysis – 2002
IAAO CAE Candidate – 2006
IAAO 311 – Residential Modeling Concepts – 2006
IAAO 102 – Income Approach to Value – 2006
IAAO 101 – Fundamentals of Real Property Appraisal – 2007
IAAO 112 – Income Approach to Valuation II – 2007
IAAO 400 – Assessment Administration - 2007
Appraisal Institute, Course 410, National USPAP Equivalent Course – 2007
IAAO Standards of Practice & Professional Ethics Supplement – 2008
Regression Analysis Course – 2008
IAAO Forum 909- Appraising Commercial Property in a Declining Market – 2008
IAAO 907- Valuation of Wireless Communication Towers – 2009
IAAO Conference – 2010, 2011, 2012, 2014
NRAAO Conference - 2013
USPAP renewal 2014
CERTIFICATIONS:
IAAO – Certified Assessment Evaluator – CAE # 1135
Connecticut Certified Municipal Assessor II
State of Connecticut: Land/Residential, Personal Property, Commercial/Industrial and Supervisor Certifications
New Hampshire Certified for Real Estate Appraiser
New Hampshire Certified Property Assessor
Vermont - Certified for Project Supervisor
Delaware – Certified Assessor #X6-0000002
TEACHING EXPERIENCE:
2014

Approved as instructor by the CCMA (CT Certified Municipal Assessor) committee to instruct
course 6 – Revaluation at the annual Assessor’s School.

2013

Co-instructed “Understand & Use of Sale Ratios” – CT Chapter IAAO

2012

Co-instructed “What you should know/expect from Revaluation” – CT Chapter IAAO

2010

Participated in the development of internal Tyler coursework for residential appraisers.
Approved instructor for approved Tyler courses.

QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE:
2014 – Present

Northeast Regional Manager – Responsible for performance of region which includes New
England, NY, NJ, DE and PA.

2002 - Present

Project Supervisor for the Multiple Municipal Reassessment Consortium (MMRC: Greenburgh,
Ossining, & Yonkers, NY.), Dover, DE, Greenwich, CT, Stratford, CT, Bloomfield, CT.,
Eastford, CT., Darien, CT., Ashford, CT., Woodstock, CT., Griswold, CT., North Branford, CT,

3/15

Sprague, CT, Thompson, CT, Lebanon, CT, Scotland, CT, Putnam, CT, Plainfield, CT,
Sterling, CT, Groton, CT, Voluntown, CT, Windham, CT, Clinton, CT, Franklin, CT, and
Killingly, CT, Rocky Hill, CT, Darien, CT. In addition to Project Supervision, Ms. Baer has been
responsible for analysis and valuation of all types of properties in CT and RI, as well as data
conversions and implementation of appraisal software.
2001

Voluntown, CT, Enfield, CT, Smithfield, RI, West Warwick, RI, South Kingstown, RI –
Residential review, condominium valuation, hearing officer, sale verification and analysis, land
valuation

2000

Stafford, CT – Residential review, personal property, data collection and valuation,
condominium valuation

2000

Joined Cole-Layer-Trumble Company

1999

Killingly, CT – Deputy Assessor

1996

Brooklyn, CT – Assessor

3/15

DAVID A. BOAST
RESIDENTIAL REVIEWER
EDUCATION:
GED
Principals & Practices of Real Estate, Data Institute
SPECIAL COURSES:
IAAO 101 – Fundamentals of Real Property Appraisal
IAAO 102 – Income Approach to Valuation
CERTIFICATIONS:
CT Land/Residential & Commercial/Industrial Certificate #964
EXPERIENCE:
2012 – Present

Sprague, CT., Putnam, CT., Thompson, CT., Windham, CT.,
Franklin, CT., Groton, CT., Killingly, CT., Sterling, CT., Eastford,
Ashford, CT., Woodstock, CT., Plainfield, CT., Scarsdale, NY.,
Canterbury, CT., MMRC (Westchester, NY.), Warwick, RI. –
Residential & Commercial Data Collection
Thompson, CT., Putnam, CT. – Final Review

2010

Joined Tyler Technologies | CLT Division.

2008-Current

Self Contracted work for Windham and East Hampton, CT. Land,
Residential & Commercial Data Collection, Review & Hearings

2000-2008

Real Estate Management – East Hampton, East Haddam, Lisbon,
Westport, Haddam, and Brooklyn, CT. Land, Residential &
Commercial Data Collection, Review & Hearings

1998-2000

Vision Appraisal – Leominster, MA, North Adams, MA & Madison,
CT. Land, Residential & Commercial Data Collection & Review

1995-1998

R.R.C - Portland, CT, Bozrah, CT, Millbury, MA, Oxford, MA,
Sturbridge, MA, & North Kingstown, RI. Land, Residential &
Commercial Data Collection, Review & Hearings

1994-1995

CLT – Lancaster and West Chester, PA. Commercial Data Collection
& Review

8/16

GYNT GRUBE
ASSOCIATE PROJECT SUPERVISOR
EDUCATION:
Weston High School, Weston, MA. Graduated with Honors
Boston College, 1977-79. Majored in Accounting and Finance
IAAO Course I (100) Fundamentals of Real Property Appraisal
lAAO Course II (200) Income Approach to Value, MAAO, UMass, Amherst, 1994.
IAAO Course (112) Advanced Income Approach to Value, Dedham, MA, 1997.
IAAO Course III (300) Fundamentals of Mass Appraisal, RIAAO, Cranston, RI, 1996.
IAAO Course 201 Appraisal of Land, 2002.
Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice(USPAP), 2 year intervals, current to 2016.
Appraisal Ethics Course, American Society of Appraisers, Wallingford, CT, 1995.
RI Assessment Law and Administration Course, RIAAO, Cranston, RI, 1993.
“Using GIS & CAMA” course, Fuss & O’Neill, 2002.
Various NRAAO seminar courses: 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2007, 2008, and 2009.
Various IAAO seminar courses: 2004, 2005, 2007, 2008, 2010, and 2012.
Numerous CAAO seminar courses: Yearly since 1995.
Various MAAO seminal courses.
New Jersey Association of County Tax Board Assessor Educational Conferences: 2015, 2016.
CERTIFICATIONS:
State of Connecticut: Land/Residential, Commercial/Industrial, Personal Property and
Supervisor Certifications
State of Maine as an Assessor (MMA)
State of New Jersey: Certified Tax Assessor CTA#2406
PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:
CAAO - Connecticut Association of Assessing Officers Member
RIAAO - Rhode Island Association of Assessing Officers Member
EXPERIENCE:
Mr. Grube has worked for Tyler Technologies | CLT Division since 1981, when he joined the
company as a residential data collector in eastern Massachusetts. He is experienced in all
revaluation activities and has supervised numerous projects throughout the northeastern United
States. He has provided analysis and field valuation support to projects throughout the country.
His responsibilities have included training of employees and clients in data collection, analysis
and building of valuation models, CAMA implementation and valuation support. Mr. Grube is
currently serving as an Associate Project Supervisor for all types of properties.
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JOHN T. MARKS
APPRAISAL RESIDENTIAL GROUP LEADER
EDUCATION:
2/2012 – 2/2013

Sanford-Brown Institute, Cranston, RI
Pharmacy Technician Certificate Program 4.0 GPA
Passed PTCB Cert #10017426 exp 07/31/2015

2003 – 2009

RIAR; RIAAO; IAAO Massachusetts; State of Connecticut
Completed various technical courses regarding land and residential appraisal

SPECIAL COURSES:
2003 R.I.A.R.

Appraisal licensing course 3 and 4: Cost & Income Approach, Sales
Comparison Approach

2005

IAAO Massachusetts: Preparation of Data for Analysis for modeling
forum #929

2005

RIAAO: Course 101 Residential Appraisal

2007

State of Connecticut: Certificate #902 land/residential

2009

RIAAO: Course 102 Commercial Appraisal

EXPERIENCE:
2015 – Present

Appraisal Residential Group Leader – Warwick, RI.

2010 – 2011

Appraisal Resource
Field Supervisor – Attleboro, MA; North Providence, RI; Barrington,
RI.

2009 – 2010

Field Supervisor – Providence, RI; West Warwick, RI

2009

Joined Tyler Technologies | CLT Division.

2000 – 2008

Appraisal Resource
Project Manager - Warren, RI - 2007 and Barrington, RI - 2006
Project Supervisor - Norwich, Conn - 2008; N Providence, RI - 2003;
Barrington, RI - 2002
Data Collector/Building Permits for Coventry, RI; Bristol, RI;
Jamestown, RI; East Greenwich, RI; Barrington, RI; Warren, RI
2000 - 2002
05/15

LEWIS VAN DER MEULEN
PROJECT SUPERVISOR
EDUCATION:
1965-1969
SUNY, University at Buffalo, Buffalo, NY

B.A. Chemistry

SPECIAL COURSES:
1997 to 2009
2004
2002
2000
2000
1999
1997
1996
1995
1986

IAAO Candidate for Certified Assessment Evaluator
IAAO Course 311 – Residential Modeling Concepts
IAAO Course 320 – Multiple Regression Analysis (SPSS Lab)
IAAO Course 553 – Personal Property Auditing, Advanced
IAAO Course 552 – Personal Property Auditing
IAAO Course 102 – Income Approach to Valuation
IAAO Course 1 - Fundamentals of Real Property Appraisal
USPAP (and updated 2007)
CAAO Course IA - Assessment Administration
Principles and Practices of Real Estate, Real Estate Career

CERTIFICATIONS:
1999 - 2006

State of Connecticut: Certified for Supervisor, Land / Residential,
Commercial/Industrial, and Personal Property.

2001 - 2006

State of Vermont: Certified as Project Supervisor.

EXPERIENCE:
2016 – Present Commercial Appraiser Reviewer - Columbus, OH
2000 - 2005

Senior Project Supervisor
Southington 2005
Portland, CT 2004
Durham, CT 2003
Plainville, CT 2002
Farmington, CT 2002
Darien, CT 2001
Monroe, CT 2001

1991-2000

Lister & Valuation Appraiser: Residential; Commercial; Personal Property.

1991

Joined Tyler Technologies | CLT Division.
(The Cole-Layer-Trumble Company)

1986 - 1991

Kowalski Company, Realtors; Wallingford, CT.
Licensed salesman of Residential and Commercial Real Estate.
04/17
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Company Experience
Five Year Client List
The following pages contain our Five Year Client List.
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Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Alaska
Municipality of Anchorage

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

MAS, Landisc

2013

Tyler Verify

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2015, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2013, 2015, 2016
2016
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

AES
AES
AES
AES
AES
AES
AES
AES
AES, MAS
AES
AES
AES
AES
AES
AES

2013, 2014
2013, 2017
2015
2013
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

OASIS
Landisc, MAS, OASIS
iasWorld
iasWorld, spa alest
iasWorld

2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2017
2013
2013
2014
2013, 2014, 2016, 2017
2015
2015, 2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2016, 2017
2015
2017
2015, 2016, 2017

Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal, Univers
Univers
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Appraisal
Appraisal

Arizona
Maricopa County

California
Alameda County
Contra Costa County
Imperial County
Merced County
Monterey County
Orange County
Riverside County
San Bernardino County
San Diego County
San Joaquin County
San Luis Obispo County
Santa Clara County
Solano County
Sonoma County
Ventura County

Colorado
Arapahoe County
City & County of Denver
Logan County

Connec cut
Town of Bethel

Town of Bloomfield
Town of Burlington
Town of Clinton
Town of Darien
City of Derby
Town of Durham
Town of Farmington
Town of Greenwich

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Town of Groton

2013, 2014, 2017
2015, 2016
2015
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2017
2013
2014
2014
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2016
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014
2013, 2014, 2016, 2017
2015
2015
2013
2014
2016, 2017

iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc Univers
Appraisal
Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld
Univers
iasWorld
Appraisal
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Appraisal
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Appraisal
Appraisal

2013, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015

iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
iasWorld

2013, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2015, 2016
2016

iasWorld
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
iasWorld
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
iasWorld

2017
2016
2015
2017
2015, 2016
2013, 2014
2016
2013, 2015
2014
2016
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
OASIS
Appraisal, iasWorld, OASIS
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
iasWorld

City of Har ord
Town of Killingly
City of Middletown
Town of Monroe
Town of North Branford
Town of Plainville

Town of Plymouth
Town of Portland
Town of Sprague
Town of Sterling
Town of Stra ord
Town of Thomaston
Town of West Har ord
Town of Windham
Town of Windsor Locks

Delaware
City of Dover
City of Milford
Town of Smyrna
Sussex County

Florida
Citrus County
Hernando County
Leon
Manatee
Miami‐Dade County
Palm Beach County
Volusia County

Georgia
Augusta‐Richmond
Baldwin County
Chatham County
Clayton County
Cobb County
Columbia County
Columbus Consolidated Gov.

DeKalb County
Faye e County

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Forsyth County
Fulton County

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2015, 2016
2014

iasWorld
iasWorld, IAS BPAS
iasWorld
Appraisal

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013
2015, 2016
2017

iasWorld, IAS BPAS
iasWorld, IAS BPAS
IAS BPAS
iasWorld, IAS BPAS
iasWorld
IAS, IAS BPAS
IAS, IAS BPAS
IAS

2015

iasWorld

2013
2014
2014
2013, 2014
2014
2014
2013, 2014
2013, 2014
2013, 2014
2014
2013, 2014
2013
2014
2014
2013, 2014
2014
2013
2016
2014
2014
2013, 2014
2014
2014
2016, 2017
2014
2014
2014
2014
2013, 2014
2013
2013
2014
2014
2013, 2014

Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal, Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Tyler Verify
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal

Gwinne County

Hawaii
Hawaii County
City & County of Honolulu
Kauai County

Maui County

Illinois
Cook County

Indiana
Adams County
Clay County
Crawford County
Dearborn County
Dubois County
Floyd County
Fountain County
Fulton County
Gibson County
Greene County
Jackson County
Jay County
Jeﬀerson County
Jennings County
Johnson County
Knox County
LaPorte County
Montgomery County
Noble County
Owens County
Parke County
Perry County
Posey County
Ripley County
Sco County
Spencer County
Sullivan County
Switzerland County
Tipton County
Vanderburgh County
Vermillion County
Warrick County
Washington County

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

2013, 2014, 2015
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

Landisc, Univers
Univers

2013, 2015
2016
2013, 2014
2016
2016, 2017
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2015, 2016, 2017
2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014, 2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2017
2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2017
2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017

Orion
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion Consul ng
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion Consul ng
Orion
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion, Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion
Orion
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion, Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion
Tyler Verify
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015, 2016, 2017

iasWorld
Landisc, Univers

2013
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Appraisal
iasWorld
iasWorld

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld

2014, 2016

OASIS

2017

iasWorld

Iowa
Clinton County
City of Davenport

Kansas
State of Kansas DOR
Bourbon County
Butler County
Comanche County
Cowley County
Crawford County
Douglas County
Ellis County
Finney County
Geary County
Jeﬀerson County
Johnson County
Linn County
Lyon County
Marion County
Meade County
Neosho County
Osage County
Pra
Riley County
Sedgwick County

Sumner County
Wyando e County

Kentucky
Faye e County
Hardin County

Louisiana
Livingston Parish
City of New Orleans
Orleans Parish

Maine
City of Bath
City of Lewiston
City of Portland

Maryland
Bal more County

Massachuse s
MassIT

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

City of Brockton

2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2016
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2013, 2015
2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014

Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Appraisal
Appraisal, Univers
Appraisal
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Univers
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal, Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld, Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal, Univers
Appraisal

2016
2014, 2016
2015

Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal

2016, 2017
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2017

iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2015
2013, 2014, 2017
2013, 2014
2013, 2016, 2017
2014, 2015

iasWorld
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
OASIS Consul ng
iasWorld
Univers
Univers
iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

Orion

2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2016

Orion
Orion
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion

2013
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Landisc, Univers
Landisc, Univers

City of Chicopee
Town of Na ck
City of Northampton

City of Peabody
City of Pi sfield

City of Springfield
Town of Stow
Town of Westborough

Michigan
City of Benton Harbor
City of Detroit
City of Hamtramck

Minnesota
Anoka County
Crow Wing County
Dakota County
Olmsted County
Ramsey County
Sco County

Missouri
Cape Girardeau
Clay County
Greene County
Jackson County
Jasper County
Knox County
Scotland County
St. Louis County

Montana
State of Montana DOR

Nebraska
State of Nebraska
Adams County
Lancaster County
Lincoln County

New Hampshire
Town of Allenstown
Town of Conway

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

City of Dover
City of Franklin
Town of Gilford
Town of Holderness
City of Keene
Town of Newington
Town of Peterborough

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2917
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2015
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2017
2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Landisc, Univers
Landisc, Univers
Landisc, Univers
Landisc, Univers
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers

2014
2013
2013, 2015
2013, 2015
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Appraisal
Appraisal
Univers
Appraisal
Landisc, Univers

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

iasWorld

2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015
2014, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2015, 2017
2014
2014, 2017
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014, 2015

iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal
Univers
Univers
iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2013
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2016
2015, 2017
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2014
2015
2017

Landisc, Univers
Univers
Appraisal
MAS
Tyler Verify
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Landisc, OASIS
OASIS
iasWorld
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
iasWorld
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Appraisal, Tyler Verify
Appraisal
Tyler Verify

Town of Plaistow

New Jersey
City of Bridgeton
City of Camden
City of North Wildwood
Orange Township
Voorhees Township

New Mexico
Bernalillo County

New York
State of New York
Town of Brookhaven
Town of Cornwall
Town of Greenburgh
Town of Lewisboro
Village of Mineloa
Nassau County
City of New York
Town of North Salem
Town of Ossining
Town of Rye
Town of Southampton
City of Yonkers

North Carolina
Alleghany County
Alexander County
Anson County
Burke County
Catawba County
Cumberland County
Currituck County
Dare County

Davidson County
Davie County
Durham County

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Franklin County

2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2016
2013
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2014, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2016
2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2017
2015
2013, 2015, 2017
2014, 2016

iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld, Tyler Verify
Appraisal, Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Appraisal
Univers
iasWorld
Univers
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Univers
Landisc, Univers
iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Univers
iasWorld
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
Appraisal
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
iasWorld
Tyler Verify
Appraisal, Tyler Verify
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, Landisc, Univers

2013, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2015, 2016, 2017

Orion
Orion

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2015, 2016
2013, 2017
2014
2015, 2016
2013, 2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2015. 2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015

iasWorld
IAS
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal, IAS
Appraisal
IAS
IAS
IAS, Tyler Verify
Appraisal, IAS
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Tyler Verify

Gaston County
Graham County
Greene County
Halifax County
Hoke County
Iredell County
Jackson County
Johnston County
Jones County
Lee County
Lincoln County
Macon County
Mar n County
Moore County
Nash County
New Hanover County
Onslow
Pasquotank County
Rowan County
Rutherford County
Sampson County
Stanly County
Wake County
Watauga County
Wilkes County
Yadkin County
Yancey County

North Dakota
City of Jamestown
Stutsman County

Ohio
Ashtabula County
Athens County
Auglaize County

Butler County
Clark County

Clermont County
Coshocton County
Cuyahoga County

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Erie County
Fairfield County

2015
2014
2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2016
2015
2017
2013
2014
2015, 2016
2017
2013
2014
2015
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2015
2016
2017
2013
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2015
2013
2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Tyler Verify
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
Appraisal, iasWorld, Tyler Verify
iasWorld
Appraisal, IAS, Landisc
Appraisal, Tyler Verify
IAS, Tyler Verify
Appraisal, iasWorld Tyler Verify
Appraisal, IAS
Appraisal
IAS
Appraisal, iasWorld
IAS
IAS
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal
iasWorld
Tyler Verify
iasWorld
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
IAS
iasWorld
Appraisal, IAS, ReCo
IAS, ReCo
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld

2014, 2017
2016, 2017

Orion
Orion

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014
2015, 2017
2014
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

iasWorld
IAS, Landisc
iasWorld
MAS
iasWorld
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers
IAS, Landisc
Appraisal
iasWorld
Appraisal
iasWorld

Franklin County

Gallia County

Greene County

Jackson County
Lake County

Lorain County
Lucas County
Montgomery County
Morgan County
O awa County
Pickaway County
Pike County
Richland County

Scioto County
Seneca County
Stark County
Summit County

Oregon
Multnomah County
Washington County

Pennsylvania
Allegheny County
Armstrong County
Bedford County
Berks County
Bucks County
Butler County
Carbon County
Chester County
Clarion County
Clinton County
Columbia County

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Delaware County

2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2016
2013, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014
2015
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2016
2015, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014
2015

IAS, Landisc
iasWorld
IAS, Landisc
iasWorld
Public Access
Landisc
spa alest
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers
iasWorld
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
iasWorld
MAS
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal, iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld
IAS
iasWorld

2013, 2014
2015
2014

iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal

2014, 2015

iasWorld

2013
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Orion
Orion, Tyler Verify

2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

iasWorld
iasWorld

2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2015
2013, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2015, 2016
2014, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion

Erie County
Faye e County
Lancaster County
Monroe County
Montgomery County
Montour County
Northampton County
City of Philadelphia
Somerset County
Sullivan County
Washington County
Westmoreland County
York County

Rhode Island
City of Providence
City of Warwick

South Carolina
Lexington County

South Dakota
Pennington County

Tennessee
State of Tennessee
Shelby County

Texas
Texas Comptroller of Public Acct.
Anderson County
Aransas County
Bastrop County
City of Brookshire
Coleman County
Dallas CAD
Denton County
Fort Bend County
Franklin County
Galveston County
Gonzales County
Grayson County
Grimes County
Guadalupe County

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

Hays County

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2013
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2016
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016

Orion
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion
Orion, Tyler Verify
Orion
Orion

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2016
2014
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

Tyler Verify
iasWorld
iasWorld
Landisc, Univers
Appraisal
iasWorld
iasWorld

2013, 2015, 2016
2014, 2015
2014
2013, 2015, 2016
2013, 2014
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2015
2013, 2014, 2015, 2017
2016
2013, 2014, 2016
2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2014
2017
2014
2013, 2014, 2015

IAS
Appraisal
Appraisal
Landisc
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal, Landisc
Landisc
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Landisc
Appraisal
Appraisal

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

iasWorld

Hutchinson County
Jackson County
Jasper County
City of Katy
Kerr County
Lavaca County
Limestone County
Lubbock County
Medina County
Montgomery County
Orange County
Palacios ISD
Pasadena County
San Jacinto County
Victoria County
Waller County
Washington County
Williamson County
Winkler County
Wood County

Virginia
Chesapeake County
Fairfax County
Loudoun County
City of Manassas Park
Montgomery County
City of Newport News

West Virginia
State of West Virginia
Barbour County
Boone County
Jackson County
Jeﬀerson County
Kanawha County
Marion County
Mason County
Ohio County
Putnam County
Randolph County
Ritchie County
Wetzel County
Wood County
Wyoming County

Wisconsin
State of Wisconsin DOR

Five Year Client List
Client

Year Signed

Type of Service

City of Baraboo
City of Beloit
Village of Caledonia
Village of Chenequa
City of Franklin
Town of Grand Chute
City of Green Bay
Village of Greendale
Village of Howards Grove
City of Manitowoc
Manitowoc Public U li es
Village of Menomonee Falls

2015
2014, 2017
2013, 2017
2013
2013, 2015, 2016
2014, 2015, 2016
2013
2014, 2016, 2017
2013
2013, 2014, 2016
2013, 2014, 2015
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2013
2013
2014
2015
2016, 2017
2013, 2014
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
2013, 2016
2016
2013, 2017
2014
2015, 2016
2013
2016
2016
2013
2013, 2015, 2016
2013
2014, 2016

Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
MAS
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
IAS, Landisc
IAS
IAS, Landisc
Appraisal, IAS, Landisc
IAS, Landisc
Landisc
Appraisal
IAS, Landisc
Appraisal
Appraisal, IAS, Landisc
iasWorld
Landisc, MAS
IAS, Landisc
Appraisal
Appraisal
iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal, iasWorld
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Appraisal
Univers
Appraisal

2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017

spa alest

City of Mequon
City of Muskego

City of Neenah
City of New Berlin
City of Oak Creek
Village of Oconomowoc Lake
City of Oshkosh

City of Plymouth
Village of River Hills
City of South Milwaukee
City of Sun Prairie
Town of Waukesha
City of Wauwatosa
Village of Whitefish Bay

Australia
City of Whi lesea

Bahamas
Commonwealth of the Bahamas 2014, 2015, 2017
2016

iasWorld
iasWorld, Tyler Verify

Canada
Province of Bri sh Columbia

City of Calgary
Province of Newfoundland
Province of Nova Sco a

2013
2015
2016
2016
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
2013
2014, 2015
2016, 2017

Appraisal, Tyler Verify
Tyler Verify
iasWorld, Tyler Verify
iasWorld
iasWorld
iasWorld, IAS Consul ng
IAS Consul ng
iasWorld

2013, 2014, 2015

OASIS

United Kingdom
CapGemini/England
Valua on Oﬃce Agency

July 2017
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Current Northeastern Appraisal Services Client List
Client

Connecticut

Parcel
Count

Project Type

Contact Person

Address

Phone
Number

Town of Bethel

7,398

Statistical
Revaluation

Ann Marie
Heering, Assessor

1 School Street
Bethel, CT 06801

203-794-8507

Town of Darien

20,400

Statistical
Revaluation

Anthony Homicki,
Assessor

2 Renshaw Drive
Darien, CT

203-656-7310

Town of Farmington

11,112

Statistical
Revaluation

Christine A.
Barta, Town
Assessor

1 Monteith Drive
Farmington, CT 06032

860-675-2370

Town of Franklin

1,101

Full
Revaluation
10/1/18 List

Richard Lasky,
Assessor

7 Meetinghouse Hill Rd
Franklin, CT 06254

860-642-6475

Town of Greenwich

20,500

Ongoing
Appraisal
Support

Lauren Elliott,
Esq, Assessor

101 Field Point Road
Greenwich, CT 06830

203-622-7885

Town of Groton

12,000

Ongoing
Appraisal
Support

Mary Gardner,
Assessor

45 Fort Hill Road
Groton, CT 06340

860-441-6660

City of Middletown

14,653

Statistical
Revaluation

Damon Braasch,
Tax Assessor

245 deKoven Drive
Middletown, CT 06457

860-638-4930

City of Norwalk

88,143

Full
Revaluation
10/1/19 List

Michael Stewart,
Assessor

125 East Avenue
Norwalk, CT 06856

203-854-7941

Town of Putnam

3,867

Full
Revaluation
10/1/19 List

Angela Sanchez,
Assessor

126 Church Street
Putnam, CT 06260

860-963-6802

Full
Revaluation
10/1/19 List

Stuart Topliff,
Assessor

761 Old Main Street
Rocky Hill, CT 06067

860-258-2722

Ongoing
Appraisal
Support

Elizabeth Duffy,
Assessor

50 Church Street
Windsor Locks, CT
06096

860-627-1448

Town of Rocky Hill

Town of Windsor
Locks

12,498
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Client

Delaware

Parcel
Count

Project Type

Contact Person

Phone
Number

Address

City of Milford

4,167

Ongoing
Appraisal
Support

Debbie Johnson,
Supervisor

201 South Walnut
Street
Milford, DE 19963

302-424-3712

Town of Smyrna

3,000

Ongoing
Appraisal
Support

David Hugg, III,
Town Manager

27 South Market Street

302-653-3483

City of Brockton

27,165

FY Triennial
Certification

John P.
O’Donnell, Acting
Chairman, BOA

45 School Street
Brockton, MA 02301

508-580-7191

Town of Natick

13,500

FY 2014
Interim
Update

Janice Dangelo,
Director of
Assessing

13 East Central Street
Natick, MA 01760

508-647-6420

Town of
Northampton

14,300

2016
Valuation

Joan C. Sarafin,
Assessor

212 Main Street
Northampton, MA
01060

413-587-1200

City of Peabody

15,250

Provide
permits, as
requested

Susan Antonellis,
Director, BOA

City Hall, 24 Lowell
Street
Peabody, MA 01960

978-538-5727

City of Pittsfield

17,527

FY 2016
Update

Paula J. King,
Chairman, BOA

City Hall, 70 Allen
Street
Pittsfield, MA 01201

413-395-0102

City of Springfield

42,224

FY 2017
Valuation

Richard J. Allen,
Chairman, BOA

City Hall, 36 Court
Street
Springfield, MA 01103

413-787-6285

Town of Stow

2,500

FY 2014
Update

Kristen Fox, MAA,
Principal Assessor

380 Great Road
Stow, MA 01775

978-897-4597

Town of Cornwall

4,900

Reassessment

Ronald
Fiorentino,
Assessor

183 Main Street
Cornwall, NY 12518

845-534-7290

Town of Greenburgh

28,550

Reassessment
Services

Edye McCarthy,
Assessor

177 Hillside Avenue
Greenburgh, NY 10607

914-989-1520

Massachusetts

New York
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Client

Parcel
Count

Project Type

Contact Person

Phone
Number

Address

Town of Ossining

10,138

Reassessment
Services

Fernando
Gonzalez,
Assessor

16 Croton Avenue
Ossining, NY 10562

914-762-8274

Town of
Southampton

58,254

Ongoing
Appraisal
Support

Lisa Gore
Assessor

116 Hampton Road
Southampton, NY

631-283-6020

City of Yonkers

36,521

Reassessment
Services

Mr. David
Jackson, Assessor

87 Nepperhan Avenue,
Suite 400
Yonkers, NY 10701

914-377-6000

Monroe County

101,589

Reassessment

Cindy Treible,
Chief Assessor

570-517-3133

Delaware County

200,000

Reassessment

Mario Civera Jr.
Chairman

One Quaker Plaza,
Room 102
Stroudsburg, PA 18360
201 West Front Street
Media, PA 19063

Pennsylvania

610-891-4250
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Experience with Vision CAMA Software
Tyler has performed revaluation work on Vision CAMA system in the following jurisdictions:
Burlington, CT
Ms. Beth Paul
860-673-7689, x3
Clinton, CT
Ms. Donna Sempey
860-669-9269
Fairfield, CT
Mr. Donald Ross
203-256-3110
Franklin, CT
Mr. Richard Lasky
860-642-6475
Griswold, CT
Ms. Evelyn A. Spagnolo
860-376-7060, x105
Lebanon, CT
Ms. Emma Sousa
860-642-6141
Middletown, CT
Mr. Damon Braasch
860-638-4930
Naugatuck, CT
Ms. Carol Ann Tyler
203-720-7016
North Branford, CT
Mr. David Ambrose
203-484-6013

North Haven, CT

Mr. Gary Johns
203-239-5321
Putnam, CT
Ms. Angela Sanchez
860-963-6802
Rocky Hill, CT
Mr. Stuart Topliff
860-258-2722
Scotland, CT
Ms. Susan Rainville
860-423-9634
Thompson, CT
Ms. Diane Couture
860-923-2259
Willington, CT
Ms. Jody Heon
8060-487-3122
Ashford, CT
Ms. Kara Fishman
860-487-4403

860-230-3006
Woodstock, CT
Mr. Richard Kryzak
860-928-6929
Bloomfield, CT
Ms. Wendy M. Leone
860-769-3530
Stratford, CT
Ms. Melinda C. Fonda
203-385-4025
Newington, CT
Mr. S. Steven Juda
860-665-8530
Warwick, RI
Mr. Christopher Celeste
401-738-2000
West Hartford, CT
Mr. Peter Privitera
860-561-7461

Canterbury, CT
Ms. Lynn Byberg
860-546-6035
Eastford, CT
Ms. Mary Lavallee
860-974-1291 x7

Plainfield, CT
Ms. Joyce Stangeland
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Public Relations Program
Public information and participation are crucial elements in a successful Revaluation project. Tyler
supports an extensive public information effort by working with you. We will establish open and
responsive communication with your taxpayers and provide informative materials that are easy to read
and understand.
Experienced Tyler personnel will be available to accompany officials for major presentations to the public,
community leaders, local service organizations, and the media. We recognize that any contact with a
resident constitutes a public relations opportunity. These include phone conversations with residents,
project mailings and meetings to discuss values.
The objective of the public information effort is to communicate with the public throughout the
Revaluation. We will educate property owners about the reasons for the Revaluation, the methods of
valuation, and the benefits to the community. All materials and messages will reinforce that the law
requires the Revaluation, that the Revaluation is being completed in a professional and objective way,
and that the goal is fairness and equity.
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Appraisal Methodologies
The goal of a revaluation is to estimate market value. As defined by the International Association of
Assessing Officers (IAAO), market value is:
the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market
under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting prudently
and knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus (“Standard
on Ratio Studies,” Assessment Journal, Sept./Oct. 1999, p. 60).

Valuation Approaches
Market Approach: With this method, the property's value is estimated by examining the comparables:
recently sold properties that are similar in size and features that are located within a close geographic
proximity to the property being valued. The market approach is typically applied to residential properties.
Income Approach: With this method, the income and expense stream of a property is examined from an
investor’s point of view. The goal is to achieve a market value by estimating what an informed investor
would pay for the income stream associated with a particular piece of real estate. The income approach
is typically applied to commercial properties, including apartments, restaurants and shopping plazas.
Cost Approach: With this method, the probable selling price is calculated by estimating how much it
would cost to provide a replacement building of similar condition, quality and utility. Local construction
costs are analyzed along with land sales to develop what is called the "replacement cost" method. This
method is based on the premise that if land value is added to what it would cost to replace the building
new – less an allowance for physical, functional and economic depreciations – a rational estimate of the
market value can be obtained. The cost approach is computed for all types of property. The cost approach
is calibrated to the local market using local sales.

Vacant Land
Tyler will analyze vacant land sales for the various types and sizes of land found in Town of Westerly’s
neighborhoods and commercial areas. We will also study residual indications of land values. Based upon
these analyses, tables will be developed for land valuation. This process is best described as an application
of the sales comparison approach.

Assessor’s Input
For each type of property, the Assessor will choose the default approach. Table 1 below shows the
methodologies that are most often used.
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Table 1: Methodologies Most Often Used

Type of Property
Residential
Commercial and industrial
properties, including apartments
Special purpose properties
Exempt properties

Valuation Methodology
Cost and market
Cost and income
Cost
Cost

Sales Analyses
A number of statistical tests that can be performed on the database once the data has been collected.
The following reports are just a few that would be helpful in ensuring the accuracy of the Town’s
Revaluation project.
•

•
•
•

Calculation of appraisal to sale median and coefficient of dispersion Town-wide and by
neighborhood, property class, value quartile, style, age (year built) quartile, and building size
quartile.
Calculation of the price related differential by class, Town-wide, and other strata.
Printouts of selected parcel data and comparison criteria to ensure uniformity.
Other reports as requested by the Assessor or required by the State.

Process for Maintaining the CAMA Databases during the Revaluation
Data Entry
The revaluation database can be created by using the Sales Analysis database within Vision or by creating
a different schema, which must be done by the CAMA vendor. Most of our clients choose the former as
there are no costs associated with its creation or for additional support fees. The User Audit table tracks
changes made by users in the live file (Real Estate database). A report is created periodically throughout
the project (see the Sample Audit Report included at the end of this section) and the changes are entered
into the Sales Analysis or Reval schema. A log is kept to track the dates of these reports to ensure no
changes are missed (Table 2).
Table 2: Sample Audit Report Log

Date
2/07/2013
3/13/2013
4/03/2013
4/23/2013
5/15/2013
5/30/2013

Created
MLB
MLB
MLB
MLB
MLB

DE'd

Note
Sales Analysis created
Parcels moved to SA

MLB
MLB
MLB
MLB
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Approximately two (2) weeks before notices are mailed (which is the time required to have the new data
posted to the Vision website), several mismatch reports are done to ensure that the files are in synch:
1. Parcel mismatches (both ways)
2. Owner name mismatches
3. Mailing address mismatches
At that time, the Sales Analysis database is copied over the Real Estate database. Prior to this, we
recommend a static copy of the Real Estate database be created to preserve the file for future access. The
fee to the CAMA vendor for this is approximately $125.
Our clerical staff has years of experience with Vision CAMA, however to minimize errors, edits are done
periodically to the database (Table 3).
Table 3: Sample Residential Edits

Recommended Revaluation Data Edits
Zero bathrooms, rooms or bedrooms
Bathrooms > Bedrooms
Bathrooms > 5 (or whatever makes sense in your community)
Bedrooms >= Rooms
Zero square footage (on dwellings or outbuildings)
SFLA > 3,000 sf and grade < C
SFLA < 800 sf and grade > C
No heat (or inconsistent fuel and type)
Sale with no sale price coded as valid sale
Wall height <5 (commercial property)
LUC vs. Living units or Occupancy
Basement area > 1st floor area (sketch is layered)
Fireplace opening and no stack (or vice versa)
Features/outbuildings with no units
Outbuilding values > $30,000 (or whatever makes sense in your community)
Neighborhood assignment consistency. This could be a street listing or a GIS map (very helpful!)
Value change extremes
A good rule of thumb – if you found an error on one property – chances are there are others.

Calibrating Valuation Tables
The first step in calibrating the value tables in the CAMA system is to investigate the current setups,
particularly with land. Once completed, Tyler will work with the Assessor to create a plan for how to
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proceed. Our goal is to maintain as much of the current methodology as possible in order to maintain
consistency and we will address any problems or concerns that are identified.
Our next step is to review the current neighborhood delineation. We will use GIS for this purpose, if
available. Tyler will modify neighborhoods, as needed.
Land values will be determined by conducting an analysis of sales, vacant land sales where available,
otherwise improved sales for a residual analysis.
Tyler’s preferred method of building cost calibration is through the analysis of new construction sales. We
will test cost levels versus Marshall & Swift as a secondary approach if there are ample sales, or as the
primary approach if there are not. We will also test commercial and outbuilding rates versus Marshall &
Swift.
Tyler will complete a depreciation analysis using regression by extracting the percent good from each sale
and plotting it against age. We adjust the resulting table to reflect the true current market for all ages and
conditions of properties in Town of Westerly. Commercial depreciation is based on the economic life (i.e.
50-year life) and the appropriate table will be used based on the types of properties to be appraised.
Tyler will develop income models by analyzing Income & Expense returns. We will use published reports
from resources such as Realty Rates, Korpacz, etc. to supplement the analysis.
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AUD_PID
668
668
668
668
668
668
668
668

AUD_TABLE
land
land
land
land
land
land
land
land

AUD_FIELD
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor
lnd_cndtn_factor

668
1004 salehist

slh_co_own_name

1004
101292
101292
101292
101292

realmast
realmast
realmast
realmast

rem_prcl_locn_city
rem_prcl_locn_num_char
rem_prcl_locn_num_char
rem_prcl_locn_num_char

101292
100722 salehist

slh_own_name

100722 salehist

slh_own_name

100722 salehist
100722 salehist
100722 salehist

slh_co_own_name
slh_own_addr
slh_zip

100722

AUD_DESC
1.0000 to .90
0.9000 to .80
0.8000 to .85
0.8500 to .87
0.8700 to .89
0.8900 to .91
0.9100 to .990
0.9900 to 0.9199900
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 120,000 Old Appraised
Value: 131,960
Update salehist.slh_co_own_name= 'CITYSIDE MANAGEMENT
CORP'
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 242,840 Old Appraised
Value: 242,840

AUD_USER_ID
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_city= 'FRANKLIN' Previous Val:
Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '46' Previous Val:
Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '46' Previous Val:
Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '46' Previous Val:
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 87,100 Old Appraised
Value: 87,100
Update salehist.slh_own_name= 'RYTMAN DORA FAMILY
TRUST '
Update salehist.slh_own_name= 'RYTMAN DORA FAMILY
SPRAY TRUST '
Update salehist.slh_co_own_name= 'EDWARD A RENN
TRUTEE'
Update salehist.slh_own_addr= 'PO BOX 426'
Update salehist.slh_zip= '06502'
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 256,400 Old Appraised
Value: 256,400

AUD_DATE_TIME
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13

ASSR

14-Mar-13

ASSR

14-Mar-13

ASSR

14-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13
14-Mar-13

ASSR

14-Mar-13

ASSR

19-Mar-13

ASSR

19-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

19-Mar-13
19-Mar-13
19-Mar-13

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '54' Previous Val: 46

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '54' Previous Val: 46

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '54' Previous Val: 46

ASSR

19-Mar-13

AUD_PID AUD_TABLE

AUD_FIELD

AUD_DESC

AUD_USER_ID

AUD_DATE_TIME

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '48' Previous Val: 54

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '48' Previous Val: 54

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '48' Previous Val: 54

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '54' Previous Val: 48

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292 realmast

rem_prcl_locn_num_char Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '54' Previous Val: 48

ASSR

19-Mar-13

101292
101292
101292
101292
101292
101292
101292
101292
101292

rem_prcl_locn_num_char
bpe_permit_id
bpe_type
bpe_amount
bpe_app_date
bpe_issue_date
bpe_fiscal_yr
bpe_comment
Add

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

19-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13

101292
241
241
241
241
241
241
241
241
74
74
74
74
74
74
74

realmast
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
bldgperm

BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
bldgperm

BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm

bpe_permit_id
bpe_type
bpe_amount
bpe_issue_date
bpe_fiscal_yr
bpe_comment
Add

bpe_permit_id
bpe_type
bpe_amount
bpe_issue_date
bpe_fiscal_yr
bpe_comment
bpe_comment

Update realmast.rem_prcl_locn_num_char= '54' Previous Val: 48
307-13
NC
275000
03/19/2013
03/19/2013
2013
TIMBER FRAME 5 RM 2 BED 2300 SQ GAS HOT WATER
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 87,100 Old Appraised
Value: 87,100
306-13
RR
5300
03/19/2013
2013
STRIP AND REROOF
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 210,580 Old Appraised
Value: 210,580
304-13
RS
500
03/12/2013
2013
REPLACE OIL TANK
REPLACE OIL TANK

AUD_PID AUD_TABLE
74
57
57
57
57
57
57
57

AUD_FIELD

BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm

bpe_permit_id
bpe_type
bpe_amount
bpe_issue_date
bpe_fiscal_yr
bpe_comment
bpe_comment

57
504
504
504
504
504
504
504
504
504
504

Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner

slh_own_name
slh_own_addr
slh_city
slh_zip
slh_book_pg
slh_sale_date
slh_instrument
slh_instrument
slh_instrument
slh_instrument

504
969
969
969
969
969
969

BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm

bpe_permit_id
bpe_type
bpe_amount
bpe_app_date
bpe_issue_date
bpe_fiscal_yr

969 BldgPerm
969 bldgperm
969
599
599
599
599

BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm

bpe_comment
Add

bpe_permit_id
bpe_type
bpe_amount
bpe_app_date

AUD_DESC
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 262,140 Old Appraised
Value: 262,140
301-13
WD
3000
03/05/2013
2013
12X16 DECK
12X16 DECK
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 237,780 Old Appraised
Value: 237,780
CZACZKES EDWARD & CZACZKES MORRIS
246 EAST HILL RD
WETHERSFIELD
06027
90/ 451
03/18/2013
02
02
02
02
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 178,500 Old Appraised
Value: 178,500
309-13
RE
15000
03/26/2013
03/26/2013
2013
RE-ROOF,NEW FURNACE,FOUNDATION REPAIR,SIDDING &
WINDOWS
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 284,320 Old Appraised
Value: 284,320
308-13
RP
6500
03/26/2013

AUD_USER_ID

AUD_DATE_TIME

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13
21-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

21-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13
26-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

26-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR

28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13

AUD_PID
599
599
599
599

AUD_TABLE
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm
BldgPerm

AUD_FIELD
bpe_issue_date
bpe_fiscal_yr
bpe_comment
bpe_comment

599
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203
100203

Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner
Owner

slh_own_name
slh_own_addr
slh_city
slh_zip
slh_book_pg
slh_sale_date
slh_price
slh_instrument
slh_instrument
slh_instrument
slh_instrument

100203
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150
150

OBXF
obxf
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
OBXF
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
OBXF

Update
oxf_code
Update
oxf_code
Update
Update
Update
oxf_code
Update
oxf_code
Update
Update
oxf_pct_good
Update
oxf_cndtn
Update
oxf_cndtn
Update
Update

AUD_DESC
03/26/2013
2013
REPLACE EXISTNG DECK REAR OF HOUSE
REPLACE EXISTNG DECK REAR OF HOUSE
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 340,040 Old Appraised
Value: 340,040
DRIESCH EDWARD A & KAREN S
11 SANDLALWOOD LN
OLD LYME
06371
90/ 599
04/01/2013
52500
00
00
00
00
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 82,280 Old Appraised
Value: 82,280
From BRN1 to SPL2
From BRN8 to SPL2

From BRN3 to SPL2
From RAR to SPL2

From 50 to 90
From A to G
From G to A

AUD_USER_ID
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

AUD_DATE_TIME
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13
28-Mar-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

28-Mar-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13

ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13

AUD_PID
150
150
150
150
150

AUD_TABLE
obxf
OBXF
obxf
OBXF
obxf

AUD_FIELD
oxf_code
Update
oxf_code
Update
oxf_code

150 bldg
150 bldg

bld_notes##8
bld_notes##9

150 bldg
150 bldg

bld_notes##8
bld_notes##9

150 bldg
150 bldg

bld_notes##8
bld_notes##9

150

AUD_DESC
From BRN3 to SPL2
From STB1 to SPL2
From RAR to SPL2
Update bldg.bld_notes##8= '11 X25 HEATED AREA WITH
KIT/1\2 IN BRN1 ' Previous Val:
Update bldg.bld_notes##9= ' BATH ' Previous Val:
Update bldg.bld_notes##8= '11 X25 HEATED AREA WITH
KIT/BATH FACILI ' Previous Val: 11 X25 HEATED AREA WITH
KIT/1\2 IN BRN1
Update bldg.bld_notes##9= 'TY ' Previous Val: BATH
Update bldg.bld_notes##8= 'BRN1 11X25 HEATED WITH
KIT/BATH FACILITY' Previous Val: 11 X25 HEATED AREA WITH
KIT/BATH FACILI
Update bldg.bld_notes##9= ' ' Previous Val: TY
Changes Saved. New Appraised Value: 686,640 Old Appraised
Value: 674,670

AUD_USER_ID
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR
ASSR

AUD_DATE_TIME
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13

ASSR
ASSR

02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13

ASSR
ASSR

02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13

ASSR
ASSR

02-Apr-13
02-Apr-13

ASSR

02-Apr-13
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Tentative Project Schedule
The following project timetable is subject to review and mutually agreed upon modifications.
Table 4: Project Schedule

Activity

Completion Dates

Project Commencement
Public Relations
Data Verification
Re-delineation Neighborhoods

**
April 30, 2019
October 31, 2018
November 5, 2018

Market Analysis
Land Study
Residential
Commercial
Assessor’s Review of Proposed Valuations
Field Review of Values

November 15, 2018
November 15, 2018
November 30, 2018
December 1, 2018
February 15, 2019

Assessment Change Notices Mailed
Informal Taxpayer Hearings
Informals Resolution
Final Values to Assessor for Certification
Project Turnover

March 1, 2019
March 30, 2019
April 15, 2019
April 15, 2019
April 30, 2019
**within 30 days of executed contract
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Fee Summary and Allocation
Below is our fee Summary and Allocation for the Town of Westerly’s Development and Implementation
of a Revaluation Program. Provided in the total fee listed below are 5 days of litigation support. If
additional litigation days are required, they can be provided at a per diem rate of $600.
Activity
Labor
Materials
Subcontractors
Overhead, Profit, Misc. & General Conditions
Bonds
Total Bid Price

Percent
55.0%
10.0%
0.0%
25.0%
10.0%
100.0%

Fee
$178,750
$32,500
$0
$81,250
$32,500
$325,000
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Appendix A: Bidder Certification Form
Tyler’s Appraisal and Tax Division has had the following appraisal services contracts terminated in the past
five years:
A&T Terminations
•
•
•

2015
o
2014
o
2013
o
o
o

Howard’s Grove (Village), WI (Assessor services)
Plymouth, WI (Assessor Services)
Loudon County, VA (Data collection); Client terminated for convenience to save money
Monongalia County, WV (Appraisal and Reassessment); Client decided to do work in
house
Wetzel County, WV (Reappraisal); Client changed Assessors
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Clarifications & Understandings
Tyler expects to use the standard Tyler contract as the basis for beginning contract negotiations. The
contract documents shall consist of, and the resulting order of precedence shall be, 1) Tyler’s standard
contract, 2) the proposal, and 3) the RFP. Tyler reserves the right to negotiate any and all terms to the
mutual satisfaction of the parties.
Terms and Conditions and RFQ Bid Documents, Page 1; Attachment “A” Scope of Work (and Project
Schedule and Document Requirements), General Requirements, Section D.2, Page 6; Attachment “C”
Instructions to Bidders (For Construction/Services), Section 7, Page 19, and Section 13, Page 22 and
Section 15, Page 23; Appendix A, Bidder Certification Form, Vendor Authorization to Proceed, Page 26 and
Disclosures and Certifications, No. 10, Page 28: As noted above, Tyler expects to use the standard Tyler
contract as the basis for beginning contract negotiations. The contract documents shall consist of, and the
resulting order of precedence shall be, 1) Tyler’s standard contract, 2) the proposal, and 3) the RFP.
Special Instructions to Bidders, Page 1; Appendix A: Bidder Certification Form, Bid Surety and Performance
Bonds, Page 26: Tyler does not issue payment bonds as they are not suited for the appraisal services
industry.
The performance bond will have an initial term of twenty-four (24) months. In the event that Client desires
to renew or extend the term of the performance bond, Client shall be responsible for any additional bond
premiums and any renewal thereof shall be subject to underwriting or surety approval.
Attachment “A” Scope of Work (and Project Schedule and Document Requirements)
Scope of Work, Page 3: In the event the Client adds, deletes from, or alters the specifications in any
manner prior to contract execution, Tyler reserves the right to amend the price based on such changes to
the specifications.
Scope of Work, Page 4: If requested, Tyler will assist the Client in preparation of data for taxpayer viewing
via the Web. Client is responsible for Client’s website or continued hosting through Client’s existing annual
software agreement with its current software provider.
General Requirements, Section C.1., Page 6: The RFP sets forth two different dates for the date of
completion. Tyler wishes to resolve this discrepancy upon contract award.
General Requirements Section D.4.c., Page 7; Professional Services/Consulting Agreement, Section 2.a.,
Page 1: Tyler does not agree to “time being made of the essence”, however, Tyler will begin and perform
services in accordance with the mutually agreed upon project schedule.
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Attachment “C” Instructions to Bidders (For Construction/Services)
Section 9, Pages 19-22: Tyler will contractually commit to maintaining the following insurance coverage:
a) Commercial General Liability of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate; b)
Automobile Liability of at least $1,000,000 per accident; c) Professional Liability with respect to appraisal
services of at least $1,000,000 aggregate; d) Umbrella coverage of at least $2,000,000 aggregate and e)
Workers Compensation complying with statutory requirements. A copy of Tyler’s Certificate of Insurance
evidencing the above coverages will be provided to Client after contract execution.
The Umbrella coverage provides additional coverage for claims that fall under the Commercial General
Liability or Automobile Liability policies only.
Tyler is willing to maintain professional liability coverage for 2 years past completion of the contract with
retroactive dates back to the date of contract. The retroactive date is not shown on the certificate of
insurance.
The Client can be listed as an additional insured on Tyler’s Commercial General Liability policy and Auto
Liability policy, which automatically adds Client as an additional insured on Tyler’s Umbrella Liability
policy.
If required, Tyler will agree to waive subrogation, but only on claims under Tyler’s Commercial General
Liability or Automobile Liability policies that arise out of or relate to the contract and are between Tyler
and the Client, except to the extent the damage or injury is caused by the Client.
If required in the contract, Tyler will provide Client with notice of cancellation, non-renewal or reduction
in its insurance coverages below the minimum requirements set forth in the contract within thirty (30)
days thereof.
Tyler will disclose the deductibles to the Client for Client’s information, if required. Tyler is well positioned
financially to carry its deductible(s).
Tyler agrees that Tyler’s insurance is primary for claims under Tyler’s Commercial General Liability or
Automobile Liability policies that arise out of or relate to the contract and are between Tyler and the
Client.
Tyler’s carrier’s duty to defend the Client arises only with respect to indemnification claims for personal
injury or property damage caused by Tyler’s negligence.
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Tyler’s insurance program does not cover a Tyler subcontractor. Any subcontractor used by Tyler and
approved by the Client will be required to carry its own insurance. Tyler will require that any such
insurance meet the minimum requirements agreed to by Tyler and the Client.
Tyler administers a large insurance program that includes multiple lines of coverage as part of a global risk
program. This coverage is already in place and provided as part of a larger package wherein all the
elements are interrelated. Tyler is not able to obtain customer specific form, lines of coverage,
endorsements, or make changes to the coverage limits set forth on its Certificate of Insurance.
Section 9.G, Pages 20: Tyler’s proposal and pricing is based on Tyler’s standard contract terms. Please
refer to Section E(1.1) to the standard Tyler contract.
Appendix A Bid Certification Form
General Terms and Conditions of Contracts, Page 26: Tyler takes a general exception to the general terms
and conditions. As noted above, Tyler expects to use the standard Tyler contract as the basis for beginning
contract negotiations. The contract documents shall consist of, and the resulting order of precedence shall
be, 1) Tyler’s standard contract, 2) the proposal, and 3) the RFP.
ARRA Supplemental Terms and Conditions, Page 26: In the event ARRA is applicable to this project, Tyler
reserves the right to review and negotiate with Client the supplemental terms and conditions referenced
in this section.
Equal Employment Opportunity, Page 26: In the event the Client requires Tyler to procure products or
services from a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise or a similar entity, Tyler will work with the Client to
identify potential services to subcontract to a qualified third party, if any.
Default and Non-Compliance, Page 27: Client may only withhold amounts actually in dispute.
Professional Services/Consulting Agreement
Tyler takes a general exception to the Professional Services/Consulting Agreement. As noted above, Tyler
expects to use the standard Tyler contract as the basis for beginning contract negotiations. The contract
documents shall consist of, and the resulting order of precedence shall be, 1) Tyler’s standard contract, 2)
the proposal, and 3) the RFP.
Additionally, the RFP only contains page 1 of the Professional Services/Consulting Agreement. Tyler
reserves the right to review and discuss with Client the remaining provisions of the Professional
Services/Consulting Agreement.
Additional Terms and Conditions
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Limitation of Liability. Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this agreement, Tyler’s liability for
damages arising out of this agreement, whether based on a theory of contract or tort, including negligence
and strict liability, shall be limited to the lesser of (a) your actual direct damages or (b) the amounts paid
by you under this agreement. The prices set forth in this agreement are set in reliance upon this limitation
of liability. The foregoing limitation of liability shall not apply to claims that are subject to Tyler’s
indemnification obligations.
Exclusion of Certain Damages. To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, in no event shall Tyler
be liable for any special, incidental, punitive, indirect, or consequential damages whatsoever, including
but not limited to loss of tax revenue or claims related to valuation of property, even if Tyler has been
advised of the possibility of such damages.
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SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Agreement is made between Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Client.
WHEREAS, Client has issued a RFP for [insert description of scope]; and
WHEREAS, Tyler submitted a proposal in response to said RFP dated [insert date] to perform services to fulfill
the needs of the Client (“Proposal”);
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth in this
Agreement, Tyler and Client agree as follows:
SECTION A – DEFINITIONS
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

“Agreement” means this Services Agreement.
“Client” means [INSERT CLIENT NAME/ADDRESS].
“Effective Date” means the date on which your authorized representative signs the Agreement.
“Force Majeure” means an event beyond the reasonable control of you or us, including, without
limitation, governmental action, war, riot or civil commotion, fire, natural disaster, severe or unusual
weather or climatic conditions which exist for a substantial period of time, extreme inflation (defined
as eight percent or greater per year) or any other cause that could not with reasonable diligence be
foreseen or prevented by you or us.
“Investment Summary” means the total fixed price and per diem rates to complete the services
described in this Agreement, attached as Exhibit A.
“Invoicing and Payment Policy” means the invoicing and payment policy. A copy of our current
Invoicing and Payment Policy is attached as Exhibit B.
“Tyler” means Tyler Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation.
“we”, “us”, “our” and similar terms mean Tyler.
“you” and similar terms mean Client.

SECTION B – PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
1. Services. We will provide you the professional services, consistent with industry standards, as described in
the Statement of Work attached hereto as Exhibit C.
2. Professional Services Fees. You agree to pay us the professional services fees in the amounts set forth in
Exhibit A – Investment Summary. Those amounts are payable in accordance with our Invoicing and
Payment Policy.
3. Services Warranty. We will perform the services in a professional, workmanlike manner, consistent with
industry standards and the specifications described in the Statement of Work – Exhibit C.

1

4. Site Access and Requirements. You agree to provide us with full and free access to your personnel as may
be reasonably necessary for us to provide services, subject to any reasonable security protocols or other
written policies provided to us.
5. Client Assistance. You acknowledge that the services we provide under this Agreement is a cooperative
process which may requiring the time and resources of your personnel. You agree to use all reasonable
efforts to cooperate with and assist us as may be reasonably required to meet the agreed upon project
deadlines and other milestones for the services. This cooperation includes at least working with us to
schedule the services you have contracted for. We will not be liable for failure to meet any deadlines and
milestones when such failure is due to Force Majeure or to the failure by your personnel to provide such
cooperation and assistance (either through action or omission).
6. Change in Legal Requirements. The parties acknowledge that the terms and conditions of this Agreement
are based on the laws, rules and regulations as of the Effective Date. In the event any applicable laws,
rules or regulations change so as to create additional work for us not provided for in this Agreement, Client
shall allow us a reasonable extension of time to complete the services, and additional compensation as
provided in Section C(3) below.
SECTION C – INVOICING AND PAYMENT; INVOICE DISPUTES
1. Invoicing and Payment. We will invoice you the fees for the services as per our Invoicing and Payment
Policy, subject to Section C(2).
2. Invoice Disputes. If you believe any delivered software or service does not conform to the warranties in
this Agreement, you will provide us with written notice within thirty (30) days of your receipt of the
applicable invoice. The written notice must contain reasonable detail of the issues you contend are in
dispute so that we can confirm the issue and respond to your notice with either a justification of the
invoice, an adjustment to the invoice, or a proposal addressing the issues presented in your notice. We
will work with you as may be necessary to develop an action plan that outlines reasonable steps to be
taken by each of us to resolve any issues presented in your notice. You may withhold payment of the
amount(s) actually in dispute, and only those amounts, until we complete the action items outlined in the
plan. If we are unable to complete the action items outlined in the action plan because of your failure to
complete the items agreed to be done by you, then you will remit full payment of the invoice. We reserve
the right to suspend delivery of all services, including maintenance and support services, if you fail to pay
an invoice not disputed as described above within fifteen (15) days of notice of our intent to suspend
services.
3. Additional Services. The Investment Summary contains the related costs required for the project based on
our understanding of the specifications you supplied and of the laws, rules and regulations applicable to
the project as of the Effective Date. If additional work is required, or if you use or request additional
services, we will provide you with an addendum outlining the costs for the additional work. The price
quotes in the addendum will be valid for thirty (30) days from date of issuance.
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SECTION D – TERM AND TERMINATION
1. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall continue through
Agreement may be renewed upon written mutual agreement of the parties.
2

. This

For Cause. If you believe we have materially breached this Agreement, you will invoke the Dispute
Resolution clause set forth in Section G(2). You may terminate this Agreement for cause in the event we
do not cure, or create a mutually agreeable action plan to address, a material breach of this Agreement
within the thirty (30) day window set forth in Section G(2). In the event of termination for cause, you will
pay us for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the services you have received, or we have incurred
or delivered, prior to the effective date of termination.

3. Force Majeure. Either party has the right to terminate this Agreement if a Force Majeure event suspends
performance of scheduled tasks for a period of forty-five (45) days or more. In the event of termination
due to Force Majeure, you will pay us for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the services you have
received, or we have incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of termination. Any disputed fees
and expenses must have been submitted to the Invoice Dispute process set forth in Section C(2) at the
time of termination in order to be withheld at termination.
SECTION E – INDEMNIFICATION, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE
1. Property Damage and Personal Injury Indemnification.
1.1 We will indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents, officials, and employees from and against
any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including reasonable
attorney's fees and costs) for (a) personal injury or property damage to the extent caused by our
negligence or willful misconduct; or (b) our violation of a law applicable to our performance under this
Agreement. You must notify us promptly in writing of the claim and give us sole control over its defense or
settlement. You agree to provide us with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in
defending the claim at our expense.
1.2 To the extent permitted by applicable law, you will indemnify and hold harmless us and our agents,
officials, and employees from and against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs,
and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for personal injury or property damage to
the extent caused by your negligence or willful misconduct; or (b) your violation of a law applicable to your
performance under this Agreement. We will notify you promptly in writing of the claim and will give you
sole control over its defense or settlement. We agree to provide you with reasonable assistance,
cooperation, and information in defending the claim at your expense.
2. DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE
MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, WE HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL OTHER WARRANTIES
AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES, DUTIES, OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE.
3. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, OUR
LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED ON A THEORY OF
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CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY, SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE LESSER
OF (A) YOUR ACTUAL DIRECT DAMAGES OR (B) THE AMOUNTS PAID BY YOU UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.
THE PRICES SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE SET IN RELIANCE UPON THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.
THE FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS THAT ARE SUBJECT TO SECTION
E(1) ABOVE.
4. EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO
EVENT SHALL WE BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LOSS OF TAX REVENUE OR CLAIMS RELATED
TO VALUATION OF PROPERTY, EVEN IF WE HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES.
5. Insurance. During the course of performing services under this Agreement, we agree to maintain the
following levels of insurance: (a) Commercial General Liability of at least $1,000,000; (b) Automobile
Liability of at least $1,000,000; (c) Professional Liability of at least $1,000,000; and (d) Workers
Compensation complying with applicable statutory requirements ; and (e) Excess/Umbrella Liability of at
least $5,000,000. We will add you as an additional insured to our Commercial General Liability and
Automobile Liability policies, which will automatically add you as an additional insured to our
Excess/Umbrella Liability policy as well. We will provide you with copies of certificates of insurance upon
your written request.
SECTION F – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. Additional Products and Services. You may purchase additional services at our then-current list price by
executing a mutually agreed addendum. The terms of this Agreement will control any such additional
purchase(s), unless otherwise specifically provided in the addendum.
2. Dispute Resolution. You agree to provide us with written notice within thirty (30) days of becoming aware
of a dispute. You agree to cooperate with us in trying to reasonably resolve all disputes, including, if
requested by either party, appointing a senior representative to meet and engage in good faith
negotiations with our appointed senior representative. Senior representatives will convene within thirty
(30) days of the written dispute notice, unless otherwise agreed. All meetings and discussions between
senior representatives will be deemed confidential settlement discussions not subject to disclosure under
Federal Rule of Evidence 408 or any similar applicable state rule. If we fail to resolve the dispute, either of
us may assert our respective rights and remedies in a court of competent jurisdiction. Nothing in this
section shall prevent you or us from seeking necessary injunctive relief during the dispute resolution.
3. Taxes. The fees in the Investment Summary do not include any taxes, including, without limitation, sales,
use, or excise tax. If you are a tax-exempt entity, you agree to provide us with a tax-exempt certificate.
Otherwise, we will pay all applicable taxes to the proper authorities and you will reimburse us for such
taxes. If you have a valid direct-pay permit, you agree to provide us with a copy. For clarity, we are
responsible for paying our income taxes arising from our performance of this Agreement.
4. Nondiscrimination. We will not discriminate against any person employed or applying for employment
concerning the performance of our responsibilities under this Agreement. This discrimination prohibition
will apply to all matters of initial employment, tenure, and terms of employment, or otherwise with
respect to any matter directly or indirectly relating to employment concerning race, color, religion,
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national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, disability that is unrelated to the individual's ability
to perform the duties of a particular job or position, height, weight, marital status, or political affiliation.
We will post, where appropriate, all notices related to nondiscrimination as may be required by applicable
law.
5. E-Verify. We have complied, and will comply, with the E-Verify procedures administered by the U.S.
Citizenship and Immigration Services Verification Division for all of our employees assigned to your project.
6. Subcontractors. We will not subcontract any services under this Agreement without your prior written
consent, not to be unreasonably withheld.
7. Binding Effect; No Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall be for the benefit of, either
your or our successor(s) or permitted assign(s). Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior
written consent of the other party; provided, however, your consent is not required for an assignment by
us as a result of a corporate reorganization, merger, acquisition, or purchase of substantially all of our
assets.
8. Force Majeure. Except for your payment obligations, neither party will be liable for delays in performing
its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that the delay is caused by Force Majeure; provided,
however, that within ten (10) business days of the Force Majeure event, the party whose performance is
delayed provides the other party with written notice explaining the cause and extent thereof, as well as a
request for a reasonable time extension equal to the estimated duration of the Force Majeure event.
9. No Intended Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of you and us.
No third party will be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party will have the right to
make any claim or assert any right under this Agreement.
10. Purpose/Use Of Appraisals. The Company by virtue of this agreement is contracted to provide certain
services specified herein and recommendations of value to the Client which are intended for exclusive use
by the Client for determinations of assessment for ad valorem tax purposes. Any use other than that
stated above is not authorized nor intended, and most specifically excluded is an opinion of value used for
federally related real estate transactions or other mortgage purposes
11. Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between you and us
with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, understandings, and
representations, whether written, oral, expressed, implied, or statutory. This Agreement may only be
modified by a written amendment signed by an authorized representative of each party.
12. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement will be considered valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.
13. No Waiver. In the event that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not strictly enforced by
either party, such non-enforcement will not act as or be deemed to act as a waiver or modification of this
Agreement, nor will such non-enforcement prevent such party from enforcing each and every term of this
Agreement thereafter.
14. Independent Contractor. We are an independent contractor for all purposes under this Agreement.
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15. Notices. All notices or communications required or permitted as a part of this Agreement, such as notice
of an alleged material breach for a termination for cause or a dispute that must be submitted to dispute
resolution, must be in writing and will be deemed delivered upon the earlier of the following: (a) actual
receipt by the receiving party; (b) upon receipt by sender of a certified mail, return receipt signed by an
employee or agent of the receiving party; (c) upon receipt by sender of proof of email delivery; or (d) if not
actually received, five (5) days after deposit with the United States Postal Service authorized mail center
with proper postage (certified mail, return receipt requested) affixed and addressed to the other party at
the address set forth on the signature page hereto or such other address as the party may have designated
by proper notice. The consequences for the failure to receive a notice due to improper notification by the
intended receiving party of a change in address will be borne by the intended receiving party.
16. Client Lists. You agree that we may identify you by name in client lists, marketing presentations, and
promotional materials.
17. Confidentiality. Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the course of
performance of this Agreement, may be exposed to confidential information and that disclosure of such
information could violate rights to private individuals and entities, including the parties. Confidential
information is nonpublic information that a reasonable person would believe to be confidential and
includes, without limitation, personal identifying information (e.g., social security numbers) and trade
secrets, each as defined by applicable state law. Each party agrees that it will not disclose any confidential
information of the other party and further agrees to take all reasonable and appropriate action to prevent
such disclosure by its employees or agents. The confidentiality covenants contained herein will survive the
termination or cancellation of this Agreement. This obligation of confidentiality will not apply to
information that:
(a) is in the public domain, either at the time of disclosure or afterwards, except by breach of this
Agreement by a party or its employees or agents;
(b) a party can establish by reasonable proof was in that party's possession at the time of initial
disclosure;
(c) a party receives from a third party who has a right to disclose it to the receiving party; or
(d) is the subject of a legitimate disclosure request under the open records laws or similar applicable
public disclosure laws governing this Agreement; provided, however, that in the event you receive
an open records or other similar applicable request, you will give us prompt notice and otherwise
perform the functions required by applicable law.
18. Non-Solicitation. During the term of this Agreement and for a period of six (6) months following the
termination of this Agreement, you will not (i) solicit for employment, or (ii) hire, any employee of ours
without our express written consent.
19. Business License. In the event a local business license is required for us to perform services hereunder,
you will promptly notify us and provide us with the necessary paperwork and/or contact information so
that we may timely obtain such license.
20. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of_____________.
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21. Multiple Originals and Authorized Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, any
of which will be independently treated as an original document. Any electronic, faxed, scanned,
photocopied, or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any amendment hereto will be
deemed an original signature and will be fully enforceable as if an original signature. Each party represents
to the other that the signatory set forth below is duly authorized to bind that party to this Agreement.
22. Contract Documents. This Agreement includes the following exhibits:
Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D

Investment Summary
Invoicing and Payment Policy
Statement of Work
Client Responsibilities
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Agreement as of the
date(s) set forth below.
Tyler Technologies, Inc.
Appraisal & Tax Division

[INSERT CLIENT NAME]

By:

By:

Name:

Name:

Title:

Title:

Date:

Date:

Address for Notices:
Tyler Technologies, Inc.
One Tyler Way
Moraine, OH 45439
Attention: David J. Johnson,
President CLT Appraisal Services

Address for Notices:
[INSERT CLIENT NAME]
[INSERT CLIENT ADDRESS]
[INSERT CLIENT ADDRESS]
[INSERT CLIENT TITLE]
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EXHIBIT A

Investment Summary
The following Investment Summary details the services to be delivered by Tyler Technologies, Inc. to
Client under this Services Agreement. This Investment Summary is effective as of the Effective Date.
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in your Services
Agreement.

[THIS WILL BE FINALIZED UPON AWARD OF CONTRACT]

Confidential

EXHIBIT B

Invoicing and Payment Policy
Tyler Technologies, Inc. will provide you with the services set forth in the Investment Summary and
Statement of Work of your Services Agreement. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the
meaning assigned to such terms in your Services Agreement.
Invoicing: We will invoice you for the applicable services at the rates described in the Investment
Summary as set forth below. Your rights to dispute any invoice are set forth in your Services Agreement.
1. Professional Services.
All professional services performed under this Agreement will be invoiced monthly as
performed.
2. Expenses. The service rates in the Investment Summary include travel expenses.
Payment. Payment for undisputed invoices is due within forty-five (45) days of the invoice date.
We prefer to receive payments electronically. Our electronic payment information is:
Bank:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
420 Montgomery
San Francisco, CA 94104
ABA:
121000248
Account:
4124302472
Beneficiary: Tyler Technologies, Inc. – Operating Account
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EXHIBIT C

Statement of Work
The following Statement of Work details the services to be delivered by Tyler Technologies, Inc. to the
Client under your Services Agreement. This Statement of Work is effective as of the Effective Date.
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in your Services
Agreement.

[THIS WILL BE FINALIZED UPON AWARD OF CONTRACT]
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EXHIBIT D

Client Responsibilities
The following Client Responsibilities details the responsibilities of the Client under your Services
Agreement. These Client Responsibilities are effective as of the Effective Date. Capitalized terms not
otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in your Services Agreement.

[THIS WILL BE FINALIZED UPON AWARD OF CONTRACT]
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what is a

connected community?
Imagine the community of the future.
The kind of community you want to live in.
It’s safe. It’s clean. It’s prosperous.
Everything works as it should.
It’s a community with a vibe. An energy that
hums with life and purpose. You can’t quite
PUTYOURlNGERONIT BUTYOUCANfeel it. It’s a
place where you feel like part of something
bigger than yourself.
That’s a connected community.
)TSMADEPOSSIBLEBYSEAMLESSLYCONNECTINGDATA 
people and processes, and letting technology
work behind the scenes to make local government
and schools work better SOevery community
and its citizens thrive.

IIt’s a community where citizens
feel connected to their government,
and it’s about the governments
themselves, and the organizations
within them, being connected to each
other and to other jurisdictions.
s.
— Jeff Green, Chief Technology Officer
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Tyler Technologies

shareholders

Our competitive position in the
local government software market
reached an impressive high in
(ISTORICALLY WEVEINVESTED

in our products to not only earn
MOREBUSINESS BUTTOBETTERFULlLL
our mission of empowering those
who serve the public sector. Having
successfully built and reinforced our
leadership position with multiple
BEST IN CLASSPRODUCTSFORMAJOR 
ESSENTIALPARTSOFGOVERNMENT 
we are now ready for the next
phase of Tyler’s development —
connecting communities through
seamless integration. By developing
technologies to enable our clients to
share data between departments and
agencies that traditionally have been
SILOED 4YLERWILLBEUNIQUE
in its ability to empower our
clients for their future as
connected communities.

“We believe that, together with our clients, we have a unique opportunity and
RESPONSIBILITYTOCREATEAMOREEFlCIENTPUBLICSECTORANDAMOREJUSTSOCIETYv
— Bruce Graham, Chief Strategy Officer
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FINANCIAL STRENGTH

to our

)N/CTOBER 4YLER4ECHNOLOGIES
leaders commemorated our
company’s 50th anniversary by ringing
The NYSE Closing Bell® on the New
York Stock Exchange. Even though
4YLERWASFOUNDEDIN ITWAS
1998 that marked the move to our
singular focus on software
for the local government market.
This decision has led to steady
ANDREMARKABLEPERFORMANCE 
and 2016 marked another year of
extraordinary success in the
growth of our business.

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

)N WECONTINUEDTOSEE
improving win rates and growth in
market share driven by individual
successes across product suites. Our
focus on delivering best-of-breed
solutions and services has resulted
INSTRONGlNANCIALPERFORMANCE WITH
YEARSOFPOSITIVENETINCOME AND
positions us well for what lies ahead.

also reached a new high of $953
MILLION UPPERCENTFROM
Our cloud business continued to
GENERATEINTERESTANDEXHIBITSTRENGTH 
INCREASINGPERCENTOVER 
of which 24 percent was organic.
Annual revenue from software
licenses and royalties was up more
than 25 percent from 2015.

Tyler’s revenues grew 28 percent
TOMILLION WITHPERCENT
organic growth. GAAP net income for
THEYEARWASMILLION OR
PERDILUTEDSHARE UPPERCENT
Non-GAAP net income rose more
THANPERCENTTOMILLION OR
$3.49 per diluted share. Our nonGAAP operating margin improved
260 basis points to 28 percent.
Bookings were the highest in company
HISTORYATMILLION UPPERCENT
OVER MILLIONOFWHICHWAS
due to a four-year extension of Tyler’s
eFileTexas™ agreement. Total backlog

Our balance sheet remains
EXCEPTIONALLYSTRONG WITH
million in cash and investments
and only $10 million of debt at
the end of 2016. Cash provided
by operations also reached a new
HIGHINATMILLION AN
increase of 43 percent from 2015.
$URINGTHEYEAR WEPAIDDOWN
MILLIONOFNETDEBT REPURCHASED
MILLIONOFOURCOMMONSTOCK 
ANDSPENTMILLIONONOFlCE
FACILITIESIN9ARMOUTHAND&ALMOUTH 
-AINE WHILEINVESTINGINPRODUCT
development at an elevated level.
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Tyler Technologies

CONTINUED INVESTMENT
Our management team has always
focused on converting our strong
CASHmOWINTOSHAREHOLDERVALUE
through strategic acquisitions
and stock repurchases. We are
well positioned to continue to
expand our market presence by
ACQUIRINGMARKETLEADERS ASWE
did with the acquisition of New
World Systems Corporation in late

2015. We made great progress
with the integration of New World
IN FROMBOTHANOPERATIONAL
ANDAPRODUCTPERSPECTIVE ANDWE
are continuing to invest at a high
level in Tyler’s New World™ public
safety products to strengthen our
competitive position and broaden
our addressable market. In June
2016 we acquired ExecuTime

3OFTWARE WHICHPROVIDESTIME
and attendance solutions that
complement and supplement
Tyler’s enterprise resource
planning (ERP) solutions.
/URSTRONGlNANCIALPERFORMANCE
INREmECTSOURPATIENCE
DRIVEN LONG TERMSTRATEGYOF
investment that has fueled growth
ANDDELIVEREDVALUETOOURCLIENTS 
shareholders and employees. Our
long-term strategy is to continue
to invest in our products at a
high level while seeking strategic
acquisitions that enhance our
offerings and expand our reach.
5LTIMATELY THISSTRATEGYWILL
facilitate our evolution from a
COMPANYWITHMULTIPLE VERY
successful products to a more
UNIlED4YLERWITHINTEGRATEDSUITES
of complementary products.
This will give our clients the
unprecedented ability to share data
ACROSSAGENCIESANDJURISDICTIONS 
LEADINGTOSYNERGISTICEFlCIENCIES 
MOREINFORMEDDECISION MAKING 
better transparency and improved
service to their constituents.

EXPERIENCED LEADERSHIP
One of Tyler’s greatest strengths
is the depth and experience of our
management team. To support Tyler’s
GROWTHANDEVOLUTIONASACOMPANY 
we made changes in roles on our
SENIORLEADERSHIPTEAM ASWELLAS
organizational structure changes
that will further our move toward
MOREUNIlEDANDINTEGRATEDSUITES
OFPRODUCTS ANDSTREAMLINEDSALES
ANDOPERATIONSCHANNELS/URlVE
independent divisions were organized
INTOTWOGROUPSTHATHAVEAFlNITYAND
SYNERGYWITHEACHOTHER%NTERPRISE 
LEDBY!NDY4EED AND*USTICE LED
by Bret Dixon. H. Lynn Moore Jr.
WASNAMEDPRESIDENT EFFECTIVE
*ANUARY  AND)BECAME
chairman of the board while
continuing as chief executive
OFlCER,YNNHASSERVEDASA4YLER
leader and close executive adviser
FORMANYYEARSAND ASPRESIDENT 
will work with me to continue the
management and culture that have
made us successful as a company.
These changes enable us to continue
and expand our focus on strategy and

innovative development while our
strong division leadership continues
TOFOCUSONEFlCIENTPERFORMANCEAND
outstanding execution of our business
operations. We believe continued
investment combined with experienced
operational leadership will make Tyler
even more competitive by allowing
us to reach into new markets and
strengthen our presence in existing
ONES)NADDITION OURINTEGRATION
STRATEGYWILLHELPOURCLIENTSBENElT
FROMCONNECTEDSOLUTIONS ADVANCING
the way they use technology and
helping their communities thrive.
We appreciate the support of our
SHAREHOLDERS CLIENTSANDEMPLOYEESAS
we execute our mission of empowering
people who serve the public.

John S. Marr Jr.
Chairman of the Board and
#HIEF%XECUTIVE/FlCER
March 17, 2017
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5LTIMATELY THISSTRATEGYWILL
facilitate our evolution from a
COMPANYWITHMULTIPLE VERY
successful products to a more
UNIlED4YLERWITHINTEGRATEDSUITES
of complementary products.
This will give our clients the
unprecedented ability to share data
ACROSSAGENCIESANDJURISDICTIONS 
LEADINGTOSYNERGISTICEFlCIENCIES 
MOREINFORMEDDECISION MAKING 
better transparency and improved
service to their constituents.

EXPERIENCED LEADERSHIP
One of Tyler’s greatest strengths
is the depth and experience of our
management team. To support Tyler’s
GROWTHANDEVOLUTIONASACOMPANY 
we made changes in roles on our
SENIORLEADERSHIPTEAM ASWELLAS
organizational structure changes
that will further our move toward
MOREUNIlEDANDINTEGRATEDSUITES
OFPRODUCTS ANDSTREAMLINEDSALES
ANDOPERATIONSCHANNELS/URlVE
independent divisions were organized
INTOTWOGROUPSTHATHAVEAFlNITYAND
SYNERGYWITHEACHOTHER%NTERPRISE 
LEDBY!NDY4EED AND*USTICE LED
by Bret Dixon. H. Lynn Moore Jr.
WASNAMEDPRESIDENT EFFECTIVE
*ANUARY  AND)BECAME
chairman of the board while
continuing as chief executive
OFlCER,YNNHASSERVEDASA4YLER
leader and close executive adviser
FORMANYYEARSAND ASPRESIDENT 
will work with me to continue the
management and culture that have
made us successful as a company.
These changes enable us to continue
and expand our focus on strategy and

innovative development while our
strong division leadership continues
TOFOCUSONEFlCIENTPERFORMANCEAND
outstanding execution of our business
operations. We believe continued
investment combined with experienced
operational leadership will make Tyler
even more competitive by allowing
us to reach into new markets and
strengthen our presence in existing
ONES)NADDITION OURINTEGRATION
STRATEGYWILLHELPOURCLIENTSBENElT
FROMCONNECTEDSOLUTIONS ADVANCING
the way they use technology and
helping their communities thrive.
We appreciate the support of our
SHAREHOLDERS CLIENTSANDEMPLOYEESAS
we execute our mission of empowering
people who serve the public.

John S. Marr Jr.
Chairman of the Board and
#HIEF%XECUTIVE/FlCER
March 17, 2017
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!TTHECUSPOFTHENEWMILLENNIUM 4YLERHADANOPPORTUNITYTOREDElNETHE
way government works at the local level. It focused on an ambitious goal:
“Our mission to make local government more accessible, responsive and
EFlCIENTTHROUGHINNOVATIVEE GOVERNMENTSYSTEMSANDSOLUTIONSHAS
IMPLICATIONSFORVIRTUALLYEVERYINDIVIDUALANDEVERYTYPEOFBUSINESS
4HEYEARSAHEADWILLBEEXCITINGASWEDEPLOYOURCOMBINEDKNOWLEDGE
ANDTECHNOLOGICALRESOURCESTOBRINGTHISVISIONTOREALITYv
— Tyler Technologies 1999 Annual Report

Tyler’s 2000 annual report described our early strategy for achieving our
goal of becoming the “country’s largest company focused solely on providing
software and services to the local government market.” We’ve executed
on that strategy, acquiring best-of-breed companies and investing in our
products to earn more business.
h4HREEYEARSAGO WETARGETEDFORACQUISITIONTHEPREMIERCOMPANIESIN
THEHIGHLYFRAGMENTEDLOCALGOVERNMENT)4MARKET4HESEGEOGRAPHICALLY
DIVERSECOMPANIESOFFEREDAVARIETYOFPRODUCTSANDSERVICES BUT
HADSEVERALCHARACTERISTICSINCOMMONINCLUDINGSTRONGCUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIPS AREPUTATIONFORQUALITYANDSERVICE ANDAHISTORYOF
PROlTABLEGROWTH"YBRINGINGTOGETHERTHESEMARKETNICHELEADERS WE
BUILTTHECOUNTRYSLARGESTCOMPANYFOCUSEDSOLELYONPROVIDINGSOFTWARE
ANDSERVICESTOTHELOCALGOVERNMENTMARKETv
— Tyler Technologies 2000 Annual Report

Tyler’s employees and shareholders can take pride in having
SUCCESSFULLYEXECUTEDTHEINITIALOBJECTIVESOFTHE4YLERSTRATEGYAND
LOOKFORWARDWITHOPTIMISMTOTHEOPPORTUNITIESTHATLIEAHEAD

8

Annual Report 2016

how far

we’ve come

Tyler Technologies

Tyler Technologies

Annual Report 2016

9

!TTHECUSPOFTHENEWMILLENNIUM 4YLERHADANOPPORTUNITYTOREDElNETHE
way government works at the local level. It focused on an ambitious goal:
“Our mission to make local government more accessible, responsive and
EFlCIENTTHROUGHINNOVATIVEE GOVERNMENTSYSTEMSANDSOLUTIONSHAS
IMPLICATIONSFORVIRTUALLYEVERYINDIVIDUALANDEVERYTYPEOFBUSINESS
4HEYEARSAHEADWILLBEEXCITINGASWEDEPLOYOURCOMBINEDKNOWLEDGE
ANDTECHNOLOGICALRESOURCESTOBRINGTHISVISIONTOREALITYv
— Tyler Technologies 1999 Annual Report

Tyler’s 2000 annual report described our early strategy for achieving our
goal of becoming the “country’s largest company focused solely on providing
software and services to the local government market.” We’ve executed
on that strategy, acquiring best-of-breed companies and investing in our
products to earn more business.
h4HREEYEARSAGO WETARGETEDFORACQUISITIONTHEPREMIERCOMPANIESIN
THEHIGHLYFRAGMENTEDLOCALGOVERNMENT)4MARKET4HESEGEOGRAPHICALLY
DIVERSECOMPANIESOFFEREDAVARIETYOFPRODUCTSANDSERVICES BUT
HADSEVERALCHARACTERISTICSINCOMMONINCLUDINGSTRONGCUSTOMER
RELATIONSHIPS AREPUTATIONFORQUALITYANDSERVICE ANDAHISTORYOF
PROlTABLEGROWTH"YBRINGINGTOGETHERTHESEMARKETNICHELEADERS WE
BUILTTHECOUNTRYSLARGESTCOMPANYFOCUSEDSOLELYONPROVIDINGSOFTWARE
ANDSERVICESTOTHELOCALGOVERNMENTMARKETv
— Tyler Technologies 2000 Annual Report

Tyler’s employees and shareholders can take pride in having
SUCCESSFULLYEXECUTEDTHEINITIALOBJECTIVESOFTHE4YLERSTRATEGYAND
LOOKFORWARDWITHOPTIMISMTOTHEOPPORTUNITIESTHATLIEAHEAD

EVALUATING AND
INTEGRATING ACQUISITIONS

the next

horizon
!SSUCCESSFULASWEHAVEBEENINACHIEVINGOURINITIALOBJECTIVES 
there is still work to do before we fully realize this vision of market
LEADERSHIPFOREVERYONEOFOURSOLUTIONS4OACHIEVETHIS WEHAVE
DElNEDASTRATEGYFORCONTINUEDGROWTHANDDEVELOPEDAPLANFOR
connecting product suites across vertical solutions.
While we’ve achieved high win rates and clear leadership positions
WITHMANYOFOURPRODUCTS WECANNOTEXPECTTOCONTINUETOACHIEVE
our targets for double-digit growth by simply improving Tyler’s
COMPETITIVEPOSITION)NORDERTOMEETOURGOALS WEALSONEED
TOEXPANDOURADDRESSABLEMARKETWITHINTHEPUBLICSECTOR BOTH
geographically and by expanding our product offerings. While most of
that growth will come organically through investing in Tyler’s products
ANDSERVICES WEALSOWILLCONTINUETOMAKESTRATEGICACQUISITIONSTO
enhance and expand
our p
product suites.
p

We have historically supplemented our
organic growth with targeted strategic
ACQUISITIONS)NMANYCASES THEACQUISITIONS
HAVEBROUGHTPRODUCTS SERVICESOR
technologies that expand and complement
OUREXISTINGOFFERINGS&OREXAMPLE WITH
the acquisition of New World Systems
Corporation in 2015 (the largest acquisition
INOURCOMPANYSHISTORY WESIGNIlCANTLY
increased Tyler’s presence in the public
SAFETYSOFTWAREMARKET ALARGEANDGROWING
segment that complements our strength
in courts and justice solutions. Acquiring
New World accelerated Tyler’s ability to
integrate public safety and criminal justice
applications into an end-to-end solution
spanning all phases of criminal justice from
dispatch through disposition.
We look for companies with products that
CURRENTLYHAVEMARKETLEADERSHIPPOSITIONS 
or that have the potential to achieve
leadership as a part of Tyler. Our June 2016
ACQUISITIONOF%XECU4IME3OFTWARE WHILE
ONASMALLERSCALE ALSOlTSTHISDESCRIPTION
ExecuTime brought to us a robust time and
attendance solution that integrates fully with
OUR%20ANDPUBLICSAFETYSOLUTIONS GIVING
us the opportunity to leverage our sales
resources and client base to accelerate its
growth. !SANEXAMPLE OFlCIALSIN"ATON
2OUGE ,OUISIANA SIGNEDANAGREEMENTTO
replace the city’s legacy ERP system with
both Tyler’s Munis® ERP and ExecuTime™
time and recordkeeping solutions to replace

paper-oriented processes with digital
WORKmOWS)NADDITION WEHAVECOMPLETED
some acquisitions that represent market
CONSOLIDATIONOPPORTUNITIES WITHPRODUCTSOR
SERVICESTHATOVERLAPOURCURRENTOFFERINGS 
but have attractive client bases and
recurring revenue streams.
As we discussed at the beginning of the
YEAR WEMADESIGNIlCANTINVESTMENTSINTHE
New World public safety organization and
products to integrate them into the family
of Tyler justice solutions and position us to
expand our presence in the public safety
market. Some of those planned investments
involved strengthening the organizational
infrastructure to support our growth
OBJECTIVES INCLUDINGADDINGRESOURCES
TOCLIENTSUPPORT DEVELOPMENTANDSALES
teams. We’re pleased with the progress we
MADEIN WHILE.EW7ORLDPROVIDEDA
contribution to earnings that exceeded our
plan for the year.
We expect to continue to invest in our public
safety products at a high level in accordance
TERMPLANTOSIGNIlCANTLY
WITHOURLONG TERMPLANTOSIGNIlCANTLY
improve win rates and gain market share
in that space. Among those efforts include
accelerating development of advanced
FEATURESANDFUNCTIONALITY ASWELLASSCALING
our solutions for larger clients. We believe
these investments could expand our public
safety addressable market by a factor of four
and lead to increased win rates.
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OVER THE COURSE OF 2016

we put considerable effort into an extensive whitespace analysis of the public sector software space to
further our long-term goal of being a leading provider
OFMOST IFNOTALL OFTHEESSENTIALAPPLICATIONSFOR
local governments. We’re evaluating our current
PRODUCTOFFERINGSANDTHEIRMARKETPOSITIONS AND 
in those areas where we are not currently a market
LEADER MAPPINGTHEPATHTOLEADERSHIP!TTHE
SAMETIME WEREANALYZINGSPACESADJACENTTOOUR
current solutions and other areas of the public
SECTORSOFTWAREMARKETTHATWEDONTCURRENTLYSERVE 
IDENTIFYINGCONNECTIONSTOOUREXISTINGOFFERINGS 
sizing the markets and studying the competitive
LANDSCAPE4HISANALYSISISANONGOINGEFFORT AND
it will enable us to prioritize strategic investments
INATHOUGHTFULANDOBJECTIVEMANNER SHAPINGBOTH
our merger and acquisition strategy and our internal
development priorities.
Underlying our commitment to making these
investments in acquisitions and internal product
DEVELOPMENTISOURCONlDENCEINTHEABILITYOFOUR
people to execute at the highest levels. We know
HOWTOBUILDINDUSTRY LEADINGPRODUCTS HOWTO
BERESPONSIVETOCLIENTS ANDHOWTOSTRATEGICALLY
address the marketplace with a successful sales
approach. Our track record shows that Tyler can
INVESTINCOMPANIESANDPRODUCTSWITHCONlDENCE
that they will be successful in the marketplace and
drive additional growth over time.
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NON GAAP NET INCOME

NON GAAP
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%

2016

30

Increase Over 2015

BACKLOG (in millions)

$

7EAREWELL POISEDTOCONTINUEMAKINGSIGNIlCANT
PRODUCTDEVELOPMENTINVESTMENTSAIMEDATFURTHER
STRENGTHENINGOURLEADERSHIPPOSITIONSANDDRIVING
NEWLONG TERMGROWTHOPPORTUNITIES

2016

135.8 M +47

or $3.49 per diluted share

953.3

2016

$

%

13

Increase Over 2015
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2015
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GAAP NET INCOME
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from 2015
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109.9 M 69
+
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2013
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2012
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$
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2013
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ANNUAL
EARNINGS
PER SHARE

+11%
Compound annual organic growth
in revenues 2002-2016

+32%
Maintenance: Fastest growing
revenue stream In 2016
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WE ARE INTEGRATING APPLICATIONS IN A WAY THAT ALLOWS
THE USER TO SHARE DATA SMOOTHLY THROUGH A WORKFLOW OR

EVOLVING OUR PRODUCTS
)NVESTMENTINDEEPENING 
uniting and extending
our core products has
proven to be a winning
strategy that enables
us to compete favorably
against a wide range of
competitors. We believe
OURlNANCIALSTRENGTHAND
long-term commitment to
the public sector software
MARKET WHICHARE
REmECTEDINOURCONSISTENT
INVESTMENTS CONTINUETO
set us apart from many of
our competitors. We also
continue to add value for
our clients with initiatives
like our evergreen
perpetual licensing model
and EverGuide™ 4YLERS
continuous improvement

initiative that ensures our
clients have the latest
PRODUCTRELEASES AS
well as the training and
resources they need. With
a singular focus on the
PUBLICSECTOR COUPLED
with what we believe is
the largest base of local
government clients in
THENATION WEUSECLIENT
feedback to understand
users’ pain points.
This guides our efforts
to enhance products
and improve the user
experience so our clients
can accomplish their
goals more quickly
ANDEFlCIENTLY

In addition to making
improvements to our
PRODUCTRELEASECYCLES 
we continue to add
features and functionality
to applications and
drive consistency across
multiple products. The
2016 release of Tyler’s
Odyssey Case Manager™
ISONESUCHEXAMPLE 
incorporating new
technology and delivering
it in an evolutionary way.
Odyssey® 2016 provides
major technology platform
upgrades in a way that
minimizes disruption to
CLIENTOPERATIONS AND
does it as part of their
evergreen upgrade.

THREE KEYS
TO THE FUTURE
One of Tyler’s biggest challenges in providing
end-to-end solutions for the public sector is
navigating the inherent complexity of solutions
that span multiple departments and multiple
JURISDICTIONS EACHWITHITSOWNINDIVIDUAL
missions and goals. We understand the budget
CHALLENGESOFLOCALGOVERNMENT ANDCONSULTWITH
OURCLIENTSTOPLANSIGNIlCANT YETMANAGEABLE 
advances in technology while accommodating
the realities of integrating myriad independent
systems of various ages and sophistication.
Many of our technology initiatives in 2016
focused on establishing the framework for the
next phase of Tyler’s evolution. We are integrating
applications in a way that allows the user to share
DATASMOOTHLYTHROUGHAWORKmOWORCHAINOF
EVENTSACROSSDEPARTMENTS4HEQUESTIONBECOMES 
how do we deliver best-in-class solutions for each
stage of the end-to-end process in a way that
OFFERSEFlCIENCY TRANSPARENCYANDLONGEVITY

CHAIN OF EVENTS ACROSS DEPARTMENTS.

IMPROVING THE USER
EXPERIENCE 4HElRSTKEYISTO
enhance and improve core products
by adding features that improve
the user experience. On the front
ENDOFAPPLICATIONS THISINCLUDES
improving the user interface and
unifying the look and feel of all of
Tyler’s applications.

The second key
is to build infrastructure to allow
Tyler products to communicate
with each other and improve data
SHARING(ISTORICALLY PUBLICSECTOR
software systems have generally
BEENSILOED WITHOUTTHEABILITY
to access data across agencies.
Complex integrations must be built
between applications in order to
connect products within a suite and
across jurisdictional boundaries.
To accomplish this degree of
INTEGRATEDCOMMUNICATION WE
are developing technologies that
allow our applications to talk to
ONEANOTHERANDENABLEDATAmOW
ACROSSBOUNDARIES ALONGWITHA

DATA SHARING

COMMONWORKmOWENGINETHATHELPS
ORCHESTRATETHEmOWOFAPPROVALS 
NOTIlCATIONSANDTASKSACCORDINGTO
the client’s business process. For
INSTANCE ANEWBUILDINGPERMIT
in our EnerGov™ application could
AUTOMATICALLYTRIGGERAWORKmOWTHAT
alerts a taxing authority to revalue
THEPROPERTY ALLOWINGTHECLIENTTO
uncover hidden revenue.
4HISABILITYTOSHARE AGGREGATE 
search and analyze data across
jurisdictions will also be
instrumental in helping our clients
BEMORERESOURCEFUL ACCURATEAND
responsive with information. With
OUR%20lNANCIALSOLUTIONSINTHE
%NTERPRISE'ROUP 4YLERCLIENTS
could compare key performance
indicators for their departments or
organizations against organizations
OFSIMILARSIZEINTHEIRREGION 
OREVENACROSSTHECOUNTRY TO
help them make more informed
lNANCIALDECISIONS)NTHE*USTICE
'ROUP 4YLER$ATA8CHANGE™
aggregates information across
multiple jurisdictions and gives law
ENFORCEMENTANDJUSTICEOFlCIALS

THEABILITYTOSHAREOFFENDERRECORDS 
outstanding warrants and similar
data via mobile applications that
can help them apprehend and bring
criminals to justice.

COMMON FOUNDATION

A

A third key is to create a shared
foundation of services that provides
core capabilities across all Tyler
applications. Just as an interstate
highway allows cars to travel
UNIMPEDEDBETWEENSTATES OUR
common foundation will allow
DATATOmOWUNIMPEDEDWITHIN
ANDBETWEENJURISDICTIONS 
eliminating complexity while
unlocking capability.
One initiative to better support
integration is to create a model
for single sign-on for constituents.
Whether that constituent is a city
EMPLOYEE AVENDORORACITIZEN THE
idea is to create one constituent
portal framework. Users will be able
to log in to the Tyler portal once
to access all the data they need

to interact with any community
department from a single user
interface and single website.
These features will begin to roll
out in 2017 in applications like
%NER'OV -UNIS® and Incode®.
Because of Tyler’s best-in-class
PRODUCTS EXCELLENTCUSTOMER
SERVICEANDOURCLIENTSCONlDENCE
in the products they are currently
USING WEARESEEINGMORECLIENTS
interested in deploying multiple
Tyler products across solution areas.
This allows them to take advantage
OFTHEEFlCIENCIESCREATEDBYAN
INTEGRATEDPROCESS THEINSIGHTS
ANDWORKmOWSGENERATEDBYTHE
DATA ANDTHERESPONSIVENESSAND
transparency available to their
constituents. With our planned
DEVELOPMENTINITIATIVES OURCLIENTS
will be able to realize value from
Tyler that will further distinguish us
from competitors.
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WE ARE INTEGRATING APPLICATIONS IN A WAY THAT ALLOWS
THE USER TO SHARE DATA SMOOTHLY THROUGH A WORKFLOW OR

EVOLVING OUR PRODUCTS
)NVESTMENTINDEEPENING 
uniting and extending
our core products has
proven to be a winning
strategy that enables
us to compete favorably
against a wide range of
competitors. We believe
OURlNANCIALSTRENGTHAND
long-term commitment to
the public sector software
MARKET WHICHARE
REmECTEDINOURCONSISTENT
INVESTMENTS CONTINUETO
set us apart from many of
our competitors. We also
continue to add value for
our clients with initiatives
like our evergreen
perpetual licensing model
and EverGuide™ 4YLERS
continuous improvement

initiative that ensures our
clients have the latest
PRODUCTRELEASES AS
well as the training and
resources they need. With
a singular focus on the
PUBLICSECTOR COUPLED
with what we believe is
the largest base of local
government clients in
THENATION WEUSECLIENT
feedback to understand
users’ pain points.
This guides our efforts
to enhance products
and improve the user
experience so our clients
can accomplish their
goals more quickly
ANDEFlCIENTLY

In addition to making
improvements to our
PRODUCTRELEASECYCLES 
we continue to add
features and functionality
to applications and
drive consistency across
multiple products. The
2016 release of Tyler’s
Odyssey Case Manager™
ISONESUCHEXAMPLE 
incorporating new
technology and delivering
it in an evolutionary way.
Odyssey® 2016 provides
major technology platform
upgrades in a way that
minimizes disruption to
CLIENTOPERATIONS AND
does it as part of their
evergreen upgrade.

THREE KEYS
TO THE FUTURE
One of Tyler’s biggest challenges in providing
end-to-end solutions for the public sector is
navigating the inherent complexity of solutions
that span multiple departments and multiple
JURISDICTIONS EACHWITHITSOWNINDIVIDUAL
missions and goals. We understand the budget
CHALLENGESOFLOCALGOVERNMENT ANDCONSULTWITH
OURCLIENTSTOPLANSIGNIlCANT YETMANAGEABLE 
advances in technology while accommodating
the realities of integrating myriad independent
systems of various ages and sophistication.
Many of our technology initiatives in 2016
focused on establishing the framework for the
next phase of Tyler’s evolution. We are integrating
applications in a way that allows the user to share
DATASMOOTHLYTHROUGHAWORKmOWORCHAINOF
EVENTSACROSSDEPARTMENTS4HEQUESTIONBECOMES 
how do we deliver best-in-class solutions for each
stage of the end-to-end process in a way that
OFFERSEFlCIENCY TRANSPARENCYANDLONGEVITY

CHAIN OF EVENTS ACROSS DEPARTMENTS.

IMPROVING THE USER
EXPERIENCE 4HElRSTKEYISTO
enhance and improve core products
by adding features that improve
the user experience. On the front
ENDOFAPPLICATIONS THISINCLUDES
improving the user interface and
unifying the look and feel of all of
Tyler’s applications.

The second key
is to build infrastructure to allow
Tyler products to communicate
with each other and improve data
SHARING(ISTORICALLY PUBLICSECTOR
software systems have generally
BEENSILOED WITHOUTTHEABILITY
to access data across agencies.
Complex integrations must be built
between applications in order to
connect products within a suite and
across jurisdictional boundaries.
To accomplish this degree of
INTEGRATEDCOMMUNICATION WE
are developing technologies that
allow our applications to talk to
ONEANOTHERANDENABLEDATAmOW
ACROSSBOUNDARIES ALONGWITHA

DATA SHARING

COMMONWORKmOWENGINETHATHELPS
ORCHESTRATETHEmOWOFAPPROVALS 
NOTIlCATIONSANDTASKSACCORDINGTO
the client’s business process. For
INSTANCE ANEWBUILDINGPERMIT
in our EnerGov™ application could
AUTOMATICALLYTRIGGERAWORKmOWTHAT
alerts a taxing authority to revalue
THEPROPERTY ALLOWINGTHECLIENTTO
uncover hidden revenue.
4HISABILITYTOSHARE AGGREGATE 
search and analyze data across
jurisdictions will also be
instrumental in helping our clients
BEMORERESOURCEFUL ACCURATEAND
responsive with information. With
OUR%20lNANCIALSOLUTIONSINTHE
%NTERPRISE'ROUP 4YLERCLIENTS
could compare key performance
indicators for their departments or
organizations against organizations
OFSIMILARSIZEINTHEIRREGION 
OREVENACROSSTHECOUNTRY TO
help them make more informed
lNANCIALDECISIONS)NTHE*USTICE
'ROUP 4YLER$ATA8CHANGE™
aggregates information across
multiple jurisdictions and gives law
ENFORCEMENTANDJUSTICEOFlCIALS

THEABILITYTOSHAREOFFENDERRECORDS 
outstanding warrants and similar
data via mobile applications that
can help them apprehend and bring
criminals to justice.

COMMON FOUNDATION

A

A third key is to create a shared
foundation of services that provides
core capabilities across all Tyler
applications. Just as an interstate
highway allows cars to travel
UNIMPEDEDBETWEENSTATES OUR
common foundation will allow
DATATOmOWUNIMPEDEDWITHIN
ANDBETWEENJURISDICTIONS 
eliminating complexity while
unlocking capability.
One initiative to better support
integration is to create a model
for single sign-on for constituents.
Whether that constituent is a city
EMPLOYEE AVENDORORACITIZEN THE
idea is to create one constituent
portal framework. Users will be able
to log in to the Tyler portal once
to access all the data they need

to interact with any community
department from a single user
interface and single website.
These features will begin to roll
out in 2017 in applications like
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communities

“WE’RE COMMITTED TO USING
TECHNOLOGY AND DATA,
NOT ONLY TO HELP US MAKE

The promise of technology has always been to
amplify what one person can accomplish by
making work more productive. By connecting data
ANDORGANIZATIONSANDNETWORKINGCOMMUNITIES 
Tyler Technologies delivers on the promise of
using technology to make local government more
ACCESSIBLE RESPONSIVEANDEFlCIENT

POWER
USERS
CITY OF HARTFORD,
CONNECTICUT
USER OF MUNIS AND ENERGOV

SMARTER POLICY DECISIONS,
BUT ALSO TO HELP RESIDENTS
AND BUSINESSES FEEL
MORE CONNECTED TO THE
DECISION-MAKING PROCESS.”
— Mayor Luke Bronin
City of Hartford, Connecticut

4YLERSOBJECTIVEISTOEMPOWERVIBRANT THRIVING
and engaged communities by enabling seamless
connections between citizens and government
AGENCIES ULTIMATELYCREATINGBETTERPLACESTOLIVE
and do business.
We have been steadily broadening our reach
across the marketplace to support our vision of
connected solutions. This leads us to the next
step of connected communities. Our goal of
expanding relationships by providing multiple
products to an organization or jurisdiction is
ADVANCED ANDOURCLIENTSBENElTWITHSYNERGIES
that improve their operational effectiveness while
HELPINGTHEMSERVEBETTER INFORMED HAPPIER
and more engaged citizens—the pulse of a
thriving community.

4HE#ITYOF(ARTFORD #ONNECTICUT WHICHHADALREADYSEEN
savings in both hard costs and soft costs as a result of increased
purchasing options in Tyler’s Munis®%20 SOLUTION ADDEDTHE
EnerGov™PLANNING REGULATORYANDMAINTENANCESOLUTIONTOSAVE
MONEYANDENHANCEEFlCIENCIESINTHElELDWHILESTREAMLINING
its processes.
Already at the forefront of using geographic information system
(GIS) technology to provide data and analytics that help them
MAKEBETTERDECISIONS (ARTFORDLEADERSSAWTHEABILITYTOINTEGRATE
the city’s GIS technology with EnerGov as a huge advantage. By
enabling departments across the city to streamline access to
INSPECTORANDZONINGINFORMATION ANALYZEmOODZONESANDSOIL
TYPE ANDENHANCEOTHERDEVELOPMENTALSERVICES CITYOFlCIALS
expect to encourage economic growth and development despite a
lNANCIALLYCHALLENGINGENVIRONMENT
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POWER
USERS
CITY OF MOBILE,
ALABAMA
USER OF MULITPLE TYLER PRODUCTS, INCLUDING MUNIS (ERP),
INCODE (MUNICIPAL COURTS AND PUBLIC SAFETY), TYLER PARKS & REC, AND ENERGOV

)N CITYLEADERSIN-OBILE !LABAMA SIGNEDA
seven-year software-as-a-service (SaaS) agreement
for an integrated suite of Tyler software solutions
to replace the city’s legacy system. Mobile is in the
midst of a multi-year implementation of Tyler products
including Munis® %NER'OV™ )NCODE® municipal court
solution and the Incode public safety solution for a
comprehensive set of integrated solutions.
Tyler’s unique ability to integrate a city-wide cloud
solution and manage day-to-day maintenance of the
system provides value to Mobile by allowing city staff
TOFOCUSONOTHERCRITICALFUNCTIONS&INANCIALBENElTS
HAVEALSOACCRUEDTOTHECITY CONTRIBUTINGTOBUDGET
surpluses since the go-live date.

“WE CHOSE TYLER BECAUSE
WE FELT LIKE WE COULD
GET EVERYTHING FROM
ONE VENDOR. WHEN I HEARD
ABOUT THE INTEGRATION,
IT WAS MUSIC TO MY EARS.”
— Sue Farni
Executive Director, Information Technology
City of Mobile, Alabama

CONNECTING
THE DOTS
Tyler has begun to realize the vision of connected
communities through two long-term initiatives branded as
Tyler Alliance™FORPUBLICSAFETY COURTSANDJUSTICECLIENTS
INTHE*USTICE'ROUP AND4YLER.EXUS™ for municipal
clients in the Enterprise Group.
Tyler Alliance and Tyler Nexus will each bring together
related applications under a common user experience
ANDENABLEDATASHARINGANDWORKmOWSACROSSBUSINESS
processes. The goal is to break down barriers between the
separate applications and have one continuous process
THATmOWSFROMAGENCYTOAGENCY
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THE DIGITAL FABRIC FOR THRIVING COMMUNITIES™

connected community

initiatives

Tyler Alliance™ is an initiative to
build a multi-agency distributed
platform that integrates public
safety and criminal justice systems
BYCONNECTINGACROSSDEPARTMENTS 
agencies and jurisdictions to help
create safer communities. It connects
core courts and justice products like
Odyssey® 3OFT#ODE™ and Incode®
WITH4YLERSPUBLICSAFETYSOLUTIONS 
CREATINGTHElRSTINTEGRATEDEND
to-end criminal justice solution
on the market. New products and
technologies from Tyler’s acquisitions
of New World and Brazos Technology
#ORPORATIONINlTTHELONG TERM
objective of enabling the exchange
of cross-departmental and crossjurisdictional data. Tyler Alliance
can help law enforcement agencies
interdict crime while also helping to
ENSUREEFlCIENTJUDICIALPROCEEDINGS
For a glimpse into the potential of
4YLER!LLIANCE WECANTURNTOONE

of Tyler’s 2016 Excellence Award
7INNERSIN0UBLIC3AFETY THECITYOF
'REENWOOD6ILLAGE #OLORADO
Because of Greenwood Village’s
positive experience using Tyler’s
)NCODEMUNICIPALCOURTSOFTWARE THE
Greenwood Village Police Department
chose both Incode (public safety)
and Brazos™ to replace paper-based
processes with software that would
effectively manage its essential dayto-day functions. Incode’s public
safety solution manages records and
computer-aided dispatch to streamline
THEPOLICEDEPARTMENTSCRITICALDATA 
while Brazos electronic citation
software eliminates manual ticketing
processes to save time and money.
4HEABILITYTOSHARERELIABLE REAL TIME
DATAGIVESOFlCERSTHEINFORMATION
they need to make the split-second
DECISIONSNECESSARYTOKEEPOFlCERS
and citizens safe.

FROM DISPATCH THROUGH DISPOSITION™

Tyler Nexus™ is a similar initiative for
COUNTIES CITIESANDOTHERMUNICIPAL
GROUPS WHICHTYPICALLYHAVEMULTIPLE 
SMALLER PUBLIC FACINGAGENCIESWITH
different types of needs and processes
than justice organizations. Tyler
Nexus builds what is in essence a
digital fabric that connects disparate
GOVERNMENTALAGENCIES EACHWITH
ITSOWNPRIORITIES FUNCTIONSAND
PROCEDURES INTOONEDIGITALECOSYSTEM
Key data will be shared across
organizations and with constituents
through custom portals that leverage
a common foundation of application
services. The mission is to enable
connected communities where local
government and schools function

EFlCIENTLY EFFECTIVELY TRANSPARENTLY
and responsively on behalf of their
CONSTITUENTS ANDWHERECONSTITUENTS
feel engaged and empowered. As with
4YLER!LLIANCE THESUCCESSOF4YLER
Nexus will rely on extending core
products through strategic acquisitions
and product enhancements and
integrating them through Tyler’s
technology initiatives. Several recent
contracts demonstrate the potential
of Tyler Nexus by combining core
product suites like EnerGov™ and
Munis® with products like Eagle
Recorder™ and iasWorld® appraisal
and tax software and integrating new
applications from acquisitions
like ExecuTime™.

24

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

25

THE DIGITAL FABRIC FOR THRIVING COMMUNITIES™

connected community

initiatives

Tyler Alliance™ is an initiative to
build a multi-agency distributed
platform that integrates public
safety and criminal justice systems
BYCONNECTINGACROSSDEPARTMENTS 
agencies and jurisdictions to help
create safer communities. It connects
core courts and justice products like
Odyssey® 3OFT#ODE™ and Incode®
WITH4YLERSPUBLICSAFETYSOLUTIONS 
CREATINGTHElRSTINTEGRATEDEND
to-end criminal justice solution
on the market. New products and
technologies from Tyler’s acquisitions
of New World and Brazos Technology
#ORPORATIONINlTTHELONG TERM
objective of enabling the exchange
of cross-departmental and crossjurisdictional data. Tyler Alliance
can help law enforcement agencies
interdict crime while also helping to
ENSUREEFlCIENTJUDICIALPROCEEDINGS
For a glimpse into the potential of
4YLER!LLIANCE WECANTURNTOONE

of Tyler’s 2016 Excellence Award
7INNERSIN0UBLIC3AFETY THECITYOF
'REENWOOD6ILLAGE #OLORADO
Because of Greenwood Village’s
positive experience using Tyler’s
)NCODEMUNICIPALCOURTSOFTWARE THE
Greenwood Village Police Department
chose both Incode (public safety)
and Brazos™ to replace paper-based
processes with software that would
effectively manage its essential dayto-day functions. Incode’s public
safety solution manages records and
computer-aided dispatch to streamline
THEPOLICEDEPARTMENTSCRITICALDATA 
while Brazos electronic citation
software eliminates manual ticketing
processes to save time and money.
4HEABILITYTOSHARERELIABLE REAL TIME
DATAGIVESOFlCERSTHEINFORMATION
they need to make the split-second
DECISIONSNECESSARYTOKEEPOFlCERS
and citizens safe.

FROM DISPATCH THROUGH DISPOSITION™

Tyler Nexus™ is a similar initiative for
COUNTIES CITIESANDOTHERMUNICIPAL
GROUPS WHICHTYPICALLYHAVEMULTIPLE 
SMALLER PUBLIC FACINGAGENCIESWITH
different types of needs and processes
than justice organizations. Tyler
Nexus builds what is in essence a
digital fabric that connects disparate
GOVERNMENTALAGENCIES EACHWITH
ITSOWNPRIORITIES FUNCTIONSAND
PROCEDURES INTOONEDIGITALECOSYSTEM
Key data will be shared across
organizations and with constituents
through custom portals that leverage
a common foundation of application
services. The mission is to enable
connected communities where local
government and schools function

EFlCIENTLY EFFECTIVELY TRANSPARENTLY
and responsively on behalf of their
CONSTITUENTS ANDWHERECONSTITUENTS
feel engaged and empowered. As with
4YLER!LLIANCE THESUCCESSOF4YLER
Nexus will rely on extending core
products through strategic acquisitions
and product enhancements and
integrating them through Tyler’s
technology initiatives. Several recent
contracts demonstrate the potential
of Tyler Nexus by combining core
product suites like EnerGov™ and
Munis® with products like Eagle
Recorder™ and iasWorld® appraisal
and tax software and integrating new
applications from acquisitions
like ExecuTime™.

26

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

27

NEW CONTRACTS PROVIDE A
GLIMPSE INTO THE FUTURE
We signed a number of new
contracts in 2016 that include
multiple Tyler products.
)N*ULY OFlCIALSIN#OLLIN#OUNTY 
4EXAS SIGNEDANAGREEMENTFOR
Tyler’s Munis® ERP solution
and the EnerGov™PERMITTING 
regulatory and maintenance
PLATFORM4OGETHER THESE
products provide Collin County
with a comprehensive solution
that will enable the county to
communicate better across
DEPARTMENTS INTEGRATEPROCESSES
and expand residents’ access
to government through a citizen
portal. Already a user of Tyler’s
JUSTICEPRODUCTS INCLUDING
Odyssey® and Brazos™ #OLLIN
County’s addition of these
Enterprise solutions is an
example of incremental growth
through cross-selling products
ACROSSAGENCIES WHILEALSO
furthering Tyler’s vision of
connected communities.

Seeking a platform of solutions
that would allow for the city’s
growth and constant improvement
initiatives while expanding citizen
ACCESS THECITYOF!MARILLO 4EXAS 
entered into a SaaS agreement
WITH4YLERFORTHE%NER'OV -UNIS
and Eagle Recorder™ products. A
user of Tyler’s Incode® municipal
COURTCASEMANAGEMENTSOLUTION 
the addition of EnerGov will
provide the city with permitting
ANDINSPECTIONSPROCESSING ASWELL
as a citizen portal to expand access
and transparency for residents.
Munis will improve communication
ACROSSMULTIPLEDEPARTMENTS AND
Eagle Recorder will streamline
document and record management.
4OGETHER THESEINTEGRATEDPRODUCTS
allow for seamless coordination
between various city departments
ANDAUTOMATEDWORKmOWSTOBOOST
CITIZENACCESS CUSTOMERSERVICE
ANDCOMMUNICATION GIVING
the citizens of Amarillo greater
access to data through the city’s
3-1-1 initiatives while offering the
CITYCOSTSAVINGSANDEFlCIENCIES

Integrating EnerGov and Munis
is proving to be an attractive
offering for a number of clients.
Tyler also entered into a SaaS
AGREEMENTWITHTHECITYOF4ULSA 
/KLAHOMA WHICHSOUGHTTOUSE
integrated Munis and EnerGov
solutions to streamline business
PROCESSES ELIMINATEREDUNDANCIES
and provide city staff and citizens
access to real-time data. Opting
for a SaaS solution also ensures
that the city of Tulsa has up-todate systems and built-in
disaster recovery.
Another contract where the
client has selected multiple Tyler
products from different enterprise
suites is the seven-year SaaS
agreement between Tyler and the
CITYOF(EALDSBURG #ALIFORNIA
Seeking to replace the city’s
legacy system with a modernized
solution that can accommodate
COMPLEXlNANCIALREPORTING
REQUIREMENTS (EALDSBURGOFlCIALS
CHOSEASUITEOF)NCODElNANCIAL
applications along with EnerGov

and Tyler Content Manager™
TOREPLACEMANUALPROCESSES 
improve customer support and
COMMUNICATION ENHANCEREPORTING
and increase productivity citywide.
The Frederick County Public
Schools in Virginia entered into
a seven-year SaaS contract for
Tyler’s Munis® ERP solution and
Tyler SIS™ student information
system. The client wanted a
technology partner that could
provide both solutions in order to
EASEINTEGRATION HELPELIMINATE
disparate systems and reduce the
overall technology footprint. The
Tyler solution also allows data to
BESHAREDACROSSDEPARTMENTS 
so when a new teacher is added
TO-UNISPAYROLL THEAUTOMATED
WORKmOWALSOADDSTHETEACHER
to Tyler SIS. Choosing Tyler’s
SaaS model provides built-in
redundancies to prevent data
LOSSANDDOWNTIME ANDFREES
overloaded IT staff to focus on
other projects.

)N!UGUST LEADERSIN,AKE
#OUNTY )LLINOIS OPTEDTOINTEGRATE
EnerGov with Tyler’s iasWorld®
for an integrated property tax
administration and computerassisted mass appraisal solution to
AUTOMATEMANUALPROCESSES WHILE
establishing e-services for residents
and mobile capabilities for staff.
Integrating property assessment
with permitting and inspection
FUNCTIONALITYIMPROVESEFlCIENCY
ANDREPORTINGCAPABILITIES4HElVE
year SaaS contract supports Lake
County’s growth strategies in one
INTEGRATED MULTI SOLUTIONAPPROACH
that will help the county provide
better service to its constituents by
creating greater access
to information.
)NOTHERCONTRACTS 4YLER
leveraged existing relationships
to provide additional products.
7ASHTENAW#OUNTY -ICHIGAN 
had an existing relationship with
4YLER HAVINGIMPLEMENTEDTHE
Eagle recording and property
TAXASSESSMENTSOLUTION ASWELL

as Tyler’s Odyssey court case
management solution. The county
sought to replace its ERP system
with a system that would provide
modern applications needed to
support high-quality customer
service and accommodate
the county’s growth. After a
COMPETITIVEREVIEW THECOUNTY
entered into a new agreement in
THElRSTQUARTEROFFOR4YLERS
Munis ERP solution.
These new contracts and numerous
OTHERSGIVEUSCONlDENCETHAT
the Tyler Alliance and Tyler Nexus
initiatives resonate with local
governments. Interest in integrated
SOLUTIONSTHATCROSSAGENCIES 
jurisdictions and county lines
continues to build. Selecting a
single provider that can weave
together a comprehensive digital
solution for all of the community’s
needs encourages success. This
is the future Tyler envisions.

26

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

27

NEW CONTRACTS PROVIDE A
GLIMPSE INTO THE FUTURE
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CREATING SYNERGY
)N 4YLERCONTINUEDTO
advance ongoing efforts to connect
more of our products to mobile
devices and to create native mobile
APPLICATIONS'OINGFORWARD WE
expect investment in mobile
technologies to increase as we
further integrate our products and
introduce applications that enable
mobile access for both users
and citizens.
With clients growing increasingly
comfortable with cloud-based
SYSTEMSTHATOFFERBENElTSLIKE
REMOTEACCESSCAPABILITIES SECURITY
RISKMITIGATION SCHEDULEDUPGRADES
ANDENHANCEMENTS ANDDISASTER
RECOVERY 4YLEREXPECTSTOCONTINUE
to see a gradual increase in the
percentage of our clients that are

choosing Tyler’s software as
a cloud-based service.
With the expectation of a growing
MOVETOTHECLOUD WEPLANTO
increase investment in cloud
technologies in 2017. This
includes adding capacity to our
dedicated development teams to
PREPARESPECIlCTECHNOLOGIESAND
product enhancements that will
enable us to realize our vision.
Our product development goals will
result in a network effect in which
the more Tyler products our clients
IMPLEMENT THEMOREVALUETHEY
receive. Not only will this network
BENElTOURCLIENTSINMANYWAYS 
it will also solidify our favorable
competitive position. Development

work in 2016 advanced our
objectives toward improving the
USEREXPERIENCE CREATINGDATA
EXCHANGES ENHANCINGPRODUCTS
and creating a common foundation
that will knit together a digital
ENVIRONMENTWHERE4YLER
OURDEVELOPERS OURCLIENTSAND
our users can access data and
FULlLLNECESSARYFUNCTIONSWHEN
and how they need it. While most
of these technologies are still in
DEVELOPMENT WEWILLBEGINTO
roll them out with future product
updates in the next few years.

TYLER IS ALSO DEVELOPING SEVERAL OTHER
FOUNDATIONAL TECHNOLOGIES:
•
•

•

WE HAVE A STRATEGIC PLAN TO STANDARDIZE THESE NEW TECHNOLOGIES ACROSS
ALL TYLER APPLICATIONS, PRIORITIZING DEPLOYMENT IN APPLICATIONS THAT OFFER
THE HIGHEST VALUE TO OUR CLIENTS IN THE SHORTEST AMOUNT OF TIME.

Tyler Identity™ is our engine for
single sign-on that will allow
any constituent with the proper
AUTHORIZATIONWHETHERAJUDGE 
ANASSESSOR ABUSDRIVER ACOUNTY
clerk or a citizen — to register
for a single Tyler ID that will grant
access to all Tyler applications.
Tyler Identity is currently being
tested by early adopters in some
of our core products.

•

A powerful global search engine that will be able to search across all
Tyler applications
!NENTERPRISESERVICEBUS CURRENTLYDEPLOYEDINTHE%NER'OVCITIZEN
ACCESSPORTAL WHICHENABLES4YLERSAPPLICATIONSTOCOMMUNICATE
with each other and share data across the application boundaries
!CONSTITUTENTPORTAL SERVINGASTHEFRAMEWORKFORCITIZENCOMMUNICATION
through which all Tyler citizen-facing applications can be accessed
!TLAS WHICHALLOWSCITIZENSTOEASILYBROWSEANDSEARCHAGGREGATEDDATA
using a map interface.

We have a strategic plan to standardize these new technologies across all Tyler
APPLICATIONS PRIORITIZINGDEPLOYMENTINTHOSETHATOFFERTHEHIGHESTVALUETOOUR
clients in the shortest amount of time.
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any constituent with the proper
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for a single Tyler ID that will grant
access to all Tyler applications.
Tyler Identity is currently being
tested by early adopters in some
of our core products.
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A powerful global search engine that will be able to search across all
Tyler applications
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through which all Tyler citizen-facing applications can be accessed
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on success

“OUR CONFIDENCE IN MAKING THESE
STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS – WHETHER IN
OUR CURRENT TECHNOLOGY, OR IN NEWLY
ACQUIRED PRODUCTS AND COMPANIES –
COMES FROM KNOWING THAT THE NEARLY
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4YLERSSHAREHOLDERSSTANDTOBENElT
substantially from our transition to this
new phase in Tyler’s evolution where we
can genuinely create connected communities
that enable citizens to thrive. BecauseTyler
HASAVISION APLANANDTHEABILITYTOREPEAT
THISCONNECTIONINCITYAFTERCITY COUNTYAFTER
COUNTY ANDSTATEAFTERSTATE THEPOTENTIAL
is enormous.
One of the keys to our longevity and success
is our proven ability to consistently execute
at a high level over a long period of time.
4HISGIVESUSTHEEXPERIENCE THECONlDENCE
and the credibility to win larger deals while
continuing to perform at the highest level
for clients of all sizes.
As Tyler continues to develop products and
execute projects that help build connected
COMMUNITIES THEPOTENTIALISEXCITING
Because of the breadth and depth of our
PRODUCTS THETALENTANDDOMAINEXPERTISE
OFOURTEAM ANDOURCLEAR EYEDVISIONOF

Annual Report 2016

THEFUTURE WEHAVETHEUNIQUEPOTENTIAL
to blanket the country and beyond with
solutions that empower those who serve
the public sector.
We take pride in the fact that our solutions
MAKETANGIBLE POSITIVEDIFFERENCESINTHE
lives of citizens every day. We help parents
keep track of when and where their children
get on and off a school bus. We help teachers
record and access student information.
We help citizens stay informed about how
their home is valued. We help them submit
PAYMENTSFORTHEIRUTILITYBILLSANDTRAFlC
tickets. We help cities and counties make
informed decisions about investments in
INFRASTRUCTURE HOWTHEIRRESIDENTSCANBE
KEPTSAFE HOWJUSTICEISSERVED ANDHOW
tax dollars are spent. Tyler Technologies’
solutions and initiatives make sure that all
aspects of work in the public sector are made
EFlCIENT MORETRANSPARENT AND
more effective.

4,000 EMPLOYEES WE HAVE ARE THE BEST
IN THIS INDUSTRY.”
*OHN3-ARR*R
#HAIRMANOFTHE"OARDAND#HIEF%XECUTIVE/FlCER
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TYLER IS THE PULSE THAT HELPS
COMMUNITIES AND PEOPLE THRIVE.
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Stock Market Data

2015

2014

2013

2012

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TYL.” At December 31, 2016, we had approximately
1,492 stockholders of record. Most of our stockholders hold their shares in street name; therefore, there are substantially more than 1,492

Reconciliation of non-GAAP total revenues
GAAP total revenues
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add: Write-downs of acquisition-related deferred revenue
Add: Amortization of acquired leases
Non-GAAP total revenues

$756,043

$ 591,022

$ 493,101

$416,643

$ 363,304

15,063
444
$771,550

3,186
37
$ 594,245

—
—
$ 493,101

—
—
$416,643

—
—
$ 363,304

The following table shows, for the calendar periods indicated, the high and low sales price per share of our common stock as reported on

2ECONCILIATIONOFNON '!!0GROSSPROlTANDMARGIN
'!!0GROSSPROlT

Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add: Write-downs of acquisition-related deferred revenue
Add: Amortization of acquired leases
Add: Share-based compensation expense included in cost of revenues
Add: Amortization of acquired software
.ON '!!0GROSSPROlT


BENElCIALOWNERSOFOURCOMMONSTOCK



$355,351

$ 277,187

$ 233,371

$193,203

$ 167,702



15,063
444
6,548
22,235
$399,641

3,186
37
3,380
4,440
$ 288,230

—
—
2,177
1,858
$ 237,406

—
—
1,509
2,078
$196,790

—
—
1,084
1,888
$ 170,674

the New York Stock Exchange.
High

Low

2015:

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 125.84
133.54
152.91
184.01

$ 103.18
118.05
127.25
150.00

2016:

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 172.50
168.19
175.77
172.24

$ 118.16
126.70
159.24
139.61

GAAP gross margin

47.0%

46.9%

47.3%

46.4%

46.2%

We did not pay any cash dividends in 2016 or 2015. Our bank credit agreement contains restrictions on the payment of cash dividends.

Non-GAAP gross margin

51.8%

48.5%

48.1%

47.2%

47.0%

We intend to retain earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business, and, therefore, we do not anticipate declaring a cash
dividend in the foreseeable future.

Reconciliation of non-GAAP operating income and margin
GAAP operating income
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add: Write-downs of acquisition-related deferred revenue
Add: Amortization of acquired leases
Add: Share-based compensation expense
Add: Employer portion of payroll tax related to employee stock transactions
Add: Acquisition-related costs
Add: Amortization of acquired software
Add: Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Non-GAAP adjustments subtotal
Non-GAAP operating income

$131,305

$ 108,043

$ 94,822

$ 67,128

$ 56,577

15,063
444
29,747
1,001
—
22,235
13,731
$ 82,221
$213,526

3,186
37
20,182
1,506
5,875
4,440
5,905
$ 41,131
$ 149,174

—
—
14,819
514
—
1,858
4,546
$ 21,737
$ 116,559

—
—
11,653
982
—
2,078
4,517
$ 19,230
$ 86,358

—
—
7,411
311
—
1,888
4,279
$ 13,889
$ 70,466

The repurchase program, which was approved by our board of directors, was announced in October 2002 and was amended at various

GAAP operating margin

17.4%

18.3%

19.2%

16.1%

15.6%

Non-GAAP operating margin

27.7%

25.1%

23.6%

20.7%

19.4%

Reconciliation of non-GAAP net income and earnings per share
GAAP net income
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add: Total non-GAAP adjustments to operating income
Less: Tax impact related to non-GAAP adjustments
Non-GAAP net income

$109,857

$ 64,869

$ 58,940

$ 39,101

$ 32,994

82,221
(56,230)
$135,848

41,131
(13,318)
$ 92,682

21,737
(6,658)
$ 74,019

19,230
(6,014)
$ 52,317

13,889
(4,307)
$ 42,576

GAAP earnings per diluted share

$

2.82

$

1.77

$

1.66

$

1.13

$

1.00

Non-GAAP earnings per diluted share

$

3.49

$

2.54

$

2.09

$

1.51

$

1.29

Detail of share-based compensation expense
Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Total share-based compensation expense

During 2016, we purchased approximately 882,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $112.7 million.

$ 6,548
23,199
$ 29,747

$ 3,380
16,802
$ 20,182

$ 2,177
12,642
$ 14,819

$ 1,509
10,144
$ 11,653

$ 1,084
6,327
$ 7,411

TIMESFROMTHROUGH4HEREISNOEXPIRATIONDATESPECIlEDFORTHEAUTHORIZATION ANDWEINTENDTOREPURCHASESTOCKUNDERTHE
plan from time to time.
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2015

2014

2013

2012

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TYL.” At December 31, 2016, we had approximately
1,492 stockholders of record. Most of our stockholders hold their shares in street name; therefore, there are substantially more than 1,492
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—
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The following table shows, for the calendar periods indicated, the high and low sales price per share of our common stock as reported on
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'!!0GROSSPROlT
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BENElCIALOWNERSOFOURCOMMONSTOCK



$355,351

$ 277,187

$ 233,371

$193,203

$ 167,702



15,063
444
6,548
22,235
$399,641

3,186
37
3,380
4,440
$ 288,230

—
—
2,177
1,858
$ 237,406

—
—
1,509
2,078
$196,790

—
—
1,084
1,888
$ 170,674

the New York Stock Exchange.
High

Low

2015:

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 125.84
133.54
152.91
184.01

$ 103.18
118.05
127.25
150.00

2016:

First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$ 172.50
168.19
175.77
172.24

$ 118.16
126.70
159.24
139.61

GAAP gross margin

47.0%

46.9%

47.3%

46.4%

46.2%

We did not pay any cash dividends in 2016 or 2015. Our bank credit agreement contains restrictions on the payment of cash dividends.

Non-GAAP gross margin

51.8%

48.5%

48.1%

47.2%

47.0%

We intend to retain earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business, and, therefore, we do not anticipate declaring a cash
dividend in the foreseeable future.

Reconciliation of non-GAAP operating income and margin
GAAP operating income
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add: Write-downs of acquisition-related deferred revenue
Add: Amortization of acquired leases
Add: Share-based compensation expense
Add: Employer portion of payroll tax related to employee stock transactions
Add: Acquisition-related costs
Add: Amortization of acquired software
Add: Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Non-GAAP adjustments subtotal
Non-GAAP operating income

$131,305

$ 108,043

$ 94,822

$ 67,128

$ 56,577

15,063
444
29,747
1,001
—
22,235
13,731
$ 82,221
$213,526

3,186
37
20,182
1,506
5,875
4,440
5,905
$ 41,131
$ 149,174

—
—
14,819
514
—
1,858
4,546
$ 21,737
$ 116,559

—
—
11,653
982
—
2,078
4,517
$ 19,230
$ 86,358

—
—
7,411
311
—
1,888
4,279
$ 13,889
$ 70,466

The repurchase program, which was approved by our board of directors, was announced in October 2002 and was amended at various

GAAP operating margin

17.4%

18.3%

19.2%

16.1%

15.6%

Non-GAAP operating margin

27.7%

25.1%

23.6%

20.7%

19.4%

Reconciliation of non-GAAP net income and earnings per share
GAAP net income
Non-GAAP adjustments:
Add: Total non-GAAP adjustments to operating income
Less: Tax impact related to non-GAAP adjustments
Non-GAAP net income

$109,857

$ 64,869

$ 58,940

$ 39,101

$ 32,994

82,221
(56,230)
$135,848

41,131
(13,318)
$ 92,682

21,737
(6,658)
$ 74,019

19,230
(6,014)
$ 52,317

13,889
(4,307)
$ 42,576

GAAP earnings per diluted share

$

2.82

$

1.77

$

1.66

$

1.13

$

1.00

Non-GAAP earnings per diluted share

$

3.49

$

2.54

$

2.09

$

1.51

$

1.29

Detail of share-based compensation expense
Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Total share-based compensation expense

During 2016, we purchased approximately 882,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $112.7 million.

$ 6,548
23,199
$ 29,747

$ 3,380
16,802
$ 20,182

$ 2,177
12,642
$ 14,819

$ 1,509
10,144
$ 11,653

$ 1,084
6,327
$ 7,411

TIMESFROMTHROUGH4HEREISNOEXPIRATIONDATESPECIlEDFORTHEAUTHORIZATION ANDWEINTENDTOREPURCHASESTOCKUNDERTHE
plan from time to time.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31,

2015 (b)

2016

2014

2013

2012

Forward-Looking Statements

(In thousands, except per share data)

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are made in

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

reliance upon safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The forward-looking statements are subject

Revenues
Cost and expenses:
Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expense
Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Operating income
Other (expenses) income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (a)
Net income

$ 756,043

$ 591,022

$ 493,101

$ 416,643

$ 363,304

400,692
167,161
43,154
13,731
131,305
(1,998)
129,307
19,450
109,857

313,835
133,317
29,922
5,905
108,043
381
108,424
43,555
64,869

259,730
108,260
25,743
4,546
94,822
(355)
94,467
35,527
58,940

223,440
98,289
23,269
4,517
67,128
(1,309)
65,819
26,718
39,101

195,602
86,706
20,140
4,279
56,577
(2,709)
53,868
20,874
32,994

Net earnings per diluted share

$

Weighted average diluted shares (a)

TOCERTAINRISKSANDUNCERTAINTIESTHATCOULDCAUSEACTUALRESULTSTODIFFERMATERIALLYFROMTHOSEREmECTEDINTHEFORWARD LOOKINGSTATEMENTS
2EADERSARECAUTIONEDNOTTOPLACEUNDUERELIANCEONTHESEFORWARD LOOKINGSTATEMENTS WHICHREmECTMANAGEMENTSOPINIONONLYASOFTHE

2.82
38,961

$

1.77
36,552

$

1.66
35,401

$

1.13
34,590

$

1.00
32,916

date hereof. We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revisions to these forward-looking statements. Readers
SHOULDCAREFULLYREVIEWTHERISKFACTORSDESCRIBEDINDOCUMENTSWElLEFROMTIMETOTIMEWITHTHE3ECURITIESAND%XCHANGE#OMMISSION
When used in this Annual Report, the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “foresees,” “forecasts,” “estimates,” “plans,”
“intends,” “continues,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “projects,” “might,” “could” or other similar words or phrases are intended to identify forwardlooking statements. Similarly, statements that describe our business strategy, outlook, objectives, plans, intentions or goals also are
forward-looking statements.

Overview
General
We provide integrated information management solutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local governments. We develop

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA:
#ASHmOWSPROVIDEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIES (a)
#ASHmOWSUSEDBYINVESTINGACTIVITIES
#ASHmOWSUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES (a)

and market a broad line of software products and services to address the IT needs of cities, counties, schools and other local government
$ 191,859
 (50,720)
(138,075)

$ 134,327
(398,459)
91,052

$ 142,839
(11,555)
(3,993)

$ 94,297
(25,658)
3,831

$ 67,432
(34,736)
(27,616)

entities. In addition, we provide professional IT services to our clients, including software and hardware installation, data conversion, training
ANDFORCERTAINCLIENTS PRODUCTMODIlCATIONS ALONGWITHCONTINUINGMAINTENANCEANDSUPPORTFORCLIENTSUSINGOURSYSTEMS7EALSO
PROVIDESUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESSUCHASSOFTWAREASASERVICEh3AA3v WHICHUTILIZESTHE4YLERPRIVATECLOUD ANDELECTRONICDOCUMENT

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets
Revolving line of credit
Shareholders’ equity

lLINGSOLUTIONShE lLINGv WHICHSIMPLIFYTHElLINGANDMANAGEMENTOFCOURTRELATEDDOCUMENTS2EVENUESFORE lLINGAREDERIVEDFROM
$1,357,945
10,000
915,525

$1,356,570
66,000
858,857

$ 569,812
—
336,973

$ 444,488
—
246,319

$ 338,666
18,000
145,299

(a) During 2016, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09 “Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting” requiring the
RECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSORTAXDElCIENCIESASACOMPONENTOFINCOMETAXEXPENSETHESEBENElTSORDElCIENCIESWEREHISTORICALLYRECOGNIZEDINEQUITY
!STHESTANDARDREQUIRESAPROSPECTIVEMETHODOFADOPTION OURNETINCOMEININCLUDESAMILLIONINCOMETAXBENElTDUETOTHEADOPTIONTHATDIDNOTOCCUR
in the comparable periods presented above. In addition, the ASU updates the method of calculating diluted shares resulting in the inclusion of 519,000 additional
SHARESINOURDILUTEDEARNINGSPERSHARECALCULATIONTHATISNOTCOMPARABLETOTHEOTHERPERIODSPRESENTED2EFERTO.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESv
for further discussion of this new accounting standard.


4HEADOPTIONOF!35.O ALSOREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTS PREVIOUSLYPRESENTEDASlNANCINGACTIVITIES TOBECLASSIlEDASOPERATINGACTIVITIES!SRETROSPECTIVE
ADOPTIONFORTHISCOMPONENTOFTHESTANDARDISALLOWABLE WEHAVEADJUSTEDALLPERIODSPRESENTEDABOVETOREmECTTHISCHANGEINCLASSIlCATION

(b) On November 16, 2015, we completed the acquisition of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”). Operating results for the twelve months ended December 31,
 INCLUDEMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHEREXPENSESNECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73ACQUISITIONASWELL
ASMILLIONAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATEDTO.73ACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES

TRANSACTIONFEESANDINSOMECASESlXEDFEEARRANGEMENTS7EALSOPROVIDEPROPERTYAPPRAISALOUTSOURCINGSERVICESFORTAXINGJURISDICTIONS
/URPRODUCTSGENERALLYAUTOMATESIXMAJORFUNCTIONALAREAS lNANCIALMANAGEMENTANDEDUCATION  COURTSANDJUSTICE  PUBLIC
safety (4) property appraisal and tax, (5) planning, regulatory and maintenance, and (6) land and vital records management. We report our
results in two segments. The Enterprise Software (“ES”) segment provides municipal and county governments and schools with software
SYSTEMSANDSERVICESTOMEETTHEIRINFORMATIONTECHNOLOGYANDAUTOMATIONNEEDSFORMISSION CRITICALhBACK OFlCEvFUNCTIONSSUCHAS
lNANCIALMANAGEMENTCOURTSANDJUSTICEPROCESSESPUBLICSAFETYPLANNING REGULATORYANDMAINTENANCEANDLANDANDVITALRECORDS
management. The Appraisal and Tax (“A&T”) segment provides systems and software that automate the appraisal and assessment of real
and personal property as well as property appraisal outsourcing services for local governments and taxing authorities. Property appraisal
outsourcing services include: the physical inspection of commercial and residential properties; data collection and processing;
computer analysis for property valuation; preparation of tax rolls; community education; and arbitration between taxpayers and the
assessing jurisdiction.
Total organic revenues increased 12% in 2016 compared to 2015.
On November 16, 2015, we acquired all of the capital stock of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”), which provides public safety
ANDlNANCIALSOLUTIONSFORLOCALGOVERNMENTS4HEPURCHASEPRICE NETOFCASHACQUIREDOFMILLION WASMILLIONINCASH OF
which $4.0 million was accrued at December 31, 2015, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler common stock valued at $362.8 million.
/N-AY  WEACQUIREDALLOFTHECAPITALSTOCKOF"RAZOS4ECHNOLOGY#ORPORATIONh"RAZOSv WHICHPROVIDESMOBILEHANDHELD
SOLUTIONSPRIMARILYTOLAWENFORCEMENTAGENCIESFORlELDACCIDENTREPORTINGANDELECTRONICALLYISSUINGCITATIONS4HEPURCHASEPRICE NETOF
cash acquired and including debt assumed, was $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares of Tyler common stock valued at $1.5 million.
4HEOPERATINGRESULTSOF.73AND"RAZOSAREINCLUDEDWITHTHEOPERATINGRESULTSOFTHE%NTERPRISE3OFTWARESEGMENTSINCETHEIRRESPECTIVE
dates of acquisition.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For the Years Ended December 31,

2015 (b)

2016

2014

2013

2012

Forward-Looking Statements

(In thousands, except per share data)

In addition to historical information, this Annual Report contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are made in

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

reliance upon safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The forward-looking statements are subject

Revenues
Cost and expenses:
Cost of revenues
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expense
Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Operating income
Other (expenses) income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision (a)
Net income

$ 756,043

$ 591,022

$ 493,101

$ 416,643

$ 363,304

400,692
167,161
43,154
13,731
131,305
(1,998)
129,307
19,450
109,857

313,835
133,317
29,922
5,905
108,043
381
108,424
43,555
64,869

259,730
108,260
25,743
4,546
94,822
(355)
94,467
35,527
58,940

223,440
98,289
23,269
4,517
67,128
(1,309)
65,819
26,718
39,101

195,602
86,706
20,140
4,279
56,577
(2,709)
53,868
20,874
32,994

Net earnings per diluted share

$

Weighted average diluted shares (a)

TOCERTAINRISKSANDUNCERTAINTIESTHATCOULDCAUSEACTUALRESULTSTODIFFERMATERIALLYFROMTHOSEREmECTEDINTHEFORWARD LOOKINGSTATEMENTS
2EADERSARECAUTIONEDNOTTOPLACEUNDUERELIANCEONTHESEFORWARD LOOKINGSTATEMENTS WHICHREmECTMANAGEMENTSOPINIONONLYASOFTHE

2.82
38,961

$

1.77
36,552

$

1.66
35,401

$

1.13
34,590

$

1.00
32,916

date hereof. We undertake no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revisions to these forward-looking statements. Readers
SHOULDCAREFULLYREVIEWTHERISKFACTORSDESCRIBEDINDOCUMENTSWElLEFROMTIMETOTIMEWITHTHE3ECURITIESAND%XCHANGE#OMMISSION
When used in this Annual Report, the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “foresees,” “forecasts,” “estimates,” “plans,”
“intends,” “continues,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “projects,” “might,” “could” or other similar words or phrases are intended to identify forwardlooking statements. Similarly, statements that describe our business strategy, outlook, objectives, plans, intentions or goals also are
forward-looking statements.

Overview
General
We provide integrated information management solutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local governments. We develop

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS DATA:
#ASHmOWSPROVIDEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIES (a)
#ASHmOWSUSEDBYINVESTINGACTIVITIES
#ASHmOWSUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES (a)

and market a broad line of software products and services to address the IT needs of cities, counties, schools and other local government
$ 191,859
 (50,720)
(138,075)

$ 134,327
(398,459)
91,052

$ 142,839
(11,555)
(3,993)

$ 94,297
(25,658)
3,831

$ 67,432
(34,736)
(27,616)

entities. In addition, we provide professional IT services to our clients, including software and hardware installation, data conversion, training
ANDFORCERTAINCLIENTS PRODUCTMODIlCATIONS ALONGWITHCONTINUINGMAINTENANCEANDSUPPORTFORCLIENTSUSINGOURSYSTEMS7EALSO
PROVIDESUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESSUCHASSOFTWAREASASERVICEh3AA3v WHICHUTILIZESTHE4YLERPRIVATECLOUD ANDELECTRONICDOCUMENT

BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Total assets
Revolving line of credit
Shareholders’ equity

lLINGSOLUTIONShE lLINGv WHICHSIMPLIFYTHElLINGANDMANAGEMENTOFCOURTRELATEDDOCUMENTS2EVENUESFORE lLINGAREDERIVEDFROM
$1,357,945
10,000
915,525

$1,356,570
66,000
858,857

$ 569,812
—
336,973

$ 444,488
—
246,319

$ 338,666
18,000
145,299

(a) During 2016, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09 “Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting” requiring the
RECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSORTAXDElCIENCIESASACOMPONENTOFINCOMETAXEXPENSETHESEBENElTSORDElCIENCIESWEREHISTORICALLYRECOGNIZEDINEQUITY
!STHESTANDARDREQUIRESAPROSPECTIVEMETHODOFADOPTION OURNETINCOMEININCLUDESAMILLIONINCOMETAXBENElTDUETOTHEADOPTIONTHATDIDNOTOCCUR
in the comparable periods presented above. In addition, the ASU updates the method of calculating diluted shares resulting in the inclusion of 519,000 additional
SHARESINOURDILUTEDEARNINGSPERSHARECALCULATIONTHATISNOTCOMPARABLETOTHEOTHERPERIODSPRESENTED2EFERTO.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESv
for further discussion of this new accounting standard.


4HEADOPTIONOF!35.O ALSOREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTS PREVIOUSLYPRESENTEDASlNANCINGACTIVITIES TOBECLASSIlEDASOPERATINGACTIVITIES!SRETROSPECTIVE
ADOPTIONFORTHISCOMPONENTOFTHESTANDARDISALLOWABLE WEHAVEADJUSTEDALLPERIODSPRESENTEDABOVETOREmECTTHISCHANGEINCLASSIlCATION

(b) On November 16, 2015, we completed the acquisition of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”). Operating results for the twelve months ended December 31,
 INCLUDEMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHEREXPENSESNECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73ACQUISITIONASWELL
ASMILLIONAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATEDTO.73ACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES

TRANSACTIONFEESANDINSOMECASESlXEDFEEARRANGEMENTS7EALSOPROVIDEPROPERTYAPPRAISALOUTSOURCINGSERVICESFORTAXINGJURISDICTIONS
/URPRODUCTSGENERALLYAUTOMATESIXMAJORFUNCTIONALAREAS lNANCIALMANAGEMENTANDEDUCATION  COURTSANDJUSTICE  PUBLIC
safety (4) property appraisal and tax, (5) planning, regulatory and maintenance, and (6) land and vital records management. We report our
results in two segments. The Enterprise Software (“ES”) segment provides municipal and county governments and schools with software
SYSTEMSANDSERVICESTOMEETTHEIRINFORMATIONTECHNOLOGYANDAUTOMATIONNEEDSFORMISSION CRITICALhBACK OFlCEvFUNCTIONSSUCHAS
lNANCIALMANAGEMENTCOURTSANDJUSTICEPROCESSESPUBLICSAFETYPLANNING REGULATORYANDMAINTENANCEANDLANDANDVITALRECORDS
management. The Appraisal and Tax (“A&T”) segment provides systems and software that automate the appraisal and assessment of real
and personal property as well as property appraisal outsourcing services for local governments and taxing authorities. Property appraisal
outsourcing services include: the physical inspection of commercial and residential properties; data collection and processing;
computer analysis for property valuation; preparation of tax rolls; community education; and arbitration between taxpayers and the
assessing jurisdiction.
Total organic revenues increased 12% in 2016 compared to 2015.
On November 16, 2015, we acquired all of the capital stock of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”), which provides public safety
ANDlNANCIALSOLUTIONSFORLOCALGOVERNMENTS4HEPURCHASEPRICE NETOFCASHACQUIREDOFMILLION WASMILLIONINCASH OF
which $4.0 million was accrued at December 31, 2015, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler common stock valued at $362.8 million.
/N-AY  WEACQUIREDALLOFTHECAPITALSTOCKOF"RAZOS4ECHNOLOGY#ORPORATIONh"RAZOSv WHICHPROVIDESMOBILEHANDHELD
SOLUTIONSPRIMARILYTOLAWENFORCEMENTAGENCIESFORlELDACCIDENTREPORTINGANDELECTRONICALLYISSUINGCITATIONS4HEPURCHASEPRICE NETOF
cash acquired and including debt assumed, was $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares of Tyler common stock valued at $1.5 million.
4HEOPERATINGRESULTSOF.73AND"RAZOSAREINCLUDEDWITHTHEOPERATINGRESULTSOFTHE%NTERPRISE3OFTWARESEGMENTSINCETHEIRRESPECTIVE
dates of acquisition.
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7EMONITORANDANALYZESEVERALKEYPERFORMANCEINDICATORSINORDERTOMANAGEOURBUSINESSANDEVALUATEOURlNANCIALANDOPERATING

•

performance. These indicators include the following:
•

ASWEHADPREVIOUSLYRECOGNIZEDALLOUREXCESSTAXBENElTS
•

As permitted, we have elected to continue to estimate forfeitures expected to occur to determine the amount of stock-based

and comprised approximately 62% of our revenue in 2016. The number of new SaaS clients and the number of existing clients who convert

COMPENSATIONCOSTTOBERECOGNIZEDINEACHPERIOD!SSUCH THEGUIDANCERELATINGTOFORFEITURESDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINED

FROMOURTRADITIONALSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTSTOOUR3AA3MODELAREASIGNIlCANTDRIVERTOOURBUSINESS TOGETHERWITHNEWSOFTWARELICENSE

EARNINGSASOF*ANUARY 

sales and maintenance rate increases. In addition, we also monitor our customer base and churn as we historically have experienced very
low customer turnover. During 2016, based on our number of customers, turnover was approximately 2%.
•

4HESTANDARDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSTOBERECOGNIZEDREGARDLESSOFWHETHERTHEBENElTREDUCESTAXESPAYABLE4HEADOPTIONOFTHIS
GUIDANCEISAPPLIEDONAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEBASISHOWEVER ITDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINEDEARNINGSASOF*ANUARY  

Revenues – 7EDERIVEOURREVENUESFROMlVEPRIMARYSOURCESSALEOFSOFTWARELICENSESANDROYALTIESSUBSCRIPTION BASEDARRANGEMENTS
software services; maintenance; and appraisal services. Subscriptions and maintenance are considered recurring revenue sources

39

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins – Our primary cost component is personnel expenses in connection with providing software
implementation, subscription-based services, maintenance and support, and appraisal services to our clients. We can improve gross

•

The new guidance changes the calculation of common stock equivalents for earnings per share purposes.

•

!SPERMITTED WEELECTEDTOAPPLYTHESTATEMENTOFCASHmOWSGUIDANCETHATCASHmOWSRELATEDTOEXCESSTAXBENElTSBEPRESENTEDAS
an operating activity retrospectively.

margins by controlling headcount and related costs and by expanding our revenue base, especially from those products and services

!DOPTIONOFTHENEWSTANDARDRESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESRATHERTHAN!0)#OF

that produce incremental revenue with minimal incremental cost, such as software licenses and royalties, subscription-based services,

$29.6 million for the period ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the change in the calculation of common stock

and maintenance and support. Our appraisal projects are cyclical in nature, and we often employ appraisal personnel on a short-

equivalents added approximately 519,000 weighted average shares for the diluted earnings per share calculations. The impact to our

term basis to coincide with the life of a project. As of December 31, 2016, our total employee count increased to 3,831 from 3,586 at

PREVIOUSLYREPORTEDQUARTERLYRESULTSFORlSCALYEARISASFOLLOWS

December 31, 2015.
•

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2016

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses – The primary components of SG&A expenses are administrative and sales
personnel salaries and commissions, share-based compensation expense, marketing expense, rent and professional fees. Sales

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2016

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2016

As Reported

As Adjusted

As Reported

As Adjusted

As Reported

As Adjusted

$ 10,495
$ 17,079
$ 0.47
$ 0.44
38,557

$ 9,350
$ 18,224
$ 0.50
$ 0.47
39,071

$11,323
$18,872
$ 0.52
$ 0.49
38,196

$ 5,188
$ 25,007
$ 0.69
$ 0.65
38,738

$ 14,155
$ 22,264
$ 0.61
$ 0.58
38,506

$ 989
$ 35,430
$ 0.97
$ 0.91
39,062

$ 40,270
$ (15,860)

$ 41,321
$ (16,911)

$13,877
$ 5,668

$ 19,520
$
25

$ 67,091
$ (77,973)

$ 79,213
$ (90,095)

COMMISSIONSTYPICALLYmUCTUATEWITHREVENUESANDSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSEGENERALLYINCREASESWHENTHEMARKETPRICEOF
our stock increases. Other administrative expenses tend to grow at a slower rate than revenues. In 2015, SG&A expenses include
APPROXIMATELYMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHERVARIOUSSERVICESNECESSARYTO
complete the NWS acquisition.
•

Liquidity and Cash Flows – 4HEPRIMARYDRIVEROFOURCASHmOWSISNETINCOME5SESOFCASHINCLUDEACQUISITIONS CAPITALINVESTMENTSIN
property and equipment and discretionary purchases of treasury stock. Our working capital needs are fairly stable throughout the year
WITHTHESIGNIlCANTCOMPONENTSOFCASHOUTmOWSBEINGPAYMENTOFPERSONNELEXPENSESOFFSETBYCASHINmOWSREPRESENTINGCOLLECTIONOF
accounts receivable and cash receipts from clients in advance of revenue being earned. In recent years, we have also received

Income statements:
Income tax provision
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding
3TATEMENTOFCASHmOWS
Net cash provided by operating activities
 .ETCASHUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES

SIGNIlCANTAMOUNTSOFCASHFROMEMPLOYEESEXERCISINGSTOCKOPTIONSANDCONTRIBUTINGTOOUR%MPLOYEE3TOCK0URCHASE0LAN
•

Balance Sheet – Cash, accounts receivable and days sales outstanding and deferred revenue balances are important indicators of
our business.

Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern. In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial
3TATEMENTSn'OING#ONCERN3UBTOPIC  $ISCLOSUREOF5NCERTAINTIESABOUTAN%NTITYS!BILITYTO#ONTINUEASA'OING#ONCERN4HE
guidance requires an entity to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
ENTITYSABILITYTOCONTINUEASAGOINGCONCERNWITHINONEYEARAFTERTHEDATETHATTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREISSUEDORWITHINONEYEARAFTER

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted in 2016

THElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREAVAILABLETOBEISSUEDWHENAPPLICABLE ANDTOPROVIDERELATEDFOOTNOTEDISCLOSURESINCERTAINCIRCUMSTANCES

Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)

The guidance is effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter. We adopted

issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09, “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee

THISSTANDARDINTHEFOURTHQUARTEROFANDITSADOPTIONDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

3HARE "ASED0AYMENT!CCOUNTINGvWHICHSIMPLIlESSEVERALASPECTSOFTHEACCOUNTINGFOREMPLOYEESHARE BASEDPAYMENTTRANSACTIONS 
INCLUDINGTHEACCOUNTINGFORINCOMETAXES FORFEITURES ANDSTATUTORYTAXWITHHOLDINGREQUIREMENTS ASWELLASCLASSIlCATIONINTHESTATEMENT
OFCASHmOWS4HISSTANDARDISEFFECTIVEFOROURINTERIMANDANNUALREPORTINGPERIODSBEGINNING$ECEMBER  ANDEARLYADOPTIONIS
permitted. We elected to early adopt this standard in fourth quarter of 2016. The impact of the early adoption was as follows:
•

4HESTANDARDELIMINATESADDITIONALPAIDINCAPITALh!0)#v POOLSANDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSANDTAXDElCIENCIESTOBERECORDED
in the income statement as a discrete item when the awards vest or are settled. The adoption of this guidance on a prospective basis
RESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXES
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7EMONITORANDANALYZESEVERALKEYPERFORMANCEINDICATORSINORDERTOMANAGEOURBUSINESSANDEVALUATEOURlNANCIALANDOPERATING

•

performance. These indicators include the following:
•

ASWEHADPREVIOUSLYRECOGNIZEDALLOUREXCESSTAXBENElTS
•

As permitted, we have elected to continue to estimate forfeitures expected to occur to determine the amount of stock-based

and comprised approximately 62% of our revenue in 2016. The number of new SaaS clients and the number of existing clients who convert

COMPENSATIONCOSTTOBERECOGNIZEDINEACHPERIOD!SSUCH THEGUIDANCERELATINGTOFORFEITURESDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINED

FROMOURTRADITIONALSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTSTOOUR3AA3MODELAREASIGNIlCANTDRIVERTOOURBUSINESS TOGETHERWITHNEWSOFTWARELICENSE

EARNINGSASOF*ANUARY 

sales and maintenance rate increases. In addition, we also monitor our customer base and churn as we historically have experienced very
low customer turnover. During 2016, based on our number of customers, turnover was approximately 2%.
•

4HESTANDARDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSTOBERECOGNIZEDREGARDLESSOFWHETHERTHEBENElTREDUCESTAXESPAYABLE4HEADOPTIONOFTHIS
GUIDANCEISAPPLIEDONAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEBASISHOWEVER ITDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINEDEARNINGSASOF*ANUARY  

Revenues – 7EDERIVEOURREVENUESFROMlVEPRIMARYSOURCESSALEOFSOFTWARELICENSESANDROYALTIESSUBSCRIPTION BASEDARRANGEMENTS
software services; maintenance; and appraisal services. Subscriptions and maintenance are considered recurring revenue sources

39

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins – Our primary cost component is personnel expenses in connection with providing software
implementation, subscription-based services, maintenance and support, and appraisal services to our clients. We can improve gross

•

The new guidance changes the calculation of common stock equivalents for earnings per share purposes.

•

!SPERMITTED WEELECTEDTOAPPLYTHESTATEMENTOFCASHmOWSGUIDANCETHATCASHmOWSRELATEDTOEXCESSTAXBENElTSBEPRESENTEDAS
an operating activity retrospectively.

margins by controlling headcount and related costs and by expanding our revenue base, especially from those products and services

!DOPTIONOFTHENEWSTANDARDRESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESRATHERTHAN!0)#OF

that produce incremental revenue with minimal incremental cost, such as software licenses and royalties, subscription-based services,

$29.6 million for the period ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the change in the calculation of common stock

and maintenance and support. Our appraisal projects are cyclical in nature, and we often employ appraisal personnel on a short-

equivalents added approximately 519,000 weighted average shares for the diluted earnings per share calculations. The impact to our

term basis to coincide with the life of a project. As of December 31, 2016, our total employee count increased to 3,831 from 3,586 at

PREVIOUSLYREPORTEDQUARTERLYRESULTSFORlSCALYEARISASFOLLOWS

December 31, 2015.
•

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2016

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses – The primary components of SG&A expenses are administrative and sales
personnel salaries and commissions, share-based compensation expense, marketing expense, rent and professional fees. Sales

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2016

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2016

As Reported

As Adjusted

As Reported

As Adjusted

As Reported

As Adjusted

$ 10,495
$ 17,079
$ 0.47
$ 0.44
38,557

$ 9,350
$ 18,224
$ 0.50
$ 0.47
39,071

$11,323
$18,872
$ 0.52
$ 0.49
38,196

$ 5,188
$ 25,007
$ 0.69
$ 0.65
38,738

$ 14,155
$ 22,264
$ 0.61
$ 0.58
38,506

$ 989
$ 35,430
$ 0.97
$ 0.91
39,062

$ 40,270
$ (15,860)

$ 41,321
$ (16,911)

$13,877
$ 5,668

$ 19,520
$
25

$ 67,091
$ (77,973)

$ 79,213
$ (90,095)

COMMISSIONSTYPICALLYmUCTUATEWITHREVENUESANDSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSEGENERALLYINCREASESWHENTHEMARKETPRICEOF
our stock increases. Other administrative expenses tend to grow at a slower rate than revenues. In 2015, SG&A expenses include
APPROXIMATELYMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHERVARIOUSSERVICESNECESSARYTO
complete the NWS acquisition.
•

Liquidity and Cash Flows – 4HEPRIMARYDRIVEROFOURCASHmOWSISNETINCOME5SESOFCASHINCLUDEACQUISITIONS CAPITALINVESTMENTSIN
property and equipment and discretionary purchases of treasury stock. Our working capital needs are fairly stable throughout the year
WITHTHESIGNIlCANTCOMPONENTSOFCASHOUTmOWSBEINGPAYMENTOFPERSONNELEXPENSESOFFSETBYCASHINmOWSREPRESENTINGCOLLECTIONOF
accounts receivable and cash receipts from clients in advance of revenue being earned. In recent years, we have also received

Income statements:
Income tax provision
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding
3TATEMENTOFCASHmOWS
Net cash provided by operating activities
 .ETCASHUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES

SIGNIlCANTAMOUNTSOFCASHFROMEMPLOYEESEXERCISINGSTOCKOPTIONSANDCONTRIBUTINGTOOUR%MPLOYEE3TOCK0URCHASE0LAN
•

Balance Sheet – Cash, accounts receivable and days sales outstanding and deferred revenue balances are important indicators of
our business.

Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern. In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial
3TATEMENTSn'OING#ONCERN3UBTOPIC  $ISCLOSUREOF5NCERTAINTIESABOUTAN%NTITYS!BILITYTO#ONTINUEASA'OING#ONCERN4HE
guidance requires an entity to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
ENTITYSABILITYTOCONTINUEASAGOINGCONCERNWITHINONEYEARAFTERTHEDATETHATTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREISSUEDORWITHINONEYEARAFTER

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted in 2016

THElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREAVAILABLETOBEISSUEDWHENAPPLICABLE ANDTOPROVIDERELATEDFOOTNOTEDISCLOSURESINCERTAINCIRCUMSTANCES

Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)

The guidance is effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter. We adopted

issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-09, “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee

THISSTANDARDINTHEFOURTHQUARTEROFANDITSADOPTIONDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

3HARE "ASED0AYMENT!CCOUNTINGvWHICHSIMPLIlESSEVERALASPECTSOFTHEACCOUNTINGFOREMPLOYEESHARE BASEDPAYMENTTRANSACTIONS 
INCLUDINGTHEACCOUNTINGFORINCOMETAXES FORFEITURES ANDSTATUTORYTAXWITHHOLDINGREQUIREMENTS ASWELLASCLASSIlCATIONINTHESTATEMENT
OFCASHmOWS4HISSTANDARDISEFFECTIVEFOROURINTERIMANDANNUALREPORTINGPERIODSBEGINNING$ECEMBER  ANDEARLYADOPTIONIS
permitted. We elected to early adopt this standard in fourth quarter of 2016. The impact of the early adoption was as follows:
•

4HESTANDARDELIMINATESADDITIONALPAIDINCAPITALh!0)#v POOLSANDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSANDTAXDElCIENCIESTOBERECORDED
in the income statement as a discrete item when the awards vest or are settled. The adoption of this guidance on a prospective basis
RESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXES
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Recent Accounting Guidance not yet Adopted

,ESSEESFORCAPITALANDOPERATINGLEASES ANDLESSORSFORSALES TYPE DIRECTlNANCING ANDOPERATINGLEASES MUSTAPPLYAMODIlED

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. On May 28, 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers.”

retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the

This ASU is the result of a convergence project between the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board. The core principle

lNANCIALSTATEMENTS4HEMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACHWOULDNOTREQUIREANYTRANSITIONACCOUNTINGFORLEASESTHATEXPIREDBEFORETHE

BEHIND!35.O ISTHATANENTITYSHOULDRECOGNIZEREVENUETODEPICTTHETRANSFEROFPROMISEDGOODSANDSERVICESTOCUSTOMERS

earliest comparative period presented. Lessees and lessors may not apply a full retrospective transition approach.

INANAMOUNTTHATREmECTSTHECONSIDERATIONTOWHICHTHEENTITYEXPECTSTOBEENTITLEDINEXCHANGEFORDELIVERINGTHOSEGOODSANDSERVICES

4HE!35ISEFFECTIVEFORlSCALYEARSBEGINNINGAFTER$ECEMBER  INCLUDINGINTERIMPERIODSTHEREIN%ARLYAPPLICATIONISPERMITTED

4HISMODELINVOLVESAlVE STEPPROCESSTHATINCLUDESIDENTIFYINGTHECONTRACTWITHTHECUSTOMER IDENTIFYINGTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSIN

FORALLBUSINESSENTITIESUPONISSUANCE7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIALIMPACTOFADOPTINGTHENEWSTANDARDHOWEVER WEARECURRENTLYUNABLE

THECONTRACT DETERMININGTHETRANSACTIONPRICE ALLOCATINGTHETRANSACTIONPRICETOTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSINTHECONTRACTANDRECOGNIZING

TOPROVIDEAREASONABLEESTIMATEREGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EEXPECTTOADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

REVENUEWHENORAS THEENTITYSATISlESTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONS4HE!35ALLOWSTWOMETHODSOFADOPTIONAFULLRETROSPECTIVE
APPROACHWHERETHREEYEARSOFlNANCIALINFORMATIONAREPRESENTEDINACCORDANCEWITHTHENEWSTANDARD ANDAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACH
WHERETHE!35ISAPPLIEDTOTHEMOSTCURRENTPERIODPRESENTEDINTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS7ECURRENTLYANTICIPATEADOPTINGTHESTANDARD
using the full retrospective method to restate each prior reporting period presented. Our ability to adopt using the full retrospective method is
dependent on system readiness, including software procured from third-party providers, and the completion of our analysis of information
NECESSARYTORESTATEPRIORPERIODlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

Outlook
Activity in the local government software market continues to be robust, and our backlog at December 31, 2016 reached $953.3 million,
AINCREASEFROMLASTYEAR7EEXPECTTOCONTINUETOACHIEVESOLIDGROWTHINREVENUEANDEARNINGS7ITHOURSTRONGlNANCIALPOSITIONAND
CASHmOW WEPLANTOCONTINUETOMAKESIGNIlCANTINVESTMENTSINPRODUCTDEVELOPMENTTOBETTERPOSITIONUSTOCONTINUETOEXPANDOUR
competitive position in the public sector software market over the long term.

The new standard requires application no later than annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
REPORTINGPERIODSTHEREINHOWEVER PUBLICENTITIESAREPERMITTEDTOELECTTOEARLYADOPTTHENEWSTANDARD7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIAL
impact of adopting the new standard and the methods of adoption; however, we are currently unable to provide a reasonable estimate
REGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EWILLADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
/URDISCUSSIONANDANALYSISOFlNANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTSOFOPERATIONSISBASEDUPONOURlNANCIALSTATEMENTS WHICHHAVEBEENPREPARED
INACCORDANCEWITHACCOUNTINGPRINCIPLESGENERALLYACCEPTEDINTHE5NITED3TATESh'!!0v 4HEPREPARATIONOFTHESElNANCIALSTATEMENTS

7EANTICIPATETHISSTANDARDWILLHAVEAMATERIALIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS7HILEWEARECONTINUINGTOASSESSALL

REQUIRESUSTOMAKEESTIMATESANDJUDGMENTSTHATAFFECTTHEREPORTEDAMOUNTSOFASSETSANDLIABILITIESATTHEDATEOFTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS 

POTENTIALIMPACTSOFTHESTANDARD WECURRENTLYBELIEVETHEMOSTSIGNIlCANTIMPACTRELATESTOOURACCOUNTINGFORSOFTWARELICENSEFEES INSTALLATION

the reported amounts of revenues, cost of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, and related disclosure of contingencies.

FEES ANDINCREMENTALCOSTOFOBTAININGACONTRACT3PECIlCALLY UNDERTHENEWSTANDARDWEEXPECTSOFTWARELICENSEFEESUNDERPERPETUAL

4HE.OTESTOTHE&INANCIAL3TATEMENTSINCLUDEDASPARTOFTHIS!NNUAL2EPORTDESCRIBEOURSIGNIlCANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIESUSEDINTHE

agreements will no longer be subject to 100% discount allocations from other elements in the contract. Discounts in arrangements will be

PREPARATIONOFTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS3IGNIlCANTITEMSSUBJECTTOSUCHESTIMATESANDASSUMPTIONSINCLUDETHEAPPLICATIONOFTHEPERCENTAGE

allocated across all deliverables increasing license revenues and decreasing revenues allocated to other performance obligations. In addition,

of-completion and proportional performance methods of revenue recognition, the carrying amount and estimated useful lives of intangible

INMOSTCASES NETLICENSEFEESTOTALLICENSEFEESLESSANYALLOCATEDDISCOUNTS WILLBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROLOFTHE

assets, determination of share-based compensation expense and valuation allowance for receivables. We base our estimates on historical

SOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMERVERSUSOURCURRENTPOLICYOFRECOGNIZINGREVENUEONLYTOTHEEXTENTBILLABLEPERTHECONTRACTUAL

experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the

TERMS4IME BASEDLICENSEFEESCURRENTLYRECOGNIZEDOVERTHELICENSETERMWILLNOLONGERBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHEPERIODOFTHELICENSEAND

basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

WILLINSTEADBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROLOFTHESOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMER)NSTALLATIONFEESWILLNOLONGERBE

may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

CONSIDEREDDISTINCTPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSANDTHEREFOREWILLBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHETERMOFTHEARRANGEMENTORLIFEOFTHEPERFORMANCE
obligation. We expect revenue related to our SaaS offerings and professional services to remain substantially unchanged. Due to the
COMPLEXITYOFCERTAINCONTRACTS THEACTUALREVENUERECOGNITIONTREATMENTREQUIREDUNDERTHESTANDARDWILLBEDEPENDENTONCONTRACT SPECIlC

7EBELIEVETHEFOLLOWINGCRITICALACCOUNTINGPOLICIESREQUIRESIGNIlCANTJUDGMENTSANDESTIMATESUSEDINTHEPREPARATIONOFOURlNANCIAL
statements.

terms and may vary in some instances from recognition at the time of billing. Application of the new standard requires that incremental

Revenue Recognition.7ERECOGNIZEREVENUESINACCORDANCEWITHTHEPROVISIONSOF!CCOUNTING3TANDARDS#ODIlCATIONh!3#v  2EVENUE

COSTSDIRECTLYRELATEDTOOBTAININGACONTRACTTYPICALLYSALESCOMMISSIONSPLUSANYASSOCIATEDFRINGEBENElTS MUSTBERECOGNIZEDASANASSET

Recognition and ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition. Our revenues are derived from sales of software licenses and royalties,

and expensed over the expected life of the arrangement, unless that life is less than one year. Currently, we defer sales commissions and

subscription-based services, appraisal services, maintenance and support, and services that typically range from installation, training and

RECOGNIZEEXPENSEOVERTHERELEVANTINITIALCONTRACTUALTERM7ITHTHEADOPTIONTHENEWSTANDARD WEEXPECTAMORTIZATIONPERIODSTOEXTEND

BASICCONSULTINGTOSOFTWAREMODIlCATIONANDCUSTOMIZATIONTOMEETSPECIlCCUSTOMERNEEDS&ORMULTIPLEELEMENTSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTS 

past the initial term.

which do not entail the performance of services that are considered essential to the functionality of the software, we generally record

Leases. On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued its new lease accounting guidance in ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” Under the
NEWGUIDANCE LESSEESWILLBEREQUIREDTORECOGNIZETHEFOLLOWINGFORALLLEASESWITHTHEEXCEPTIONOFSHORT TERMLEASES ATTHE
commencement date:

revenue when the delivered products or performed services result in a legally enforceable and non-refundable claim. We maintain allowances
FORDOUBTFULACCOUNTSANDSALESADJUSTMENTS WHICHAREPROVIDEDATTHETIMETHEREVENUEISRECOGNIZED"ECAUSEMOSTOFOURCUSTOMERS
are governmental entities, we rarely incur a loss resulting from the inability of a customer to make required payments. In a limited number
OFCASES WEENCOUNTERACUSTOMERWHOISDISSATISlEDWITHSOMEASPECTOFTHESOFTWAREPRODUCTOROURSERVICE ANDWEMAYOFFERA

•

A lease liability, which is a lessee‘s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and

“concession” to such customer. In those limited situations where we grant a concession, we rarely reduce the contract arrangement fee,

•

!RIGHT OF USEASSET WHICHISANASSETTHATREPRESENTSTHELESSEESRIGHTTOUSE ORCONTROLTHEUSEOF ASPECIlEDASSETFORTHELEASETERM

but alternatively may perform additional services, such as additional training or creating additional custom reports. These amounts have
historically been nominal. In connection with our customer contracts and the adequacy of related allowances and measures of progress
towards contract completion, our project managers are charged with the responsibility to continually review the status of each customer
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Recent Accounting Guidance not yet Adopted

,ESSEESFORCAPITALANDOPERATINGLEASES ANDLESSORSFORSALES TYPE DIRECTlNANCING ANDOPERATINGLEASES MUSTAPPLYAMODIlED

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. On May 28, 2014, FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers.”

retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the

This ASU is the result of a convergence project between the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board. The core principle

lNANCIALSTATEMENTS4HEMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACHWOULDNOTREQUIREANYTRANSITIONACCOUNTINGFORLEASESTHATEXPIREDBEFORETHE

BEHIND!35.O ISTHATANENTITYSHOULDRECOGNIZEREVENUETODEPICTTHETRANSFEROFPROMISEDGOODSANDSERVICESTOCUSTOMERS

earliest comparative period presented. Lessees and lessors may not apply a full retrospective transition approach.

INANAMOUNTTHATREmECTSTHECONSIDERATIONTOWHICHTHEENTITYEXPECTSTOBEENTITLEDINEXCHANGEFORDELIVERINGTHOSEGOODSANDSERVICES

4HE!35ISEFFECTIVEFORlSCALYEARSBEGINNINGAFTER$ECEMBER  INCLUDINGINTERIMPERIODSTHEREIN%ARLYAPPLICATIONISPERMITTED

4HISMODELINVOLVESAlVE STEPPROCESSTHATINCLUDESIDENTIFYINGTHECONTRACTWITHTHECUSTOMER IDENTIFYINGTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSIN

FORALLBUSINESSENTITIESUPONISSUANCE7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIALIMPACTOFADOPTINGTHENEWSTANDARDHOWEVER WEARECURRENTLYUNABLE

THECONTRACT DETERMININGTHETRANSACTIONPRICE ALLOCATINGTHETRANSACTIONPRICETOTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSINTHECONTRACTANDRECOGNIZING

TOPROVIDEAREASONABLEESTIMATEREGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EEXPECTTOADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

REVENUEWHENORAS THEENTITYSATISlESTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONS4HE!35ALLOWSTWOMETHODSOFADOPTIONAFULLRETROSPECTIVE
APPROACHWHERETHREEYEARSOFlNANCIALINFORMATIONAREPRESENTEDINACCORDANCEWITHTHENEWSTANDARD ANDAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACH
WHERETHE!35ISAPPLIEDTOTHEMOSTCURRENTPERIODPRESENTEDINTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS7ECURRENTLYANTICIPATEADOPTINGTHESTANDARD
using the full retrospective method to restate each prior reporting period presented. Our ability to adopt using the full retrospective method is
dependent on system readiness, including software procured from third-party providers, and the completion of our analysis of information
NECESSARYTORESTATEPRIORPERIODlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

Outlook
Activity in the local government software market continues to be robust, and our backlog at December 31, 2016 reached $953.3 million,
AINCREASEFROMLASTYEAR7EEXPECTTOCONTINUETOACHIEVESOLIDGROWTHINREVENUEANDEARNINGS7ITHOURSTRONGlNANCIALPOSITIONAND
CASHmOW WEPLANTOCONTINUETOMAKESIGNIlCANTINVESTMENTSINPRODUCTDEVELOPMENTTOBETTERPOSITIONUSTOCONTINUETOEXPANDOUR
competitive position in the public sector software market over the long term.

The new standard requires application no later than annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
REPORTINGPERIODSTHEREINHOWEVER PUBLICENTITIESAREPERMITTEDTOELECTTOEARLYADOPTTHENEWSTANDARD7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIAL
impact of adopting the new standard and the methods of adoption; however, we are currently unable to provide a reasonable estimate
REGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EWILLADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
/URDISCUSSIONANDANALYSISOFlNANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTSOFOPERATIONSISBASEDUPONOURlNANCIALSTATEMENTS WHICHHAVEBEENPREPARED
INACCORDANCEWITHACCOUNTINGPRINCIPLESGENERALLYACCEPTEDINTHE5NITED3TATESh'!!0v 4HEPREPARATIONOFTHESElNANCIALSTATEMENTS

7EANTICIPATETHISSTANDARDWILLHAVEAMATERIALIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS7HILEWEARECONTINUINGTOASSESSALL

REQUIRESUSTOMAKEESTIMATESANDJUDGMENTSTHATAFFECTTHEREPORTEDAMOUNTSOFASSETSANDLIABILITIESATTHEDATEOFTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS 

POTENTIALIMPACTSOFTHESTANDARD WECURRENTLYBELIEVETHEMOSTSIGNIlCANTIMPACTRELATESTOOURACCOUNTINGFORSOFTWARELICENSEFEES INSTALLATION

the reported amounts of revenues, cost of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, and related disclosure of contingencies.

FEES ANDINCREMENTALCOSTOFOBTAININGACONTRACT3PECIlCALLY UNDERTHENEWSTANDARDWEEXPECTSOFTWARELICENSEFEESUNDERPERPETUAL

4HE.OTESTOTHE&INANCIAL3TATEMENTSINCLUDEDASPARTOFTHIS!NNUAL2EPORTDESCRIBEOURSIGNIlCANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIESUSEDINTHE

agreements will no longer be subject to 100% discount allocations from other elements in the contract. Discounts in arrangements will be

PREPARATIONOFTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS3IGNIlCANTITEMSSUBJECTTOSUCHESTIMATESANDASSUMPTIONSINCLUDETHEAPPLICATIONOFTHEPERCENTAGE

allocated across all deliverables increasing license revenues and decreasing revenues allocated to other performance obligations. In addition,

of-completion and proportional performance methods of revenue recognition, the carrying amount and estimated useful lives of intangible

INMOSTCASES NETLICENSEFEESTOTALLICENSEFEESLESSANYALLOCATEDDISCOUNTS WILLBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROLOFTHE

assets, determination of share-based compensation expense and valuation allowance for receivables. We base our estimates on historical

SOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMERVERSUSOURCURRENTPOLICYOFRECOGNIZINGREVENUEONLYTOTHEEXTENTBILLABLEPERTHECONTRACTUAL

experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the

TERMS4IME BASEDLICENSEFEESCURRENTLYRECOGNIZEDOVERTHELICENSETERMWILLNOLONGERBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHEPERIODOFTHELICENSEAND

basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

WILLINSTEADBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROLOFTHESOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMER)NSTALLATIONFEESWILLNOLONGERBE

may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

CONSIDEREDDISTINCTPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSANDTHEREFOREWILLBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHETERMOFTHEARRANGEMENTORLIFEOFTHEPERFORMANCE
obligation. We expect revenue related to our SaaS offerings and professional services to remain substantially unchanged. Due to the
COMPLEXITYOFCERTAINCONTRACTS THEACTUALREVENUERECOGNITIONTREATMENTREQUIREDUNDERTHESTANDARDWILLBEDEPENDENTONCONTRACT SPECIlC

7EBELIEVETHEFOLLOWINGCRITICALACCOUNTINGPOLICIESREQUIRESIGNIlCANTJUDGMENTSANDESTIMATESUSEDINTHEPREPARATIONOFOURlNANCIAL
statements.

terms and may vary in some instances from recognition at the time of billing. Application of the new standard requires that incremental

Revenue Recognition.7ERECOGNIZEREVENUESINACCORDANCEWITHTHEPROVISIONSOF!CCOUNTING3TANDARDS#ODIlCATIONh!3#v  2EVENUE

COSTSDIRECTLYRELATEDTOOBTAININGACONTRACTTYPICALLYSALESCOMMISSIONSPLUSANYASSOCIATEDFRINGEBENElTS MUSTBERECOGNIZEDASANASSET

Recognition and ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition. Our revenues are derived from sales of software licenses and royalties,

and expensed over the expected life of the arrangement, unless that life is less than one year. Currently, we defer sales commissions and

subscription-based services, appraisal services, maintenance and support, and services that typically range from installation, training and

RECOGNIZEEXPENSEOVERTHERELEVANTINITIALCONTRACTUALTERM7ITHTHEADOPTIONTHENEWSTANDARD WEEXPECTAMORTIZATIONPERIODSTOEXTEND

BASICCONSULTINGTOSOFTWAREMODIlCATIONANDCUSTOMIZATIONTOMEETSPECIlCCUSTOMERNEEDS&ORMULTIPLEELEMENTSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTS 

past the initial term.

which do not entail the performance of services that are considered essential to the functionality of the software, we generally record

Leases. On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued its new lease accounting guidance in ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).” Under the
NEWGUIDANCE LESSEESWILLBEREQUIREDTORECOGNIZETHEFOLLOWINGFORALLLEASESWITHTHEEXCEPTIONOFSHORT TERMLEASES ATTHE
commencement date:

revenue when the delivered products or performed services result in a legally enforceable and non-refundable claim. We maintain allowances
FORDOUBTFULACCOUNTSANDSALESADJUSTMENTS WHICHAREPROVIDEDATTHETIMETHEREVENUEISRECOGNIZED"ECAUSEMOSTOFOURCUSTOMERS
are governmental entities, we rarely incur a loss resulting from the inability of a customer to make required payments. In a limited number
OFCASES WEENCOUNTERACUSTOMERWHOISDISSATISlEDWITHSOMEASPECTOFTHESOFTWAREPRODUCTOROURSERVICE ANDWEMAYOFFERA

•

A lease liability, which is a lessee‘s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and

“concession” to such customer. In those limited situations where we grant a concession, we rarely reduce the contract arrangement fee,

•

!RIGHT OF USEASSET WHICHISANASSETTHATREPRESENTSTHELESSEESRIGHTTOUSE ORCONTROLTHEUSEOF ASPECIlEDASSETFORTHELEASETERM

but alternatively may perform additional services, such as additional training or creating additional custom reports. These amounts have
historically been nominal. In connection with our customer contracts and the adequacy of related allowances and measures of progress
towards contract completion, our project managers are charged with the responsibility to continually review the status of each customer
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ONASPECIlCCONTRACTBASIS!LSO WEREVIEW ONATLEASTAQUARTERLYBASIS SIGNIlCANTPASTDUEACCOUNTSRECEIVABLEANDTHEADEQUACYOF

Intangible Assets and Goodwill. Our business acquisitions typically result in the creation of goodwill and other intangible asset balances,

related reserves. Events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount for the allowances for doubtful accounts and

ANDTHESEBALANCESAFFECTTHEAMOUNTANDTIMINGOFFUTUREPERIODAMORTIZATIONEXPENSE ASWELLASEXPENSEWECOULDPOSSIBLYINCURASA

SALESADJUSTMENTSMAYREQUIREREVISION INCLUDE BUTARENOTLIMITEDTO DETERIORATIONOFACUSTOMERSlNANCIALCONDITION FAILURETOMANAGE

RESULTOFANIMPAIRMENTCHARGE4HECOSTOFACQUIREDCOMPANIESISALLOCATEDTOIDENTIlABLETANGIBLEANDINTANGIBLEASSETSBASEDON

OURCUSTOMERSEXPECTATIONSREGARDINGTHESCOPEOFTHESERVICESTOBEDELIVERED ANDDEFECTSORERRORSINNEWVERSIONSORENHANCEMENTSOF

ESTIMATEDFAIRVALUE WITHTHEEXCESSALLOCATEDTOGOODWILL!CCORDINGLY WEHAVEASIGNIlCANTBALANCEOFACQUISITIONDATEINTANGIBLEASSETS 

our software products.

including software, customer related intangibles, trade name, leases and goodwill. These intangible assets (other than goodwill) are

We use contract accounting, primarily the percentage-of-completion method, as discussed in ASC 605-35, Construction – Type and Certain

AMORTIZEDOVERTHEIRESTIMATEDUSEFULLIVES7ECURRENTLYHAVENOINTANGIBLEASSETSWITHINDElNITELIVESOTHERTHANGOODWILL

0RODUCTIONn4YPE#ONTRACTS FORTHOSESOFTWAREARRANGEMENTSTHATINVOLVESIGNIlCANTPRODUCTION MODIlCATIONORCUSTOMIZATIONOFTHE

7HENTESTINGGOODWILLFORIMPAIRMENTQUANTITATIVELY WElRSTCOMPARETHEFAIRVALUEOFEACHREPORTINGUNITWITHITSCARRYINGAMOUNT)FTHE

software, or where our software services are otherwise considered essential to the functionality of the software. We measure progress-to-

carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment.

COMPLETIONPRIMARILYUSINGLABORHOURSINCURRED ORVALUEADDED)NADDITION WERECOGNIZEREVENUEUSINGTHEPROPORTIONALPERFORMANCE

)NTHESECONDSTEP WECOMPARETHEIMPLIEDFAIRVALUEOFREPORTINGUNITGOODWILLWITHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEREPORTINGUNITSGOODWILL

METHODFOROURPROPERTYAPPRAISALPROJECTS SOMEOFWHICHCANRANGEUPTOlVEYEARS4HESEMETHODSRELYONESTIMATESOFTOTALEXPECTED

)FTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFREPORTINGUNITGOODWILLEXCEEDSTHEIMPLIEDFAIRVALUEOFTHATGOODWILL ANIMPAIRMENTLOSSISRECOGNIZED4HEFAIR

contract revenue, billings and collections and expected contract costs, as well as measures of progress toward completion. We believe

VALUESCALCULATEDINOURIMPAIRMENTTESTSAREDETERMINEDUSINGDISCOUNTEDCASHmOWMODELSINVOLVINGSEVERALASSUMPTIONS4HEASSUMPTIONS

reasonably dependable estimates of revenue and costs and progress applicable to various stages of a contract can be made. At times, we

that are used are based upon what we believe a hypothetical marketplace participant would use in estimating fair value. We base our fair

perform additional and/or non-contractual services for little to no incremental fee to satisfy customer expectations. If changes occur in

value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable but that are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. We evaluate the

delivery, productivity or other factors used in developing our estimates of expected costs or revenues, we revise our cost and revenue estimates,

reasonableness of the fair value calculations of our reporting units by comparing the total of the fair value of all of our reporting units to our

ANDANYREVISIONSARECHARGEDTOINCOMEINTHEPERIODINWHICHTHEFACTSTHATGIVERISETOTHATREVISIONlRSTBECOMEKNOWN)NCONNECTION

TOTALMARKETCAPITALIZATION

with these and certain other contracts, we may perform the work prior to when the services are billable and/or payable pursuant to the contract.
The termination clauses in most of our contracts provide for the payment for the value of products delivered and services performed in
the event of an early termination.
For SaaS arrangements, we evaluate whether the customer has the contractual right to take possession of our software at any time during
THEHOSTINGPERIODWITHOUTSIGNIlCANTPENALTYANDWHETHERTHECUSTOMERCANFEASIBLYMAINTAINTHESOFTWAREONTHECUSTOMERSHARDWAREOR
enter into another arrangement with a third-party to host the software. If we determine that the customer has the contractual right to take
POSSESSIONOFOURSOFTWAREATANYTIMEDURINGTHEHOSTINGPERIODWITHOUTSIGNIlCANTPENALTYANDCANFEASIBLYMAINTAINTHESOFTWAREONTHE
CUSTOMERSHARDWAREORENTERINTOANOTHERARRANGEMENTWITHATHIRD PARTYTOHOSTTHESOFTWARE WERECOGNIZETHELICENSE PROFESSIONAL
services and hosting services revenues pursuant to ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition. For SaaS arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for recognition under ASC 985-605, we account for the elements under ASC 605-25, Multiple Element Arrangements using
all applicable facts and circumstances, including whether (i) the element has stand-alone value, (ii) there is a general right of return and

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis, which we performed quantitatively during the second quarter of 2016, did not result in an
impairment charge. During 2016, we did not identify any triggering events that would require an update to our annual impairment review.
All intangible assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of other intangible assets is measured by comparison of the carrying
AMOUNTTOESTIMATEDUNDISCOUNTEDFUTURECASHmOWS4HEASSESSMENTOFRECOVERABILITYOROFTHEESTIMATEDUSEFULLIFEFORAMORTIZATION
PURPOSESWILLBEAFFECTEDIFTHETIMINGORTHEAMOUNTOFESTIMATEDFUTUREOPERATINGCASHmOWSISNOTACHIEVED3UCHINDICATORSMAYINCLUDE 
AMONGOTHERSASIGNIlCANTDECLINEINEXPECTEDFUTURECASHmOWSASUSTAINED SIGNIlCANTDECLINEINSTOCKPRICEANDMARKETCAPITALIZATION
ASIGNIlCANTADVERSECHANGEINLEGALFACTORSORINTHEBUSINESSCLIMATEUNANTICIPATEDCOMPETITIONANDREDUCTIONSINGROWTHRATES)N
addition, products, capabilities, or technologies developed by others may render our software products obsolete or non-competitive. Any
ADVERSECHANGEINTHESEFACTORSCOULDHAVEASIGNIlCANTIMPACTONTHERECOVERABILITYOFGOODWILLOROTHERINTANGIBLEASSETS

(iii) the revenue is contingent on delivery of other elements. We allocate the contract value to each element of the arrangement that

Share-Based Compensation. We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and

QUALIlESFORTREATMENTASASEPARATEELEMENTBASEDONVENDOR SPECIlCOBJECTIVEEVIDENCEOFFAIRVALUEh63/%v ANDIF63/%ISNOTAVAILABLE 

non-employee consultants. We estimate the fair value of share-based awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation

third-party evidence, and if third-party evidence is unavailable, estimated selling price. For professional services associated with SaaS

model. Share-based compensation expense includes the estimated effects of forfeitures, which will be adjusted over the requisite service

ARRANGEMENTSTHATWEDETERMINEDONOTHAVESTAND ALONEVALUETOTHECUSTOMERORARECONTINGENTONDELIVERYOFOTHERELEMENTS WERECOGNIZE

PERIODTOTHEEXTENTACTUALFORFEITURESDIFFER ORAREEXPECTEDTODIFFERFROMSUCHESTIMATES#HANGESINESTIMATEDFORFEITURESARERECOGNIZEDIN

the services revenue ratably over the remaining contractual period once hosting has gone live and we may begin billing for the hosting

THEPERIODOFCHANGEANDWILLALSOIMPACTTHEAMOUNTOFEXPENSETOBERECOGNIZEDINFUTUREPERIODS&ORFEITURERATEASSUMPTIONSARE

services. We record amounts that have been invoiced in accounts receivable and in deferred revenue or revenues, depending on whether

derived from historical data. Our policy to estimate the impact of the forfeitures remains in accordance with the newly adopted accounting

the revenue recognition criteria have been met.

standard ASU No. 2016-09.

In connection with certain of our contracts, we have recorded retentions receivable or unbilled receivables consisting of costs and estimated

We estimate stock price volatility at the date of grant based on the historical volatility of our common stock. Estimated option life is

PROlTINEXCESSOFBILLINGSASOFTHEBALANCESHEETDATE-ANYOFTHECONTRACTSWHICHGIVERISETOUNBILLEDRECEIVABLESATAGIVENBALANCE

DETERMINEDUSINGTHEWEIGHTED AVERAGEPERIODTHESTOCKOPTIONSAREEXPECTEDTOBEOUTSTANDINGBASEDPRIMARILYONTHEOPTIONSVESTING

sheet date are subject to billings in the subsequent accounting period. We review unbilled receivables and related contract provisions to

TERMS REMAININGCONTRACTUALLIFEANDTHEEMPLOYEESEXPECTEDEXERCISEBASEDONHISTORICALPATTERNS$ETERMININGTHEAPPROPRIATE

ENSUREWEAREJUSTIlEDINRECOGNIZINGREVENUEPRIORTOBILLINGTHECUSTOMERANDTHATWEHAVEOBJECTIVEEVIDENCEWHICHALLOWSUSTORECOGNIZE

fair-value model and calculating the fair value of share-based awards at the grant date requires considerable judgment, including estimating

SUCHREVENUE)NADDITION WEHAVEASIZABLEAMOUNTOFDEFERREDREVENUE WHICHREPRESENTSBILLINGSINEXCESSOFREVENUEEARNED4HE

stock price volatility, expected option life and forfeiture rates.

majority of this liability consists of maintenance billings for which payments are made in advance and the revenue is ratably earned over the
maintenance period, generally one year. We also have deferred revenue for those contracts in which we receive a deposit and the
conditions in which to record revenue for the service or product have not been met. On a periodic basis, we review by customer the detail
components of our deferred revenue to ensure our accounting remains appropriate.
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our software products.

including software, customer related intangibles, trade name, leases and goodwill. These intangible assets (other than goodwill) are

We use contract accounting, primarily the percentage-of-completion method, as discussed in ASC 605-35, Construction – Type and Certain
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7HENTESTINGGOODWILLFORIMPAIRMENTQUANTITATIVELY WElRSTCOMPARETHEFAIRVALUEOFEACHREPORTINGUNITWITHITSCARRYINGAMOUNT)FTHE

software, or where our software services are otherwise considered essential to the functionality of the software. We measure progress-to-

carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment.
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)NTHESECONDSTEP WECOMPARETHEIMPLIEDFAIRVALUEOFREPORTINGUNITGOODWILLWITHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEREPORTINGUNITSGOODWILL
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reasonably dependable estimates of revenue and costs and progress applicable to various stages of a contract can be made. At times, we

that are used are based upon what we believe a hypothetical marketplace participant would use in estimating fair value. We base our fair

perform additional and/or non-contractual services for little to no incremental fee to satisfy customer expectations. If changes occur in

value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable but that are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. We evaluate the

delivery, productivity or other factors used in developing our estimates of expected costs or revenues, we revise our cost and revenue estimates,

reasonableness of the fair value calculations of our reporting units by comparing the total of the fair value of all of our reporting units to our

ANDANYREVISIONSARECHARGEDTOINCOMEINTHEPERIODINWHICHTHEFACTSTHATGIVERISETOTHATREVISIONlRSTBECOMEKNOWN)NCONNECTION

TOTALMARKETCAPITALIZATION

with these and certain other contracts, we may perform the work prior to when the services are billable and/or payable pursuant to the contract.
The termination clauses in most of our contracts provide for the payment for the value of products delivered and services performed in
the event of an early termination.
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services and hosting services revenues pursuant to ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition. For SaaS arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for recognition under ASC 985-605, we account for the elements under ASC 605-25, Multiple Element Arrangements using
all applicable facts and circumstances, including whether (i) the element has stand-alone value, (ii) there is a general right of return and

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis, which we performed quantitatively during the second quarter of 2016, did not result in an
impairment charge. During 2016, we did not identify any triggering events that would require an update to our annual impairment review.
All intangible assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
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(iii) the revenue is contingent on delivery of other elements. We allocate the contract value to each element of the arrangement that

Share-Based Compensation. We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and
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non-employee consultants. We estimate the fair value of share-based awards on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation

third-party evidence, and if third-party evidence is unavailable, estimated selling price. For professional services associated with SaaS

model. Share-based compensation expense includes the estimated effects of forfeitures, which will be adjusted over the requisite service
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the services revenue ratably over the remaining contractual period once hosting has gone live and we may begin billing for the hosting
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services. We record amounts that have been invoiced in accounts receivable and in deferred revenue or revenues, depending on whether

derived from historical data. Our policy to estimate the impact of the forfeitures remains in accordance with the newly adopted accounting

the revenue recognition criteria have been met.

standard ASU No. 2016-09.

In connection with certain of our contracts, we have recorded retentions receivable or unbilled receivables consisting of costs and estimated

We estimate stock price volatility at the date of grant based on the historical volatility of our common stock. Estimated option life is
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sheet date are subject to billings in the subsequent accounting period. We review unbilled receivables and related contract provisions to
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ENSUREWEAREJUSTIlEDINRECOGNIZINGREVENUEPRIORTOBILLINGTHECUSTOMERANDTHATWEHAVEOBJECTIVEEVIDENCEWHICHALLOWSUSTORECOGNIZE

fair-value model and calculating the fair value of share-based awards at the grant date requires considerable judgment, including estimating

SUCHREVENUE)NADDITION WEHAVEASIZABLEAMOUNTOFDEFERREDREVENUE WHICHREPRESENTSBILLINGSINEXCESSOFREVENUEEARNED4HE

stock price volatility, expected option life and forfeiture rates.

majority of this liability consists of maintenance billings for which payments are made in advance and the revenue is ratably earned over the
maintenance period, generally one year. We also have deferred revenue for those contracts in which we receive a deposit and the
conditions in which to record revenue for the service or product have not been met. On a periodic basis, we review by customer the detail
components of our deferred revenue to ensure our accounting remains appropriate.
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Analysis of Results of Operations and Other

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software license revenue increased 3% compared to the prior year. The majority of this growth was

The following discussion compares the historical results of operations on a basis consistent with GAAP for the years ended December 31,

due to a more active marketplace as the result of improvement in local government economic conditions, as well as our increasingly strong

2016, 2015 and 2014.

competitive position, which we attribute in part to our investment in product development in recent years. This increase was offset
somewhat by lower sales to our existing customer base for courts and justice related add-on solutions that assist and support the transition

Percentage of Total Revenues
Years Ended December 31,

2016

2015

to a paperless environment. By the end of 2015, the majority of our courts and justice clients had implemented these add-on solutions.
2014

Although the mix of new contracts between subscription-based and perpetual license arrangements may vary from quarter to quarter and
Revenues:
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total revenues
Operating Expenses:
Cost of software licenses, royalties and acquired software
Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Cost of appraisal services
Cost of hardware and other
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expense
Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Operating income
Other (expense) income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income

9.8%
18.9
23.1
42.7
3.5
2.0
100.0

10.0%
18.9
23.7
41.6
4.2
1.6
100.0

10.0%
17.8
23.1
43.1
4.4
1.6
100.0

3.3
46.2
2.2
1.3
22.1
5.7
1.8
17.4
(0.3)
17.1
2.6
14.5%

1.0
48.2
2.7
1.1
22.6
5.1
1.0
18.3
0.1
18.4
7.4
11.0%

0.8
47.9
2.9
1.1
22.0
5.2
0.9
19.2
(0.1)
19.1
7.2
11.9%

year to year, we expect our longer-term software license growth rate to be negatively impacted by a growing number of customers
choosing our subscription-based options, rather than purchasing the software under a traditional perpetual software license arrangement.
Subscription-based arrangements result in lower software license revenue in the initial year as compared to perpetual software license
arrangements but generate higher overall revenue over the term of the contract. Our new client mix in 2016 was approximately 68%
selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 32% selecting subscription-based arrangements compared to a client
mix in 2015 of approximately 76% selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 24% selecting subscription-based
arrangements. 250 new clients entered into subscription-based software arrangements in 2016 compared to 134 new clients in 2015.

Subscriptions.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our subscriptions revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total subscriptions revenue

2016

2015

$

$135,516
7,188
$142,704

$107,090
4,843
$111,933

$ 28,426
2,345
$ 30,771

%

27%
48
27%

3UBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESREVENUEPRIMARILYCONSISTSOFREVENUEDERIVEDFROMOUR3AA3ARRANGEMENTS WHICHUTILIZETHE4YLERPRIVATE
CLOUD!SPARTOFOURSUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICES WEALSOPROVIDEELECTRONICDOCUMENTlLINGSOLUTIONShE lLINGv THATSIMPLIFYTHElLING
ANDMANAGEMENTOFCOURTRELATEDDOCUMENTSFORCOURTSANDLAWOFlCES% lLINGREVENUEISDERIVEDFROMTRANSACTIONFEESANDlXED

2016 Compared to 2015

fee arrangements.

Revenues

%XCLUDINGACQUISITIONS SUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESREVENUEINCREASEDCOMPAREDTO% lLINGSERVICESCONTRIBUTEDAPPROXIMATELY

/N.OVEMBER  WEACQUIRED.73 WHICHPROVIDESPUBLICSAFETYANDlNANCIALSOLUTIONSFORLOCALGOVERNMENTS)N-AY 
WEACQUIREDACOMPANYWHICHPROVIDESMOBILEHAND HELDSOLUTIONSPRIMARILYTOLAWENFORCEMENTAGENCIESFORlELDACCIDENTREPORTINGAND
electronically issuing citations. The results of their operations are included in our ES segment from their respective dates of acquisition.
For comparative purposes, we have provided explanations for changes in operations to exclude results of operations for these acquisitions
noting the exclusion.

The following table sets forth a comparison of our software licenses and royalties revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change

ES
A&T
Total software licenses and royalties revenue

SEVERALOFWHICHIMPLEMENTEDMANDATORYELECTRONIClLINGDURINGANDTHROUGHOUT.EW3AA3CLIENTSASWELLASEXISTINGCLIENTS
who converted to our SaaS model provided the remainder of the subscriptions revenue increase. In 2016, we added 250 new SaaS clients
ANDEXISTINGCLIENTSELECTEDTOCONVERTTOOUR3AA3MODEL4HEAVERAGECONTRACTSIZESINWEREANDHIGHERTHANFORNEW
clients and clients converting to our SaaS model, respectively.

Software licenses and royalties.

($ in thousands)

MILLIONOFTHESUBSCRIPTIONSREVENUEINCREASEIN-OSTOFTHEE lLINGREVENUEINCREASERELATEDTOSEVERALSTATEWIDECONTRACTS 

2016

2015

$

$68,844
5,462
$74,306

$ 54,376
4,632
$ 59,008

$14,468
830
$15,298

%

27%
18
26%
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Analysis of Results of Operations and Other

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software license revenue increased 3% compared to the prior year. The majority of this growth was

The following discussion compares the historical results of operations on a basis consistent with GAAP for the years ended December 31,

due to a more active marketplace as the result of improvement in local government economic conditions, as well as our increasingly strong

2016, 2015 and 2014.

competitive position, which we attribute in part to our investment in product development in recent years. This increase was offset
somewhat by lower sales to our existing customer base for courts and justice related add-on solutions that assist and support the transition

Percentage of Total Revenues
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100.0
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3.3
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2.2
1.3
22.1
5.7
1.8
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(0.3)
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2.6
14.5%
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2.7
1.1
22.6
5.1
1.0
18.3
0.1
18.4
7.4
11.0%

0.8
47.9
2.9
1.1
22.0
5.2
0.9
19.2
(0.1)
19.1
7.2
11.9%

year to year, we expect our longer-term software license growth rate to be negatively impacted by a growing number of customers
choosing our subscription-based options, rather than purchasing the software under a traditional perpetual software license arrangement.
Subscription-based arrangements result in lower software license revenue in the initial year as compared to perpetual software license
arrangements but generate higher overall revenue over the term of the contract. Our new client mix in 2016 was approximately 68%
selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 32% selecting subscription-based arrangements compared to a client
mix in 2015 of approximately 76% selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 24% selecting subscription-based
arrangements. 250 new clients entered into subscription-based software arrangements in 2016 compared to 134 new clients in 2015.

Subscriptions.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our subscriptions revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total subscriptions revenue

2016

2015

$

$135,516
7,188
$142,704

$107,090
4,843
$111,933

$ 28,426
2,345
$ 30,771

%

27%
48
27%

3UBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESREVENUEPRIMARILYCONSISTSOFREVENUEDERIVEDFROMOUR3AA3ARRANGEMENTS WHICHUTILIZETHE4YLERPRIVATE
CLOUD!SPARTOFOURSUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICES WEALSOPROVIDEELECTRONICDOCUMENTlLINGSOLUTIONShE lLINGv THATSIMPLIFYTHElLING
ANDMANAGEMENTOFCOURTRELATEDDOCUMENTSFORCOURTSANDLAWOFlCES% lLINGREVENUEISDERIVEDFROMTRANSACTIONFEESANDlXED

2016 Compared to 2015

fee arrangements.

Revenues

%XCLUDINGACQUISITIONS SUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESREVENUEINCREASEDCOMPAREDTO% lLINGSERVICESCONTRIBUTEDAPPROXIMATELY

/N.OVEMBER  WEACQUIRED.73 WHICHPROVIDESPUBLICSAFETYANDlNANCIALSOLUTIONSFORLOCALGOVERNMENTS)N-AY 
WEACQUIREDACOMPANYWHICHPROVIDESMOBILEHAND HELDSOLUTIONSPRIMARILYTOLAWENFORCEMENTAGENCIESFORlELDACCIDENTREPORTINGAND
electronically issuing citations. The results of their operations are included in our ES segment from their respective dates of acquisition.
For comparative purposes, we have provided explanations for changes in operations to exclude results of operations for these acquisitions
noting the exclusion.

The following table sets forth a comparison of our software licenses and royalties revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change

ES
A&T
Total software licenses and royalties revenue

SEVERALOFWHICHIMPLEMENTEDMANDATORYELECTRONIClLINGDURINGANDTHROUGHOUT.EW3AA3CLIENTSASWELLASEXISTINGCLIENTS
who converted to our SaaS model provided the remainder of the subscriptions revenue increase. In 2016, we added 250 new SaaS clients
ANDEXISTINGCLIENTSELECTEDTOCONVERTTOOUR3AA3MODEL4HEAVERAGECONTRACTSIZESINWEREANDHIGHERTHANFORNEW
clients and clients converting to our SaaS model, respectively.

Software licenses and royalties.

($ in thousands)

MILLIONOFTHESUBSCRIPTIONSREVENUEINCREASEIN-OSTOFTHEE lLINGREVENUEINCREASERELATEDTOSEVERALSTATEWIDECONTRACTS 

2016

2015

$

$68,844
5,462
$74,306

$ 54,376
4,632
$ 59,008

$14,468
830
$15,298

%

27%
18
26%
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Software services.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins

The following table sets forth a comparison of our software services revenue for the years ended December 31:

The following table sets forth a comparison of the key components of our cost of revenues for the years ended December 31:
Change

($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total software services revenue

2016

2015

$

$158,478
16,326
$174,804

$129,068
10,784
$139,852

$29,410
5,542
$34,952

47

Change
%

($ in thousands)

23%
51
25%

Software licenses and royalties
Acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total cost of revenues

Software services revenue primarily consists of professional services billed in connection with implementing our software, converting client
data, training client personnel, custom development activities and consulting. New clients who purchase our proprietary software licenses

2016

2015

$

%

$ 2,964
22,235
348,939
16,411
10,143
$ 400,692

$ 1,632
4,440
285,340
15,922
6,501
$ 313,835

$ 1,332
17,795
63,599
489
3,642
$86,857

82%
N/M
22
3
56
28%

generally also contract with us to provide for the related software services. Existing clients also periodically purchase additional training,
consulting and minor programming services. Excluding the results of acquisitions, software services revenue grew 11% compared to the
prior year period. This growth is partly due to additions to our implementation and support staff, which increased our capacity to deliver
backlog, and a contract mix that included more custom development and other services.

Maintenance.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our maintenance revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total maintenance revenue

2016

2015

$

$304,380
18,589
$322,969

$227,586
17,951
$245,537

$76,794
638
$77,432

%

34%
4
32%

The following table sets forth a comparison of gross margin percentage by revenue type for the years ended December 31:
Gross margin percentage

2016

2015

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Overall gross margin

66.1%
45.5
37.6
32.3
47.0%

89.7%
42.6
36.5
32.5
46.9%

Change

(23.6)%
2.9
1.1
(0.2)
0.1%

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software. Costs of software licenses, royalties and acquired software are primarily comprised of
AMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWAREANDTHIRD PARTYSOFTWARECOSTS7EDONOTHAVEANYDIRECTCOSTSASSOCIATEDWITHROYALTIES)N 
our software licenses, royalties and acquired software gross margin percentage declined compared to the prior year due to much higher
AMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWARERESULTINGFROMOURACQUISITIONOF.73%XCLUDINGTHERESULTSOF.73 OURSOFTWARELICENSE ROYALTIES
and acquired software gross margin was 93.9% in 2016 compared to 93.6% in 2015.

We provide maintenance and support services for our software products and certain third-party software. Excluding the results of acquisitions,
maintenance revenue grew 9% compared to the prior year. Maintenance and support revenue increased mainly due to growth in our installed
customer base from new software license sales as well as annual maintenance rate increases.

costs related to installation of our software, conversion of client data, training client personnel and support activities and various other
SERVICESSUCHASCUSTOMCLIENTDEVELOPMENTANDON GOINGOPERATIONOF3AA3ANDE lLINGARRANGEMENTS)N THESOFTWARESERVICES 
maintenance and subscriptions gross margin increased 2.9% compared to the prior year. Our implementation and support staff has

Appraisal services.

GROWNBYEMPLOYEESSINCE$ECEMBER 4OSUPPORTSALESGROWTH WEBEGANMAKINGSIGNIlCANTINVESTMENTSINOURIMPLEMENTATION

The following table sets forth a comparison of our appraisal services revenue for the years ended December 31:

and support staff in early 2015. Since December 31, 2014, excluding acquisitions, we have added 369 implementation and support
Change

($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total appraisal services revenue

Software services, maintenance and subscriptions. Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions primarily consists of personnel

2016

$

—
26,287
$26,287

2015

$

—
25,065
$ 25,065

$

$

—
1,222
$ 1,222

employees. These additions contributed to the revenue growth in 2016. In addition, the NWS revenue mix includes a lower proportion of
%

—%
5
5%

SOFTWARESERVICESCOMPAREDTO4YLERSHISTORICALREVENUEMIX WHICHALSOBENElTEDTHEGROSSMARGIN#OSTSRELATEDTOMAINTENANCEAND
VARIOUSOTHERSERVICESSUCHAS3AA3ANDE lLINGTYPICALLYGROWATASLOWERRATETHANRELATEDREVENUEDUETOLEVERAGEINTHEUTILIZATIONOF
support and maintenance staff and economies of scale. Maintenance and subscription price increases also resulted in slightly higher
gross margins.
Appraisal services. Appraisal services revenue comprised approximately 3.5% of total revenue. The appraisal services gross margin

The appraisal services business is somewhat cyclical and driven in part by statutory revaluation cycles in various states. In 2016, appraisal

increased 1.1% compared to 2015. A high proportion of the costs of appraisal services revenue are variable, as we often hire temporary

services revenue increased 5% compared to prior year primarily due to the Franklin County, Ohio, revaluation project, which began late in

EMPLOYEESTOASSISTINAPPRAISALPROJECTS WHOSETERMOFEMPLOYMENTGENERALLYENDSWITHTHEPROJECTSCOMPLETION

the fourth quarter of 2015.
Our 2016 blended gross margin remained consistent compared to 2015. Our overall gross margin was positively impacted by improved
UTILIZATIONOFOURSUPPORTANDMAINTENANCESTAFFHOWEVER THISBENElTWASOFFSETBYAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWARERELATEDTO
the NWS acquisition.
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Software services.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins

The following table sets forth a comparison of our software services revenue for the years ended December 31:

The following table sets forth a comparison of the key components of our cost of revenues for the years ended December 31:
Change

($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total software services revenue

2016

2015

$

$158,478
16,326
$174,804

$129,068
10,784
$139,852

$29,410
5,542
$34,952

47

Change
%

($ in thousands)

23%
51
25%

Software licenses and royalties
Acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total cost of revenues

Software services revenue primarily consists of professional services billed in connection with implementing our software, converting client
data, training client personnel, custom development activities and consulting. New clients who purchase our proprietary software licenses

2016

2015

$

%

$ 2,964
22,235
348,939
16,411
10,143
$ 400,692

$ 1,632
4,440
285,340
15,922
6,501
$ 313,835

$ 1,332
17,795
63,599
489
3,642
$86,857

82%
N/M
22
3
56
28%

generally also contract with us to provide for the related software services. Existing clients also periodically purchase additional training,
consulting and minor programming services. Excluding the results of acquisitions, software services revenue grew 11% compared to the
prior year period. This growth is partly due to additions to our implementation and support staff, which increased our capacity to deliver
backlog, and a contract mix that included more custom development and other services.

Maintenance.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our maintenance revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total maintenance revenue

2016

2015

$

$304,380
18,589
$322,969

$227,586
17,951
$245,537

$76,794
638
$77,432

%

34%
4
32%

The following table sets forth a comparison of gross margin percentage by revenue type for the years ended December 31:
Gross margin percentage

2016

2015

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Overall gross margin

66.1%
45.5
37.6
32.3
47.0%

89.7%
42.6
36.5
32.5
46.9%

Change

(23.6)%
2.9
1.1
(0.2)
0.1%

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software. Costs of software licenses, royalties and acquired software are primarily comprised of
AMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWAREANDTHIRD PARTYSOFTWARECOSTS7EDONOTHAVEANYDIRECTCOSTSASSOCIATEDWITHROYALTIES)N 
our software licenses, royalties and acquired software gross margin percentage declined compared to the prior year due to much higher
AMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWARERESULTINGFROMOURACQUISITIONOF.73%XCLUDINGTHERESULTSOF.73 OURSOFTWARELICENSE ROYALTIES
and acquired software gross margin was 93.9% in 2016 compared to 93.6% in 2015.

We provide maintenance and support services for our software products and certain third-party software. Excluding the results of acquisitions,
maintenance revenue grew 9% compared to the prior year. Maintenance and support revenue increased mainly due to growth in our installed
customer base from new software license sales as well as annual maintenance rate increases.

costs related to installation of our software, conversion of client data, training client personnel and support activities and various other
SERVICESSUCHASCUSTOMCLIENTDEVELOPMENTANDON GOINGOPERATIONOF3AA3ANDE lLINGARRANGEMENTS)N THESOFTWARESERVICES 
maintenance and subscriptions gross margin increased 2.9% compared to the prior year. Our implementation and support staff has

Appraisal services.

GROWNBYEMPLOYEESSINCE$ECEMBER 4OSUPPORTSALESGROWTH WEBEGANMAKINGSIGNIlCANTINVESTMENTSINOURIMPLEMENTATION

The following table sets forth a comparison of our appraisal services revenue for the years ended December 31:

and support staff in early 2015. Since December 31, 2014, excluding acquisitions, we have added 369 implementation and support
Change

($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total appraisal services revenue

Software services, maintenance and subscriptions. Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions primarily consists of personnel

2016

$

—
26,287
$26,287

2015

$

—
25,065
$ 25,065

$

$

—
1,222
$ 1,222

employees. These additions contributed to the revenue growth in 2016. In addition, the NWS revenue mix includes a lower proportion of
%

—%
5
5%

SOFTWARESERVICESCOMPAREDTO4YLERSHISTORICALREVENUEMIX WHICHALSOBENElTEDTHEGROSSMARGIN#OSTSRELATEDTOMAINTENANCEAND
VARIOUSOTHERSERVICESSUCHAS3AA3ANDE lLINGTYPICALLYGROWATASLOWERRATETHANRELATEDREVENUEDUETOLEVERAGEINTHEUTILIZATIONOF
support and maintenance staff and economies of scale. Maintenance and subscription price increases also resulted in slightly higher
gross margins.
Appraisal services. Appraisal services revenue comprised approximately 3.5% of total revenue. The appraisal services gross margin

The appraisal services business is somewhat cyclical and driven in part by statutory revaluation cycles in various states. In 2016, appraisal

increased 1.1% compared to 2015. A high proportion of the costs of appraisal services revenue are variable, as we often hire temporary

services revenue increased 5% compared to prior year primarily due to the Franklin County, Ohio, revaluation project, which began late in

EMPLOYEESTOASSISTINAPPRAISALPROJECTS WHOSETERMOFEMPLOYMENTGENERALLYENDSWITHTHEPROJECTSCOMPLETION

the fourth quarter of 2015.
Our 2016 blended gross margin remained consistent compared to 2015. Our overall gross margin was positively impacted by improved
UTILIZATIONOFOURSUPPORTANDMAINTENANCESTAFFHOWEVER THISBENElTWASOFFSETBYAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWARERELATEDTO
the NWS acquisition.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Amortization of Customer and Trade Name Intangibles

3ELLING GENERALANDADMINISTRATIVEh3'!v EXPENSESCONSISTPRIMARILYOFSALARIES EMPLOYEEBENElTS TRAVEL SHARE BASEDCOMPENSATION

Acquisition intangibles are comprised of the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible assets acquired that is allocated

expense, commissions and related overhead costs for administrative and sales and marketing employees, as well as, professional fees, trade

to acquired software, leases and customer and trade name intangibles. The remaining excess purchase price is allocated to goodwill that

show activities, advertising costs and other marketing related costs. The following table sets forth a comparison of our SG&A expenses for

ISNOTSUBJECTTOAMORTIZATION!MORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATEDTOACQUIREDSOFTWAREISINCLUDEDWITHCOSTOFREVENUES WHILEAMORTIZATIONEXPENSE

the following years ended December 31:

of customer and trade name intangibles is recorded as operating expense. The estimated useful lives of both customer and trade name
INTANGIBLESRANGEFROMlVETOYEARS4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESETSFORTHACOMPARISONOFAMORTIZATIONOFCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLES

Change
($ in thousands)

2016

2015

$

$167,161

$133,317

$33,844

%

for the years ended December 31:
Change

Selling, general and administrative expenses

25%
($ in thousands)

SG&A as a percentage of revenue was 22.1% in 2016 compared to 22.6% in 2015. In 2015, our SG&A expense included approximately

Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles

2016

2015

$

%

$13,731

$ 5,905

$ 7,826

133%

MILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHERVARIOUSEXPENSESNECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73
acquisition. Excluding NWS transaction costs and SG&A from acquisitions, SG&A expense increased approximately 12% mainly due to

!MORTIZATIONOFCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLESINCREASEDSUBSTANTIALLYFROMTHECOMPARABLEPRIORYEARPERIODSDUETOTHEACQUISITION

compensation costs related to increased staff levels, higher stock compensation expense and increased commission expense as a result of

of NWS in November 2015.

HIGHERSALES7EHAVEADDEDEMPLOYEESMAINLYTOOURSALESANDlNANCETEAMSSINCE$ECEMBER )NADDITION OURSTOCK
compensation expense rose $6.4 million, mainly due to increases in our stock price over the last few years.

%STIMATEDANNUALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES EXCLUDINGACQUIREDSOFTWAREFORWHICH
THEAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEISRECORDEDASCOSTOFREVENUES FORTHENEXTlVEYEARSANDTHEREAFTERISASFOLLOWSINTHOUSANDS 

Research and Development Expense

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

2ESEARCHANDDEVELOPMENTEXPENSECONSISTSPRIMARILYOFSALARIES EMPLOYEEBENElTSANDRELATEDOVERHEADCOSTSASSOCIATEDWITHPRODUCT
development. The following table sets forth a comparison of our research and development expense for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

2016

2015

$

$ 13,808
13,658
12,395
11,241
11,121

%

!MORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOACQUIREDLEASESWILLBERECORDEDASAREDUCTIONTOHARDWAREANDOTHERREVENUEANDISEXPECTEDTOBE
Research and development expense

$43,154

$ 29,922

$13,232

44%

Research and development expense consists mainly of costs associated with development of new products and technologies from which

$442,000 in 2017, $426,000 in 2018, $373,000 in 2019, $314,000 in 2020, $312,000 in 2021 and $1.3 million thereafter.

we do not currently generate revenue, as well as costs related to the ongoing development efforts for Microsoft Dynamics AX. Our contractual

Other

research and development commitment to develop public sector functionality for Microsoft Dynamics AX was amended in March 2016,

The following table sets forth a comparison of other (expense) income, net for the years ended December 31:

WHICHSIGNIlCANTLYREDUCEDOURDEVELOPMENTCOMMITMENTTHROUGH-ARCH(OWEVER WEWILLCONTINUETOPROVIDESUSTAINEDENGINEERING
and technical support for the public sector functionality within Dynamics AX. License and maintenance royalties for all applicable domestic

Change
($ in thousands)

2016

2015

$

%

and international sales of Dynamics AX to public sector entities will continue under the terms of the contract.
Other (expense) income, net

$ (1,998)

$

381

$ (2,379)

N/M

Excluding the results of acquisitions, research and development expense increased 1.5% in 2016 compared to the prior year period, mainly
due to research and development efforts related to new Tyler product development initiatives. As a result of the Microsoft Dynamics AX

Other (expense) income is comprised of interest expense and non-usage and other fees associated with our revolving credit agreement

amendment, we also redeployed certain development resources to enhance functionality on several existing solutions and these costs were

ASWELLASINTERESTINCOMEFROMINVESTEDCASH)N WEHADSIGNIlCANTLYHIGHERINVESTEDCASHBALANCESANDNOOUTSTANDINGDEBTUNTIL

recorded in cost of sales – software services, maintenance and subscriptions.

we completed the NWS acquisition on November 16, 2015.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Amortization of Customer and Trade Name Intangibles

3ELLING GENERALANDADMINISTRATIVEh3'!v EXPENSESCONSISTPRIMARILYOFSALARIES EMPLOYEEBENElTS TRAVEL SHARE BASEDCOMPENSATION

Acquisition intangibles are comprised of the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible assets acquired that is allocated

expense, commissions and related overhead costs for administrative and sales and marketing employees, as well as, professional fees, trade

to acquired software, leases and customer and trade name intangibles. The remaining excess purchase price is allocated to goodwill that

show activities, advertising costs and other marketing related costs. The following table sets forth a comparison of our SG&A expenses for

ISNOTSUBJECTTOAMORTIZATION!MORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATEDTOACQUIREDSOFTWAREISINCLUDEDWITHCOSTOFREVENUES WHILEAMORTIZATIONEXPENSE

the following years ended December 31:

of customer and trade name intangibles is recorded as operating expense. The estimated useful lives of both customer and trade name
INTANGIBLESRANGEFROMlVETOYEARS4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESETSFORTHACOMPARISONOFAMORTIZATIONOFCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLES

Change
($ in thousands)

2016

2015

$

$167,161

$133,317

$33,844

%

for the years ended December 31:
Change

Selling, general and administrative expenses

25%
($ in thousands)

SG&A as a percentage of revenue was 22.1% in 2016 compared to 22.6% in 2015. In 2015, our SG&A expense included approximately

Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles

2016

2015

$

%

$13,731

$ 5,905

$ 7,826

133%

MILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHERVARIOUSEXPENSESNECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73
acquisition. Excluding NWS transaction costs and SG&A from acquisitions, SG&A expense increased approximately 12% mainly due to

!MORTIZATIONOFCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLESINCREASEDSUBSTANTIALLYFROMTHECOMPARABLEPRIORYEARPERIODSDUETOTHEACQUISITION

compensation costs related to increased staff levels, higher stock compensation expense and increased commission expense as a result of

of NWS in November 2015.

HIGHERSALES7EHAVEADDEDEMPLOYEESMAINLYTOOURSALESANDlNANCETEAMSSINCE$ECEMBER )NADDITION OURSTOCK
compensation expense rose $6.4 million, mainly due to increases in our stock price over the last few years.

%STIMATEDANNUALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES EXCLUDINGACQUIREDSOFTWAREFORWHICH
THEAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEISRECORDEDASCOSTOFREVENUES FORTHENEXTlVEYEARSANDTHEREAFTERISASFOLLOWSINTHOUSANDS 

Research and Development Expense

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

2ESEARCHANDDEVELOPMENTEXPENSECONSISTSPRIMARILYOFSALARIES EMPLOYEEBENElTSANDRELATEDOVERHEADCOSTSASSOCIATEDWITHPRODUCT
development. The following table sets forth a comparison of our research and development expense for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

2016

2015

$

$ 13,808
13,658
12,395
11,241
11,121

%

!MORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOACQUIREDLEASESWILLBERECORDEDASAREDUCTIONTOHARDWAREANDOTHERREVENUEANDISEXPECTEDTOBE
Research and development expense

$43,154

$ 29,922

$13,232

44%

Research and development expense consists mainly of costs associated with development of new products and technologies from which

$442,000 in 2017, $426,000 in 2018, $373,000 in 2019, $314,000 in 2020, $312,000 in 2021 and $1.3 million thereafter.

we do not currently generate revenue, as well as costs related to the ongoing development efforts for Microsoft Dynamics AX. Our contractual

Other

research and development commitment to develop public sector functionality for Microsoft Dynamics AX was amended in March 2016,

The following table sets forth a comparison of other (expense) income, net for the years ended December 31:

WHICHSIGNIlCANTLYREDUCEDOURDEVELOPMENTCOMMITMENTTHROUGH-ARCH(OWEVER WEWILLCONTINUETOPROVIDESUSTAINEDENGINEERING
and technical support for the public sector functionality within Dynamics AX. License and maintenance royalties for all applicable domestic

Change
($ in thousands)

2016

2015

$

%

and international sales of Dynamics AX to public sector entities will continue under the terms of the contract.
Other (expense) income, net

$ (1,998)

$

381

$ (2,379)

N/M

Excluding the results of acquisitions, research and development expense increased 1.5% in 2016 compared to the prior year period, mainly
due to research and development efforts related to new Tyler product development initiatives. As a result of the Microsoft Dynamics AX

Other (expense) income is comprised of interest expense and non-usage and other fees associated with our revolving credit agreement

amendment, we also redeployed certain development resources to enhance functionality on several existing solutions and these costs were

ASWELLASINTERESTINCOMEFROMINVESTEDCASH)N WEHADSIGNIlCANTLYHIGHERINVESTEDCASHBALANCESANDNOOUTSTANDINGDEBTUNTIL

recorded in cost of sales – software services, maintenance and subscriptions.

we completed the NWS acquisition on November 16, 2015.
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Income Tax Provision

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software license revenue increased 15% compared to the prior year. The majority of this growth was

The following table sets forth a comparison of our income tax provision for the years ended December 31:

due to a more active marketplace as the result of improvement in local government economic conditions, as well as our increasingly strong
competitive position, which we attribute in part to our investment in product development in recent years. In addition, add-on sales to our

Change
($ in thousands)

Income tax provision
Effective income tax rate

2016

$19,450
15.0%

2015

$ 43,555
40.2%

existing customer base for courts and justice related solutions that assist and support the transition to a paperless environment increased

$

%

$(24,105)

(55)%

approximately $1.3 million.
Our new client mix in 2015 was approximately 76% selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 24% selecting
subscription-based arrangements compared to a client mix in 2014 of approximately 74% selecting perpetual software license arrangements

The decrease in the income tax provision during 2016 was primarily driven by the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, which requires the
EXCESSTAXBENElTSFROMSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESTOBERECOGNIZEDASAREDUCTIONOFTHEINCOMETAXPROVISION WHEREASTHEYPREVIOUSLYWERE
ACCOUNTEDFORASANINCREASETOSHAREHOLDERSEQUITY4HEADOPTIONOF!35.O RESULTEDINAMILLIONDECREASEINOUR
FULLYEARPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESSEE.OTEnh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvINTHEACCOMPANYINGCONSOLIDATED

and approximately 26% selecting subscription-based arrangements. 134 new clients entered into subscription-based software arrangements
in 2015 compared to 138 new clients in 2014.

Subscriptions.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our subscriptions revenue for the years ended December 31:

lNANCIALSTATEMENTS 

Change

Excluding the impact of the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, our income tax provision and effective tax rate in 2016 would have been
($ in thousands)

$49.0 million and 37.9%, respectively.
The effective income tax rates in both 2016 and 2015 also differed from the statutory United States federal income tax rate of 35% due
to state income taxes, the domestic production activities deduction, non-deductible share-based compensation expense, disqualifying

ES
A&T
Total subscriptions revenue

2015

2014

$

$107,090
4,843
$111,933

$ 84,322
3,526
$ 87,848

$22,768
1,317
$24,085

%

27%
37
27%

INCENTIVESTOCKOPTIONDISPOSITIONS ANDNON DEDUCTIBLEBUSINESSEXPENSES7EREALIZEDALOWERDOMESTICPRODUCTIONACTIVITIESDEDUCTIONAS
a result of taxable income limitations and non-deductible transaction costs related to the NWS acquisition negatively impacted our 2015
EFFECTIVETAXRATE)NTHEPASTFEWYEARSARELATIVELYHIGHAMOUNTOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSRELATEDTOSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESHAVERESULTEDINA
REDUCTIONINOURQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTION4HEQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTIONCANBELIMITEDTOACERTAIN
LEVELOFTAXABLEINCOMEONTHETAXRETURN4HEREFORE ANYSIGNIlCANTITEMSTHATREDUCETAXABLEINCOME SUCHASEXCESSTAXBENElTSONSTOCK
OPTIONS CANREDUCETHEAMOUNTOFTHEQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTION7EEXPERIENCEDSIGNIlCANTSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISE
ACTIVITYINANDTHATGENERATEDEXCESSTAXBENElTSOFMILLIONANDMILLION RESPECTIVELY

3UBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESREVENUEINCREASEDCOMPAREDTO% lLINGSERVICESCONTRIBUTEDAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONOF
THESUBSCRIPTIONSREVENUEINCREASEIN-OSTOFTHEE lLINGREVENUEINCREASERELATEDTOSEVERALSTATEWIDECONTRACTS SEVERALOFWHICH
IMPLEMENTEDMANDATORYELECTRONIClLINGNEARTHEENDOFANDTHROUGHOUT.EW3AA3CLIENTSASWELLASEXISTINGCLIENTSWHO
converted to our SaaS model provided the remainder of the subscriptions revenue increase. In 2015, we added 134 new SaaS clients and
EXISTINGCLIENTSELECTEDTOCONVERTTOOUR3AA3MODEL4HEAVERAGECONTRACTSIZESINWEREANDHIGHERTHANFORNEW
clients and clients converting to our SaaS model, respectively.

2015 Compared to 2014
Revenues

Software services.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our software services revenue for the years ended December 31:

Software licenses and royalties.

Change

The following table sets forth a comparison of our software licenses and royalties revenue for the years ended December 31:

($ in thousands)

Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total software licenses and royalties revenue

2015

$54,376
4,632
$59,008

2014

$ 46,047
3,018
$ 49,065

$

$ 8,329
1,614
$ 9,943

%

18%
53
20%

ES
A&T
Total software services revenue

2015

2014

$

$129,068
10,784
$139,852

$104,146
9,675
$113,821

$24,922
1,109
$26,031

%

24%
11
23%

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software services revenue grew 20% compared to the prior year period. This growth is mainly due to
much higher revenue from proprietary software arrangements, as well as additions to our implementation and support staff, which increased
our capacity to deliver backlog.
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Income Tax Provision

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software license revenue increased 15% compared to the prior year. The majority of this growth was

The following table sets forth a comparison of our income tax provision for the years ended December 31:

due to a more active marketplace as the result of improvement in local government economic conditions, as well as our increasingly strong
competitive position, which we attribute in part to our investment in product development in recent years. In addition, add-on sales to our

Change
($ in thousands)

Income tax provision
Effective income tax rate

2016

$19,450
15.0%

2015

$ 43,555
40.2%

existing customer base for courts and justice related solutions that assist and support the transition to a paperless environment increased

$

%

$(24,105)

(55)%

approximately $1.3 million.
Our new client mix in 2015 was approximately 76% selecting perpetual software license arrangements and approximately 24% selecting
subscription-based arrangements compared to a client mix in 2014 of approximately 74% selecting perpetual software license arrangements

The decrease in the income tax provision during 2016 was primarily driven by the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, which requires the
EXCESSTAXBENElTSFROMSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESTOBERECOGNIZEDASAREDUCTIONOFTHEINCOMETAXPROVISION WHEREASTHEYPREVIOUSLYWERE
ACCOUNTEDFORASANINCREASETOSHAREHOLDERSEQUITY4HEADOPTIONOF!35.O RESULTEDINAMILLIONDECREASEINOUR
FULLYEARPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESSEE.OTEnh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvINTHEACCOMPANYINGCONSOLIDATED

and approximately 26% selecting subscription-based arrangements. 134 new clients entered into subscription-based software arrangements
in 2015 compared to 138 new clients in 2014.

Subscriptions.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our subscriptions revenue for the years ended December 31:

lNANCIALSTATEMENTS 

Change

Excluding the impact of the adoption of ASU No. 2016-09, our income tax provision and effective tax rate in 2016 would have been
($ in thousands)

$49.0 million and 37.9%, respectively.
The effective income tax rates in both 2016 and 2015 also differed from the statutory United States federal income tax rate of 35% due
to state income taxes, the domestic production activities deduction, non-deductible share-based compensation expense, disqualifying

ES
A&T
Total subscriptions revenue

2015

2014

$

$107,090
4,843
$111,933

$ 84,322
3,526
$ 87,848

$22,768
1,317
$24,085

%

27%
37
27%

INCENTIVESTOCKOPTIONDISPOSITIONS ANDNON DEDUCTIBLEBUSINESSEXPENSES7EREALIZEDALOWERDOMESTICPRODUCTIONACTIVITIESDEDUCTIONAS
a result of taxable income limitations and non-deductible transaction costs related to the NWS acquisition negatively impacted our 2015
EFFECTIVETAXRATE)NTHEPASTFEWYEARSARELATIVELYHIGHAMOUNTOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSRELATEDTOSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESHAVERESULTEDINA
REDUCTIONINOURQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTION4HEQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTIONCANBELIMITEDTOACERTAIN
LEVELOFTAXABLEINCOMEONTHETAXRETURN4HEREFORE ANYSIGNIlCANTITEMSTHATREDUCETAXABLEINCOME SUCHASEXCESSTAXBENElTSONSTOCK
OPTIONS CANREDUCETHEAMOUNTOFTHEQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTION7EEXPERIENCEDSIGNIlCANTSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISE
ACTIVITYINANDTHATGENERATEDEXCESSTAXBENElTSOFMILLIONANDMILLION RESPECTIVELY

3UBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESREVENUEINCREASEDCOMPAREDTO% lLINGSERVICESCONTRIBUTEDAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONOF
THESUBSCRIPTIONSREVENUEINCREASEIN-OSTOFTHEE lLINGREVENUEINCREASERELATEDTOSEVERALSTATEWIDECONTRACTS SEVERALOFWHICH
IMPLEMENTEDMANDATORYELECTRONIClLINGNEARTHEENDOFANDTHROUGHOUT.EW3AA3CLIENTSASWELLASEXISTINGCLIENTSWHO
converted to our SaaS model provided the remainder of the subscriptions revenue increase. In 2015, we added 134 new SaaS clients and
EXISTINGCLIENTSELECTEDTOCONVERTTOOUR3AA3MODEL4HEAVERAGECONTRACTSIZESINWEREANDHIGHERTHANFORNEW
clients and clients converting to our SaaS model, respectively.

2015 Compared to 2014
Revenues

Software services.
The following table sets forth a comparison of our software services revenue for the years ended December 31:

Software licenses and royalties.

Change

The following table sets forth a comparison of our software licenses and royalties revenue for the years ended December 31:

($ in thousands)

Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total software licenses and royalties revenue

2015

$54,376
4,632
$59,008

2014

$ 46,047
3,018
$ 49,065

$

$ 8,329
1,614
$ 9,943

%

18%
53
20%

ES
A&T
Total software services revenue

2015

2014

$

$129,068
10,784
$139,852

$104,146
9,675
$113,821

$24,922
1,109
$26,031

%

24%
11
23%

Excluding the results of acquisitions, software services revenue grew 20% compared to the prior year period. This growth is mainly due to
much higher revenue from proprietary software arrangements, as well as additions to our implementation and support staff, which increased
our capacity to deliver backlog.
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Maintenance.

The following table sets forth a comparison of gross margin percentage by revenue type for the years ended December 31:

The following table sets forth a comparison of our maintenance revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total maintenance revenue

2015

2014

$

$ 227,586
17,951
$ 245,537

$195,881
16,815
$212,696

$31,705
1,136
$32,841

%

16%
7
15%

Gross margin percentage

2015

2014

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Overall gross margin

89.7%
42.6
36.5
32.5
46.9%

92.3%
43.0
34.5
32.3
47.3%

53

Change

(2.6)%
(0.4)
2.0
0.2
(0.4)%

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software. In 2015, our software licenses, royalties and acquired software gross margin percentage
Excluding the results of acquisitions, maintenance revenue grew 12% compared to the prior year. Maintenance and support revenue
increased mainly due to growth in our installed customer base from new software license sales as well as annual maintenance rate increases.

Excluding the results of NWS, our software license, royalties and acquired software gross margin was 93.6% which increased 1.3% from the
prior year period mainly due to higher revenues from proprietary software arrangements.

Appraisal services.

Software services, maintenance and subscriptions. In 2015, the software services, maintenance and subscriptions gross margin percentage

The following table sets forth a comparison of our appraisal services revenue for the years ended December 31:

declined compared to the prior year mainly due to onboarding costs associated with accelerated hiring to ensure that we are well-positioned

Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total appraisal services revenue

DECLINEDCOMPAREDTOTHEPRIORYEARDUETOMUCHHIGHERAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWARERESULTINGFROMOURACQUISITIONOF.73

2015

$

—
25,065
$25,065

2014

$

—
21,802
$ 21,802

to deliver our current backlog and anticipated new business. Excluding 285 employees added with acquisitions, our implementation and

$

%

$

—
3,263
$ 3,263

—%
15
15%

support staff has grown by 200 employees since December 31, 2014. In addition, in 2015, we incurred $1.4 million more in contract labor
COSTTHANINANEFFORTTOMAINTAINmEXIBILITYTOACCOMMODATEmUCTUATIONSINDEMANDFORPROFESSIONALSERVICES4HEGROSSMARGIN
DECLINEWASSOMEWHATOFFSETBECAUSECOSTSRELATEDTOMAINTENANCEANDVARIOUSOTHERSERVICESSUCHAS3AA3ANDE lLINGTYPICALLYGROWATA
SLOWERRATETHANRELATEDREVENUEDUETOLEVERAGEINTHEUTILIZATIONOFOURSUPPORTANDMAINTENANCESTAFFANDECONOMIESOFSCALE0RICE
increases also resulted in slightly higher rates on certain services.

!PPRAISALSERVICESREVENUEBENElTEDFROMTHEADDITIONOFSEVERALNEWREVALUATIONCONTRACTS INCLUDINGTHE#ITYOF$ETROIT ANDTHECURRENT
appraisal cycle in Indiana, both of which began in 2014. In late 2015, Franklin County, Ohio began a full reappraisal cycle, which also

2% compared to 2014. A high proportion of the costs of appraisal services revenue are variable, as we often hire temporary employees to

contributed to appraisal services revenue.

ASSISTINAPPRAISALPROJECTS WHOSETERMOFEMPLOYMENTGENERALLYENDSWITHTHEPROJECTSCOMPLETION4HEAPPRAISALSERVICESGROSSMARGIN
WASFAVORABLYIMPACTEDBYOPERATIONALEFlCIENCIESASSOCIATEDWITHALARGEREVALUATIONCONTRACTTHATBEGANLATE

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins

Our 2015 blended gross margin declined 0.4% compared to 2014. The gross margin was negatively impacted by increased acquired

The following table sets forth a comparison of the key components of our cost of revenues for the years ended December 31:

SOFTWAREAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEASSOCIATEDWITHTHE.73ACQUISITIONANDEXPENSESASSOCIATEDWITHINCREASEDHIRINGOFIMPLEMENTATIONAND

Change
($ in thousands)

Software licenses and royalties
Acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total cost of revenues

Appraisal services. Appraisal services revenue comprised approximately 4% of total revenue. The appraisal services gross margin increased

development staff in order to expand our capacity to implement our contract backlog.

2015

2014

$

%

$ 1,632
4,440
285,340
15,922
6,501
$ 313,835

$ 1,900
1,858
236,363
14,284
5,325
$ 259,730

$ (268)
2,582
48,977
1,638
1,176
$54,105

(14)%
139
21
11
22
21%

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
The following table sets forth a comparison of our SG&A expenses for the following years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

Selling, general and administrative expenses

2015

2014

$

$ 133,317

$108,260

$25,057

%

23%
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Maintenance.

The following table sets forth a comparison of gross margin percentage by revenue type for the years ended December 31:

The following table sets forth a comparison of our maintenance revenue for the years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total maintenance revenue

2015

2014

$

$ 227,586
17,951
$ 245,537

$195,881
16,815
$212,696

$31,705
1,136
$32,841

%

16%
7
15%

Gross margin percentage

2015

2014

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Overall gross margin

89.7%
42.6
36.5
32.5
46.9%

92.3%
43.0
34.5
32.3
47.3%

53

Change

(2.6)%
(0.4)
2.0
0.2
(0.4)%

Software licenses, royalties and acquired software. In 2015, our software licenses, royalties and acquired software gross margin percentage
Excluding the results of acquisitions, maintenance revenue grew 12% compared to the prior year. Maintenance and support revenue
increased mainly due to growth in our installed customer base from new software license sales as well as annual maintenance rate increases.

Excluding the results of NWS, our software license, royalties and acquired software gross margin was 93.6% which increased 1.3% from the
prior year period mainly due to higher revenues from proprietary software arrangements.

Appraisal services.

Software services, maintenance and subscriptions. In 2015, the software services, maintenance and subscriptions gross margin percentage

The following table sets forth a comparison of our appraisal services revenue for the years ended December 31:

declined compared to the prior year mainly due to onboarding costs associated with accelerated hiring to ensure that we are well-positioned

Change
($ in thousands)

ES
A&T
Total appraisal services revenue

DECLINEDCOMPAREDTOTHEPRIORYEARDUETOMUCHHIGHERAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORACQUIREDSOFTWARERESULTINGFROMOURACQUISITIONOF.73

2015

$

—
25,065
$25,065

2014

$

—
21,802
$ 21,802

to deliver our current backlog and anticipated new business. Excluding 285 employees added with acquisitions, our implementation and

$

%

$

—
3,263
$ 3,263

—%
15
15%

support staff has grown by 200 employees since December 31, 2014. In addition, in 2015, we incurred $1.4 million more in contract labor
COSTTHANINANEFFORTTOMAINTAINmEXIBILITYTOACCOMMODATEmUCTUATIONSINDEMANDFORPROFESSIONALSERVICES4HEGROSSMARGIN
DECLINEWASSOMEWHATOFFSETBECAUSECOSTSRELATEDTOMAINTENANCEANDVARIOUSOTHERSERVICESSUCHAS3AA3ANDE lLINGTYPICALLYGROWATA
SLOWERRATETHANRELATEDREVENUEDUETOLEVERAGEINTHEUTILIZATIONOFOURSUPPORTANDMAINTENANCESTAFFANDECONOMIESOFSCALE0RICE
increases also resulted in slightly higher rates on certain services.

!PPRAISALSERVICESREVENUEBENElTEDFROMTHEADDITIONOFSEVERALNEWREVALUATIONCONTRACTS INCLUDINGTHE#ITYOF$ETROIT ANDTHECURRENT
appraisal cycle in Indiana, both of which began in 2014. In late 2015, Franklin County, Ohio began a full reappraisal cycle, which also

2% compared to 2014. A high proportion of the costs of appraisal services revenue are variable, as we often hire temporary employees to

contributed to appraisal services revenue.

ASSISTINAPPRAISALPROJECTS WHOSETERMOFEMPLOYMENTGENERALLYENDSWITHTHEPROJECTSCOMPLETION4HEAPPRAISALSERVICESGROSSMARGIN
WASFAVORABLYIMPACTEDBYOPERATIONALEFlCIENCIESASSOCIATEDWITHALARGEREVALUATIONCONTRACTTHATBEGANLATE

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margins

Our 2015 blended gross margin declined 0.4% compared to 2014. The gross margin was negatively impacted by increased acquired

The following table sets forth a comparison of the key components of our cost of revenues for the years ended December 31:

SOFTWAREAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEASSOCIATEDWITHTHE.73ACQUISITIONANDEXPENSESASSOCIATEDWITHINCREASEDHIRINGOFIMPLEMENTATIONAND

Change
($ in thousands)

Software licenses and royalties
Acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total cost of revenues

Appraisal services. Appraisal services revenue comprised approximately 4% of total revenue. The appraisal services gross margin increased

development staff in order to expand our capacity to implement our contract backlog.

2015

2014

$

%

$ 1,632
4,440
285,340
15,922
6,501
$ 313,835

$ 1,900
1,858
236,363
14,284
5,325
$ 259,730

$ (268)
2,582
48,977
1,638
1,176
$54,105

(14)%
139
21
11
22
21%

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
The following table sets forth a comparison of our SG&A expenses for the following years ended December 31:
Change
($ in thousands)

Selling, general and administrative expenses

2015

2014

$

$ 133,317

$108,260

$25,057

%

23%
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SG&A as a percentage of revenue was 22.6% in 2015 compared to 22.0% in 2014. In 2015, our SG&A expenses include approximately

Income Tax Provision

MILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHERVARIOUSSERVICESNECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73

The following table sets forth a comparison of our income tax provision for the years ended December 31:

55

acquisition. In addition, our 2015 operating results include $4.0 million of SG&A expenses for NWS from the date of acquisition. The
Change

remaining SG&A expense increase is mainly due to compensation cost related to increased staff levels, higher stock compensation expense
($ in thousands)

and increased commission expense as a result of higher sales. Excluding 140 employees added with acquisitions, we have added
EMPLOYEESMAINLYTOOURSALESANDlNANCETEAMSSINCE$ECEMBER )NADDITION OURSTOCKCOMPENSATIONEXPENSEROSE

2015

$43,555
40.2%

2014

$

$ 35,527
37.6%

$ 8,028

%

$4.2 million, mainly due to increases in our stock price over the last few years.

Income tax provision
Effective income tax rate

23%

Research and Development Expense

The effective income tax rates were different from the statutory United States federal income tax rate of 35% principally due to state income

The following table sets forth a comparison of our research and development expense for the years ended December 31:

TAXES NON DEDUCTIBLESHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSE THEQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTION DISQUALIFYINGINCENTIVESTOCK
OPTIONDISPOSITIONS NON DEDUCTIBLEMEALSANDENTERTAINMENTCOSTSANDNON DEDUCTIBLETRANSACTIONCOSTS!LOWERQUALIlEDMANUFACTURING
Change

($ in thousands)

Research and development expense

2015

2014

$

$29,922

$ 25,743

$ 4,179

activities deduction and non-deductible transaction costs related to the NWS acquisition negatively impacted our 2015 effective tax rate.
%

16%

)NTHEPASTFEWYEARSARELATIVELYHIGHAMOUNTOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSRELATEDTOSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESHAVERESULTEDINAREDUCTIONINOUR
QUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTIONASARESULTOFTAXABLEINCOMELIMITATIONS7EEXPERIENCEDSIGNIlCANTSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISE
ACTIVITYINANDTHATGENERATEDEXCESSTAXBENElTSOFMILLIONANDMILLION RESPECTIVELY

Research and development expense in 2015 includes approximately $1.5 million related to NWS. The remaining increase compared to
WASPRIMARILYDUETOINCREASEDSTAFlNGTOMAINTAINANDENHANCEOURCOMPETITIVEPOSITIONANDANNUALWAGEADJUSTMENTS

Financial Condition and Liquidity
As of December 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of $36.2 million compared to $33.1 million at December 31, 2015. We also

Amortization of Customer and Trade Name Intangibles

had $33.5 million invested in investment grade corporate and municipal bonds as of December 31, 2016. These investments mature

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESETSFORTHACOMPARISONOFAMORTIZATIONOFCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLESFORTHEYEARSENDED$ECEMBER

between 2016 through mid-2018 and we intend to hold these investments until maturity. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on
deposit with several domestic banks and money market funds. As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings

Change
($ in thousands)

2015

2014

$

$ 5,905

$ 4,546

$1,359

%

and two outstanding letters of credit totaling $2.2 million in connection with a client contract and the expansion of our Yarmouth facility.
Both letters of credit guarantee our performance under each contract. We do not believe the letters of credit will be required to be drawn

Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles

30%

)N WECOMPLETEDTWOACQUISITIONSTHATINCREASEDAMORTIZABLECUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLESBYAPPROXIMATELYMILLION
4HISAMOUNTISBEINGAMORTIZEDOVERAWEIGHTEDAVERAGEPERIODOFYEARS7EALSOADDEDAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONTOACQUISITIONRELATED
INTANGIBLESTOREmECTTHEFAIRVALUEOFACQUIREDLEASES WHICHWILLBEAMORTIZEDOVERTHEWEIGHTEDAVERAGELIFEOFYEARS

Change
2014

$

Other income (expense), net

$ 381

$(355)

$736

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESETSFORTHASUMMARYOFCASHmOWSFORTHEYEARSENDED$ECEMBER

#ASHmOWSPROVIDEDUSED BY
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

The following table sets forth a comparison of other income (expense), net for the years ended December 31:

2015

ACCESSTOTHECREDITMARKETSPROVIDEUSWITHSUFlCIENTmEXIBILITYTOMEETOURLONG TERMlNANCIALNEEDS

($ in thousands)

Other

($ in thousands)

upon. Both letters of credit expire in 2017. We believe our revolving line of credit, cash from operating activities, cash on hand and

2016

2015

2014

$ 191,859
(50,720)
(138,075)
$ 3,064

$ 134,327
(398,459)
91,052
$(173,080)

$ 142,839
(11,555)
(3,993)
$ 127,291

%

N/M

.ETCASHPROVIDEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIESCONTINUESTOBEOURPRIMARYSOURCEOFFUNDSTOlNANCEOPERATINGNEEDSANDCAPITALEXPENDITURES
Other potential capital resources include cash on hand, public and private issuances of debt or equity securities, and bank borrowings.

Expenses in 2014 were comprised primarily of non-usage and other fees associated with a revolving debt agreement that terminated in

It is possible that our ability to access the capital and credit markets in the future may be limited by economic conditions or other factors.

!UGUST OFFSETSLIGHTLYBYINTERESTINCOMEFROMINVESTEDCASH)N WEHADSIGNIlCANTLYHIGHERINVESTEDCASHBALANCESTHAN

7ECURRENTLYBELIEVETHATCASHPROVIDEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIES CASHONHANDANDAVAILABLECREDITARESUFlCIENTTOFUNDOURWORKINGCAPITAL

until we completed the NWS acquisition on November 16, 2015.

requirements, capital expenditures, income tax obligations, and share repurchases for at least the next twelve months.
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SG&A as a percentage of revenue was 22.6% in 2015 compared to 22.0% in 2014. In 2015, our SG&A expenses include approximately

Income Tax Provision

MILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHERVARIOUSSERVICESNECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73

The following table sets forth a comparison of our income tax provision for the years ended December 31:

55

acquisition. In addition, our 2015 operating results include $4.0 million of SG&A expenses for NWS from the date of acquisition. The
Change

remaining SG&A expense increase is mainly due to compensation cost related to increased staff levels, higher stock compensation expense
($ in thousands)

and increased commission expense as a result of higher sales. Excluding 140 employees added with acquisitions, we have added
EMPLOYEESMAINLYTOOURSALESANDlNANCETEAMSSINCE$ECEMBER )NADDITION OURSTOCKCOMPENSATIONEXPENSEROSE

2015

$43,555
40.2%

2014

$

$ 35,527
37.6%

$ 8,028

%

$4.2 million, mainly due to increases in our stock price over the last few years.

Income tax provision
Effective income tax rate

23%

Research and Development Expense

The effective income tax rates were different from the statutory United States federal income tax rate of 35% principally due to state income

The following table sets forth a comparison of our research and development expense for the years ended December 31:

TAXES NON DEDUCTIBLESHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSE THEQUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTION DISQUALIFYINGINCENTIVESTOCK
OPTIONDISPOSITIONS NON DEDUCTIBLEMEALSANDENTERTAINMENTCOSTSANDNON DEDUCTIBLETRANSACTIONCOSTS!LOWERQUALIlEDMANUFACTURING
Change

($ in thousands)

Research and development expense

2015

2014

$

$29,922

$ 25,743

$ 4,179

activities deduction and non-deductible transaction costs related to the NWS acquisition negatively impacted our 2015 effective tax rate.
%

16%

)NTHEPASTFEWYEARSARELATIVELYHIGHAMOUNTOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSRELATEDTOSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESHAVERESULTEDINAREDUCTIONINOUR
QUALIlEDMANUFACTURINGACTIVITIESDEDUCTIONASARESULTOFTAXABLEINCOMELIMITATIONS7EEXPERIENCEDSIGNIlCANTSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISE
ACTIVITYINANDTHATGENERATEDEXCESSTAXBENElTSOFMILLIONANDMILLION RESPECTIVELY

Research and development expense in 2015 includes approximately $1.5 million related to NWS. The remaining increase compared to
WASPRIMARILYDUETOINCREASEDSTAFlNGTOMAINTAINANDENHANCEOURCOMPETITIVEPOSITIONANDANNUALWAGEADJUSTMENTS

Financial Condition and Liquidity
As of December 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of $36.2 million compared to $33.1 million at December 31, 2015. We also

Amortization of Customer and Trade Name Intangibles

had $33.5 million invested in investment grade corporate and municipal bonds as of December 31, 2016. These investments mature

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESETSFORTHACOMPARISONOFAMORTIZATIONOFCUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLESFORTHEYEARSENDED$ECEMBER

between 2016 through mid-2018 and we intend to hold these investments until maturity. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on
deposit with several domestic banks and money market funds. As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings

Change
($ in thousands)

2015

2014

$

$ 5,905

$ 4,546

$1,359

%

and two outstanding letters of credit totaling $2.2 million in connection with a client contract and the expansion of our Yarmouth facility.
Both letters of credit guarantee our performance under each contract. We do not believe the letters of credit will be required to be drawn

Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles

30%

)N WECOMPLETEDTWOACQUISITIONSTHATINCREASEDAMORTIZABLECUSTOMERANDTRADENAMEINTANGIBLESBYAPPROXIMATELYMILLION
4HISAMOUNTISBEINGAMORTIZEDOVERAWEIGHTEDAVERAGEPERIODOFYEARS7EALSOADDEDAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONTOACQUISITIONRELATED
INTANGIBLESTOREmECTTHEFAIRVALUEOFACQUIREDLEASES WHICHWILLBEAMORTIZEDOVERTHEWEIGHTEDAVERAGELIFEOFYEARS

Change
2014

$

Other income (expense), net

$ 381

$(355)

$736

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESETSFORTHASUMMARYOFCASHmOWSFORTHEYEARSENDED$ECEMBER

#ASHmOWSPROVIDEDUSED BY
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

The following table sets forth a comparison of other income (expense), net for the years ended December 31:

2015

ACCESSTOTHECREDITMARKETSPROVIDEUSWITHSUFlCIENTmEXIBILITYTOMEETOURLONG TERMlNANCIALNEEDS

($ in thousands)

Other

($ in thousands)

upon. Both letters of credit expire in 2017. We believe our revolving line of credit, cash from operating activities, cash on hand and

2016

2015

2014

$ 191,859
(50,720)
(138,075)
$ 3,064

$ 134,327
(398,459)
91,052
$(173,080)

$ 142,839
(11,555)
(3,993)
$ 127,291

%

N/M

.ETCASHPROVIDEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIESCONTINUESTOBEOURPRIMARYSOURCEOFFUNDSTOlNANCEOPERATINGNEEDSANDCAPITALEXPENDITURES
Other potential capital resources include cash on hand, public and private issuances of debt or equity securities, and bank borrowings.

Expenses in 2014 were comprised primarily of non-usage and other fees associated with a revolving debt agreement that terminated in

It is possible that our ability to access the capital and credit markets in the future may be limited by economic conditions or other factors.

!UGUST OFFSETSLIGHTLYBYINTERESTINCOMEFROMINVESTEDCASH)N WEHADSIGNIlCANTLYHIGHERINVESTEDCASHBALANCESTHAN

7ECURRENTLYBELIEVETHATCASHPROVIDEDBYOPERATINGACTIVITIES CASHONHANDANDAVAILABLECREDITARESUFlCIENTTOFUNDOURWORKINGCAPITAL

until we completed the NWS acquisition on November 16, 2015.

requirements, capital expenditures, income tax obligations, and share repurchases for at least the next twelve months.
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In 2016, operating activities provided cash of $191.9 million. Operating activities that provided cash were primarily comprised of net income

/N-AY  OURBOARDOFDIRECTORSAUTHORIZEDTHEREPURCHASEOFANADDITIONALMILLIONSHARESOF4YLERCOMMONSTOCK4HE

OFMILLION NON CASHDEPRECIATIONANDAMORTIZATIONCHARGESOFMILLIONANDNON CASHSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSEOF

repurchase program, which was approved by our board of directors, was announced in October 2002, and was amended at various times

$29.7 million. Other sources of operating cash were higher deferred revenue balances due to growth in our installed software maintenance

FROMTHROUGH!SOF$ECEMBER  WEHADREMAININGAUTHORIZATIONTOREPURCHASEUPTOMILLIONADDITIONALSHARESOF

customer base and growth in subscription-based arrangements and timing of payments for wages and commissions. Somewhat offsetting

OURCOMMONSTOCK/URSHAREREPURCHASEPROGRAMALLOWSUSTOREPURCHASESHARESATOURDISCRETION-ARKETCONDITIONSINmUENCETHETIMING

these increases were annual maintenance and subscription billings.

of the buybacks and the number of shares repurchased, as well as the volume of employee stock option exercises. Share repurchases are

In general, changes in the balance of deferred revenue are cyclical and primarily driven by the timing of our maintenance renewal billings.
Our renewal dates occur throughout the year but our largest renewal cycles occur in the second and fourth quarters.
Days sales outstanding in accounts receivable were 93 days at December 31, 2016, compared to 100 days at December 31, 2015. Our
MAINTENANCEBILLINGCYCLETYPICALLYPEAKSATITSHIGHESTLEVELIN*UNEANDSECONDHIGHESTLEVELIN$ECEMBEROFEACHYEARANDISFOLLOWEDBY
collections in the subsequent quarter. DSO is calculated based on quarter-end accounts receivable (excluding long-term receivables, but
INCLUDINGUNBILLEDRECEIVABLES DIVIDEDBYTHEQUOTIENTOFANNUALIZEDQUARTERLYREVENUESDIVIDEDBYDAYS
Investing activities used cash of $50.7 million in 2016 compared to $398.5 million in 2015. We invested $20.3 million in investment grade
corporate and municipal bonds with maturity dates ranging from 2016 through mid-2018. Approximately $37.7 million was invested
INPROPERTYANDEQUIPMENT7EPURCHASEDANOFlCEBUILDINGIN&ALMOUTH -AINE THATWASPREVIOUSLYLEASEDFROMANENTITYOWNEDBYAN
EXECUTIVESFATHERANDBROTHER FORAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONANDPAIDMILLIONFORCONSTRUCTIONTOEXPANDABUILDINGIN9ARMOUTH 
-AINE7EPLANTOSPENDAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONININCONNECTIONWITHTHECOMPLETIONOFTHISOFlCEEXPANSION4HEREMAINING
ADDITIONSWEREFORCOMPUTEREQUIPMENT FURNITUREANDlXTURESINSUPPORTOFINTERNALGROWTH PARTICULARLYWITHRESPECTTOGROWTHINOUR
cloud-based offerings. We also made a small acquisition for approximately $7.4 million and paid $2.0 million related to the working capital
holdback in connection with the NWS acquisition. These expenditures were funded from cash generated from operations, cash on hand
and bank borrowings.
In 2015, we completed the acquisition of NWS for the purchase price of $337.5 million in cash, of which $4.0 million was accrued at
$ECEMBER  ANDMILLIONSHARESOF4YLERCOMMONSTOCKVALUEDATMILLION!LSOWECOMPLETEDTHEACQUISITIONOF"RAZOS

generally funded using our existing cash balances and borrowings under our credit facility and may occur through open market purchases
and transactions structured through investment banking institutions, privately negotiated transactions and/or other mechanisms. There is
NOEXPIRATIONDATESPECIlEDFORTHEAUTHORIZATIONANDWEINTENDTOREPURCHASESTOCKUNDERTHEPLANFROMTIMETOTIME
Subsequent to December 31, 2016 and through February 21, 2017, we purchased approximately 42,000 shares of our common stock for
an aggregate cash purchase price of $6.2 million.
On November 16, 2015, we entered into a $300.0 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) with the various lenders party thereto
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. The Credit Facility provides for a revolving credit line of up to
$300.0 million, including a $10.0 million sublimit for letters of credit. The Credit Facility matures on November 16, 2020. Borrowings
under the Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital requirements, acquisitions and share
REPURCHASES"ORROWINGSUNDERTHE#REDIT&ACILITYBEARINTERESTATARATEOFEITHER 7ELLS&ARGO"ANKSPRIMERATESUBJECTTOCERTAIN
higher rate determinations) plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to
2.00%. As of December 31, 2016, our interest rate was 1.96%. The Credit Facility is secured by substantially all of our assets. The Credit
&ACILITYREQUIRESUSTOMAINTAINCERTAINlNANCIALRATIOSANDOTHERlNANCIALCONDITIONSANDPROHIBITSUSFROMMAKINGCERTAININVESTMENTS 
advances, cash dividends or loans, and limits incurrence of additional indebtedness and liens. As of December 31, 2016, we were in
compliance with those covenants.
As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings and unused borrowing capacity of $287.8 million under the
Credit Facility.

Technology Corporation for the purchase price, net of cash acquired and including debt assumed, of $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares

We paid income taxes, net of refunds received, of $30.2 million in 2016, $27.3 million in 2015, and $10.2 million in 2014. In 2016, we

OF4YLERCOMMONSTOCKVALUEDATMILLION/N*ANUARY  WEMADEAMILLIONINVESTMENTINCONVERTIBLEPREFERREDSTOCK

EXPERIENCEDSIGNIlCANTSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISEACTIVITYTHATGENERATEDNETTAXBENElTSOFMILLIONANDREDUCEDTAXPAYMENTSACCORDINGLY

REPRESENTINGAINTERESTIN2ECORD(OLDINGS0TY,IMITED7EALSOINVESTEDMILLIONININVESTMENTGRADECORPORATEANDMUNICIPAL

)NAND EXCESSTAXBENElTSWEREMILLIONANDMILLION RESPECTIVELY

BONDS4HEREMAININGUSEOFCASHWASFORCAPITALEXPENDITURESRELATEDTOCOMPUTEREQUIPMENT FURNITUREANDlXTURESINSUPPORTOFINTERNAL
growth, particularly with respect to growth in our cloud-based offerings.

Excluding acquisitions, we anticipate that 2017 capital spending will be between $52.0 million and $54.0 million, including approximately
$24.0 million related to real estate. We expect the majority of the other capital spending will consist of computer equipment and software for

&INANCINGACTIVITIESUSEDCASHOFMILLIONINCOMPAREDTOCASHPROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIESOFMILLIONIN

INFRASTRUCTUREREPLACEMENTSANDEXPANSION7ECURRENTLYDONOTEXPECTTOCAPITALIZESIGNIlCANTAMOUNTSRELATEDTOSOFTWAREDEVELOPMENT

Financing activities in 2016 were comprised of $56.0 million net payments on our revolving line of credit offset somewhat by collections of

IN BUTTHEACTUALAMOUNTANDTIMINGOFTHOSECOSTS ANDWHETHERTHEYARECAPITALIZEDOREXPENSEDMAYRESULTINADDITIONALCAPITALIZED

$29.8 million from stock option exercises and employee stock purchase plan activity. We also purchased approximately 882,000 shares

SOFTWAREDEVELOPMENT#APITALSPENDINGISEXPECTEDTOBEFUNDEDFROMEXISTINGCASHBALANCES CASHmOWSFROMOPERATIONSANDBORROWINGS

of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $112.7 million, of which $860,000 was accrued at December 31, 2016.

under our revolving line of credit.

Financing activities in 2015 were comprised of net borrowings of $66.0 million and collections of $27.8 million from stock option exercises

From time to time we engage in discussions with potential acquisition candidates. In order to pursue such opportunities, which could

and employee stock purchase plan activity. We purchased approximately 5,400 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase

REQUIRESIGNIlCANTCOMMITMENTSOFCAPITAL WEMAYBEREQUIREDTOINCURDEBTORTOISSUEADDITIONALPOTENTIALLYDILUTIVESECURITIESINTHEFUTURE

PRICEOF INANDPAIDMILLIONINDEBTISSUANCECOSTS#ASHUSEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIESINWERECOMPRISEDOFPURCHASES

.OASSURANCECANBEGIVENASTOOURFUTUREACQUISITIONOPPORTUNITIESANDHOWSUCHOPPORTUNITIESWILLBElNANCED

of 294,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $22.8 million offset substantially by collections of $18.8 million
from stock option exercises and contributions from the employee stock purchase plan.

7ELEASEOFlCEFACILITIES ASWELLASTRANSPORTATION COMPUTERANDOTHEREQUIPMENTUSEDINOUROPERATIONSUNDERNON CANCELABLEOPERATING
lease agreements expiring at various dates through 2023. Most leases contain renewal options and some contain purchase options.
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In 2016, operating activities provided cash of $191.9 million. Operating activities that provided cash were primarily comprised of net income

/N-AY  OURBOARDOFDIRECTORSAUTHORIZEDTHEREPURCHASEOFANADDITIONALMILLIONSHARESOF4YLERCOMMONSTOCK4HE

OFMILLION NON CASHDEPRECIATIONANDAMORTIZATIONCHARGESOFMILLIONANDNON CASHSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSEOF

repurchase program, which was approved by our board of directors, was announced in October 2002, and was amended at various times

$29.7 million. Other sources of operating cash were higher deferred revenue balances due to growth in our installed software maintenance

FROMTHROUGH!SOF$ECEMBER  WEHADREMAININGAUTHORIZATIONTOREPURCHASEUPTOMILLIONADDITIONALSHARESOF

customer base and growth in subscription-based arrangements and timing of payments for wages and commissions. Somewhat offsetting

OURCOMMONSTOCK/URSHAREREPURCHASEPROGRAMALLOWSUSTOREPURCHASESHARESATOURDISCRETION-ARKETCONDITIONSINmUENCETHETIMING

these increases were annual maintenance and subscription billings.

of the buybacks and the number of shares repurchased, as well as the volume of employee stock option exercises. Share repurchases are

In general, changes in the balance of deferred revenue are cyclical and primarily driven by the timing of our maintenance renewal billings.
Our renewal dates occur throughout the year but our largest renewal cycles occur in the second and fourth quarters.
Days sales outstanding in accounts receivable were 93 days at December 31, 2016, compared to 100 days at December 31, 2015. Our
MAINTENANCEBILLINGCYCLETYPICALLYPEAKSATITSHIGHESTLEVELIN*UNEANDSECONDHIGHESTLEVELIN$ECEMBEROFEACHYEARANDISFOLLOWEDBY
collections in the subsequent quarter. DSO is calculated based on quarter-end accounts receivable (excluding long-term receivables, but
INCLUDINGUNBILLEDRECEIVABLES DIVIDEDBYTHEQUOTIENTOFANNUALIZEDQUARTERLYREVENUESDIVIDEDBYDAYS
Investing activities used cash of $50.7 million in 2016 compared to $398.5 million in 2015. We invested $20.3 million in investment grade
corporate and municipal bonds with maturity dates ranging from 2016 through mid-2018. Approximately $37.7 million was invested
INPROPERTYANDEQUIPMENT7EPURCHASEDANOFlCEBUILDINGIN&ALMOUTH -AINE THATWASPREVIOUSLYLEASEDFROMANENTITYOWNEDBYAN
EXECUTIVESFATHERANDBROTHER FORAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONANDPAIDMILLIONFORCONSTRUCTIONTOEXPANDABUILDINGIN9ARMOUTH 
-AINE7EPLANTOSPENDAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONININCONNECTIONWITHTHECOMPLETIONOFTHISOFlCEEXPANSION4HEREMAINING
ADDITIONSWEREFORCOMPUTEREQUIPMENT FURNITUREANDlXTURESINSUPPORTOFINTERNALGROWTH PARTICULARLYWITHRESPECTTOGROWTHINOUR
cloud-based offerings. We also made a small acquisition for approximately $7.4 million and paid $2.0 million related to the working capital
holdback in connection with the NWS acquisition. These expenditures were funded from cash generated from operations, cash on hand
and bank borrowings.
In 2015, we completed the acquisition of NWS for the purchase price of $337.5 million in cash, of which $4.0 million was accrued at
$ECEMBER  ANDMILLIONSHARESOF4YLERCOMMONSTOCKVALUEDATMILLION!LSOWECOMPLETEDTHEACQUISITIONOF"RAZOS

generally funded using our existing cash balances and borrowings under our credit facility and may occur through open market purchases
and transactions structured through investment banking institutions, privately negotiated transactions and/or other mechanisms. There is
NOEXPIRATIONDATESPECIlEDFORTHEAUTHORIZATIONANDWEINTENDTOREPURCHASESTOCKUNDERTHEPLANFROMTIMETOTIME
Subsequent to December 31, 2016 and through February 21, 2017, we purchased approximately 42,000 shares of our common stock for
an aggregate cash purchase price of $6.2 million.
On November 16, 2015, we entered into a $300.0 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) with the various lenders party thereto
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. The Credit Facility provides for a revolving credit line of up to
$300.0 million, including a $10.0 million sublimit for letters of credit. The Credit Facility matures on November 16, 2020. Borrowings
under the Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital requirements, acquisitions and share
REPURCHASES"ORROWINGSUNDERTHE#REDIT&ACILITYBEARINTERESTATARATEOFEITHER 7ELLS&ARGO"ANKSPRIMERATESUBJECTTOCERTAIN
higher rate determinations) plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to
2.00%. As of December 31, 2016, our interest rate was 1.96%. The Credit Facility is secured by substantially all of our assets. The Credit
&ACILITYREQUIRESUSTOMAINTAINCERTAINlNANCIALRATIOSANDOTHERlNANCIALCONDITIONSANDPROHIBITSUSFROMMAKINGCERTAININVESTMENTS 
advances, cash dividends or loans, and limits incurrence of additional indebtedness and liens. As of December 31, 2016, we were in
compliance with those covenants.
As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings and unused borrowing capacity of $287.8 million under the
Credit Facility.

Technology Corporation for the purchase price, net of cash acquired and including debt assumed, of $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares

We paid income taxes, net of refunds received, of $30.2 million in 2016, $27.3 million in 2015, and $10.2 million in 2014. In 2016, we

OF4YLERCOMMONSTOCKVALUEDATMILLION/N*ANUARY  WEMADEAMILLIONINVESTMENTINCONVERTIBLEPREFERREDSTOCK

EXPERIENCEDSIGNIlCANTSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISEACTIVITYTHATGENERATEDNETTAXBENElTSOFMILLIONANDREDUCEDTAXPAYMENTSACCORDINGLY

REPRESENTINGAINTERESTIN2ECORD(OLDINGS0TY,IMITED7EALSOINVESTEDMILLIONININVESTMENTGRADECORPORATEANDMUNICIPAL

)NAND EXCESSTAXBENElTSWEREMILLIONANDMILLION RESPECTIVELY

BONDS4HEREMAININGUSEOFCASHWASFORCAPITALEXPENDITURESRELATEDTOCOMPUTEREQUIPMENT FURNITUREANDlXTURESINSUPPORTOFINTERNAL
growth, particularly with respect to growth in our cloud-based offerings.

Excluding acquisitions, we anticipate that 2017 capital spending will be between $52.0 million and $54.0 million, including approximately
$24.0 million related to real estate. We expect the majority of the other capital spending will consist of computer equipment and software for

&INANCINGACTIVITIESUSEDCASHOFMILLIONINCOMPAREDTOCASHPROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIESOFMILLIONIN

INFRASTRUCTUREREPLACEMENTSANDEXPANSION7ECURRENTLYDONOTEXPECTTOCAPITALIZESIGNIlCANTAMOUNTSRELATEDTOSOFTWAREDEVELOPMENT

Financing activities in 2016 were comprised of $56.0 million net payments on our revolving line of credit offset somewhat by collections of

IN BUTTHEACTUALAMOUNTANDTIMINGOFTHOSECOSTS ANDWHETHERTHEYARECAPITALIZEDOREXPENSEDMAYRESULTINADDITIONALCAPITALIZED

$29.8 million from stock option exercises and employee stock purchase plan activity. We also purchased approximately 882,000 shares

SOFTWAREDEVELOPMENT#APITALSPENDINGISEXPECTEDTOBEFUNDEDFROMEXISTINGCASHBALANCES CASHmOWSFROMOPERATIONSANDBORROWINGS

of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $112.7 million, of which $860,000 was accrued at December 31, 2016.

under our revolving line of credit.

Financing activities in 2015 were comprised of net borrowings of $66.0 million and collections of $27.8 million from stock option exercises

From time to time we engage in discussions with potential acquisition candidates. In order to pursue such opportunities, which could

and employee stock purchase plan activity. We purchased approximately 5,400 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase

REQUIRESIGNIlCANTCOMMITMENTSOFCAPITAL WEMAYBEREQUIREDTOINCURDEBTORTOISSUEADDITIONALPOTENTIALLYDILUTIVESECURITIESINTHEFUTURE

PRICEOF INANDPAIDMILLIONINDEBTISSUANCECOSTS#ASHUSEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIESINWERECOMPRISEDOFPURCHASES

.OASSURANCECANBEGIVENASTOOURFUTUREACQUISITIONOPPORTUNITIESANDHOWSUCHOPPORTUNITIESWILLBElNANCED

of 294,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $22.8 million offset substantially by collections of $18.8 million
from stock option exercises and contributions from the employee stock purchase plan.

7ELEASEOFlCEFACILITIES ASWELLASTRANSPORTATION COMPUTERANDOTHEREQUIPMENTUSEDINOUROPERATIONSUNDERNON CANCELABLEOPERATING
lease agreements expiring at various dates through 2023. Most leases contain renewal options and some contain purchase options.
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Controls and Procedures

3UMMARIZEDINTHETABLEBELOWAREOUROBLIGATIONSTOMAKEFUTUREPAYMENTSUNDEROUR#REDIT&ACILITYANDLEASEOBLIGATIONSAT$ECEMBER 

Controls And Procedures

2016 (in thousands):

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures –7EMAINTAINDISCLOSURECONTROLSANDPROCEDURESASDElNEDIN2ULEA E OFTHE
2017

Revolving line of credit
Lease obligations
Total future payment obligations

$

—
5,177
$5,177

2018

$

—
4,221
$4,221

2019

2020

—
3,556
$ 3,556

$ 10,000
3,273
$ 13,273

$

2021

$

—
2,059
$ 2,059

Thereafter

$—
601
$ 601

Total

$ 10,000
18,887
$ 28,887

Securities Exchange Act) designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we
lLEORSUBMITUNDERTHE%XCHANGE!CTISRECORDED PROCESSED SUMMARIZEDANDREPORTEDWITHINTHETIMEPERIODSSPECIlEDINTHE3%#SRULES
and forms. These include controls and procedures designed to ensure that this information is accumulated and communicated to our
MANAGEMENT INCLUDINGOURCHIEFEXECUTIVEOFlCERANDCHIEFlNANCIALOFlCER ASAPPROPRIATETOALLOWTIMELYDECISIONSREGARDINGREQUIRED
DISCLOSURES-ANAGEMENT WITHTHEPARTICIPATIONOFTHECHIEFEXECUTIVEOFlCERANDCHIEFlNANCIALOFlCER EVALUATEDTHEEFFECTIVENESSOF

As of December 31, 2016, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, guarantees to third-parties or material purchase

OURDISCLOSURECONTROLSANDPROCEDURESASOF$ECEMBER "ASEDONTHISEVALUATION THECHIEFEXECUTIVEOFlCERANDCHIEFlNANCIAL

commitments, except for the operating lease commitments listed above.

OFlCERHAVECONCLUDEDTHATOURDISCLOSURECONTROLSANDPROCEDURESWEREEFFECTIVEASOF$ECEMBER 
-ANAGEMENTS2EPORTON)NTERNAL#ONTROL/VER&INANCIAL2EPORTINGn4YLERSMANAGEMENTISRESPONSIBLEFORESTABLISHINGANDMAINTAINING

Capitalization

EFFECTIVEINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASDElNEDIN3ECURITIES%XCHANGE!CT2ULEA F 4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIAL

!T$ECEMBER  OURCAPITALIZATIONCONSISTEDOFMILLIONOFOUTSTANDINGBORROWINGSANDMILLIONOFSHAREHOLDERSEQUITY

REPORTINGISDESIGNEDTOPROVIDEREASONABLEASSURANCETO4YLERSMANAGEMENTANDBOARDOFDIRECTORSREGARDINGTHEPREPARATIONANDFAIR
PRESENTATIONOFPUBLISHEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

"ECAUSEOFITSINHERENTLIMITATIONS INTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGMAYNOTPREVENTORDETECTMISSTATEMENTS4HEREFORE EVENTHOSE

-ARKETRISKREPRESENTSTHERISKOFLOSSTHATMAYAFFECTUSDUETOADVERSECHANGESINlNANCIALMARKETPRICESANDINTERESTRATES

SYSTEMSDETERMINEDTOBEEFFECTIVECANPROVIDEONLYREASONABLEASSURANCEWITHRESPECTTOlNANCIALSTATEMENTPREPARATIONANDPRESENTATION

As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. Loans under the Credit Facility bear

-ANAGEMENTASSESSEDTHEEFFECTIVENESSOF4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF$ECEMBER )NMAKINGTHIS

INTEREST AT4YLERSOPTION ATAPERANNUMRATEOFEITHER THE7ELLS&ARGO"ANKPRIMERATESUBJECTTOCERTAINHIGHERRATEDETERMINATIONS 

ASSESSMENT MANAGEMENTUSEDTHECRITERIASETFORTHBYTHE#OMMITTEEOF3PONSORING/RGANIZATIONSOFTHE4READWAY#OMMISSION

plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180-day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%.

FRAMEWORK THE#/3/CRITERIA "ASEDONOURASSESSMENT WECONCLUDEDTHAT ASOF$ECEMBER  4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVER

In 2016, our effective average interest rate for borrowings was 1.79%. As of December 31, 2016 our interest rate was 1.96%. The Credit
Facility is secured by substantially all of our assets.
Assuming borrowings of $10.0 million, a hypothetical 10% increase in our interest rate at December 31, 2016 for a one-year period would
result in approximately $19,600 of additional interest rate expense.

lNANCIALREPORTINGWASEFFECTIVEBASEDONTHOSECRITERIA
4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF$ECEMBER HASBEENAUDITEDBY%RNST9OUNG,,0 THEINDEPENDENTREGISTERED
PUBLICACCOUNTINGlRMWHOALSOAUDITED4YLERSlNANCIALSTATEMENTS%RNST9OUNGSATTESTATIONREPORTON4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVER
lNANCIALREPORTINGAPPEARSONPAGEHEREOF
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting – During the quarter ended December 31, 2016, there were no changes in our internal
CONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTING ASDElNEDIN3ECURITIES%XCHANGE!CT2ULEA F THATMATERIALLYAFFECTED ORAREREASONABLYLIKELYTO
MATERIALLYAFFECT OURINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTING
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Controls and Procedures

3UMMARIZEDINTHETABLEBELOWAREOUROBLIGATIONSTOMAKEFUTUREPAYMENTSUNDEROUR#REDIT&ACILITYANDLEASEOBLIGATIONSAT$ECEMBER 

Controls And Procedures

2016 (in thousands):

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures –7EMAINTAINDISCLOSURECONTROLSANDPROCEDURESASDElNEDIN2ULEA E OFTHE
2017

Revolving line of credit
Lease obligations
Total future payment obligations

$

—
5,177
$5,177

2018

$

—
4,221
$4,221

2019

2020

—
3,556
$ 3,556

$ 10,000
3,273
$ 13,273

$

2021

$

—
2,059
$ 2,059

Thereafter

$—
601
$ 601

Total

$ 10,000
18,887
$ 28,887

Securities Exchange Act) designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we
lLEORSUBMITUNDERTHE%XCHANGE!CTISRECORDED PROCESSED SUMMARIZEDANDREPORTEDWITHINTHETIMEPERIODSSPECIlEDINTHE3%#SRULES
and forms. These include controls and procedures designed to ensure that this information is accumulated and communicated to our
MANAGEMENT INCLUDINGOURCHIEFEXECUTIVEOFlCERANDCHIEFlNANCIALOFlCER ASAPPROPRIATETOALLOWTIMELYDECISIONSREGARDINGREQUIRED
DISCLOSURES-ANAGEMENT WITHTHEPARTICIPATIONOFTHECHIEFEXECUTIVEOFlCERANDCHIEFlNANCIALOFlCER EVALUATEDTHEEFFECTIVENESSOF

As of December 31, 2016, we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, guarantees to third-parties or material purchase

OURDISCLOSURECONTROLSANDPROCEDURESASOF$ECEMBER "ASEDONTHISEVALUATION THECHIEFEXECUTIVEOFlCERANDCHIEFlNANCIAL

commitments, except for the operating lease commitments listed above.

OFlCERHAVECONCLUDEDTHATOURDISCLOSURECONTROLSANDPROCEDURESWEREEFFECTIVEASOF$ECEMBER 
-ANAGEMENTS2EPORTON)NTERNAL#ONTROL/VER&INANCIAL2EPORTINGn4YLERSMANAGEMENTISRESPONSIBLEFORESTABLISHINGANDMAINTAINING

Capitalization

EFFECTIVEINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASDElNEDIN3ECURITIES%XCHANGE!CT2ULEA F 4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIAL

!T$ECEMBER  OURCAPITALIZATIONCONSISTEDOFMILLIONOFOUTSTANDINGBORROWINGSANDMILLIONOFSHAREHOLDERSEQUITY

REPORTINGISDESIGNEDTOPROVIDEREASONABLEASSURANCETO4YLERSMANAGEMENTANDBOARDOFDIRECTORSREGARDINGTHEPREPARATIONANDFAIR
PRESENTATIONOFPUBLISHEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

"ECAUSEOFITSINHERENTLIMITATIONS INTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGMAYNOTPREVENTORDETECTMISSTATEMENTS4HEREFORE EVENTHOSE

-ARKETRISKREPRESENTSTHERISKOFLOSSTHATMAYAFFECTUSDUETOADVERSECHANGESINlNANCIALMARKETPRICESANDINTERESTRATES

SYSTEMSDETERMINEDTOBEEFFECTIVECANPROVIDEONLYREASONABLEASSURANCEWITHRESPECTTOlNANCIALSTATEMENTPREPARATIONANDPRESENTATION

As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facility. Loans under the Credit Facility bear

-ANAGEMENTASSESSEDTHEEFFECTIVENESSOF4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF$ECEMBER )NMAKINGTHIS

INTEREST AT4YLERSOPTION ATAPERANNUMRATEOFEITHER THE7ELLS&ARGO"ANKPRIMERATESUBJECTTOCERTAINHIGHERRATEDETERMINATIONS 

ASSESSMENT MANAGEMENTUSEDTHECRITERIASETFORTHBYTHE#OMMITTEEOF3PONSORING/RGANIZATIONSOFTHE4READWAY#OMMISSION

plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180-day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%.

FRAMEWORK THE#/3/CRITERIA "ASEDONOURASSESSMENT WECONCLUDEDTHAT ASOF$ECEMBER  4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVER

In 2016, our effective average interest rate for borrowings was 1.79%. As of December 31, 2016 our interest rate was 1.96%. The Credit
Facility is secured by substantially all of our assets.
Assuming borrowings of $10.0 million, a hypothetical 10% increase in our interest rate at December 31, 2016 for a one-year period would
result in approximately $19,600 of additional interest rate expense.

lNANCIALREPORTINGWASEFFECTIVEBASEDONTHOSECRITERIA
4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF$ECEMBER HASBEENAUDITEDBY%RNST9OUNG,,0 THEINDEPENDENTREGISTERED
PUBLICACCOUNTINGlRMWHOALSOAUDITED4YLERSlNANCIALSTATEMENTS%RNST9OUNGSATTESTATIONREPORTON4YLERSINTERNALCONTROLOVER
lNANCIALREPORTINGAPPEARSONPAGEHEREOF
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting – During the quarter ended December 31, 2016, there were no changes in our internal
CONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTING ASDElNEDIN3ECURITIES%XCHANGE!CT2ULEA F THATMATERIALLYAFFECTED ORAREREASONABLYLIKELYTO
MATERIALLYAFFECT OURINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTING
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7EHAVEAUDITED4YLER4ECHNOLOGIES )NCSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF$ECEMBER  BASEDONCRITERIAESTABLISHED

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tyler Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the

IN)NTERNAL#ONTROLn)NTEGRATED&RAMEWORKISSUEDBYTHE#OMMITTEEOF3PONSORING/RGANIZATIONSOFTHE4READWAY#OMMISSION

RELATEDCONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTSOFCOMPREHENSIVEINCOME SHAREHOLDERSEQUITY ANDCASHmOWSFOREACHOFTHETHREEYEARSINTHEPERIOD

FRAMEWORK THE#/3/CRITERIA 4YLER4ECHNOLOGIES )NCSMANAGEMENTISRESPONSIBLEFORMAINTAININGEFFECTIVEINTERNALCONTROLOVER

ENDED$ECEMBER 4HESElNANCIALSTATEMENTSARETHERESPONSIBILITYOFTHE#OMPANYSMANAGEMENT/URRESPONSIBILITYISTOEXPRESS

lNANCIALREPORTING ANDFORITSASSESSMENTOFTHEEFFECTIVENESSOFINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGINCLUDEDINTHEACCOMPANYING

ANOPINIONONTHESElNANCIALSTATEMENTSBASEDONOURAUDITS

h-ANAGEMENTS2EPORTON)NTERNAL#ONTROL/VER&INANCIAL2EPORTINGv/URRESPONSIBILITYISTOEXPRESSANOPINIONONTHECOMPANYSINTERNAL
CONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGBASEDONOURAUDIT

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
STANDARDSREQUIRETHATWEPLANANDPERFORMTHEAUDITTOOBTAINREASONABLEASSURANCEABOUTWHETHERTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREFREEOF

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those

MATERIALMISSTATEMENT!NAUDITINCLUDESEXAMINING ONATESTBASIS EVIDENCESUPPORTINGTHEAMOUNTSANDDISCLOSURESINTHElNANCIAL

STANDARDSREQUIRETHATWEPLANANDPERFORMTHEAUDITTOOBTAINREASONABLEASSURANCEABOUTWHETHEREFFECTIVEINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIAL

STATEMENTS!NAUDITALSOINCLUDESASSESSINGTHEACCOUNTINGPRINCIPLESUSEDANDSIGNIlCANTESTIMATESMADEBYMANAGEMENT ASWELLAS

REPORTINGWASMAINTAINEDINALLMATERIALRESPECTS/URAUDITINCLUDEDOBTAININGANUNDERSTANDINGOFINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTING 

EVALUATINGTHEOVERALLlNANCIALSTATEMENTPRESENTATION7EBELIEVETHATOURAUDITSPROVIDEAREASONABLEBASISFOROUROPINION

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
!COMPANYSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGISAPROCESSDESIGNEDTOPROVIDEREASONABLEASSURANCEREGARDINGTHERELIABILITYOF
lNANCIALREPORTINGANDTHEPREPARATIONOFlNANCIALSTATEMENTSFOREXTERNALPURPOSESINACCORDANCEWITHGENERALLYACCEPTEDACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES!COMPANYSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGINCLUDESTHOSEPOLICIESANDPROCEDURESTHAT PERTAINTOTHEMAINTENANCE

)NOUROPINION THElNANCIALSTATEMENTSREFERREDTOABOVEPRESENTFAIRLY INALLMATERIALRESPECTS THElNANCIALPOSITIONOF4YLER4ECHNOLOGIES 
)NCAT$ECEMBER AND ANDTHERESULTSOFITSOPERATIONSANDITSCASHmOWSFOREACHOFTHETHREEYEARSINTHEPERIODENDED
December 31, 2016, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
!SDISCUSSEDIN.OTETOTHECONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS THE#OMPANYHASADOPTED!35 #OMPENSATION 3TOCK
Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting.

OFRECORDSTHAT INREASONABLEDETAIL ACCURATELYANDFAIRLYREmECTTHETRANSACTIONSANDDISPOSITIONSOFTHEASSETSOFTHECOMPANY PROVIDE

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Tyler

REASONABLEASSURANCETHATTRANSACTIONSARERECORDEDASNECESSARYTOPERMITPREPARATIONOFlNANCIALSTATEMENTSINACCORDANCEWITH

4ECHNOLOGIES )NCSINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF$ECEMBER  BASEDONCRITERIAESTABLISHEDIN)NTERNAL#ONTROLn

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with

)NTEGRATED&RAMEWORKISSUEDBYTHE#OMMITTEEOF3PONSORING/RGANIZATIONSOFTHE4READWAY#OMMISSIONFRAMEWORK ANDOUR

AUTHORIZATIONSOFMANAGEMENTANDDIRECTORSOFTHECOMPANYAND PROVIDEREASONABLEASSURANCEREGARDINGPREVENTIONORTIMELYDETECTION

REPORTDATED&EBRUARY EXPRESSEDANUNQUALIlEDOPINIONTHEREON

OFUNAUTHORIZEDACQUISITION USE ORDISPOSITIONOFTHECOMPANYSASSETSTHATCOULDHAVEAMATERIALEFFECTONTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS
"ECAUSEOFITSINHERENTLIMITATIONS INTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGMAYNOTPREVENTORDETECTMISSTATEMENTS!LSO PROJECTIONSOFANY
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
)NOUROPINION 4YLER4ECHNOLOGIES )NCMAINTAINED INALLMATERIALRESPECTS EFFECTIVEINTERNALCONTROLOVERlNANCIALREPORTINGASOF
December 31, 2016, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Tyler Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive
INCOME SHAREHOLDERSEQUITY ANDCASHmOWSFOREACHOFTHETHREEYEARSINTHEPERIODENDED$ECEMBER ANDOURREPORTDATED
&EBRUARY EXPRESSEDANUNQUALIlEDOPINIONTHEREON

Dallas, Texas
February 22, 2017

Dallas, Texas
February 22, 2017
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February 22, 2017
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
2016

2015

2014

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,

2016

2015

ASSETS
$ 74,306
142,704
174,804
322,969
26,287
14,973
756,043

$ 59,008
111,933
139,852
245,537
25,065
9,627
591,022

$ 49,065
87,848
113,821
212,696
21,802
7,869
493,101

2,964
22,235
348,939
16,411
10,143
400,692

1,632
4,440
285,340
15,922
6,501
313,835

1,900
1,858
236,363
14,284
5,325
259,730

355,351

277,187

233,371

167,161
43,154
13,731

133,317
29,922
5,905

108,260
25,743
4,546

131,305

108,043

94,822

Other (expense) income, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax provision
Net income

(1,998)
129,307
19,450
$ 109,857

381
108,424
43,555
$ 64,869

(355)
94,467
35,527
$ 58,940

Earnings per common share:
Basic

$

3.01

$

1.90

$

1.79

$

2.82

$

1.77

$

1.66

Cost of revenues:
Software licenses and royalties
Acquired software
Software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total cost of revenues








Selling, general and administrative expenses
Research and development expense
Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Operating income

See accompanying notes.
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(In thousands, except par value and share amounts)

Revenues:
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Total revenues

Diluted
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

For the years ended December 31,

 'ROSSPROlT

Tyler Technologies

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (less allowance for losses of $3,396 in 2016 and $1,640 in 2015)
Short-term investments
Prepaid expenses
Income tax receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

Accounts receivable, long-term
Property and equipment, net
Other assets:
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Cost method investment
Non-current investments and other assets

36,151
200,334
20,273
21,039
2,895
2,268
282,960

$

33,087
176,360
13,423
22,334
21,080
1,931
268,215

2,480
124,268

2,777
101,112

650,237
267,259
15,000
15,741
$1,357,945

653,666
295,378
15,000
20,422
$1,356,570

$

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Revolving line of credit
Deferred revenue, long-term
Deferred income taxes

7,295
55,989
298,217
361,501

6,789
49,156
281,627
337,572

10,000
2,140
68,779

66,000
3,115
91,026

—
481
556,663
(46)
435,876
(77,449)
915,525
$1,357,945

—
481
607,755
(46)
326,019
(75,352)
858,857
$1,356,570

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $10.00 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 48,147,969 shares issued in 2016 and 2015
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Retained earnings
Treasury stock, at cost; 11,381,733 and 11,373,666 shares in 2016 and 2015, respectively
Total shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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Tyler Technologies

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (less allowance for losses of $3,396 in 2016 and $1,640 in 2015)
Short-term investments
Prepaid expenses
Income tax receivable
Other current assets
Total current assets

$

Accounts receivable, long-term
Property and equipment, net
Other assets:
Goodwill
Other intangibles, net
Cost method investment
Non-current investments and other assets

36,151
200,334
20,273
21,039
2,895
2,268
282,960

$

33,087
176,360
13,423
22,334
21,080
1,931
268,215

2,480
124,268

2,777
101,112

650,237
267,259
15,000
15,741
$1,357,945

653,666
295,378
15,000
20,422
$1,356,570

$

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities
Revolving line of credit
Deferred revenue, long-term
Deferred income taxes

7,295
55,989
298,217
361,501

6,789
49,156
281,627
337,572

10,000
2,140
68,779

66,000
3,115
91,026

—
481
556,663
(46)
435,876
(77,449)
915,525
$1,357,945

—
481
607,755
(46)
326,019
(75,352)
858,857
$1,356,570

Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $10.00 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 48,147,969 shares issued in 2016 and 2015
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Retained earnings
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Total shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

For the years ended December 31,
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings

Shares

Amount

Total
Shareholders’
Equity

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

48,148
—

$ 481
—

$182,176
—

$ (46)
—

$ 202,210
58,940

(15,310)
—

$ (138,502)
—

$ 246,319
58,940

—
—

—
—

(17,449)
14,819

—
—

—
—

855
—

32,129
—

14,680
14,819

Common Stock

Treasury Stock

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2013
Net income
Issuance of shares pursuant to stock
compensation plan
Stock compensation
Issuance of shares pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan
 &EDERALINCOMETAXBENElTRELATEDTOEXERCISE
of stock options
Treasury stock purchases
Issuance of shares for acquisition
Balance at December 31, 2014
Net income
Issuance of shares pursuant to stock
compensation plan
Stock compensation
Issuance of shares pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan
 &EDERALINCOMETAXBENElTRELATEDTOEXERCISE
of stock options
Treasury stock purchases
Issuance of shares for acquisition
Balance at December 31, 2015
Net income
Issuance of shares pursuant to stock
compensation plan
Stock compensation
Issuance of shares pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan
Treasury stock purchases
Balance at December 31, 2016
See accompanying notes.

—

—

2,235

—

—

53

1,909

4,144

—
—
—
48,148
—

—
—
—
481
—

19,415
—
193
201,389
—

—
—
—
(46)
—

—
—
—
261,150
64,869

—
(294)
17
(14,679)
—

—
(22,817)
1,280
(126,001)
—

19,415
(22,817)
1,473
336,973
64,869

—
—

—
—

4,332
20,182

—
—

—
—

1,118
—

18,828
—

23,160
20,182

—

—

3,879

—

—

43

792

4,671

—
—
—
48,148
—

—
—
—
481
—

45,314
—
332,659
607,755
—

—
—
—
(46)
—

—
—
—
326,019
109,857

—
(5)
2,149
(11,374)
—

—
(645)
31,674
(75,352)
—

45,314
(645)
364,333
858,857
109,857

—
—

—
—

(82,273)
29,747

—
—

—
—

827
—

105,800
—

23,527
29,747

—
—
48,148

—
—
$ 481

1,434
—
$556,663

—
—
$ (46)

—
—
$ 435,876

47
(882)
(11,382)

4,802
(112,699)
$ (77,449)

6,236
(112,699)
$ 915,525
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2016

2015

2014

$ 109,857

$ 64,869

$ 58,940

50,301
29,747
4,484
(28,939)

19,574
20,182
1,756
(7,956)

14,605
14,819
1,897
(3,804)

(30,227)
18,185
2,229
387
10,717
25,118
191,859

(28,172)
24,255
(3,054)
652
490
41,731
134,327

(8,912)
29,117
(3,696)
1,586
6,326
31,961
142,839

(9,394)
—
(20,316)
16,837
(37,726)
(121)
(50,720)

(339,961)
(15,000)
(31,907)
900
(12,501)
10
(398,459)

(3,242)
—
—
808
(9,343)
222
(11,555)

(56,000)
(111,838)
6,236
23,527
—
(138,075)
3,064
33,087
$ 36,151

66,000
(645)
4,671
23,160
(2,134)
91,052
(173,080)
206,167
$ 33,087

—
(22,817)
4,144
14,680
—
(3,993)
127,291
78,876
$ 206,167

(In thousands)

#ASHmOWSFROMOPERATINGACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Provision for losses – accounts receivable
  $EFERREDINCOMETAXBENElT


Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exclusive of effects of acquired companies:
Accounts receivable
Income tax receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities
#ASHmOWSFROMINVESTINGACTIVITIES
Cost of acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchase of cost method investment
Purchase of marketable security investments
Proceeds from marketable security investments
Additions to property and equipment
(Increase) decrease in other
Net cash used by investing activities
#ASHmOWSFROMlNANCINGACTIVITIES
(Decrease) increase in net borrowings on revolving line of credit
Purchase of treasury shares
Contributions from employee stock purchase plan
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Debt issuance costs
    .ETCASHUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

For the years ended December 31,
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Retained
Earnings

Shares

Amount

Total
Shareholders’
Equity

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

48,148
—

$ 481
—

$182,176
—

$ (46)
—

$ 202,210
58,940

(15,310)
—

$ (138,502)
—

$ 246,319
58,940

—
—

—
—

(17,449)
14,819

—
—

—
—

855
—

32,129
—

14,680
14,819

Common Stock

Treasury Stock

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2013
Net income
Issuance of shares pursuant to stock
compensation plan
Stock compensation
Issuance of shares pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan
 &EDERALINCOMETAXBENElTRELATEDTOEXERCISE
of stock options
Treasury stock purchases
Issuance of shares for acquisition
Balance at December 31, 2014
Net income
Issuance of shares pursuant to stock
compensation plan
Stock compensation
Issuance of shares pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan
 &EDERALINCOMETAXBENElTRELATEDTOEXERCISE
of stock options
Treasury stock purchases
Issuance of shares for acquisition
Balance at December 31, 2015
Net income
Issuance of shares pursuant to stock
compensation plan
Stock compensation
Issuance of shares pursuant to employee stock
purchase plan
Treasury stock purchases
Balance at December 31, 2016
See accompanying notes.

—

—

2,235

—

—

53

1,909

4,144

—
—
—
48,148
—

—
—
—
481
—

19,415
—
193
201,389
—

—
—
—
(46)
—

—
—
—
261,150
64,869

—
(294)
17
(14,679)
—

—
(22,817)
1,280
(126,001)
—

19,415
(22,817)
1,473
336,973
64,869

—
—

—
—

4,332
20,182

—
—

—
—

1,118
—

18,828
—

23,160
20,182

—

—

3,879

—

—

43

792

4,671

—
—
—
48,148
—

—
—
—
481
—

45,314
—
332,659
607,755
—

—
—
—
(46)
—

—
—
—
326,019
109,857

—
(5)
2,149
(11,374)
—

—
(645)
31,674
(75,352)
—

45,314
(645)
364,333
858,857
109,857

—
—

—
—

(82,273)
29,747

—
—

—
—

827
—

105,800
—

23,527
29,747

—
—
48,148

—
—
$ 481

1,434
—
$556,663

—
—
$ (46)

—
—
$ 435,876

47
(882)
(11,382)

4,802
(112,699)
$ (77,449)

6,236
(112,699)
$ 915,525
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2016

2015

2014

$ 109,857

$ 64,869

$ 58,940

50,301
29,747
4,484
(28,939)

19,574
20,182
1,756
(7,956)

14,605
14,819
1,897
(3,804)

(30,227)
18,185
2,229
387
10,717
25,118
191,859

(28,172)
24,255
(3,054)
652
490
41,731
134,327

(8,912)
29,117
(3,696)
1,586
6,326
31,961
142,839

(9,394)
—
(20,316)
16,837
(37,726)
(121)
(50,720)

(339,961)
(15,000)
(31,907)
900
(12,501)
10
(398,459)

(3,242)
—
—
808
(9,343)
222
(11,555)

(56,000)
(111,838)
6,236
23,527
—
(138,075)
3,064
33,087
$ 36,151

66,000
(645)
4,671
23,160
(2,134)
91,052
(173,080)
206,167
$ 33,087

—
(22,817)
4,144
14,680
—
(3,993)
127,291
78,876
$ 206,167

(In thousands)

#ASHmOWSFROMOPERATINGACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Provision for losses – accounts receivable
  $EFERREDINCOMETAXBENElT


Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exclusive of effects of acquired companies:
Accounts receivable
Income tax receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities
#ASHmOWSFROMINVESTINGACTIVITIES
Cost of acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchase of cost method investment
Purchase of marketable security investments
Proceeds from marketable security investments
Additions to property and equipment
(Increase) decrease in other
Net cash used by investing activities
#ASHmOWSFROMlNANCINGACTIVITIES
(Decrease) increase in net borrowings on revolving line of credit
Purchase of treasury shares
Contributions from employee stock purchase plan
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Debt issuance costs
    .ETCASHUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Tables in thousands, except per share data)

&ORMULTIPLEELEMENTARRANGEMENTS EACHELEMENTOFTHEARRANGEMENTISANALYZEDANDWEALLOCATEAPORTIONOFTHETOTALARRANGEMENTFEETO

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description Of Business

THEELEMENTSBASEDONTHERELATIVEFAIRVALUEOFTHEELEMENTUSINGVENDOR SPECIlCOBJECTIVEEVIDENCEOFFAIRVALUEh63/%v REGARDLESSOFANY
separate prices stated within the contract for each element. Fair value is considered the price a customer would be required to pay if the
element was sold separately based on our historical experience of stand-alone sales of these elements to third-parties. For PCS, we use

We provide integrated software systems and related services for the public sector, with a focus on local governments. We develop and

renewal rates for continued support arrangements to determine fair value. For software services, we use the fair value we charge our customers

market a broad line of software solutions and services to address the information technology (“IT”) needs of cities, counties, schools

WHENTHOSESERVICESARESOLDSEPARATELY7EMONITOROURTRANSACTIONSTODETERMINETHATWEMAINTAINANDPERIODICALLYREVISE63/%TOREmECT

and other local government entities. In addition, we provide professional IT services, including software and hardware installation,

fair value. In software arrangements in which we have the fair value of all undelivered elements but not of a delivered element, we apply the

DATACONVERSION TRAINING ANDFORCERTAINCUSTOMERS PRODUCTMODIlCATIONS ALONGWITHCONTINUINGMAINTENANCEANDSUPPORTFORCUSTOMERS

hRESIDUALMETHOD vINCOMPLIANCEWITH!CCOUNTING3TANDARDS#ODIlCATIONh!3#v   3OFTWARE2EVENUE2ECOGNITION5NDERTHE

USINGOURSYSTEMS7EALSOPROVIDESUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESSUCHASSOFTWAREASASERVICEh3AA3v ARRANGEMENTS WHICHUTILIZETHE

residual method, if the fair value of all undelivered elements is determinable, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the

4YLERPRIVATECLOUD ANDELECTRONICDOCUMENTlLINGSOLUTIONShE lLINGv )NADDITION WEPROVIDEPROPERTYAPPRAISALOUTSOURCINGSERVICESFOR

REMAININGPORTIONOFTHEARRANGEMENTFEEISALLOCATEDTOTHEDELIVEREDELEMENTS ANDISRECOGNIZEDASREVENUEASSUMINGTHEOTHERREVENUE

taxing jurisdictions.

RECOGNITIONCRITERIAAREMET)NSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTSINWHICHWEDONOTHAVE63/%FORALLUNDELIVEREDELEMENTS REVENUEISDEFERRED
UNTILFAIRVALUEISDETERMINEDORALLELEMENTSFORWHICHWEDONOTHAVE63/%HAVEBEENDELIVERED!LTERNATIVELY IFSUFlCIENT63/%DOESNOT

Principles Of Consolidation

EXISTANDTHEONLYUNDELIVEREDELEMENTISSERVICESTHATDONOTINVOLVESIGNIlCANTMODIlCATIONORCUSTOMIZATIONOFTHESOFTWARE THEENTIRE

4HECONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTSINCLUDEOURPARENTCOMPANYANDASUBSIDIARY WHICHISWHOLLY OWNED!LLSIGNIlCANTINTERCOMPANY

FEEISRECOGNIZEDOVERTHEPERIODDURINGWHICHTHESERVICESAREEXPECTEDTOBEPERFORMED

BALANCESANDTRANSACTIONSHAVEBEENELIMINATEDINCONSOLIDATION#OMPREHENSIVEINCOMELOSS ISDElNEDASTHECHANGEINEQUITYOF
a business enterprise during a period from transactions, and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources and includes all

Software Licenses and Royalties

components of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). We had no items of other comprehensive income (loss)

7ERECOGNIZETHEREVENUEALLOCABLETOSOFTWARELICENSESANDSPECIlEDUPGRADESUPONDELIVERYOFTHESOFTWAREPRODUCTORUPGRADETOTHE

during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

CUSTOMER UNLESSTHEFEEISNOTlXEDORDETERMINABLEORCOLLECTABILITYISNOTPROBABLE)FTHEFEEISNOTlXEDORDETERMINABLE SOFTWARELICENSE
REVENUEISGENERALLYRECOGNIZEDASPAYMENTSBECOMEDUEFROMTHECUSTOMER)FCOLLECTABILITYISNOTCONSIDEREDPROBABLE REVENUEIS

Cash And Cash Equivalents

RECOGNIZEDWHENTHEFEEISCOLLECTED!RRANGEMENTSTHATINCLUDESOFTWARESERVICES SUCHASTRAININGORINSTALLATION AREEVALUATEDTODETERMINE

Cash in excess of that necessary for operating requirements is invested in short-term, highly liquid, income-producing investments.

WHETHERTHOSESERVICESAREESSENTIALTOTHEPRODUCTSFUNCTIONALITY

)NVESTMENTSWITHORIGINALMATURITIESOFTHREEMONTHSORLESSARECLASSIlEDASCASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS WHICHPRIMARILYCONSISTOFCASHON

A majority of our software arrangements involve “off-the-shelf” software. We consider software to be off-the-shelf software if it can be added

deposit with several banks and money market funds. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value.

TOANARRANGEMENTWITHMINORCHANGESINTHEUNDERLYINGCODEANDITCANBEUSEDBYTHECUSTOMERFORTHECUSTOMERSPURPOSEUPON
INSTALLATION&OROFF THE SHELFSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTS WERECOGNIZETHESOFTWARELICENSEFEEASREVENUEAFTERDELIVERYHASOCCURRED CUSTOMER

Revenue Recognition

acceptance is reasonably assured, that portion of the fee represents a non-refundable enforceable claim and is probable of collection,

We earn revenue from software licenses, royalties, subscription-based services, software services, post-contract customer support (“PCS”

ANDTHEREMAININGSERVICESSUCHASTRAININGARENOTCONSIDEREDESSENTIALTOTHEPRODUCTSFUNCTIONALITY

or “maintenance”), hardware, and appraisal services.

Software Arrangements:

&ORARRANGEMENTSTHATINVOLVESIGNIlCANTPRODUCTION MODIlCATIONORCUSTOMIZATIONOFTHESOFTWARE ORWHERESOFTWARESERVICESAREOTHERWISE
CONSIDEREDESSENTIAL WERECOGNIZEREVENUEUSINGCONTRACTACCOUNTINGANDAPPLYTHEPROVISIONSOFTHE#ONSTRUCTIONTYPEAND0RODUCTIONTYPE
#ONTRACTSASDISCUSSEDIN!3# 7EGENERALLYUSETHEPERCENTAGE OF COMPLETIONMETHODTORECOGNIZEREVENUEFROMTHESEARRANGEMENTS

For the majority of our software arrangements, we provide services that range from installation, training, and basic consulting to software

We measure progress-to-completion primarily using labor hours incurred, or value added. The percentage-of-completion method generally

MODIlCATIONANDCUSTOMIZATIONTOMEETSPECIlCCUSTOMERNEEDS)FTHEARRANGEMENTDOESNOTREQUIRESIGNIlCANTPRODUCTION MODIlCATIONOR

RESULTSINTHERECOGNITIONOFREASONABLYCONSISTENTPROlTMARGINSOVERTHELIFEOFACONTRACTBECAUSEWEHAVETHEABILITYTOPRODUCEREASONABLY

CUSTOMIZATIONORWHERETHESOFTWARESERVICESARENOTCONSIDEREDESSENTIALTOTHEFUNCTIONALITYOFTHESOFTWARE REVENUEISRECOGNIZEDWHEN

DEPENDABLEESTIMATESOFCONTRACTBILLINGSANDCONTRACTCOSTS7EUSETHELEVELOFPROlTMARGINTHATISMOSTLIKELYTOOCCURONACONTRACT)F

all of the following conditions are met

THEMOSTLIKELYPROlTMARGINCANNOTBEPRECISELYDETERMINED THELOWESTPROBABLELEVELOFPROlTMARGININTHERANGEOFESTIMATESISUSEDUNTIL

•

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

•

delivery has occurred

•

OURFEEISlXEDORDETERMINABLE

•

collectability is probable

the results can be estimated more precisely. These arrangements are often implemented over an extended time period and occasionally
REQUIREUSTOREVISETOTALCOSTESTIMATES!MOUNTSRECOGNIZEDINREVENUEARECALCULATEDUSINGTHEPROGRESS TO COMPLETIONMEASUREMENTAFTER
giving effect to any changes in our cost estimates. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recorded in the period they are
DETERMINED%STIMATEDLOSSESONUNCOMPLETEDCONTRACTSARERECORDEDINTHEPERIODINWHICHWElRSTDETERMINETHATALOSSISAPPARENT&OR
ARRANGEMENTSTHATINCLUDENEWPRODUCTRELEASESFORWHICHITISDIFlCULTTOESTIMATElNALPROlTABILITYEXCEPTTOASSUMETHATNOLOSSWILL
ULTIMATELYBEINCURRED WERECOGNIZEREVENUEUNDERTHECOMPLETEDCONTRACTMETHOD5NDERTHECOMPLETEDCONTRACTMETHOD REVENUEIS
RECOGNIZEDONLYWHENACONTRACTISCOMPLETEDORSUBSTANTIALLYCOMPLETE(ISTORICALLYTHESEAMOUNTSHAVEBEENIMMATERIAL
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Tables in thousands, except per share data)

&ORMULTIPLEELEMENTARRANGEMENTS EACHELEMENTOFTHEARRANGEMENTISANALYZEDANDWEALLOCATEAPORTIONOFTHETOTALARRANGEMENTFEETO

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description Of Business

THEELEMENTSBASEDONTHERELATIVEFAIRVALUEOFTHEELEMENTUSINGVENDOR SPECIlCOBJECTIVEEVIDENCEOFFAIRVALUEh63/%v REGARDLESSOFANY
separate prices stated within the contract for each element. Fair value is considered the price a customer would be required to pay if the
element was sold separately based on our historical experience of stand-alone sales of these elements to third-parties. For PCS, we use

We provide integrated software systems and related services for the public sector, with a focus on local governments. We develop and

renewal rates for continued support arrangements to determine fair value. For software services, we use the fair value we charge our customers

market a broad line of software solutions and services to address the information technology (“IT”) needs of cities, counties, schools

WHENTHOSESERVICESARESOLDSEPARATELY7EMONITOROURTRANSACTIONSTODETERMINETHATWEMAINTAINANDPERIODICALLYREVISE63/%TOREmECT

and other local government entities. In addition, we provide professional IT services, including software and hardware installation,

fair value. In software arrangements in which we have the fair value of all undelivered elements but not of a delivered element, we apply the

DATACONVERSION TRAINING ANDFORCERTAINCUSTOMERS PRODUCTMODIlCATIONS ALONGWITHCONTINUINGMAINTENANCEANDSUPPORTFORCUSTOMERS

hRESIDUALMETHOD vINCOMPLIANCEWITH!CCOUNTING3TANDARDS#ODIlCATIONh!3#v   3OFTWARE2EVENUE2ECOGNITION5NDERTHE

USINGOURSYSTEMS7EALSOPROVIDESUBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESSUCHASSOFTWAREASASERVICEh3AA3v ARRANGEMENTS WHICHUTILIZETHE

residual method, if the fair value of all undelivered elements is determinable, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and the

4YLERPRIVATECLOUD ANDELECTRONICDOCUMENTlLINGSOLUTIONShE lLINGv )NADDITION WEPROVIDEPROPERTYAPPRAISALOUTSOURCINGSERVICESFOR

REMAININGPORTIONOFTHEARRANGEMENTFEEISALLOCATEDTOTHEDELIVEREDELEMENTS ANDISRECOGNIZEDASREVENUEASSUMINGTHEOTHERREVENUE

taxing jurisdictions.

RECOGNITIONCRITERIAAREMET)NSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTSINWHICHWEDONOTHAVE63/%FORALLUNDELIVEREDELEMENTS REVENUEISDEFERRED
UNTILFAIRVALUEISDETERMINEDORALLELEMENTSFORWHICHWEDONOTHAVE63/%HAVEBEENDELIVERED!LTERNATIVELY IFSUFlCIENT63/%DOESNOT

Principles Of Consolidation

EXISTANDTHEONLYUNDELIVEREDELEMENTISSERVICESTHATDONOTINVOLVESIGNIlCANTMODIlCATIONORCUSTOMIZATIONOFTHESOFTWARE THEENTIRE

4HECONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTSINCLUDEOURPARENTCOMPANYANDASUBSIDIARY WHICHISWHOLLY OWNED!LLSIGNIlCANTINTERCOMPANY

FEEISRECOGNIZEDOVERTHEPERIODDURINGWHICHTHESERVICESAREEXPECTEDTOBEPERFORMED

BALANCESANDTRANSACTIONSHAVEBEENELIMINATEDINCONSOLIDATION#OMPREHENSIVEINCOMELOSS ISDElNEDASTHECHANGEINEQUITYOF
a business enterprise during a period from transactions, and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources and includes all

Software Licenses and Royalties

components of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). We had no items of other comprehensive income (loss)

7ERECOGNIZETHEREVENUEALLOCABLETOSOFTWARELICENSESANDSPECIlEDUPGRADESUPONDELIVERYOFTHESOFTWAREPRODUCTORUPGRADETOTHE

during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

CUSTOMER UNLESSTHEFEEISNOTlXEDORDETERMINABLEORCOLLECTABILITYISNOTPROBABLE)FTHEFEEISNOTlXEDORDETERMINABLE SOFTWARELICENSE
REVENUEISGENERALLYRECOGNIZEDASPAYMENTSBECOMEDUEFROMTHECUSTOMER)FCOLLECTABILITYISNOTCONSIDEREDPROBABLE REVENUEIS

Cash And Cash Equivalents

RECOGNIZEDWHENTHEFEEISCOLLECTED!RRANGEMENTSTHATINCLUDESOFTWARESERVICES SUCHASTRAININGORINSTALLATION AREEVALUATEDTODETERMINE

Cash in excess of that necessary for operating requirements is invested in short-term, highly liquid, income-producing investments.

WHETHERTHOSESERVICESAREESSENTIALTOTHEPRODUCTSFUNCTIONALITY

)NVESTMENTSWITHORIGINALMATURITIESOFTHREEMONTHSORLESSARECLASSIlEDASCASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS WHICHPRIMARILYCONSISTOFCASHON

A majority of our software arrangements involve “off-the-shelf” software. We consider software to be off-the-shelf software if it can be added

deposit with several banks and money market funds. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value.

TOANARRANGEMENTWITHMINORCHANGESINTHEUNDERLYINGCODEANDITCANBEUSEDBYTHECUSTOMERFORTHECUSTOMERSPURPOSEUPON
INSTALLATION&OROFF THE SHELFSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTS WERECOGNIZETHESOFTWARELICENSEFEEASREVENUEAFTERDELIVERYHASOCCURRED CUSTOMER

Revenue Recognition

acceptance is reasonably assured, that portion of the fee represents a non-refundable enforceable claim and is probable of collection,

We earn revenue from software licenses, royalties, subscription-based services, software services, post-contract customer support (“PCS”

ANDTHEREMAININGSERVICESSUCHASTRAININGARENOTCONSIDEREDESSENTIALTOTHEPRODUCTSFUNCTIONALITY

or “maintenance”), hardware, and appraisal services.

Software Arrangements:

&ORARRANGEMENTSTHATINVOLVESIGNIlCANTPRODUCTION MODIlCATIONORCUSTOMIZATIONOFTHESOFTWARE ORWHERESOFTWARESERVICESAREOTHERWISE
CONSIDEREDESSENTIAL WERECOGNIZEREVENUEUSINGCONTRACTACCOUNTINGANDAPPLYTHEPROVISIONSOFTHE#ONSTRUCTIONTYPEAND0RODUCTIONTYPE
#ONTRACTSASDISCUSSEDIN!3# 7EGENERALLYUSETHEPERCENTAGE OF COMPLETIONMETHODTORECOGNIZEREVENUEFROMTHESEARRANGEMENTS

For the majority of our software arrangements, we provide services that range from installation, training, and basic consulting to software

We measure progress-to-completion primarily using labor hours incurred, or value added. The percentage-of-completion method generally

MODIlCATIONANDCUSTOMIZATIONTOMEETSPECIlCCUSTOMERNEEDS)FTHEARRANGEMENTDOESNOTREQUIRESIGNIlCANTPRODUCTION MODIlCATIONOR

RESULTSINTHERECOGNITIONOFREASONABLYCONSISTENTPROlTMARGINSOVERTHELIFEOFACONTRACTBECAUSEWEHAVETHEABILITYTOPRODUCEREASONABLY

CUSTOMIZATIONORWHERETHESOFTWARESERVICESARENOTCONSIDEREDESSENTIALTOTHEFUNCTIONALITYOFTHESOFTWARE REVENUEISRECOGNIZEDWHEN

DEPENDABLEESTIMATESOFCONTRACTBILLINGSANDCONTRACTCOSTS7EUSETHELEVELOFPROlTMARGINTHATISMOSTLIKELYTOOCCURONACONTRACT)F

all of the following conditions are met

THEMOSTLIKELYPROlTMARGINCANNOTBEPRECISELYDETERMINED THELOWESTPROBABLELEVELOFPROlTMARGININTHERANGEOFESTIMATESISUSEDUNTIL

•

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists

•

delivery has occurred

•

OURFEEISlXEDORDETERMINABLE

•

collectability is probable

the results can be estimated more precisely. These arrangements are often implemented over an extended time period and occasionally
REQUIREUSTOREVISETOTALCOSTESTIMATES!MOUNTSRECOGNIZEDINREVENUEARECALCULATEDUSINGTHEPROGRESS TO COMPLETIONMEASUREMENTAFTER
giving effect to any changes in our cost estimates. Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recorded in the period they are
DETERMINED%STIMATEDLOSSESONUNCOMPLETEDCONTRACTSARERECORDEDINTHEPERIODINWHICHWElRSTDETERMINETHATALOSSISAPPARENT&OR
ARRANGEMENTSTHATINCLUDENEWPRODUCTRELEASESFORWHICHITISDIFlCULTTOESTIMATElNALPROlTABILITYEXCEPTTOASSUMETHATNOLOSSWILL
ULTIMATELYBEINCURRED WERECOGNIZEREVENUEUNDERTHECOMPLETEDCONTRACTMETHOD5NDERTHECOMPLETEDCONTRACTMETHOD REVENUEIS
RECOGNIZEDONLYWHENACONTRACTISCOMPLETEDORSUBSTANTIALLYCOMPLETE(ISTORICALLYTHESEAMOUNTSHAVEBEENIMMATERIAL
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7ERECOGNIZEROYALTYREVENUEWHENEARNEDUNDERTHETERMSOFOURTHIRDPARTYROYALTYARRANGEMENTS PROVIDEDTHEFEESARECONSIDEREDlXED

%LECTRONIClLINGTRANSACTIONFEESPRIMARILYPERTAINTODOCUMENTSlLEDWITHTHECOURTSBYATTORNEYSANDOTHERTHIRD PARTIESVIAOURE lLING

ORDETERMINABLEANDREALIZATIONOFPAYMENTISPROBABLE#URRENTLY OURTHIRDPARTYROYALTIESAREVARIABLEINNATUREANDSUCHAMOUNTSARE

SERVICESANDRETRIEVALOFlLEDDOCUMENTSVIAOURACCESSSERVICES4HEELEMENTSFORTHESEARRANGEMENTSAREACCOUNTEDFORUNDER!3#

NOTCONSIDEREDlXEDORDETERMINABLEUNTILWERECEIVENOTICEOFAMOUNTSEARNED4YPICALLY WERECEIVENOTICEOFROYALTYREVENUESEARNEDON

 &OREACHDOCUMENTlLEDWITHACOURT THElLERGENERALLYPAYSATRANSACTIONFEEANDACOURTlLINGFEETOUSANDWEREMITAPORTION

a quarterly basis in the immediate quarter following the royalty reporting period.

OFTHETRANSACTIONFEEANDTHElLINGFEETOTHECOURT7ERECORDASREVENUETHETRANSACTIONFEE WHILETHEPORTIONOFTHETRANSACTIONFEE
REMITTEDTOTHECOURTSISRECORDEDASCOSTOFSALESASWEAREACTINGASAPRINCIPALINTHEARRANGEMENT#OURTlLINGFEESCOLLECTEDONBEHALF

Software Services
3OMEOFOURSOFTWAREARRANGEMENTSINCLUDESERVICESCONSIDEREDESSENTIALFORTHECUSTOMERTOUSETHESOFTWAREFORTHECUSTOMERSPURPOSES

of the courts and remitted to the courts are recorded on a net basis and thus do not affect the statement of comprehensive income.
)NSOMECASES WEAREPAIDONAlXEDFEEBASISANDRECOGNIZETHEREVENUERATABLYOVERTHECONTRACTUALPERIOD

&ORTHESESOFTWAREARRANGEMENTS BOTHTHESOFTWARELICENSEREVENUEANDTHESERVICESREVENUEARERECOGNIZEDASTHESERVICESAREPERFORMED

Costs of performing services under subscription-based arrangements are expensed as incurred, except for certain direct and incremental

using the percentage-of-completion contract accounting method. When software services are not considered essential, the fee allocable to

CONTRACTORIGINATIONANDSET UPCOSTSASSOCIATEDWITH3AA3ARRANGEMENTS3UCHDIRECTANDINCREMENTALCOSTSARECAPITALIZEDANDAMORTIZED

THESERVICEELEMENTISRECOGNIZEDASREVENUEASWEPERFORMTHESERVICES

ratably over the related SaaS hosting term.

Computer Hardware Equipment

Appraisal Services:

2EVENUEALLOCABLETOCOMPUTERHARDWAREEQUIPMENTISRECOGNIZEDWHENWEDELIVERTHEEQUIPMENTANDCOLLECTIONISPROBABLE

&OROURPROPERTYAPPRAISALPROJECTS WERECOGNIZEREVENUEUSINGTHEPROPORTIONALPERFORMANCEMETHODOFREVENUERECOGNITIONSINCEMANYOF
these projects are implemented over one to three year periods and consist of various unique activities. Under this method of revenue

Post-Contract Customer Support

RECOGNITION WEIDENTIFYEACHACTIVITYFORTHEAPPRAISALPROJECT WITHATYPICALPROJECTGENERALLYCALLINGFORBONDING OFlCESETUP TRAINING ROUTING

/URCUSTOMERSGENERALLYENTERINTO0#3AGREEMENTSWHENTHEYPURCHASEOURSOFTWARELICENSES0#3INCLUDESTELEPHONESUPPORT BUGlXES 

OFMAPINFORMATION DATAENTRY DATACOLLECTION DATAVERIlCATION INFORMALHEARINGS APPEALSANDPROJECTMANAGEMENT%ACHACTIVITYORACTIS

and rights to upgrades on a when-and-if available basis. Our PCS agreements are typically renewable annually. Revenue allocated to PCS

SPECIlCALLYIDENTIlEDANDASSIGNEDANESTIMATEDCOST#OSTSWHICHARECONSIDEREDTOBEASSOCIATEDWITHINDIRECTACTIVITIES SUCHASBONDING

ISRECOGNIZEDONASTRAIGHT LINEBASISOVERTHEPERIODTHE0#3ISPROVIDED!LLSIGNIlCANTCOSTSANDEXPENSESASSOCIATEDWITH0#3AREEXPENSED

COSTSANDOFlCESETUP AREEXPENSEDASINCURRED4HESECOSTSARETYPICALLYBILLEDASINCURREDANDARERECOGNIZEDASREVENUEEQUALTO

as incurred.

COST$IRECTCONTRACTFULlLLMENTACTIVITIESANDRELATEDSUPERVISORYCOSTSSUCHASDATACOLLECTION DATAENTRYANDVERIlCATIONAREEXPENSEDAS
incurred. The direct costs for these activities are determined and the total contract value is then allocated to each activity based on a

Subscription-Based Services:
3UBSCRIPTION BASEDSERVICESCONSISTOFREVENUESDERIVEDFROM3AA3ARRANGEMENTS WHICHUTILIZETHE4YLERPRIVATECLOUD ANDELECTRONIC
lLINGTRANSACTIONS

CONSISTENTPROlTMARGIN%ACHACTIVITYISASSIGNEDACONSISTENTUNITOFMEASURETODETERMINEPROGRESSTOWARDSCOMPLETIONANDREVENUEIS
RECOGNIZEDFOREACHACTIVITYBASEDUPONTHEPERCENTAGECOMPLETEASAPPLIEDTOTHEESTIMATEDREVENUEFORTHATACTIVITY0ROGRESSFORTHE
FULlLLMENTACTIVITIESISTYPICALLYBASEDONLABORHOURSORANOUTPUTMEASURESUCHASTHENUMBEROFPARCELCOUNTSCOMPLETEDFORTHATACTIVITY
%STIMATEDLOSSESONUNCOMPLETEDCONTRACTSARERECORDEDINTHEPERIODINWHICHWElRSTDETERMINETHATALOSSISAPPARENT

For SaaS arrangements, we evaluate whether the customer has the contractual right to take possession of our software at any time during
THEHOSTINGPERIODWITHOUTSIGNIlCANTPENALTYANDWHETHERTHECUSTOMERCANFEASIBLYMAINTAINTHESOFTWAREONTHECUSTOMERSHARDWARE

Allocation of Revenue in Statements of Comprehensive Income

or enter into another arrangement with a third-party to host the software. In cases where the customer has the contractual right to take

In our statements of comprehensive income, we allocate revenue to software licenses, software services, maintenance and hardware and

POSSESSIONOFOURSOFTWAREATANYTIMEDURINGTHEHOSTINGPERIODWITHOUTSIGNIlCANTPENALTYANDTHECUSTOMERCANFEASIBLYMAINTAINTHE

OTHERBASEDONTHE63/%OFFAIRVALUEFORELEMENTSINEACHREVENUEARRANGEMENTANDTHEAPPLICATIONOFTHERESIDUALMETHODFORARRANGEMENTS

SOFTWAREONTHECUSTOMERSHARDWAREORENTERINTOANOTHERARRANGEMENTWITHATHIRD PARTYTOHOSTTHESOFTWARE WERECOGNIZETHELICENSE 

INWHICHWEHAVEESTABLISHED63/%OFFAIRVALUEFORALLUNDELIVEREDELEMENTS)NARRANGEMENTSWHEREWEARENOTABLETOESTABLISH63/%OF

professional services and hosting services revenues pursuant to ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition.

FAIRVALUEFORALLUNDELIVEREDELEMENTS REVENUEISlRSTALLOCATEDTOANYUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSFORWHICH63/%OFFAIRVALUEHASBEENESTABLISHED

For SaaS arrangements that do not meet the criteria for recognition under ASC 985-605, we account for the elements under ASC 605-25,

7ETHENALLOCATEREVENUETOANYUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSFORWHICH63/%OFFAIRVALUEHASNOTBEENESTABLISHEDBASEDUPONMANAGEMENTS

Multiple Element Arrangements, using all applicable facts and circumstances, including whether (i) the element has stand-alone value,

BESTESTIMATEOFFAIRVALUEOFTHOSEUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSANDAPPLYARESIDUALMETHODTODETERMINETHELICENSEFEE-ANAGEMENTSBEST

(ii) there is a general right of return and (iii) the revenue is contingent on delivery of other elements. We allocate contract value to each element

ESTIMATEOFFAIRVALUEOFUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSFORWHICH63/%OFFAIRVALUEHASNOTBEENESTABLISHEDISBASEDUPONTHE63/%OFSIMILAR

OFTHEARRANGEMENTTHATQUALIlESFORTREATMENTASASEPARATEELEMENTBASEDON63/% ANDIF63/%ISNOTAVAILABLE THIRD PARTYEVIDENCE 

offerings and other objective criteria.

ANDIFTHIRD PARTYEVIDENCEISUNAVAILABLE ESTIMATEDSELLINGPRICE7ERECOGNIZEHOSTINGSERVICESRATABLYOVERTHETERMOFTHEARRANGEMENT 
WHICHRANGEFROMONETOYEARSBUTARETYPICALLYFORAPERIODOFlVETOSEVENYEARS&ORPROFESSIONALSERVICESASSOCIATEDWITH3AA3

Other

ARRANGEMENTSTHATWEDETERMINEDONOTHAVESTAND ALONEVALUETOTHECUSTOMERORARECONTINGENTONDELIVERYOFOTHERELEMENTS WERECOGNIZE

The majority of deferred revenue consists of unearned maintenance revenue that has been billed based on contractual terms in the

the services revenue ratably over the remaining contractual period once we have provided the customer access to the software and we may

underlying arrangement with the remaining balance consisting of payments received in advance of revenue being earned under software

begin billing for hosting services. We record amounts that have been invoiced in accounts receivable and in deferred revenue or revenues,

licensing, subscription-based services, software and appraisal services and hardware installation. Unbilled revenue is not billable at

depending on whether the revenue recognition criteria have been met.

the balance sheet date but is recoverable over the remaining life of the contract through billings made in accordance with contractual
agreements. The termination clauses in our contracts generally provide for the payment for the value of products delivered and services
performed in the event of an early termination.
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a quarterly basis in the immediate quarter following the royalty reporting period.

OFTHETRANSACTIONFEEANDTHElLINGFEETOTHECOURT7ERECORDASREVENUETHETRANSACTIONFEE WHILETHEPORTIONOFTHETRANSACTIONFEE
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)NSOMECASES WEAREPAIDONAlXEDFEEBASISANDRECOGNIZETHEREVENUERATABLYOVERTHECONTRACTUALPERIOD
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Subscription-Based Services:
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Allocation of Revenue in Statements of Comprehensive Income

or enter into another arrangement with a third-party to host the software. In cases where the customer has the contractual right to take

In our statements of comprehensive income, we allocate revenue to software licenses, software services, maintenance and hardware and
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INWHICHWEHAVEESTABLISHED63/%OFFAIRVALUEFORALLUNDELIVEREDELEMENTS)NARRANGEMENTSWHEREWEARENOTABLETOESTABLISH63/%OF

professional services and hosting services revenues pursuant to ASC 985-605, Software Revenue Recognition.

FAIRVALUEFORALLUNDELIVEREDELEMENTS REVENUEISlRSTALLOCATEDTOANYUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSFORWHICH63/%OFFAIRVALUEHASBEENESTABLISHED

For SaaS arrangements that do not meet the criteria for recognition under ASC 985-605, we account for the elements under ASC 605-25,

7ETHENALLOCATEREVENUETOANYUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSFORWHICH63/%OFFAIRVALUEHASNOTBEENESTABLISHEDBASEDUPONMANAGEMENTS

Multiple Element Arrangements, using all applicable facts and circumstances, including whether (i) the element has stand-alone value,

BESTESTIMATEOFFAIRVALUEOFTHOSEUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSANDAPPLYARESIDUALMETHODTODETERMINETHELICENSEFEE-ANAGEMENTSBEST

(ii) there is a general right of return and (iii) the revenue is contingent on delivery of other elements. We allocate contract value to each element

ESTIMATEOFFAIRVALUEOFUNDELIVEREDELEMENTSFORWHICH63/%OFFAIRVALUEHASNOTBEENESTABLISHEDISBASEDUPONTHE63/%OFSIMILAR

OFTHEARRANGEMENTTHATQUALIlESFORTREATMENTASASEPARATEELEMENTBASEDON63/% ANDIF63/%ISNOTAVAILABLE THIRD PARTYEVIDENCE 

offerings and other objective criteria.

ANDIFTHIRD PARTYEVIDENCEISUNAVAILABLE ESTIMATEDSELLINGPRICE7ERECOGNIZEHOSTINGSERVICESRATABLYOVERTHETERMOFTHEARRANGEMENT 
WHICHRANGEFROMONETOYEARSBUTARETYPICALLYFORAPERIODOFlVETOSEVENYEARS&ORPROFESSIONALSERVICESASSOCIATEDWITH3AA3

Other

ARRANGEMENTSTHATWEDETERMINEDONOTHAVESTAND ALONEVALUETOTHECUSTOMERORARECONTINGENTONDELIVERYOFOTHERELEMENTS WERECOGNIZE

The majority of deferred revenue consists of unearned maintenance revenue that has been billed based on contractual terms in the

the services revenue ratably over the remaining contractual period once we have provided the customer access to the software and we may

underlying arrangement with the remaining balance consisting of payments received in advance of revenue being earned under software

begin billing for hosting services. We record amounts that have been invoiced in accounts receivable and in deferred revenue or revenues,

licensing, subscription-based services, software and appraisal services and hardware installation. Unbilled revenue is not billable at

depending on whether the revenue recognition criteria have been met.

the balance sheet date but is recoverable over the remaining life of the contract through billings made in accordance with contractual
agreements. The termination clauses in our contracts generally provide for the payment for the value of products delivered and services
performed in the event of an early termination.
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'OODWILLREPRESENTSTHEEXCESSOFTHEPURCHASEPRICEOVERTHEFAIRVALUEOFNETASSETSACQUIRED INCLUDINGIDENTIlABLEINTANGIBLEASSETS IN
CONNECTIONWITHOURBUSINESSCOMBINATIONS5PONACQUISITION GOODWILLISASSIGNEDTOTHEREPORTINGUNITTHATISEXPECTEDTOBENElTFROMTHE

4HEPREPARATIONOFOURlNANCIALSTATEMENTSINCONFORMITYWITHACCOUNTINGPRINCIPLESGENERALLYACCEPTEDINTHE5NITED3TATESh'!!0v 

synergies of the business combination, which is the reporting unit to which the related acquired technology is assigned. A reporting unit

requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

ISTHEOPERATINGSEGMENT ORABUSINESSUNITONELEVELBELOWTHATOPERATINGSEGMENT FORWHICHDISCRETElNANCIALINFORMATIONISPREPAREDAND

ASSETSANDLIABILITIESATTHEDATEOFTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTSANDTHEREPORTEDAMOUNTSOFREVENUESANDEXPENSESDURINGTHEREPORTINGPERIOD

regularly reviewed by executive management. We assess goodwill for impairment annually as of April, or more frequently whenever events

3IGNIlCANTITEMSSUBJECTTOSUCHESTIMATESANDASSUMPTIONSINCLUDETHEAPPLICATIONOFTHEPERCENTAGE OF COMPLETIONANDPROPORTIONAL

or changes in circumstances indicate its carrying value may not be recoverable.

performance methods of revenue recognition, the carrying amount and estimated useful lives of intangible assets, determination of sharebased compensation expense and valuation allowance for receivables. Actual results could differ from estimates.

7HENTESTINGGOODWILLFORIMPAIRMENTQUANTITATIVELY WElRSTCOMPARETHEFAIRVALUEOFEACHREPORTINGUNITWITHITSCARRYINGAMOUNT)FTHE
carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment. In the

Property and Equipment, Net

SECONDSTEP WECOMPARETHEIMPLIEDFAIRVALUEOFREPORTINGUNITGOODWILLWITHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEREPORTINGUNITSGOODWILL)FTHE
CARRYINGAMOUNTOFREPORTINGUNITGOODWILLEXCEEDSTHEIMPLIEDFAIRVALUEOFTHATGOODWILL ANIMPAIRMENTLOSSISRECOGNIZED4HEFAIRVALUES

0ROPERTY EQUIPMENTANDPURCHASEDSOFTWAREARERECORDEDATORIGINALCOSTANDINCREASEDBYTHECOSTOFANYSIGNIlCANTIMPROVEMENTSAFTER

CALCULATEDINOURIMPAIRMENTTESTSAREDETERMINEDUSINGDISCOUNTEDCASHmOWMODELSINVOLVINGSEVERALASSUMPTIONS4HEASSUMPTIONS

PURCHASE7EEXPENSEMAINTENANCEANDREPAIRSWHENINCURRED$EPRECIATIONANDAMORTIZATIONISCALCULATEDUSINGTHESTRAIGHT LINEMETHOD

that are used are based upon what we believe a hypothetical marketplace participant would use in estimating fair value. We evaluate the

OVERTHESHORTEROFTHEASSETSESTIMATEDUSEFULLIFEORTHETERMOFTHELEASEINTHECASEOFLEASEHOLDIMPROVEMENTS&ORINCOMETAXPURPOSES 

reasonableness of the fair value calculations of our reporting units by comparing the total of the fair value of all of our reporting units to our

we use accelerated depreciation methods as allowed by tax laws.

TOTALMARKETCAPITALIZATION

Research and Development Costs

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis, which we performed quantitatively during the second quarter of 2016, did not result in an

We expensed research and development costs of $43.2 million during 2016, $29.9 million during 2015, and $25.7 million during 2014.

Income Taxes
)NCOMETAXESAREACCOUNTEDFORUNDERTHEASSETANDLIABILITYMETHOD$EFERREDTAXESARISEBECAUSEOFDIFFERENTTREATMENTBETWEENlNANCIAL
statement accounting and tax accounting, known as “temporary differences.” We record the tax effect of these temporary differences as
“deferred tax assets” (generally items that can be used as a tax deduction or credit in the future periods) and “deferred tax liabilities”
(generally items that we received a tax deduction for, which have not yet been recorded in the income statement). The deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rules and laws that are expected to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance would be established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a
DEFERREDTAXASSETWILLNOTBEhREALIZEDv

Share-Based Compensation
We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non-employee consultants.
Stock options generally vest after three to six years of continuous service from the date of grant and have a contractual term of 10 years.
7EACCOUNTFORSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONUTILIZINGTHEFAIRVALUERECOGNITIONPURSUANTTO!3# 3TOCK#OMPENSATION3EE.OTEn
“Share-Based Compensation” for further information. During fourth quarter of 2016, we adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No. 2016-09 “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting,” See
“New Accounting Pronouncements” below for further information.

impairment charge.

Other Intangible Assets
We make judgments about the recoverability of purchased intangible assets other than goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an impairment may exist. Customer base and acquired software each comprise approximately half of our purchased
intangible assets other than goodwill. We review our customer turnover each year for indications of impairment. Our customer turnover has
HISTORICALLYBEENVERYLOW4HEREHAVEBEENNOSIGNIlCANTIMPAIRMENTSOFINTANGIBLEASSETSINANYOFTHEPERIODSPRESENTED)FINDICATIONS
of impairment are determined to exist, we measure the recoverability of assets by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to the
ESTIMATEDUNDISCOUNTEDFUTURECASHmOWSEXPECTEDTOBEGENERATEDBYTHEASSET)FTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEIR
ESTIMATEDFUTURECASHmOWS ANIMPAIRMENTCHARGEISRECOGNIZEDFORTHEAMOUNTBYWHICHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEFAIR
value of the assets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We periodically evaluate whether current facts or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of our property and equipment or other
long-lived assets to be held and used may not be recoverable. If such circumstances are determined to exist, we measure the recoverability
of assets to be held and used by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset or appropriate grouping of assets and the estimated
UNDISCOUNTEDFUTURECASHmOWSEXPECTEDTOBEGENERATEDBYTHEASSETS)FTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEIRESTIMATEDFUTURE
CASHmOWS ANIMPAIRMENTCHARGEISRECOGNIZEDFORTHEAMOUNTBYWHICHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEFAIRVALUEOFTHE
assets. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair
VALUELESSCOSTSTOSELL ANDARENOLONGERDEPRECIATED4HEASSETSANDLIABILITIESOFADISPOSEDGROUPCLASSIlEDASHELDFORSALEWOULDBE
PRESENTEDSEPARATELYINTHEAPPROPRIATEASSETANDLIABILITYSECTIONSOFTHEBALANCESHEET4HEREHAVEBEENNOSIGNIlCANTIMPAIRMENTSOF
long-lived assets in any of the periods presented.
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or changes in circumstances indicate its carrying value may not be recoverable.
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carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a second step is performed to measure the amount of potential impairment. In the

Property and Equipment, Net
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that are used are based upon what we believe a hypothetical marketplace participant would use in estimating fair value. We evaluate the
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reasonableness of the fair value calculations of our reporting units by comparing the total of the fair value of all of our reporting units to our

we use accelerated depreciation methods as allowed by tax laws.

TOTALMARKETCAPITALIZATION

Research and Development Costs

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis, which we performed quantitatively during the second quarter of 2016, did not result in an

We expensed research and development costs of $43.2 million during 2016, $29.9 million during 2015, and $25.7 million during 2014.

Income Taxes
)NCOMETAXESAREACCOUNTEDFORUNDERTHEASSETANDLIABILITYMETHOD$EFERREDTAXESARISEBECAUSEOFDIFFERENTTREATMENTBETWEENlNANCIAL
statement accounting and tax accounting, known as “temporary differences.” We record the tax effect of these temporary differences as
“deferred tax assets” (generally items that can be used as a tax deduction or credit in the future periods) and “deferred tax liabilities”
(generally items that we received a tax deduction for, which have not yet been recorded in the income statement). The deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rules and laws that are expected to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance would be established to reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a
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Share-Based Compensation
We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non-employee consultants.
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No. 2016-09 “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting,” See
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impairment charge.

Other Intangible Assets
We make judgments about the recoverability of purchased intangible assets other than goodwill whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that an impairment may exist. Customer base and acquired software each comprise approximately half of our purchased
intangible assets other than goodwill. We review our customer turnover each year for indications of impairment. Our customer turnover has
HISTORICALLYBEENVERYLOW4HEREHAVEBEENNOSIGNIlCANTIMPAIRMENTSOFINTANGIBLEASSETSINANYOFTHEPERIODSPRESENTED)FINDICATIONS
of impairment are determined to exist, we measure the recoverability of assets by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to the
ESTIMATEDUNDISCOUNTEDFUTURECASHmOWSEXPECTEDTOBEGENERATEDBYTHEASSET)FTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEIR
ESTIMATEDFUTURECASHmOWS ANIMPAIRMENTCHARGEISRECOGNIZEDFORTHEAMOUNTBYWHICHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEFAIR
value of the assets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We periodically evaluate whether current facts or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of our property and equipment or other
long-lived assets to be held and used may not be recoverable. If such circumstances are determined to exist, we measure the recoverability
of assets to be held and used by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset or appropriate grouping of assets and the estimated
UNDISCOUNTEDFUTURECASHmOWSEXPECTEDTOBEGENERATEDBYTHEASSETS)FTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEIRESTIMATEDFUTURE
CASHmOWS ANIMPAIRMENTCHARGEISRECOGNIZEDFORTHEAMOUNTBYWHICHTHECARRYINGAMOUNTOFTHEASSETSEXCEEDSTHEFAIRVALUEOFTHE
assets. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair
VALUELESSCOSTSTOSELL ANDARENOLONGERDEPRECIATED4HEASSETSANDLIABILITIESOFADISPOSEDGROUPCLASSIlEDASHELDFORSALEWOULDBE
PRESENTEDSEPARATELYINTHEAPPROPRIATEASSETANDLIABILITYSECTIONSOFTHEBALANCESHEET4HEREHAVEBEENNOSIGNIlCANTIMPAIRMENTSOF
long-lived assets in any of the periods presented.
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Costs of Computer Software

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESUMMARIZESTHECHANGESINTHEALLOWANCESFORDOUBTFULACCOUNTSANDSALESADJUSTMENTS

7ECAPITALIZESOFTWAREDEVELOPMENTCOSTSUPONTHEESTABLISHMENTOFTECHNOLOGICALFEASIBILITYANDPRIORTOTHEAVAILABILITYOFTHEPRODUCTFOR

Years Ended December 31,

73

2016

2015

2014

$ 1,640
4,484
—
(2,728)
$ 3,396

$ 1,725
1,756
153
(1,994)
$ 1,640

$ 1,113
1,897
—
(1,285)
$ 1,725

GENERALRELEASETOCUSTOMERS3OFTWAREDEVELOPMENTCOSTSPRIMARILYCONSISTOFPERSONNELCOSTSANDRENTFORRELATEDOFlCESPACE7EBEGINTO
AMORTIZECAPITALIZEDCOSTSWHENAPRODUCTISAVAILABLEFORGENERALRELEASETOCUSTOMERS!MORTIZATIONEXPENSEISDETERMINEDONAPRODUCT
BY PRODUCTBASISATARATENOTLESSTHANSTRAIGHT LINEBASISOVERTHEPRODUCTSREMAININGESTIMATEDECONOMICLIFE7EHAVENOTCAPITALIZEDANY
internal software development costs in any of the periods presented.

Balance at beginning of year
Provisions for losses – accounts receivable
Collection of accounts previously written off
Deductions for accounts charged off or credits issued
Balance at end of year

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, accounts payables, short-term obligations and certain other assets at cost approximate

The termination clauses in most of our contracts provide for the payment for the value of products delivered or services performed in

fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. The fair value of our revolving line of credit approximates book value as

the event of early termination. Our property appraisal outsourcing service contracts can range up to three years and, in a few cases, as long

of December 31, 2016, because our interest rates reset approximately every 30 days or less. See Note 6 – “Revolving Line of Credit” for

ASlVEYEARS INDURATION)NCONNECTIONWITHTHESECONTRACTS ASWELLASCERTAINSOFTWARESERVICECONTRACTS WEMAYPERFORMWORKPRIORTO

further discussion.

when the software and services are billable and/or payable pursuant to the contract. We have historically recorded such unbilled receivables

As of December 31, 2016, we have $33.5 million in investment grade corporate and municipal bonds with maturity dates ranging from
THROUGHMID 7EINTENDTOHOLDTHESEBONDSTOMATURITYANDHAVECLASSIlEDTHEMASSUCH7EBELIEVECOSTAPPROXIMATESFAIR
value because of the relatively short duration of these investments. The fair values of these securities are considered Level II as they are
based on inputs from quoted prices in markets that are not active or from other observable market data. These investments are included in
short-term investments and non-current investments and other assets.

COSTSANDESTIMATEDPROlTINEXCESSOFBILLINGS INCONNECTIONWITH PROPERTYAPPRAISALSERVICESCONTRACTSACCOUNTEDFORUSING
proportional performance accounting in which the revenue is earned based upon activities performed in one accounting period but the
billing normally occurs subsequently and may span another accounting period; (2) software services contracts accounted for using the
percentage-of-completion method of revenue recognition using labor hours as a measure of progress towards completion in which the
SERVICESAREPERFORMEDINONEACCOUNTINGPERIODBUTTHEBILLINGFORTHESOFTWAREELEMENTOFTHEARRANGEMENTMAYBEBASEDUPONTHESPECIlC
PHASEOFTHEIMPLEMENTATION SOFTWAREREVENUEFORWHICHWEHAVEOBJECTIVEEVIDENCETHATTHECUSTOMER SPECIlEDOBJECTIVECRITERIAHAS

!SOF$ECEMBER  WEHAVEMILLIONINVESTEDINCONVERTIBLEPREFERREDSTOCKREPRESENTINGAINTERESTIN2ECORD(OLDINGS0TY

been met but the billing has not yet been submitted to the customer; (4) some of our contracts provide for an amount to be withheld from a

,IMITED APRIVATELYHELD!USTRALIANCOMPANYSPECIALIZINGINDIGITIZINGTHESPOKENWORDINCOURTANDLEGALPROCEEDINGS4HEFAIRVALUEOF

PROGRESSBILLINGGENERALLYBETWEENANDRETENTION UNTILlNALANDSATISFACTORYPROJECTCOMPLETIONISACHIEVEDAND INALIMITED

this investment is based on valuations using Level III, unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market value activity and that are

number of cases, we may grant extended payment terms, generally to existing customers with whom we have a long-term relationship and

SIGNIlCANTTOTHEFAIRVALUEOFTHEINVESTMENT

favorable collection history.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Unbilled Receivables

We have recorded unbilled receivables of $33.6 million and $29.7 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Included in
unbilled receivables are retention receivables of $5.0 million and $4.7 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and these

&INANCIALINSTRUMENTSTHATPOTENTIALLYSUBJECTUSTOSIGNIlCANTCONCENTRATIONSOFCREDITRISKCONSISTPRINCIPALLYOFCASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS 

RETENTIONSBECOMEPAYABLEUPONTHECOMPLETIONOFTHECONTRACTORCOMPLETIONOFOURlELDWORKANDFORMALHEARINGS5NBILLEDRECEIVABLES

accounts receivable from trade customers, and investments in marketable securities. Our cash and cash equivalents primarily consists

and retention receivables expected to be collected in excess of one year have been included with accounts receivable, long-term portion in

OFOPERATINGACCOUNTBALANCESANDMONEYMARKETFUNDS WHICHAREMAINTAINEDATSEVERALMAJORDOMESTIClNANCIALINSTITUTIONSANDTHE

the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

balances often exceed insured amounts. As of December 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of $36.2 million. We perform
PERIODICEVALUATIONSOFTHECREDITSTANDINGOFTHESElNANCIALINSTITUTIONS

)NDEMNIlCATION

#ONCENTRATIONSOFCREDITRISKWITHRESPECTTORECEIVABLESARELIMITEDDUETOTHESIZEANDGEOGRAPHICALDIVERSITYOFOURCUSTOMERBASE

Most of our software license agreements indemnify our customers in the event that the software sold infringes upon the intellectual property

(ISTORICALLY OURCREDITLOSSESHAVENOTBEENSIGNIlCANT!SARESULT WEDONOTBELIEVEWEHAVEANYSIGNIlCANTCONCENTRATIONSOFCREDITRISK

rights of a third-party. These agreements typically provide that in such event we will either modify or replace the software so that it becomes

as of December 31, 2016.

NON INFRINGINGORPROCUREFORTHECUSTOMERTHERIGHTTOUSETHESOFTWARE7EHAVERECORDEDNOLIABILITYASSOCIATEDWITHTHESEINDEMNIlCATIONS 

7EMAINTAINALLOWANCESFORDOUBTFULACCOUNTSANDSALESADJUSTMENTS WHICHAREPROVIDEDATTHETIMETHEREVENUEISRECOGNIZED3INCEMOST
of our customers are domestic governmental entities, we rarely incur a loss resulting from the inability of a customer to make required
payments. Events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount for the allowances for doubtful accounts and sales
ADJUSTMENTSMAYREQUIREREVISION INCLUDE BUTARENOTLIMITEDTO DETERIORATIONOFACUSTOMERSlNANCIALCONDITION FAILURETOMANAGEOUR
CUSTOMERSEXPECTATIONSREGARDINGTHESCOPEOFTHESERVICESTOBEDELIVERED ANDDEFECTSORERRORSINNEWVERSIONSORENHANCEMENTSOFOUR
software products.

as we are not aware of any pending or threatened infringement actions that are possible losses. We believe the estimated fair value of these
INTELLECTUALPROPERTYINDEMNIlCATIONCLAUSESISMINIMAL
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number of cases, we may grant extended payment terms, generally to existing customers with whom we have a long-term relationship and

SIGNIlCANTTOTHEFAIRVALUEOFTHEINVESTMENT

favorable collection history.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Unbilled Receivables

We have recorded unbilled receivables of $33.6 million and $29.7 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Included in
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and retention receivables expected to be collected in excess of one year have been included with accounts receivable, long-term portion in
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the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

balances often exceed insured amounts. As of December 31, 2016, we had cash and cash equivalents of $36.2 million. We perform
PERIODICEVALUATIONSOFTHECREDITSTANDINGOFTHESElNANCIALINSTITUTIONS

)NDEMNIlCATION

#ONCENTRATIONSOFCREDITRISKWITHRESPECTTORECEIVABLESARELIMITEDDUETOTHESIZEANDGEOGRAPHICALDIVERSITYOFOURCUSTOMERBASE

Most of our software license agreements indemnify our customers in the event that the software sold infringes upon the intellectual property
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rights of a third-party. These agreements typically provide that in such event we will either modify or replace the software so that it becomes

as of December 31, 2016.

NON INFRINGINGORPROCUREFORTHECUSTOMERTHERIGHTTOUSETHESOFTWARE7EHAVERECORDEDNOLIABILITYASSOCIATEDWITHTHESEINDEMNIlCATIONS 

7EMAINTAINALLOWANCESFORDOUBTFULACCOUNTSANDSALESADJUSTMENTS WHICHAREPROVIDEDATTHETIMETHEREVENUEISRECOGNIZED3INCEMOST
of our customers are domestic governmental entities, we rarely incur a loss resulting from the inability of a customer to make required
payments. Events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount for the allowances for doubtful accounts and sales
ADJUSTMENTSMAYREQUIREREVISION INCLUDE BUTARENOTLIMITEDTO DETERIORATIONOFACUSTOMERSlNANCIALCONDITION FAILURETOMANAGEOUR
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software products.

as we are not aware of any pending or threatened infringement actions that are possible losses. We believe the estimated fair value of these
INTELLECTUALPROPERTYINDEMNIlCATIONCLAUSESISMINIMAL
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7EHAVEALSOAGREEDTOINDEMNIFYOUROFlCERSANDBOARDMEMBERSIFTHEYARENAMEDORTHREATENEDTOBENAMEDASAPARTYTOANY

!DOPTIONOFTHENEWSTANDARDRESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESRATHERTHAN!0)#OF

PROCEEDINGBYREASONOFTHEFACTTHATTHEYACTEDINSUCHCAPACITY7EMAINTAINDIRECTORSANDOFlCERSLIABILITYINSURANCECOVERAGETOPROTECT

$29.6 million for the period ended December 31, 2016. As of December 31, 2016, the change in the calculation of common stock

AGAINSTANYSUCHLOSSES7EHAVERECORDEDNOLIABILITYASSOCIATEDWITHTHESEINDEMNIlCATIONS"ECAUSEOFOURINSURANCECOVERAGE WE

equivalents added approximately 519,000 weighted average shares for the diluted earnings per share calculations. The impact to our

BELIEVETHEESTIMATEDFAIRVALUEOFTHESEINDEMNIlCATIONAGREEMENTSISMINIMAL

PREVIOUSLYREPORTEDQUARTERLYRESULTSFORlSCALYEARISASFOLLOWS
Three Months Ended
March 31, 2016

2ECLASSIlCATIONS
#ERTAINAMOUNTSFORPREVIOUSYEARSHAVEBEENRECLASSIlEDTOCONFORMTOTHECURRENTYEARPRESENTATION

New Accounting Pronouncements
New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted in 2016
Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting. In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued
ASU No. 2016-09, “Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting” which
SIMPLIlESSEVERALASPECTSOFTHEACCOUNTINGFOREMPLOYEESHARE BASEDPAYMENTTRANSACTIONS INCLUDINGTHEACCOUNTINGFORINCOMETAXES 
FORFEITURES ANDSTATUTORYTAXWITHHOLDINGREQUIREMENTS ASWELLASCLASSIlCATIONINTHESTATEMENTOFCASHmOWS4HISSTANDARDISEFFECTIVEFOR
our interim and annual reporting periods beginning December 15, 2016, and early adoption is permitted. We elected to early adopt this

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ended
June 30, 2016

Three Months Ended
September 30, 2016

As Reported

As Adjusted

As Reported

As Adjusted

As Reported

As Adjusted

$ 10,495
$ 17,079
$ 0.47
$ 0.44
38,557

$ 9,350
$ 18,224
$ 0.50
$ 0.47
39,071

$11,323
$18,872
$ 0.52
$ 0.49
38,196

$ 5,188
$ 25,007
$ 0.69
$ 0.65
38,738

$ 14,155
$ 22,264
$ 0.61
$ 0.58
38,506

$ 989
$ 35,430
$ 0.97
$ 0.91
39,062

$ 40,270
$ (15,860)

$ 41,321
$ (16,911)

$13,877
$ 5,668

$ 19,520
$
25

$ 67,091
$ (77,973)

$ 79,213
$ (90,095)

Income statements:
Income tax provision
Net income
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding
3TATEMENTOFCASHmOWS
Net cash provided by operating activities
 .ETCASHUSED PROVIDEDBYlNANCINGACTIVITIES

standard in fourth quarter of 2016. The impact of the early adoption was as follows:
•

4HESTANDARDELIMINATESADDITIONALPAIDINCAPITALh!0)#v POOLSANDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSANDTAXDElCIENCIESTOBERECORDEDIN
the income statement as a discrete item when the awards vest or are settled. The adoption of this guidance on a prospective basis
RESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXES

•

•

Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern. In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial
3TATEMENTSn'OING#ONCERN3UBTOPIC  $ISCLOSUREOF5NCERTAINTIESABOUTAN%NTITYS!BILITYTO#ONTINUEASA'OING#ONCERNv4HE
guidance requires an entity to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
ENTITYSABILITYTOCONTINUEASAGOINGCONCERNWITHINONEYEARAFTERTHEDATETHATTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREISSUEDORWITHINONEYEARAFTER

4HESTANDARDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSTOBERECOGNIZEDREGARDLESSOFWHETHERTHEBENElTREDUCESTAXESPAYABLE4HEADOPTIONOFTHIS

THElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREAVAILABLETOBEISSUEDWHENAPPLICABLE ANDTOPROVIDERELATEDFOOTNOTEDISCLOSURESINCERTAINCIRCUMSTANCES

GUIDANCEISAPPLIEDONAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEBASISHOWEVER ITDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINEDEARNINGSASOF*ANUARY  

The guidance is effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter. We adopted

ASWEHADPREVIOUSLYRECOGNIZEDALLOUREXCESSTAXBENElTS

THISSTANDARDINTHEFOURTHQUARTEROFANDITSADOPTIONDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

As permitted, we have elected to continue to estimate forfeitures expected to occur to determine the amount of stock-based
COMPENSATIONCOSTTOBERECOGNIZEDINEACHPERIOD!SSUCH THEGUIDANCERELATINGTOFORFEITURESDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINED

Recent Accounting Guidance not yet Adopted

EARNINGSASOF*ANUARY 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers.”
This ASU is the result of a convergence project between the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board. The core principle

•

The new guidance changes the calculation of common stock equivalents for earnings per share purposes.

•

!SPERMITTED WEELECTEDTOAPPLYTHESTATEMENTOFCASHmOWSGUIDANCETHATCASHmOWSRELATEDTOEXCESSTAXBENElTSBEPRESENTEDASAN

ANAMOUNTTHATREmECTSTHECONSIDERATIONTOWHICHTHEENTITYEXPECTSTOBEENTITLEDINEXCHANGEFORDELIVERINGTHOSEGOODSANDSERVICES4HIS

operating activity retrospectively.

MODELINVOLVESAlVE STEPPROCESSTHATINCLUDESIDENTIFYINGTHECONTRACTWITHTHECUSTOMER IDENTIFYINGTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSINTHE

BEHIND!35.O ISTHATANENTITYSHOULDRECOGNIZEREVENUETODEPICTTHETRANSFEROFPROMISEDGOODSANDSERVICESTOCUSTOMERSIN

CONTRACT DETERMININGTHETRANSACTIONPRICE ALLOCATINGTHETRANSACTIONPRICETOTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSINTHECONTRACTANDRECOGNIZING
REVENUEWHENORAS THEENTITYSATISlESTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONS4HE!35ALLOWSTWOMETHODSOFADOPTIONAFULLRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACH
WHERETHREEYEARSOFlNANCIALINFORMATIONAREPRESENTEDINACCORDANCEWITHTHENEWSTANDARD ANDAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACH
WHERETHE!35ISAPPLIEDTOTHEMOSTCURRENTPERIODPRESENTEDINTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS7ECURRENTLYANTICIPATEADOPTINGTHESTANDARD
using the full retrospective method to restate each prior reporting period presented. Our ability to adopt using the full retrospective method
is dependent on system readiness, including software procured from third-party providers, and the completion of our analysis of information
NECESSARYTORESTATEPRIORPERIODlNANCIALSTATEMENTS
The new standard requires application no later than annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
REPORTINGPERIODSTHEREINHOWEVER PUBLICENTITIESAREPERMITTEDTOELECTTOEARLYADOPTTHENEWSTANDARD7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIAL
impact of adopting the new standard and the methods of adoption; however, we are currently unable to provide a reasonable estimate
REGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EWILLADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR
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4HESTANDARDELIMINATESADDITIONALPAIDINCAPITALh!0)#v POOLSANDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSANDTAXDElCIENCIESTOBERECORDEDIN
the income statement as a discrete item when the awards vest or are settled. The adoption of this guidance on a prospective basis
RESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXES

•

•

Presentation of Financial Statements – Going Concern. In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial
3TATEMENTSn'OING#ONCERN3UBTOPIC  $ISCLOSUREOF5NCERTAINTIESABOUTAN%NTITYS!BILITYTO#ONTINUEASA'OING#ONCERNv4HE
guidance requires an entity to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
ENTITYSABILITYTOCONTINUEASAGOINGCONCERNWITHINONEYEARAFTERTHEDATETHATTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREISSUEDORWITHINONEYEARAFTER

4HESTANDARDREQUIRESEXCESSTAXBENElTSTOBERECOGNIZEDREGARDLESSOFWHETHERTHEBENElTREDUCESTAXESPAYABLE4HEADOPTIONOFTHIS

THElNANCIALSTATEMENTSAREAVAILABLETOBEISSUEDWHENAPPLICABLE ANDTOPROVIDERELATEDFOOTNOTEDISCLOSURESINCERTAINCIRCUMSTANCES

GUIDANCEISAPPLIEDONAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEBASISHOWEVER ITDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINEDEARNINGSASOF*ANUARY  

The guidance is effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter. We adopted

ASWEHADPREVIOUSLYRECOGNIZEDALLOUREXCESSTAXBENElTS

THISSTANDARDINTHEFOURTHQUARTEROFANDITSADOPTIONDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS

As permitted, we have elected to continue to estimate forfeitures expected to occur to determine the amount of stock-based
COMPENSATIONCOSTTOBERECOGNIZEDINEACHPERIOD!SSUCH THEGUIDANCERELATINGTOFORFEITURESDIDNOTHAVEANIMPACTONOURRETAINED

Recent Accounting Guidance not yet Adopted

EARNINGSASOF*ANUARY 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers.”
This ASU is the result of a convergence project between the FASB and the International Accounting Standards Board. The core principle

•

The new guidance changes the calculation of common stock equivalents for earnings per share purposes.

•

!SPERMITTED WEELECTEDTOAPPLYTHESTATEMENTOFCASHmOWSGUIDANCETHATCASHmOWSRELATEDTOEXCESSTAXBENElTSBEPRESENTEDASAN

ANAMOUNTTHATREmECTSTHECONSIDERATIONTOWHICHTHEENTITYEXPECTSTOBEENTITLEDINEXCHANGEFORDELIVERINGTHOSEGOODSANDSERVICES4HIS

operating activity retrospectively.

MODELINVOLVESAlVE STEPPROCESSTHATINCLUDESIDENTIFYINGTHECONTRACTWITHTHECUSTOMER IDENTIFYINGTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSINTHE

BEHIND!35.O ISTHATANENTITYSHOULDRECOGNIZEREVENUETODEPICTTHETRANSFEROFPROMISEDGOODSANDSERVICESTOCUSTOMERSIN

CONTRACT DETERMININGTHETRANSACTIONPRICE ALLOCATINGTHETRANSACTIONPRICETOTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSINTHECONTRACTANDRECOGNIZING
REVENUEWHENORAS THEENTITYSATISlESTHEPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONS4HE!35ALLOWSTWOMETHODSOFADOPTIONAFULLRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACH
WHERETHREEYEARSOFlNANCIALINFORMATIONAREPRESENTEDINACCORDANCEWITHTHENEWSTANDARD ANDAMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACH
WHERETHE!35ISAPPLIEDTOTHEMOSTCURRENTPERIODPRESENTEDINTHElNANCIALSTATEMENTS7ECURRENTLYANTICIPATEADOPTINGTHESTANDARD
using the full retrospective method to restate each prior reporting period presented. Our ability to adopt using the full retrospective method
is dependent on system readiness, including software procured from third-party providers, and the completion of our analysis of information
NECESSARYTORESTATEPRIORPERIODlNANCIALSTATEMENTS
The new standard requires application no later than annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
REPORTINGPERIODSTHEREINHOWEVER PUBLICENTITIESAREPERMITTEDTOELECTTOEARLYADOPTTHENEWSTANDARD7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIAL
impact of adopting the new standard and the methods of adoption; however, we are currently unable to provide a reasonable estimate
REGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EWILLADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

76

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

77

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7EANTICIPATETHISSTANDARDWILLHAVEAMATERIALIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS7HILEWEARECONTINUINGTOASSESSALL

2015

POTENTIALIMPACTSOFTHESTANDARD WECURRENTLYBELIEVETHEMOSTSIGNIlCANTIMPACTRELATESTOOURACCOUNTINGFORSOFTWARELICENSEFEES 

On November 16, 2015, we acquired all the capital stock of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”), which provides public safety and

INSTALLATIONFEES ANDINCREMENTALCOSTOFOBTAININGACONTRACT3PECIlCALLY UNDERTHENEWSTANDARDWEEXPECTSOFTWARELICENSEFEESUNDER

lNANCIALSOLUTIONSFORLOCALGOVERNMENTS4HEPURCHASEPRICE NETOFCASHACQUIREDOFMILLION COMPRISEDOFMILLIONINCASH OF

perpetual agreements will no longer be subject to 100% discount allocations from other elements in the contract. Discounts in arrangements

which $4.0 million was accrued at December 31, 2015, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler common stock valued at $362.8 million, which was

will be allocated across all deliverables increasing license revenues and decreasing revenues allocated to other performance obligations.

BASEDONTHECLOSINGPRICEON.OVEMBER 7EALSOINCURREDFEESOFAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL 

)NADDITION INMOSTCASES NETLICENSEFEESTOTALLICENSEFEESLESSANYALLOCATEDDISCOUNTS WILLBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROL

accounting, due diligence, valuation and other various services necessary to complete the acquisition. These fees were expensed in 2015

OFTHESOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMERVERSUSOURCURRENTPOLICYOFRECOGNIZINGREVENUEONLYTOTHEEXTENTBILLABLEPERTHE

and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

CONTRACTUALTERMS4IME BASEDLICENSEFEESCURRENTLYRECOGNIZEDOVERTHELICENSETERMWILLNOLONGERBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHEPERIODOFTHE
LICENSEANDWILLINSTEADBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROLOFTHESOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMER)NSTALLATIONFEES

)N WEPAIDMILLIONRELATEDTOTHEWORKINGCAPITALHOLDBACKOFMILLIONANDREDUCEDTHEACCRUEDLIABILITY/URlNALVALUATION

WILLNOLONGERBECONSIDEREDDISTINCTPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSANDTHEREFOREWILLBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHETERMOFTHEARRANGEMENTORLIFEOFTHE

OFTHEFAIRMARKETVALUEOF.73ASSETSANDLIABILITIESRESULTEDINADJUSTMENTSTOTHEPRELIMINARYOPENINGBALANCESHEET4HESEADJUSTMENTS

performance obligation. We expect revenue related to our SaaS offerings and professional services to remain substantially unchanged.

related to a reduction in deferred revenue and related deferred income taxes and additional reserves for accounts receivable and

Due to the complexity of certain contracts, the actual revenue recognition treatment required under the standard will be dependent on

contingencies resulting in a net decrease to goodwill of approximately $7.4 million.

CONTRACT SPECIlCTERMSANDMAYVARYINSOMEINSTANCESFROMRECOGNITIONATTHETIMEOFBILLING!PPLICATIONOFTHENEWSTANDARDREQUIRESTHAT
INCREMENTALCOSTSDIRECTLYRELATEDTOOBTAININGACONTRACTTYPICALLYSALESCOMMISSIONSPLUSANYASSOCIATEDFRINGEBENElTS MUSTBE
RECOGNIZEDASANASSETANDEXPENSEDOVERTHEEXPECTEDLIFEOFTHEARRANGEMENT UNLESSTHATLIFEISLESSTHANONEYEAR#URRENTLY WEDEFER
SALESCOMMISSIONSANDRECOGNIZEEXPENSEOVERTHERELEVANTINITIALCONTRACTUALTERM7ITHTHEADOPTIONTHENEWSTANDARD WEEXPECT

/N-AY  WEACQUIREDALLOFTHECAPITALSTOCKOF"RAZOS4ECHNOLOGY#ORPORATIONh"RAZOSv WHICHPROVIDESMOBILEHANDHELD
SOLUTIONSPRIMARILYTOLAWENFORCEMENTAGENCIESFORlELDACCIDENTREPORTINGANDELECTRONICALLYISSUINGCITATIONS4HEPURCHASEPRICE 
net of cash acquired of $312,000 and including debt assumed of $733,000, was $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares of Tyler common
stock valued at $1.5 million.

AMORTIZATIONPERIODSTOEXTENDPASTTHEINITIALTERM
4HEOPERATINGRESULTSOF.73AND"RAZOSAREINCLUDEDWITHTHEOPERATINGRESULTSOFTHE%NTERPRISE3OFTWARESEGMENTSINCETHEIRDATES
Leases. On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued its new lease accounting guidance in ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).”
5NDERTHENEWGUIDANCE LESSEESWILLBEREQUIREDTORECOGNIZETHEFOLLOWINGFORALLLEASESWITHTHEEXCEPTIONOFSHORT TERMLEASES ATTHE

of acquisition. The fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired are based on valuations using Level III, unobservable inputs that are
SUPPORTEDBYLITTLEORNOMARKETACTIVITYANDTHATARESIGNIlCANTTOTHEFAIRVALUEOFTHEASSETSORLIABILITIES

commencement date:
•

A lease liability, which is a lessee‘s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

•

!RIGHT OF USEASSET WHICHISANASSETTHATREPRESENTSTHELESSEESRIGHTTOUSE ORCONTROLTHEUSEOF ASPECIlEDASSETFORTHELEASETERM

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at December 31:

,ESSEESFORCAPITALANDOPERATINGLEASES ANDLESSORSFORSALES TYPE DIRECTlNANCING ANDOPERATINGLEASES MUSTAPPLYAMODIlED
retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
lNANCIALSTATEMENTS4HEMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACHWOULDNOTREQUIREANYTRANSITIONACCOUNTINGFORLEASESTHATEXPIREDBEFORETHE
earliest comparative period presented. Lessees and lessors may not apply a full retrospective transition approach.
4HE!35ISEFFECTIVEFORlSCALYEARSBEGINNINGAFTER$ECEMBER  INCLUDINGINTERIMPERIODSTHEREIN%ARLYAPPLICATIONISPERMITTEDFOR

Land
Building and leasehold improvements
Computer equipment and purchased software
&URNITUREANDlXTURES
Transportation equipment









Useful Lives (years)

2016

—
5-39
3-5

5

$ 9,958
94,924
55,627
19,897
447
180,853
(56,585)
$ 124,268



ALLBUSINESSENTITIESUPONISSUANCE7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIALIMPACTOFADOPTINGTHENEWSTANDARDHOWEVER WEARECURRENTLYUNABLETO
PROVIDEAREASONABLEESTIMATEREGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EEXPECTTOADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

2015

$ 8,146
77,020
42,245
16,661
252
144,324
(43,212)
$ 101,112

(2) ACQUISITIONS
2016

Depreciation expense was $13.4 million during 2016, $9.1 million during 2015, and $7.9 million during 2014.

$URING WEACQUIREDABUSINESSFORAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONINCASHPAID4HISACQUISITIONISIMMATERIALTOOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIAL

)N WEPURCHASEDANOFlCEBUILDINGIN&ALMOUTH -AINE THATWASPREVIOUSLYLEASEDFROMANENTITYOWNEDBYANEXECUTIVESFATHERAND

statements. The operating results of this small acquisition are included with the operating results of the Enterprise Software segment since

brother, for approximately $9.7 million, and paid $8.0 million for construction to expand a building in Yarmouth, Maine.

ITSDATEOFACQUISITION4HEPURCHASEPRICEALLOCATIONFORTHISACQUISITIONISREmECTEDINTHEACCOMPANYINGCONSOLIDATEDBALANCESHEETASOF
December 31, 2016 and is preliminary.

7EOWNOFlCEBUILDINGSIN"ANGOR &ALMOUTHAND9ARMOUTH -AINE,UBBOCKAND0LANO 4EXAS4ROY -ICHIGANAND-ORAINE /HIO7E
lease some space in these buildings to third-party tenants. These leases expire between 2017 and 2025 and are expected to provide rental
income of approximately $1.6 million during 2017, $1.9 million during 2018, $1.9 million during 2019, $1.7 million during 2020,
$1.4 million during 2021, and $5.2 million thereafter. Rental income from third-party tenants was $1.7 million in 2016, $913,000 in 2015,
and $945,000 in 2014.
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7EANTICIPATETHISSTANDARDWILLHAVEAMATERIALIMPACTONOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIALSTATEMENTS7HILEWEARECONTINUINGTOASSESSALL

2015

POTENTIALIMPACTSOFTHESTANDARD WECURRENTLYBELIEVETHEMOSTSIGNIlCANTIMPACTRELATESTOOURACCOUNTINGFORSOFTWARELICENSEFEES 

On November 16, 2015, we acquired all the capital stock of New World Systems Corporation (“NWS”), which provides public safety and

INSTALLATIONFEES ANDINCREMENTALCOSTOFOBTAININGACONTRACT3PECIlCALLY UNDERTHENEWSTANDARDWEEXPECTSOFTWARELICENSEFEESUNDER

lNANCIALSOLUTIONSFORLOCALGOVERNMENTS4HEPURCHASEPRICE NETOFCASHACQUIREDOFMILLION COMPRISEDOFMILLIONINCASH OF

perpetual agreements will no longer be subject to 100% discount allocations from other elements in the contract. Discounts in arrangements

which $4.0 million was accrued at December 31, 2015, and 2.1 million shares of Tyler common stock valued at $362.8 million, which was

will be allocated across all deliverables increasing license revenues and decreasing revenues allocated to other performance obligations.

BASEDONTHECLOSINGPRICEON.OVEMBER 7EALSOINCURREDFEESOFAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL 

)NADDITION INMOSTCASES NETLICENSEFEESTOTALLICENSEFEESLESSANYALLOCATEDDISCOUNTS WILLBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROL

accounting, due diligence, valuation and other various services necessary to complete the acquisition. These fees were expensed in 2015

OFTHESOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMERVERSUSOURCURRENTPOLICYOFRECOGNIZINGREVENUEONLYTOTHEEXTENTBILLABLEPERTHE

and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

CONTRACTUALTERMS4IME BASEDLICENSEFEESCURRENTLYRECOGNIZEDOVERTHELICENSETERMWILLNOLONGERBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHEPERIODOFTHE
LICENSEANDWILLINSTEADBERECOGNIZEDATTHEPOINTINTIMETHATCONTROLOFTHESOFTWARELICENSETRANSFERSTOTHECUSTOMER)NSTALLATIONFEES

)N WEPAIDMILLIONRELATEDTOTHEWORKINGCAPITALHOLDBACKOFMILLIONANDREDUCEDTHEACCRUEDLIABILITY/URlNALVALUATION

WILLNOLONGERBECONSIDEREDDISTINCTPERFORMANCEOBLIGATIONSANDTHEREFOREWILLBERECOGNIZEDOVERTHETERMOFTHEARRANGEMENTORLIFEOFTHE

OFTHEFAIRMARKETVALUEOF.73ASSETSANDLIABILITIESRESULTEDINADJUSTMENTSTOTHEPRELIMINARYOPENINGBALANCESHEET4HESEADJUSTMENTS

performance obligation. We expect revenue related to our SaaS offerings and professional services to remain substantially unchanged.

related to a reduction in deferred revenue and related deferred income taxes and additional reserves for accounts receivable and

Due to the complexity of certain contracts, the actual revenue recognition treatment required under the standard will be dependent on

contingencies resulting in a net decrease to goodwill of approximately $7.4 million.

CONTRACT SPECIlCTERMSANDMAYVARYINSOMEINSTANCESFROMRECOGNITIONATTHETIMEOFBILLING!PPLICATIONOFTHENEWSTANDARDREQUIRESTHAT
INCREMENTALCOSTSDIRECTLYRELATEDTOOBTAININGACONTRACTTYPICALLYSALESCOMMISSIONSPLUSANYASSOCIATEDFRINGEBENElTS MUSTBE
RECOGNIZEDASANASSETANDEXPENSEDOVERTHEEXPECTEDLIFEOFTHEARRANGEMENT UNLESSTHATLIFEISLESSTHANONEYEAR#URRENTLY WEDEFER
SALESCOMMISSIONSANDRECOGNIZEEXPENSEOVERTHERELEVANTINITIALCONTRACTUALTERM7ITHTHEADOPTIONTHENEWSTANDARD WEEXPECT

/N-AY  WEACQUIREDALLOFTHECAPITALSTOCKOF"RAZOS4ECHNOLOGY#ORPORATIONh"RAZOSv WHICHPROVIDESMOBILEHANDHELD
SOLUTIONSPRIMARILYTOLAWENFORCEMENTAGENCIESFORlELDACCIDENTREPORTINGANDELECTRONICALLYISSUINGCITATIONS4HEPURCHASEPRICE 
net of cash acquired of $312,000 and including debt assumed of $733,000, was $6.1 million in cash and 12,500 shares of Tyler common
stock valued at $1.5 million.

AMORTIZATIONPERIODSTOEXTENDPASTTHEINITIALTERM
4HEOPERATINGRESULTSOF.73AND"RAZOSAREINCLUDEDWITHTHEOPERATINGRESULTSOFTHE%NTERPRISE3OFTWARESEGMENTSINCETHEIRDATES
Leases. On February 25, 2016, the FASB issued its new lease accounting guidance in ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842).”
5NDERTHENEWGUIDANCE LESSEESWILLBEREQUIREDTORECOGNIZETHEFOLLOWINGFORALLLEASESWITHTHEEXCEPTIONOFSHORT TERMLEASES ATTHE

of acquisition. The fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired are based on valuations using Level III, unobservable inputs that are
SUPPORTEDBYLITTLEORNOMARKETACTIVITYANDTHATARESIGNIlCANTTOTHEFAIRVALUEOFTHEASSETSORLIABILITIES

commencement date:
•

A lease liability, which is a lessee‘s obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

•

!RIGHT OF USEASSET WHICHISANASSETTHATREPRESENTSTHELESSEESRIGHTTOUSE ORCONTROLTHEUSEOF ASPECIlEDASSETFORTHELEASETERM

Property and equipment, net consists of the following at December 31:

,ESSEESFORCAPITALANDOPERATINGLEASES ANDLESSORSFORSALES TYPE DIRECTlNANCING ANDOPERATINGLEASES MUSTAPPLYAMODIlED
retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented in the
lNANCIALSTATEMENTS4HEMODIlEDRETROSPECTIVEAPPROACHWOULDNOTREQUIREANYTRANSITIONACCOUNTINGFORLEASESTHATEXPIREDBEFORETHE
earliest comparative period presented. Lessees and lessors may not apply a full retrospective transition approach.
4HE!35ISEFFECTIVEFORlSCALYEARSBEGINNINGAFTER$ECEMBER  INCLUDINGINTERIMPERIODSTHEREIN%ARLYAPPLICATIONISPERMITTEDFOR

Land
Building and leasehold improvements
Computer equipment and purchased software
&URNITUREANDlXTURES
Transportation equipment









Useful Lives (years)

2016

—
5-39
3-5

5

$ 9,958
94,924
55,627
19,897
447
180,853
(56,585)
$ 124,268



ALLBUSINESSENTITIESUPONISSUANCE7EAREASSESSINGTHElNANCIALIMPACTOFADOPTINGTHENEWSTANDARDHOWEVER WEARECURRENTLYUNABLETO
PROVIDEAREASONABLEESTIMATEREGARDINGTHElNANCIALIMPACT7EEXPECTTOADOPTTHENEWSTANDARDINlSCALYEAR

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

2015

$ 8,146
77,020
42,245
16,661
252
144,324
(43,212)
$ 101,112

(2) ACQUISITIONS
2016

Depreciation expense was $13.4 million during 2016, $9.1 million during 2015, and $7.9 million during 2014.

$URING WEACQUIREDABUSINESSFORAPPROXIMATELYMILLIONINCASHPAID4HISACQUISITIONISIMMATERIALTOOURCONSOLIDATEDlNANCIAL

)N WEPURCHASEDANOFlCEBUILDINGIN&ALMOUTH -AINE THATWASPREVIOUSLYLEASEDFROMANENTITYOWNEDBYANEXECUTIVESFATHERAND

statements. The operating results of this small acquisition are included with the operating results of the Enterprise Software segment since

brother, for approximately $9.7 million, and paid $8.0 million for construction to expand a building in Yarmouth, Maine.

ITSDATEOFACQUISITION4HEPURCHASEPRICEALLOCATIONFORTHISACQUISITIONISREmECTEDINTHEACCOMPANYINGCONSOLIDATEDBALANCESHEETASOF
December 31, 2016 and is preliminary.

7EOWNOFlCEBUILDINGSIN"ANGOR &ALMOUTHAND9ARMOUTH -AINE,UBBOCKAND0LANO 4EXAS4ROY -ICHIGANAND-ORAINE /HIO7E
lease some space in these buildings to third-party tenants. These leases expire between 2017 and 2025 and are expected to provide rental
income of approximately $1.6 million during 2017, $1.9 million during 2018, $1.9 million during 2019, $1.7 million during 2020,
$1.4 million during 2021, and $5.2 million thereafter. Rental income from third-party tenants was $1.7 million in 2016, $913,000 in 2015,
and $945,000 in 2014.
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(4) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

%STIMATEDANNUALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOACQUIREDLEASESWILLBERECORDEDASAREDUCTIONTOHARDWAREANDOTHERREVENUEANDIS

/THERINTANGIBLEASSETSANDRELATEDACCUMULATEDAMORTIZATIONCONSISTSOFTHEFOLLOWINGAT$ECEMBER

expected to be $442,000 in 2017, $426,000 in 2018, $373,000 in 2019, $314,000 in 2020, $312,000 in 2021 and $1.3 million thereafter.
%STIMATEDANNUALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES INCLUDINGACQUIREDSOFTWARE FORWHICHTHEAMORTIZATIONEXPENSE

Gross carrying amount of acquisition intangibles:
Customer related intangibles
Acquired software
Trade name
Leases acquired
Accumulated amortization
Total intangibles, net

2016

2015

$ 186,231
176,096
11,065
3,694
377,086
(109,827)
$ 267,259

$ 181,671
172,666
10,765
3,694
368,796
(73,418)
$ 295,378

ISRECORDEDASCOSTOFREVENUES FORTHENEXTlVEYEARSISASFOLLOWS
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

(5) ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following at December 31:

4OTALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORINTANGIBLESWASMILLIONIN MILLIONIN ANDMILLIONDURING
Accrued wages, bonuses and commissions
Other accrued liabilities

4HEALLOCATIONOFACQUISITIONINTANGIBLEASSETSISSUMMARIZEDINTHEFOLLOWINGTABLE
December 31, 2016
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Non-amortizable intangibles:
Goodwill
Amortizable intangibles:
Customer related intangibles
Acquired software
Trade name
Leases acquired

Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period

December 31, 2015

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Weighted
Average
Amortization Accumulated
Period
Amortization

$ 35,120
34,443
33,107
31,660
31,302

2016

2015

$ 38,996
16,993
$ 55,989

$ 32,006
17,150
$ 49,156

(6) REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT
On November 16, 2015, we entered into a $300.0 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) with the various lenders party thereto

$650,237

—

$

—

$653,666

—

$

—

and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. The Credit Facility provides for a revolving credit line of up to
$300.0 million, including a $10.0 million sublimit for letters of credit. The Credit Facility matures on November 16, 2020. Borrowings under

186,231
176,096
11,065
3,694

15 years
7 years
12 years
9 years

51,491
55,115
2,740
481

181,671
172,666
10,765
3,694

15 years
7 years
12 years
9 years

38,754
32,880
1,747
37

the Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital requirements, acquisitions and share repurchases.
"ORROWINGSUNDERTHE#REDIT&ACILITYBEARINTERESTATARATEOFEITHER 7ELLS&ARGO"ANKSPRIMERATESUBJECTTOCERTAINHIGHERRATE
determinations) plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%. As of
December 31, 2016, our interest rate was 1.96%. The Credit Facility is secured by substantially all our assets. The Credit Facility

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the two years ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Balance as of 12/31/2014
Goodwill acquired during 2015 related to the purchase of NWS
Goodwill acquired during 2015 related to the purchase of Brazos
Balance as of 12/31/2015
Goodwill acquired during 2016 related to a small acquisition
Purchase price adjustments related to NWS acquisition
Balance as of 12/31/2016

REQUIRESUSTOMAINTAINCERTAINlNANCIALRATIOSANDOTHERlNANCIALCONDITIONSANDPROHIBITSUSFROMMAKINGCERTAININVESTMENTS ADVANCES 
cash dividends or loans, and limits incurrence of additional indebtedness and liens. As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Total

$ 117,585
527,618
1,906
647,109
3,943
(7,372)
$ 643,680

$ 6,557
—
—
6,557
—
—
$ 6,557

$ 124,142
527,618
1,906
653,666
3,943
(7,372)
$ 650,237

with those covenants.
As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings and unused borrowing capacity of $287.8 million under the
Credit Facility. In addition, as of December 31, 2016, we had two outstanding letters of credit totaling $2.2 million in favor of a client contract
ANDTHEEXPANSIONOFANOFlCEBUILDINGIN9ARMOUTH -AINE"OTHLETTERSOFCREDITGUARANTEEOURPERFORMANCEUNDEREACHCONTRACTANDBOTH
expire in 2017.
We paid interest of $1.9 million in 2016 and $223,000 in 2015.
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(4) GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

%STIMATEDANNUALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOACQUIREDLEASESWILLBERECORDEDASAREDUCTIONTOHARDWAREANDOTHERREVENUEANDIS

/THERINTANGIBLEASSETSANDRELATEDACCUMULATEDAMORTIZATIONCONSISTSOFTHEFOLLOWINGAT$ECEMBER

expected to be $442,000 in 2017, $426,000 in 2018, $373,000 in 2019, $314,000 in 2020, $312,000 in 2021 and $1.3 million thereafter.
%STIMATEDANNUALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATINGTOACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES INCLUDINGACQUIREDSOFTWARE FORWHICHTHEAMORTIZATIONEXPENSE

Gross carrying amount of acquisition intangibles:
Customer related intangibles
Acquired software
Trade name
Leases acquired
Accumulated amortization
Total intangibles, net

2016

2015

$ 186,231
176,096
11,065
3,694
377,086
(109,827)
$ 267,259

$ 181,671
172,666
10,765
3,694
368,796
(73,418)
$ 295,378

ISRECORDEDASCOSTOFREVENUES FORTHENEXTlVEYEARSISASFOLLOWS
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

(5) ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following at December 31:

4OTALAMORTIZATIONEXPENSEFORINTANGIBLESWASMILLIONIN MILLIONIN ANDMILLIONDURING
Accrued wages, bonuses and commissions
Other accrued liabilities

4HEALLOCATIONOFACQUISITIONINTANGIBLEASSETSISSUMMARIZEDINTHEFOLLOWINGTABLE
December 31, 2016
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Non-amortizable intangibles:
Goodwill
Amortizable intangibles:
Customer related intangibles
Acquired software
Trade name
Leases acquired

Weighted
Average
Amortization
Period

December 31, 2015

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Weighted
Average
Amortization Accumulated
Period
Amortization

$ 35,120
34,443
33,107
31,660
31,302

2016

2015

$ 38,996
16,993
$ 55,989

$ 32,006
17,150
$ 49,156

(6) REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT
On November 16, 2015, we entered into a $300.0 million Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facility”) with the various lenders party thereto

$650,237

—

$

—

$653,666

—

$

—

and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent. The Credit Facility provides for a revolving credit line of up to
$300.0 million, including a $10.0 million sublimit for letters of credit. The Credit Facility matures on November 16, 2020. Borrowings under

186,231
176,096
11,065
3,694

15 years
7 years
12 years
9 years

51,491
55,115
2,740
481

181,671
172,666
10,765
3,694

15 years
7 years
12 years
9 years

38,754
32,880
1,747
37

the Credit Facility may be used for general corporate purposes, including working capital requirements, acquisitions and share repurchases.
"ORROWINGSUNDERTHE#REDIT&ACILITYBEARINTERESTATARATEOFEITHER 7ELLS&ARGO"ANKSPRIMERATESUBJECTTOCERTAINHIGHERRATE
determinations) plus a margin of 0.25% to 1.00% or (2) the 30, 60, 90 or 180 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%. As of
December 31, 2016, our interest rate was 1.96%. The Credit Facility is secured by substantially all our assets. The Credit Facility

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the two years ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:

Balance as of 12/31/2014
Goodwill acquired during 2015 related to the purchase of NWS
Goodwill acquired during 2015 related to the purchase of Brazos
Balance as of 12/31/2015
Goodwill acquired during 2016 related to a small acquisition
Purchase price adjustments related to NWS acquisition
Balance as of 12/31/2016

REQUIRESUSTOMAINTAINCERTAINlNANCIALRATIOSANDOTHERlNANCIALCONDITIONSANDPROHIBITSUSFROMMAKINGCERTAININVESTMENTS ADVANCES 
cash dividends or loans, and limits incurrence of additional indebtedness and liens. As of December 31, 2016, we were in compliance

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Total

$ 117,585
527,618
1,906
647,109
3,943
(7,372)
$ 643,680

$ 6,557
—
—
6,557
—
—
$ 6,557

$ 124,142
527,618
1,906
653,666
3,943
(7,372)
$ 650,237

with those covenants.
As of December 31, 2016, we had $10.0 million in outstanding borrowings and unused borrowing capacity of $287.8 million under the
Credit Facility. In addition, as of December 31, 2016, we had two outstanding letters of credit totaling $2.2 million in favor of a client contract
ANDTHEEXPANSIONOFANOFlCEBUILDINGIN9ARMOUTH -AINE"OTHLETTERSOFCREDITGUARANTEEOURPERFORMANCEUNDEREACHCONTRACTANDBOTH
expire in 2017.
We paid interest of $1.9 million in 2016 and $223,000 in 2015.
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(7) INCOME TAX

!LTHOUGHREALIZATIONISNOTASSURED WEBELIEVEITISMORELIKELYTHANNOTTHATALLTHEDEFERREDTAXASSETSWILLBEREALIZED!CCORDINGLY WE

4HEINCOMETAXPROVISIONBENElT ONINCOMEFROMOPERATIONSCONSISTSOFTHEFOLLOWING

BELIEVENOVALUATIONALLOWANCEISREQUIREDFORTHEDEFERREDTAXASSETS(OWEVER THEAMOUNTOFTHEDEFERREDTAXASSETCONSIDEREDREALIZABLE
COULDBEADJUSTEDINTHEFUTUREIFESTIMATESOFREVERSINGTAXABLETEMPORARYDIFFERENCESAREREVISED4HEREWERENOUNRECOGNIZEDTAX

Years Ended December 31,

Current:
Federal
State

2016

2015

2014

$ 41,366
7,023
48,389
(28,939)
$ 19,450

$ 44,841
6,670
51,511
(7,956)
$ 43,555

$ 34,504
4,827
39,331
(3,804)
$ 35,527

4HE)NTERNAL2EVENUE3ERVICEh)23v ISEXAMININGOUR53INCOMETAXRETURNFORTHEYEAR!SOF&EBRUARY  NOSIGNIlCANT

Deferred

Years Ended December 31,

















adjustments have been proposed by any taxing jurisdiction. We are unable to make a reasonable estimate as to when cash settlements,
if any, will occur.
We are subject to U.S. federal tax as well as income tax of multiple state and local jurisdictions. We are no longer subject to United States
federal income tax or state and local income tax examinations for years before 2011.
We paid income taxes, net of refunds received, of $30.2 million in 2016, $27.3 million in 2015, and $10.2 million in 2014.

Reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to our effective income tax expense rate for operations follows:

Federal income tax expense at statutory rate
3TATEINCOMETAX NETOFFEDERALINCOMETAXBENElT
Domestic production activities deduction
%XCESSTAXBENElTSRELATEDTOSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISES
Non-deductible business expenses
Other, net

BENElTSDURINGANYOFTHEREPORTEDPERIODS

2016

2015

2014

$ 45,257
4,807
(3,947)
(29,582)
2,979
(64)
$ 19,450

$ 37,949
3,715
(466)
—
2,414
(57)
$ 43,555

$ 33,064
2,867
(1,720)
—
1,485
(169)
$ 35,527

$UETOTHEADOPTIONOF!35.O  FEDERALANDSTATEEXCESSTAXBENElTSFROMSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESFORTHEYEARENDED

(8) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The following table details activity in our common stock:
Years Ended December 31,
2016

Stock option exercises
Purchases of common stock
Employee stock plan purchases
Shares issued for acquisitions

2015

2014

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

827
(882)
47
—

$ 23,527
(112,699)
6,236
—

1,118
(5)
43
2,149

$ 23,160
(645)
4,671
364,333

855
(294)
53
17

$ 14,680
(22,817)
4,144
1,473

$ECEMBER AREREmECTEDASAREDUCTIONOFTHEPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXES WHEREASTHEYWEREPREVIOUSLYACCOUNTEDFORASANINCREASE
TOSHAREHOLDERSEQUITY3EE.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFORADDITIONALINFORMATIONRELATEDTOTHISADOPTION

MILLION!SOF&EBRUARY  WEHADAUTHORIZATIONFROMOURBOARDOFDIRECTORSTOREPURCHASEUPTOMILLIONADDITIONALSHARESOF

The tax effects of the major items recorded as deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are:

our common stock.
2016

Deferred income tax assets:
Operating expenses not currently deductible
  3TOCKOPTIONANDOTHEREMPLOYEEBENElTPLANS
Capital loss and credit carryforward
Total deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Other
Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax liabilities

Subsequent to December 31, 2016 and through February 21, 2017, we repurchased 42,000 shares for an aggregate purchase price of

2015

(9) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION












$ 18,721
 19,665
—
38,386

$

9,953
13,504
179
23,636

(103,754)
(3,207)
(204)
(107,165)
$ (68,779)

(111,653)
(2,781)
(228)
(114,662)
$ (91,026)

Share-Based Compensation Plan
We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non-employee consultants. Stock
options generally vest after three to six years of continuous service from the date of grant and have a contractual term of 10 years. Once
options become exercisable, the employee can purchase shares of our common stock at the market price on the date we granted the option.
7EACCOUNTFORSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONUTILIZINGTHEFAIRVALUERECOGNITIONPURSUANTTO!3# 3TOCK#OMPENSATION$URINGFOURTH
quarter of 2016, we adopted ASU No. 2016-09 “Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting,” See Note 1 – “Summary
OF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFORFURTHERINFORMATION
As of December 31, 2016, there were 2.9 million shares available for future grants under the plan from the 20.0 million shares previously
approved by the shareholders.
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(7) INCOME TAX

!LTHOUGHREALIZATIONISNOTASSURED WEBELIEVEITISMORELIKELYTHANNOTTHATALLTHEDEFERREDTAXASSETSWILLBEREALIZED!CCORDINGLY WE

4HEINCOMETAXPROVISIONBENElT ONINCOMEFROMOPERATIONSCONSISTSOFTHEFOLLOWING

BELIEVENOVALUATIONALLOWANCEISREQUIREDFORTHEDEFERREDTAXASSETS(OWEVER THEAMOUNTOFTHEDEFERREDTAXASSETCONSIDEREDREALIZABLE
COULDBEADJUSTEDINTHEFUTUREIFESTIMATESOFREVERSINGTAXABLETEMPORARYDIFFERENCESAREREVISED4HEREWERENOUNRECOGNIZEDTAX

Years Ended December 31,

Current:
Federal
State

2016

2015

2014

$ 41,366
7,023
48,389
(28,939)
$ 19,450

$ 44,841
6,670
51,511
(7,956)
$ 43,555

$ 34,504
4,827
39,331
(3,804)
$ 35,527

4HE)NTERNAL2EVENUE3ERVICEh)23v ISEXAMININGOUR53INCOMETAXRETURNFORTHEYEAR!SOF&EBRUARY  NOSIGNIlCANT

Deferred

Years Ended December 31,

















adjustments have been proposed by any taxing jurisdiction. We are unable to make a reasonable estimate as to when cash settlements,
if any, will occur.
We are subject to U.S. federal tax as well as income tax of multiple state and local jurisdictions. We are no longer subject to United States
federal income tax or state and local income tax examinations for years before 2011.
We paid income taxes, net of refunds received, of $30.2 million in 2016, $27.3 million in 2015, and $10.2 million in 2014.

Reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to our effective income tax expense rate for operations follows:

Federal income tax expense at statutory rate
3TATEINCOMETAX NETOFFEDERALINCOMETAXBENElT
Domestic production activities deduction
%XCESSTAXBENElTSRELATEDTOSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISES
Non-deductible business expenses
Other, net

BENElTSDURINGANYOFTHEREPORTEDPERIODS

2016

2015

2014

$ 45,257
4,807
(3,947)
(29,582)
2,979
(64)
$ 19,450

$ 37,949
3,715
(466)
—
2,414
(57)
$ 43,555

$ 33,064
2,867
(1,720)
—
1,485
(169)
$ 35,527

$UETOTHEADOPTIONOF!35.O  FEDERALANDSTATEEXCESSTAXBENElTSFROMSTOCKOPTIONEXERCISESFORTHEYEARENDED

(8) SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
The following table details activity in our common stock:
Years Ended December 31,
2016

Stock option exercises
Purchases of common stock
Employee stock plan purchases
Shares issued for acquisitions

2015

2014

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

827
(882)
47
—

$ 23,527
(112,699)
6,236
—

1,118
(5)
43
2,149

$ 23,160
(645)
4,671
364,333

855
(294)
53
17

$ 14,680
(22,817)
4,144
1,473

$ECEMBER AREREmECTEDASAREDUCTIONOFTHEPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXES WHEREASTHEYWEREPREVIOUSLYACCOUNTEDFORASANINCREASE
TOSHAREHOLDERSEQUITY3EE.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFORADDITIONALINFORMATIONRELATEDTOTHISADOPTION

MILLION!SOF&EBRUARY  WEHADAUTHORIZATIONFROMOURBOARDOFDIRECTORSTOREPURCHASEUPTOMILLIONADDITIONALSHARESOF

The tax effects of the major items recorded as deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are:

our common stock.
2016

Deferred income tax assets:
Operating expenses not currently deductible
  3TOCKOPTIONANDOTHEREMPLOYEEBENElTPLANS
Capital loss and credit carryforward
Total deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Other
Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax liabilities

Subsequent to December 31, 2016 and through February 21, 2017, we repurchased 42,000 shares for an aggregate purchase price of

2015

(9) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION












$ 18,721
 19,665
—
38,386

$

9,953
13,504
179
23,636

(103,754)
(3,207)
(204)
(107,165)
$ (68,779)

(111,653)
(2,781)
(228)
(114,662)
$ (91,026)

Share-Based Compensation Plan
We have a stock option plan that provides for the grant of stock options to key employees, directors and non-employee consultants. Stock
options generally vest after three to six years of continuous service from the date of grant and have a contractual term of 10 years. Once
options become exercisable, the employee can purchase shares of our common stock at the market price on the date we granted the option.
7EACCOUNTFORSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONUTILIZINGTHEFAIRVALUERECOGNITIONPURSUANTTO!3# 3TOCK#OMPENSATION$URINGFOURTH
quarter of 2016, we adopted ASU No. 2016-09 “Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting,” See Note 1 – “Summary
OF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFORFURTHERINFORMATION
As of December 31, 2016, there were 2.9 million shares available for future grants under the plan from the 20.0 million shares previously
approved by the shareholders.
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Determining Fair Value of Stock Compensation

Stock Option Activity

6ALUATIONAND!MORTIZATION-ETHOD We estimate the fair value of share-based awards granted using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.

/PTIONSGRANTED EXERCISED FORFEITEDANDEXPIREDARESUMMARIZEDASFOLLOWS

7EAMORTIZETHEFAIRVALUEOFALLAWARDSONASTRAIGHT LINEBASISOVERTHEREQUISITESERVICEPERIODS WHICHAREGENERALLYTHEVESTINGPERIODS
Expected Life. The expected life of awards granted represents the period of time that they are expected to be outstanding. The expected life
REPRESENTSTHEWEIGHTED AVERAGEPERIODTHESTOCKOPTIONSAREEXPECTEDTOBEOUTSTANDINGBASEDPRIMARILYONTHEOPTIONSVESTINGTERMS 
REMAININGCONTRACTUALLIFEANDTHEEMPLOYEESEXPECTEDEXERCISEBASEDONHISTORICALPATTERNS
%XPECTED6OLATILITYUsing the Black-Scholes option valuation model, we estimate the volatility of our common stock at the date of grant
based on the historical volatility of our common stock.
Risk-Free Interest Rate. We base the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option valuation model on the implied yield currently
AVAILABLEON534REASURYZERO COUPONISSUESWITHANEQUIVALENTREMAININGTERMEQUALTOTHEEXPECTEDLIFEOFTHEAWARD
Expected Dividend Yield. We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock in more than ten years and we do not anticipate
PAYINGANYCASHDIVIDENDSINTHEFORESEEABLEFUTURE#ONSEQUENTLY WEUSEANEXPECTEDDIVIDENDYIELDOFZEROINTHE"LACK 3CHOLESOPTION
valuation model.
Expected Forfeitures. We use historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures. We record share-based compensation only for those
awards that are expected to vest.
The following weighted average assumptions were used for options granted:

Outstanding at December 31, 2013
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2016
Exercisable at December 31, 2016

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

5,720
675
(855)
(3)
5,537
747
(1,118)
(2)
5,164
846
(827)
(27)
5,156
2,311

$ 34.66
94.15
17.17
37.44
44.61
145.71
20.71
19.61
64.43
147.25
28.43
95.33
83.64
58.07

83

Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual Life
(Years)

7
6

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$ 320,924
$ 198,460

We had unvested options to purchase 2.8 million shares with a weighted average grant date exercise price of $104.91 as of December 31,

Years Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

Expected life (in years)
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected forfeiture rate

6.0
29.3%
1.8%
—%

6.0
28.3%
1.7%
1.7%

6.0
30.9%
1.8%
3.0%

2016 and unvested options to purchase 3.1 million shares with a weighted average grant date exercise price of $78.86 as of
December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2016, WEHADMILLIONOFTOTALUNRECOGNIZEDCOMPENSATIONCOSTRELATEDTOUNVESTED
options, NETOFEXPECTEDFORFEITURES WHICHISEXPECTEDTOBEAMORTIZEDOVERAWEIGHTEDAVERAGEAMORTIZATIONPERIODOFYEARS
Other information pertaining to option activity was as follows during the twelve months ended December 31:
2016

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESUMMARIZESSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSERELATEDTOSHARE BASEDAWARDSWHICHISRECORDEDINTHESTATEMENTSOF
comprehensive income:
Years Ended December 31,

Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Total share-based compensation expenses
4AXBENElT
Net (decrease) increase in net income









2016

2015

2014

$ 6,548
23,199
29,747
(30,059)
$ (312)

$ 3,380
16,802
20,182
(5,986)
$14,196

$ 2,177
12,642
14,819
(4,237)
$10,582

!DOPTIONOF!35 RESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESRATHERTHANPAID INCAPITALOF
$29.6 million for period ended December 31, 2016.

Weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised

$ 46.89
103,703

2015

2014

$ 45.17
149,542

$ 31.32
69,768

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) participants may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation to purchase
common shares of Tyler. The purchase price of the shares is equal to 85% of the closing price of Tyler shares on the last day of each
quarterly offering period. As of December 31, 2016, there were 847,000 shares available for future grants under the ESPP from the
2.0 million shares previously approved by the stockholders.
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Determining Fair Value of Stock Compensation

Stock Option Activity

6ALUATIONAND!MORTIZATION-ETHOD We estimate the fair value of share-based awards granted using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.

/PTIONSGRANTED EXERCISED FORFEITEDANDEXPIREDARESUMMARIZEDASFOLLOWS
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Expected Life. The expected life of awards granted represents the period of time that they are expected to be outstanding. The expected life
REPRESENTSTHEWEIGHTED AVERAGEPERIODTHESTOCKOPTIONSAREEXPECTEDTOBEOUTSTANDINGBASEDPRIMARILYONTHEOPTIONSVESTINGTERMS 
REMAININGCONTRACTUALLIFEANDTHEEMPLOYEESEXPECTEDEXERCISEBASEDONHISTORICALPATTERNS
%XPECTED6OLATILITYUsing the Black-Scholes option valuation model, we estimate the volatility of our common stock at the date of grant
based on the historical volatility of our common stock.
Risk-Free Interest Rate. We base the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option valuation model on the implied yield currently
AVAILABLEON534REASURYZERO COUPONISSUESWITHANEQUIVALENTREMAININGTERMEQUALTOTHEEXPECTEDLIFEOFTHEAWARD
Expected Dividend Yield. We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock in more than ten years and we do not anticipate
PAYINGANYCASHDIVIDENDSINTHEFORESEEABLEFUTURE#ONSEQUENTLY WEUSEANEXPECTEDDIVIDENDYIELDOFZEROINTHE"LACK 3CHOLESOPTION
valuation model.
Expected Forfeitures. We use historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures. We record share-based compensation only for those
awards that are expected to vest.
The following weighted average assumptions were used for options granted:

Outstanding at December 31, 2013
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2014
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2016
Exercisable at December 31, 2016

Number of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

5,720
675
(855)
(3)
5,537
747
(1,118)
(2)
5,164
846
(827)
(27)
5,156
2,311

$ 34.66
94.15
17.17
37.44
44.61
145.71
20.71
19.61
64.43
147.25
28.43
95.33
83.64
58.07
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Weighted Average
Remaining
Contractual Life
(Years)

7
6

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$ 320,924
$ 198,460

We had unvested options to purchase 2.8 million shares with a weighted average grant date exercise price of $104.91 as of December 31,

Years Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

Expected life (in years)
Expected volatility
Risk-free interest rate
Expected forfeiture rate

6.0
29.3%
1.8%
—%

6.0
28.3%
1.7%
1.7%

6.0
30.9%
1.8%
3.0%

2016 and unvested options to purchase 3.1 million shares with a weighted average grant date exercise price of $78.86 as of
December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2016, WEHADMILLIONOFTOTALUNRECOGNIZEDCOMPENSATIONCOSTRELATEDTOUNVESTED
options, NETOFEXPECTEDFORFEITURES WHICHISEXPECTEDTOBEAMORTIZEDOVERAWEIGHTEDAVERAGEAMORTIZATIONPERIODOFYEARS
Other information pertaining to option activity was as follows during the twelve months ended December 31:
2016

4HEFOLLOWINGTABLESUMMARIZESSHARE BASEDCOMPENSATIONEXPENSERELATEDTOSHARE BASEDAWARDSWHICHISRECORDEDINTHESTATEMENTSOF
comprehensive income:
Years Ended December 31,

Cost of software services, maintenance and subscriptions
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Total share-based compensation expenses
4AXBENElT
Net (decrease) increase in net income









2016

2015

2014

$ 6,548
23,199
29,747
(30,059)
$ (312)

$ 3,380
16,802
20,182
(5,986)
$14,196

$ 2,177
12,642
14,819
(4,237)
$10,582

!DOPTIONOF!35 RESULTEDINTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSINOURPROVISIONFORINCOMETAXESRATHERTHANPAID INCAPITALOF
$29.6 million for period ended December 31, 2016.

Weighted average grant-date fair value of stock options granted
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised

$ 46.89
103,703

2015

2014

$ 45.17
149,542

$ 31.32
69,768

Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) participants may contribute up to 15% of their annual compensation to purchase
common shares of Tyler. The purchase price of the shares is equal to 85% of the closing price of Tyler shares on the last day of each
quarterly offering period. As of December 31, 2016, there were 847,000 shares available for future grants under the ESPP from the
2.0 million shares previously approved by the stockholders.
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(10) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(12) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Basic earnings and diluted earnings per share data were computed as follows:

7EPROVIDEADElNEDCONTRIBUTIONPLANFORTHEMAJORITYOFOUREMPLOYEESMEETINGMINIMUMSERVICEREQUIREMENTS4HEEMPLOYEESCAN
contribute up to 30% of their current compensation to the plan subject to certain statutory limitations. We contribute up to a maximum of

Years Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

$ 109,857

$ 64,869

$ 58,940

36,448

34,137

33,011

OFANEMPLOYEESCOMPENSATIONTOTHEPLAN7EMADECONTRIBUTIONSTOTHEPLANANDCHARGEDOPERATINGRESULTSMILLIONDURING
2016, $5.3 million during 2015, and $4.3 million during 2014.

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share:
Net income
Denominator:
Weighted-average basic common shares outstanding
Assumed conversion of dilutive securities:
Stock options
Denominator for diluted earnings per share – Adjusted weighted-average shares
Earnings per common share:
Basic

(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Other than routine litigation incidental to our business, there are no material legal proceedings pending to which we are party or to which

Diluted

2,513
38,961

2,415
36,552

2,390
35,401

$

3.01

$ 1.90

$ 1.79

$

2.82

$ 1.77

$ 1.66

Stock options representing the right to purchase common stock of 786,000 shares in 2016, 417,000 shares in 2015, and 481,000 shares in

any of our properties are subject.

(14) SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION
We are a major provider of integrated information management solutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local and
state governments.
We provide our software systems and services and appraisal services through four business units, which focus on the following products:

2014 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect.

•

Financial management, education and planning, regulatory and maintenance software solutions

$URINGFOURTHQUARTEROF WEADOPTED!35.O REQUIRINGTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSASACOMPONENTOFINCOMETAX

•

Financial management, municipal courts, and land and vital records management software solutions

EXPENSETHESEBENElTSWEREHISTORICALLYRECOGNIZEDINEQUITY!STHESTANDARDREQUIREDAPROSPECTIVEMETHODOFADOPTION OURNET

•

Courts and justice and public safety software solutions

INCOMEINCLUDESAMILLIONINCOMETAXBENElTDUETOTHEADOPTIONTHATDIDNOTOCCURINTHECOMPARABLEPERIODSPRESENTEDABOVE)N

•

Appraisal and tax software solutions and property appraisal services

addition, the standard updates the method of calculating diluted shares resulting in the inclusion of 519,000 additional shares in our diluted
%03CALCULATIONTHATISNOTCOMPARABLETOTHEOTHERPERIODSPRESENTED2EFERTO.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFOR

)NACCORDANCEWITH!3#  3EGMENT2EPORTING THElNANCIALMANAGEMENT EDUCATIONANDPLANNING REGULATORYANDMAINTENANCE

further discussion of this new accounting standard.

SOFTWARESOLUTIONSUNITlNANCIALMANAGEMENT MUNICIPALCOURTSANDLANDANDVITALRECORDSMANAGEMENTSOFTWARESOLUTIONSUNITANDTHE
courts and justice and public safety software solutions unit meet the criteria for aggregation and are presented in one reportable segment,
Enterprise Software (“ES”). The ES segment provides municipal and county governments and schools with software systems and services to

(11) LEASES
7ELEASEOFlCEFACILITIESFORUSEINOUROPERATIONS ASWELLASTRANSPORTATION COMPUTERANDOTHEREQUIPMENT-OSTOFOURLEASESARENON
cancelable operating lease agreements and they expire at various dates through 2023. In addition to rent, the leases generally require us to
pay taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating expenses.

MEETTHEIRINFORMATIONTECHNOLOGYANDAUTOMATIONNEEDSFORMISSION CRITICALhBACK OFlCEvFUNCTIONSSUCHASlNANCIALMANAGEMENTAND
courts and justice and public safety processes. The Appraisal and Tax (“A&T”) segment provides systems and software that automate the
appraisal and assessment of real and personal property as well as property appraisal outsourcing services for local governments and taxing
authorities. Property appraisal outsourcing services include: the physical inspection of commercial and residential properties; data collection

Rent expense was approximately $6.7 million in 2016, $7.2 million in 2015, and $6.7 million in 2014, which included rent expense

and processing; computer analysis for property valuation; preparation of tax rolls; community education; and arbitration between taxpayers

associated with related party lease agreements of $330,000 in 2016, $1.8 million in 2015, and $1.7 million in 2014.

and the assessing jurisdiction.

Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable leases at December 31, 2016 are as follows:

7EEVALUATEPERFORMANCEBASEDONSEVERALFACTORS OFWHICHTHEPRIMARYlNANCIALMEASUREISBUSINESSSEGMENTOPERATINGINCOME
7EDElNESEGMENTOPERATINGINCOMEFOROURBUSINESSUNITSASINCOMEBEFORENONCASHAMORTIZATIONOFINTANGIBLEASSETSASSOCIATEDWITH

Years Ending December 31,

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total

their acquisition, interest expense and income taxes. Segment operating income includes intercompany transactions. The majority of
$ 5,177
4,221
3,556
3,273
2,059
601
$ 18,887

intercompany transactions relate to contracts involving more than one unit and are valued based on the contractual arrangement. Segment
operating income for corporate primarily consists of compensation costs for the executive management team and certain accounting and
administrative staff and share-based compensation expense for the entire company. Corporate segment operating income also includes
revenues and expenses related to a company-wide user conference. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
THOSEDESCRIBEDIN.OTE h3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESv
Segment assets include net accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets and net property and equipment. Corporate
assets consist of cash and investments, prepaid insurance, intangibles associated with acquisitions, deferred income taxes and net property
and equipment mainly related to unallocated information and technology assets.
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(10) EARNINGS PER SHARE

(12) EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Basic earnings and diluted earnings per share data were computed as follows:

7EPROVIDEADElNEDCONTRIBUTIONPLANFORTHEMAJORITYOFOUREMPLOYEESMEETINGMINIMUMSERVICEREQUIREMENTS4HEEMPLOYEESCAN
contribute up to 30% of their current compensation to the plan subject to certain statutory limitations. We contribute up to a maximum of

Years Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

$ 109,857

$ 64,869

$ 58,940

36,448

34,137

33,011

OFANEMPLOYEESCOMPENSATIONTOTHEPLAN7EMADECONTRIBUTIONSTOTHEPLANANDCHARGEDOPERATINGRESULTSMILLIONDURING
2016, $5.3 million during 2015, and $4.3 million during 2014.

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share:
Net income
Denominator:
Weighted-average basic common shares outstanding
Assumed conversion of dilutive securities:
Stock options
Denominator for diluted earnings per share – Adjusted weighted-average shares
Earnings per common share:
Basic

(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Other than routine litigation incidental to our business, there are no material legal proceedings pending to which we are party or to which

Diluted

2,513
38,961

2,415
36,552

2,390
35,401

$

3.01

$ 1.90

$ 1.79

$

2.82

$ 1.77

$ 1.66

Stock options representing the right to purchase common stock of 786,000 shares in 2016, 417,000 shares in 2015, and 481,000 shares in

any of our properties are subject.

(14) SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION
We are a major provider of integrated information management solutions and services for the public sector, with a focus on local and
state governments.
We provide our software systems and services and appraisal services through four business units, which focus on the following products:

2014 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have had an anti-dilutive effect.

•

Financial management, education and planning, regulatory and maintenance software solutions

$URINGFOURTHQUARTEROF WEADOPTED!35.O REQUIRINGTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSASACOMPONENTOFINCOMETAX

•

Financial management, municipal courts, and land and vital records management software solutions

EXPENSETHESEBENElTSWEREHISTORICALLYRECOGNIZEDINEQUITY!STHESTANDARDREQUIREDAPROSPECTIVEMETHODOFADOPTION OURNET

•

Courts and justice and public safety software solutions

INCOMEINCLUDESAMILLIONINCOMETAXBENElTDUETOTHEADOPTIONTHATDIDNOTOCCURINTHECOMPARABLEPERIODSPRESENTEDABOVE)N

•

Appraisal and tax software solutions and property appraisal services

addition, the standard updates the method of calculating diluted shares resulting in the inclusion of 519,000 additional shares in our diluted
%03CALCULATIONTHATISNOTCOMPARABLETOTHEOTHERPERIODSPRESENTED2EFERTO.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFOR

)NACCORDANCEWITH!3#  3EGMENT2EPORTING THElNANCIALMANAGEMENT EDUCATIONANDPLANNING REGULATORYANDMAINTENANCE

further discussion of this new accounting standard.

SOFTWARESOLUTIONSUNITlNANCIALMANAGEMENT MUNICIPALCOURTSANDLANDANDVITALRECORDSMANAGEMENTSOFTWARESOLUTIONSUNITANDTHE
courts and justice and public safety software solutions unit meet the criteria for aggregation and are presented in one reportable segment,
Enterprise Software (“ES”). The ES segment provides municipal and county governments and schools with software systems and services to

(11) LEASES
7ELEASEOFlCEFACILITIESFORUSEINOUROPERATIONS ASWELLASTRANSPORTATION COMPUTERANDOTHEREQUIPMENT-OSTOFOURLEASESARENON
cancelable operating lease agreements and they expire at various dates through 2023. In addition to rent, the leases generally require us to
pay taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating expenses.

MEETTHEIRINFORMATIONTECHNOLOGYANDAUTOMATIONNEEDSFORMISSION CRITICALhBACK OFlCEvFUNCTIONSSUCHASlNANCIALMANAGEMENTAND
courts and justice and public safety processes. The Appraisal and Tax (“A&T”) segment provides systems and software that automate the
appraisal and assessment of real and personal property as well as property appraisal outsourcing services for local governments and taxing
authorities. Property appraisal outsourcing services include: the physical inspection of commercial and residential properties; data collection

Rent expense was approximately $6.7 million in 2016, $7.2 million in 2015, and $6.7 million in 2014, which included rent expense

and processing; computer analysis for property valuation; preparation of tax rolls; community education; and arbitration between taxpayers

associated with related party lease agreements of $330,000 in 2016, $1.8 million in 2015, and $1.7 million in 2014.

and the assessing jurisdiction.

Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable leases at December 31, 2016 are as follows:

7EEVALUATEPERFORMANCEBASEDONSEVERALFACTORS OFWHICHTHEPRIMARYlNANCIALMEASUREISBUSINESSSEGMENTOPERATINGINCOME
7EDElNESEGMENTOPERATINGINCOMEFOROURBUSINESSUNITSASINCOMEBEFORENONCASHAMORTIZATIONOFINTANGIBLEASSETSASSOCIATEDWITH

Years Ending December 31,

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total

their acquisition, interest expense and income taxes. Segment operating income includes intercompany transactions. The majority of
$ 5,177
4,221
3,556
3,273
2,059
601
$ 18,887

intercompany transactions relate to contracts involving more than one unit and are valued based on the contractual arrangement. Segment
operating income for corporate primarily consists of compensation costs for the executive management team and certain accounting and
administrative staff and share-based compensation expense for the entire company. Corporate segment operating income also includes
revenues and expenses related to a company-wide user conference. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
THOSEDESCRIBEDIN.OTE h3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESv
Segment assets include net accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets and net property and equipment. Corporate
assets consist of cash and investments, prepaid insurance, intangibles associated with acquisitions, deferred income taxes and net property
and equipment mainly related to unallocated information and technology assets.

86

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Annual Report 2016

Tyler Technologies

87

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ES segment capital expenditures in 2016 included $17.7 million for the expansion of an existing building and purchase of a building
and land.

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income to the Company’s consolidated totals:

As of the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Revenues
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Intercompany
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization expense
Segment operating income
Capital expenditures
Segment assets

$ 68,844
135,516
158,478
304,380
—
11,942
6,742
$ 685,902
43,962
190,817
23,843
$ 295,260

$ 5,462
7,188
16,326
18,589
26,287
16
—
$ 73,868
984
18,286
1,432
$ 31,769

—
—
—
—
—
3,015
(6,742)
$ (3,727)
5,355
(41,832)
11,448
$1,030,916

74,306
142,704
174,804
322,969
26,287
14,973
—
$ 756,043
50,301
167,271
36,723
$1,357,945

As of the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Corporate

Totals

Revenues
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Intercompany
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization expense
Segment operating income
Capital expenditures
Segment assets

$ 54,376
107,090
129,068
227,586
—
6,935
4,025
$ 529,080
15,413
141,401
6,112
$ 265,877

$ 4,632
4,843
10,784
17,951
25,065
12
—
$ 63,287
867
15,477
646
$ 22,283

—
—
—
—
—
2,680
(4,025)
$ (1,345)
3,294
(38,490)
6,746
$1,068,410

59,008
111,933
139,852
245,537
25,065
9,627
—
$ 591,022
19,574
118,388
13,504
$1,356,570

As of the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Corporate

Totals

Revenues
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Intercompany
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization expense
Segment operating income
Capital expenditures
Segment assets

$ 46,047
84,322
104,146
195,881
—
5,398
2,812
$ 438,606
11,140
114,993
3,644
$ 170,369

$ 3,018
3,526
9,675
16,815
21,802
11
—
$ 54,847
866
11,603
359
$ 16,463

Corporate

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
2,460
(2,812)
$
(352)
2,599
(25,370)
5,446
$ 382,980

Totals

$

$

$

49,065
87,848
113,821
212,696
21,802
7,869
—
$ 493,101
14,605
101,226
9,449
$ 569,812

Total segment operating income
Amortization of acquired software
Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Other (expense) income, net
Income before income taxes

2016

2015

$ 167,271
(22,235)
(13,731)
(1,998)
$ 129,307

$ 118,388
(4,440)
(5,905)
381
$ 108,424

2014

$ 101,226
(1,858)
(4,546)
(355)
$ 94,467

(15) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)
4HEFOLLOWINGTABLECONTAINSSELECTEDlNANCIALINFORMATIONFROMUNAUDITEDSTATEMENTSOFINCOMEFOREACHQUARTEROFAND
Quarters Ended
2016

Revenues
'ROSSPROlT
Income before income taxes (a)
Net income (a)
Earnings per diluted share
Shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share (a)

2015
Dec.

31(b)

Sept. 30

June 30

Mar. 31

Dec. 31

Sept. 30

June 30

Mar. 31

$193,281
92,817
35,119
31,196
$ 0.80

$194,497
93,480
36,419
35,430
$ 0.91

$188,972
86,936
30,195
25,007
$ 0.65

$179,293
82,118
27,574
18,224
$ 0.47

$158,916
73,222
19,540
8,618
$ 0.23

$150,845
71,833
31,744
20,142
$ 0.55

$146,295
68,253
29,781
18,836
$ 0.52

$ 134,966
63,879
27,359
17,273
$ 0.48

38,975

39,062

38,738

39,071

37,864

36,349

36,097

35,895

A  $URINGFOURTHQUARTER WEADOPTED!35.O REQUIRINGTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSASACOMPONENTOFINCOMETAXEXPENSETHESEBENElTSWERE
HISTORICALLYRECOGNIZEDINEQUITY!STHESTANDARDREQUIREDAPROSPECTIVEMETHODOFADOPTION OURFOURTHQUARTERNETINCOMEINCLUDESAMILLIONINCOMETAX
BENElTDUETOTHEADOPTIONTHATDIDNOTOCCURINTHECOMPARABLEPRIORYEARPERIODSPRESENTEDABOVE4HETHREEMONTHSENDED-ARCH *UNE AND3EPTEMBER 
 RESPECTIVELY HAVEBEENADJUSTEDFORTHENEWLYADOPTEDSTANDARD2EFERTO.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFORFURTHERDISCUSSIONOFTHIS
new accounting standard.
(b) /PERATINGRESULTSFORTHETHREEMONTHSENDED$ECEMBER  INCLUDEMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHEREXPENSES
NECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73ACQUISITIONASWELLASMILLIONAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATEDTO.73ACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES
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Years Ended December 31,

ES segment capital expenditures in 2016 included $17.7 million for the expansion of an existing building and purchase of a building
and land.

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income to the Company’s consolidated totals:

As of the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Revenues
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Intercompany
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization expense
Segment operating income
Capital expenditures
Segment assets

$ 68,844
135,516
158,478
304,380
—
11,942
6,742
$ 685,902
43,962
190,817
23,843
$ 295,260

$ 5,462
7,188
16,326
18,589
26,287
16
—
$ 73,868
984
18,286
1,432
$ 31,769

—
—
—
—
—
3,015
(6,742)
$ (3,727)
5,355
(41,832)
11,448
$1,030,916

74,306
142,704
174,804
322,969
26,287
14,973
—
$ 756,043
50,301
167,271
36,723
$1,357,945

As of the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Corporate

Totals

Revenues
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Intercompany
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization expense
Segment operating income
Capital expenditures
Segment assets

$ 54,376
107,090
129,068
227,586
—
6,935
4,025
$ 529,080
15,413
141,401
6,112
$ 265,877

$ 4,632
4,843
10,784
17,951
25,065
12
—
$ 63,287
867
15,477
646
$ 22,283

—
—
—
—
—
2,680
(4,025)
$ (1,345)
3,294
(38,490)
6,746
$1,068,410

59,008
111,933
139,852
245,537
25,065
9,627
—
$ 591,022
19,574
118,388
13,504
$1,356,570

As of the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Enterprise
Software

Appraisal
and Tax

Corporate

Totals

Revenues
Software licenses and royalties
Subscriptions
Software services
Maintenance
Appraisal services
Hardware and other
Intercompany
Total revenues
Depreciation and amortization expense
Segment operating income
Capital expenditures
Segment assets

$ 46,047
84,322
104,146
195,881
—
5,398
2,812
$ 438,606
11,140
114,993
3,644
$ 170,369

$ 3,018
3,526
9,675
16,815
21,802
11
—
$ 54,847
866
11,603
359
$ 16,463

Corporate

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
2,460
(2,812)
$
(352)
2,599
(25,370)
5,446
$ 382,980

Totals

$

$

$

49,065
87,848
113,821
212,696
21,802
7,869
—
$ 493,101
14,605
101,226
9,449
$ 569,812

Total segment operating income
Amortization of acquired software
Amortization of customer and trade name intangibles
Other (expense) income, net
Income before income taxes

2016

2015

$ 167,271
(22,235)
(13,731)
(1,998)
$ 129,307

$ 118,388
(4,440)
(5,905)
381
$ 108,424

2014

$ 101,226
(1,858)
(4,546)
(355)
$ 94,467

(15) QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)
4HEFOLLOWINGTABLECONTAINSSELECTEDlNANCIALINFORMATIONFROMUNAUDITEDSTATEMENTSOFINCOMEFOREACHQUARTEROFAND
Quarters Ended
2016

Revenues
'ROSSPROlT
Income before income taxes (a)
Net income (a)
Earnings per diluted share
Shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share (a)

2015
Dec.

31(b)

Sept. 30

June 30

Mar. 31

Dec. 31

Sept. 30

June 30

Mar. 31

$193,281
92,817
35,119
31,196
$ 0.80

$194,497
93,480
36,419
35,430
$ 0.91

$188,972
86,936
30,195
25,007
$ 0.65

$179,293
82,118
27,574
18,224
$ 0.47

$158,916
73,222
19,540
8,618
$ 0.23

$150,845
71,833
31,744
20,142
$ 0.55

$146,295
68,253
29,781
18,836
$ 0.52

$ 134,966
63,879
27,359
17,273
$ 0.48

38,975

39,062

38,738

39,071

37,864

36,349

36,097

35,895

A  $URINGFOURTHQUARTER WEADOPTED!35.O REQUIRINGTHERECOGNITIONOFEXCESSTAXBENElTSASACOMPONENTOFINCOMETAXEXPENSETHESEBENElTSWERE
HISTORICALLYRECOGNIZEDINEQUITY!STHESTANDARDREQUIREDAPROSPECTIVEMETHODOFADOPTION OURFOURTHQUARTERNETINCOMEINCLUDESAMILLIONINCOMETAX
BENElTDUETOTHEADOPTIONTHATDIDNOTOCCURINTHECOMPARABLEPRIORYEARPERIODSPRESENTEDABOVE4HETHREEMONTHSENDED-ARCH *UNE AND3EPTEMBER 
 RESPECTIVELY HAVEBEENADJUSTEDFORTHENEWLYADOPTEDSTANDARD2EFERTO.OTEh3UMMARYOF3IGNIlCANT!CCOUNTING0OLICIESvFORFURTHERDISCUSSIONOFTHIS
new accounting standard.
(b) /PERATINGRESULTSFORTHETHREEMONTHSENDED$ECEMBER  INCLUDEMILLIONFORlNANCIALADVISORY LEGAL ACCOUNTING DUEDILIGENCE VALUATIONANDOTHEREXPENSES
NECESSARYTOCOMPLETETHE.73ACQUISITIONASWELLASMILLIONAMORTIZATIONEXPENSERELATEDTO.73ACQUISITIONINTANGIBLES
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